





Department of Public Safety Standards and Training

Memo
Date: April 25, 2019
To: Board on Public Safety Standards and Training
From: Kristen Hibberds

Professional Standards Investigator/Coordinator
Discipline;  Police
Subject: Wolfer, James DPSST# 51798

Basic Police Certification

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
OVERVIEW:

In August, 2017, DPSST received notification that Wolfer separated from employment
with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.

Basis for PPC review:

1. On August 13, 2017, Wolfer allegedly engaged in diéhoncsty when he stated that a

suspect “squared-up on me” leading to the use of his Taser.

2. Wolfer allegedly engaged in dishonesty when he stated that he tased the suspect a

second time because the suspect was resisting while he was trying to get cuffs on him.
POLICE POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
Wolfer’s conduct DID NOT violate the Board’s Moral Fitness Standard.
PPC’s Discussion and Consensus:

* This was a performance issue demonstrating a lack of training and experience.

o Differing statements were attributed to a high risk/tense encounter as the solo

officer with a violent offender.
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AGGRAVATING/MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES:
Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances wete not discussed based on no violations of

the Moral Fitness Standard found.

Finding:
On February 21, 2019, the PPC met and by discussion and consensus recommended the

Board take NO ACTION against Wolfer’s Basic Police Certification after consideration

of the facts unique to this case,

ACTION ITEM 1:

Review and affirm the recommendation of the Police Policy Committee.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY STANDARDS AND TRAINING

In the Matter of the Revocation/Suspension of

OF THE STATE OF OREGON

the Basic Police Certification for:

JAMES WOLTFER
DPSST No.: 51798

DEPARTMENT EXHIBIT LIST

PC & Misc.

EXHIBIT # DESCRIPTION OFFERED ADMITTED
Al DPSST Training Profile
A2 8-18-17 | I'4 — Resignation during investigation
A3 0.28.18 Letter from DA regarding prosecution

and Brady

Ad 8-13-07 | Oregon State Police Incident Report
AS 8-18-17 | Administrative Investigation Findings
Ab 8-16-17 | Dallas PD review of use of force
AT 8-16-17 | Grand Ronde Investigation Report
A8 8-16-17 | Memo to Chief — Administrative IV
A9 8.13.17 Wolfer’s Incident Report, Supplemental,

All Grand Ronde PD Policies
Al2 Mitigation
Al3 2-21-19

NOTE: Only the portions of the Inves.tig'afive materials pertaining to the behavior identified above have N

been included. Information deterinined not to be relevant to the Board’s certification standards have been

redacted,

Department Exhibit List: Wolfer, James DPSST #51798

April 25,2019

Board on Public Safety Standards and Training
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Wolfer, James K. (51798)
_ Gender
Birth Date

Age
File Number

Male
L

3

Ethnicity
Education
 Emall
o Supervisor

Arigmgfoyment'Summary

N Et‘i\_bTyp’gﬂ

W_hl te —

iamz{a's.woi'fga‘r_@granc‘l’ronde._qrg o .

' Photo

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
Hired: 5-23-2016

- Inactive
Last Action: 8-18-2017 Resigned

1 Years

Total Service: 87 Days .

Assighment:

Level:

Shift:
Function: Police

Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Class:

.
"

Warm Springs Police Department
Hired: 90-18-2010

- Inactive
Last Action: 1-17-2012 Discharged

Total Service: 1Years &1 Days

Assighment:
Level:

Shift:
Function: Police

. Certification
Date Status

" Certified

Pos/Rank: Police Officer

Class:!

.
.

Expires  Probation Cert#

Police Maintenance / Basic
1-01-2017  Regquired

12-31-2019

Police Officer / Basic
12-22-2016  Granted

12-22-2016

14-48-2017

111616-da pending eniry of Final FG for PCOD 055 OK

. Employment History e

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
Date: 8-18-2017 Action: Resigned

Status: Inactive

Assighment:

Level:

Shift:
Function: Police

Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Class:

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Depa
Date: 5-23-2016 Action; Hired

en

Service: 1 Years 87 Days

Status: Active

Assignhment:
level.
Shift:

Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Class:

Lxhibit Al
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Wolfer, James K. {51798)

Function: Police

| Warm Springs Police Department

Date: 1-17-2012 Action: Discharged Status: tnactive
Assignment: Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Level: Class:
Shift: :
Function: Police
Warm Springs Police Department Service: Years 363 Days
Date: 1-20-2011 Action: DPSST Reclassification Status: Active
Assignment: Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Levek Class:
Shift: :
Function: Police
Warm Springs Police Department , Service! Years 95 Days
Date: 10-18-2010 Action: Hired Status: Active
Assignment: Pos/Rank: Civilian Employee
Level: ' Class:
Shift: :
[ Tralning o
Course Title S N 7 Date  Hours Score Status
F6C24972 [ Firearms Training | 6-28-2017 | 1.00 | 0.00 |Passed
CITY: Grand Ronde; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ~; AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTEDBY: —
|F6C18153  |Firearms Qualification .| 6.28-2017 | 100 .IMO 00 |Passed
CITY: Grand Ronde ; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER, ;| SUBMITTED BY:
_F6C36316 |Ethios Bulletin Vol 164 16262017 | 050 | 000 {Passed |
CITY: G:andRonde INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: N AUTHOR!ZEDSUBMITTER:,‘ SUBMITTED BY:
[F60944§L ~ |Advanced | Roads|de Impaired Driving Enforcement | 6-00-2017 { 16.00 | 0©.00 iPassed N
CITY: Portland;, INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ; AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTEF\’ SUBMITTED BY:
|F8C30724 | Ethics Bulletin Vol 161 B | 14192017 | 050 | 0.0 {Passed
CITY: Grand Ronde; "INSTRUCTOR CONTACT, o AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER SUBM:’TTED 8y
| F6C14523 | Hazmat First Responder Awareness (FRA) Level | | 3312017 | 200 L 000 |Passed |
Grand Ronde’
| F6C18537 | Counter Assault o 7 _ | 3-22-2017 | 1.00 |, 0.0 {Passed |
CITY: Dailas; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ; AU?HORIZEDSUBMITTER SUBMITTED BY:
|F_§C02801 | Naloxone Training Protocol | 3-13-2017 | 1.00 | 0.00 |Passed
CITY: GrandRonde INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: N AUTHORIZEDSUBM!TTER SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C37327 | Ethics Bulletin Vol 160 13102017 | 050 | 0.00 | Passed
CITY: Grand Ronde; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: | AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: | SUBMITTED BY.
| F6C13068 | Ethics Bulletin Vol 159 o | 3102017 | 050 | 0,00 |Passed.
CITY: Grand Ronde; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: | SUBMITTED BY: ~
| F6C26596 | Initial Response and Investigation of Child Deaths | 2-22-2017 | 1.00 | 0.00 {Passed
CITY: Grand Ronde,  INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ; AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER  SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C29664 40 Hour CITR Training Day 1 | 217-2017 |  8.00 | 0.00 |Passed |

CITY: Dallas; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ; AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTEDBY

Exhibit A1
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Employee Profile .

Wolfer, James K.

(51798)

|F6C29684 |40 Hour CITR Tralning Day 1 | 2-16-2017 | 800 | 0,00 |Passed |
" CITY. Dallas; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: AurHORt‘Tz‘D"s"UBTMTER SUBMITTED BY:
|F6C29664 140 Hour CITR Training Day 1 [ 2-15-2017 | 8 00 0.00 'Passed
© CITY: "Dalias;  INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: | AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER . SUBMITTED BY: ™
| F6C29664 {40 Hour CITR Training Day 1 | 2-14-2017 | 800 ; 0.00 |Passed |
GITY: Dallas; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT, © AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER:; SUBMITTED ! BY
| F6C29684 |40 Hour CITR Training Day 1 _ | 2-13-2017 | 800 | 0.00 |Passed |
CITY. Dallas;.  INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ~; AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER:; SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C39434 | Low Light/Night Shooting/Quallfication i 1-25-2017 | SOOWL 0.00 |Passed |
CITY. Grand Ronde; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT. ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C23667 |DPSST Ethics Bulletin Vol 158 | 1-24-2017 | 050 | 000 |Passed
CITY. Grand Ronde, INSTRUCTOR CONTACT, ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER:; SUBMITIED BY:
| F6C04689 | Agency Policies and Proceedures-Lexipol t1-16-2017 | 8.00 0.00 |Passed |
CITY. Grand Ronde,  INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY:
2017 Pass/Complete: 76.50
|F6C31343 | DPSST Ethics Bulletin Vol 157 112-27-2016 | 0,50 0.00|Passed |
CITY. Grand Ronde;  INSTRUGTOR CONTAGT + "AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C19092  |DPSST Ethics Bulletin Vol 156 {11-17-2016 | 050 | 0.00 |Passed
CITY. Grand Ronde;, INSTRUCTOR CONTACGT: ; AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY:
16T001 Palice Field Tralning Manual 111-14-2016 50.00 | 0.00 |Completed
| 16-0008 " IDPSST Basic Police COD T [{412016 | 80.00 | 0.00 [Passed '
5 gl. Hernandez 503-679-1824 (uno(hy hemandez@grandronde org
083016 mriesterer changed from pending lo regist.
|FBA01948 | DPSST Ethics Bulletin Vol 153 | 8-26-2016 | 0.60 | 0.00 |Passed B
Grand Ronde
|FBA01774 | CPR/First Ald Recertification JAED ) | 8-12-2016 |  6.00 | 000 |Passed |
Grand Roncle
|16-0011  |Intoxilyzer 8000-Training hours included in Basic J_a -11-2016 | 800 | 000 |Passed |
Salem, Oregon
| F6A01827 ‘SFSTIDID o | 8042016 | 24.00 | 000 |Passed |
Salem, Oregon
|F6C31336  |DPSST Ethics Bulletin | 8-27-2016 | 050 | 0.0 'Passed !
“““““ I GITY: Grand Ronde;  INSTRUCTOR CONTACT ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY:
FBAC0764 |Ethics Bulletin #149 | 6-14-2016 0,50 0.00 |Passed
F6A00765 |Ethics Bulletin #150 T T 16442016 | 050 | 000 |Passed |
R 2016 Pass/Complete:  171.00 -
11-0834 Invesllgation Training - Other [12-?5-201‘; 1.00 0.00 |Passed
11-0132 Firearms Qualification - 110-04-2071 4.60 | 0.00 [Passed
11-0008  |DPSST Basic Police o g-16-2011 1 7640.00 | 0.00 |Passed
” [T Oswald "Bear Tias, 541-553-3972 ollas@wslribes.org 1ax 541-553-1376
11-0011 Intoxllyzer 8000-Training hours included in Basic I 8-19-2011 | 0.00 0.00 |Passed
'11-0010 SFST/DID- Tralning hours included In Basic T EAT2073 g"‘”‘o.oo © 000 _Passed
9-3087 | Lidar(peralors Colrse T 7572011 | 600 T 000 [Passed
11-3092 """"'RadarOperators‘oBu_rs“e'”“" T ”1'“7'f2“§bﬁ'1"1"“"‘ 800 | 0.00 Passed
11-1106" " | Criminal Jurisdiction in Indian Country 17g132011 | 2,00 0.00 |Passed |
11-0132 TFirearms Quaﬁficationm_ o i 4-05- 2011 T 400_1. 0.00 'Pass'é?“'_—'
Exhibit Al

Page 3 of 4




Wolfer, James K. (51798)
1‘|—j116 Legal/l.egislative Update i. 4-05-2011 2.00 0.00 |Passed
114237 I Traffic Enforcement | 3.24-2011 300 | 000 [Passed
11-1198 Buiiding Searches 3-23-2011 300 | 000 |Passed
| 11-1075 Intoxilyzer 8000 e 1-14-2011 | 800 | 000 jPassed |
2011 Pass/Complete: 681.00
[10-1120  ISearch & Sejzure - 112302010 | 1.00 | 000 [Passed |
. 2010 Pass/Complete: 1.00
Total Pass/Complete: 929.50
_ Education
Date Degree Major School Hours Q/S
“Attributes S
Effective Expires Topic Attribute
8-25-2016 Training Deficency F4 Personnel action report missing
5-23-2016 Form Recelved F2 completed on
1-20-2011 Form Received F4
1-20-2011 Form Received F5
1-03-2011 Form Received F2 completed on
| Notes - S . . .
Date Topic Title / Description
11-03-2016  Code of Ethics OK
3-12-2012  Certlification Notes F-8 Received-ok
§-23-2011  Code of Ethics ok
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(
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY STANDARDS.ANU \RAINING

Personnel Action @; :

Send to DPSST within ten days of effective dute of actlon fOAR 259-0
Kisea instructions on sacond page e

1, Type of Action:

[New Hire [IStatus Change {EiSeparation [JAmended (Roason far Amendment):

m
3 2. Name! Last Firse M 4, Hire Date; | 5 DPSST Number {feava blank if new)
o |Wolfer James K 105/23/2016  |51798 5/ 7F &
® | 6. Agency ' 7. Divislon/Branch/Institution 8, Rank ar Positlon
g Grand Ronde Tribal Police Patro! Patro) Officer
S’ | 9. Current Disciplinals) which employee Is actively working,
g X pohice [ Reguiatory Speciallst [ Telacommunications [T Reserve Police Officer
2| [T corrections [l Parole & Probatlon [ Emergency Medical Dispatch [ DPSST/DOC Mandated Course Instructor i
5
10, Is Mult Disclpline certificatlon required to fulflll a necd for the efficient aperation of your sgency? It CYes @No
11, Gender 12, Rece/Ethnicity: | 13, HighSchool O Olploma.  School Name, Lotation, State:
- | OMale Ofemale Education QGEd
g 14, Backeround/Fingerprints &
T, | a Date Fingerprints submitted to Oregon State Polica LD, Sarvices,
® | b Hasa background Investigation baen complated 3s requlred by QAR 289-008-00157 8 OYes ONo

¢. Optional: DI the background investigation reveal any convictions or pending eriminal matters other than traffic vielatlons? B (Ves Ono

9BUEBYD SN3eIS

15, Status Change Date: | 16, Status Change

[_IName Change: Erom; To:

Qrromstion QMulti-Discipling Reciassification Oleava of Absence

(ORaclassificatlon QDermotlon OMiittary Leeve of Absence

ODOC Transfer O betnotion-Voluntary OReturn from Leave of Absence
162, Previays Rank, Position, Branch, Disclpling: | 18h, Current Rank, Pasition, Branch, Discipiine: | 16n, O Ceriifiable

Oon-Certifiable

(3187 /]Sz?lgs(;?go;lia}%:’ 17a. Is this employee scheduled to attend a DPSST academy? @ OYes @No

w [P .
% 18,DSeparadtion Tyes ™ & O Resignation ORatlrementsDuring 3n investigationfy
3 OD“‘*’“ N O Resignation-Settiement Agrgement.k (O Retlrement-in lleu of terminations
g O dischargefi @ Reslgnation-During an investigation k. (O Retirament-Madical .
S | Oay-oft Q ReslgnationsIn lleu of termination. b O0ther: A Attach additlons peges asnetessary,
O rrobationary Dischargad, ORetlement
Oprobationary Dischar.g.e (FTEP Fallure} (3 petrement Settiement Agreement.f. AW recqulre further review by DPSST
20, Provide up to three Indivicuals who DPSST may contact regarding this form, Inchide only work email addresses, @
§ Rank, Name, Emall ahd Phone Number:
o |timothy hemandez@grandronde.org v
& trod.moallister@grandronde.org ﬁ St

jake.ncknight@grandronde.org ¢y ee

| attest that { am the Department Head of hold DPSST Certification and am authorized by the Department Haad to sign balow, [ cartify that the

o | information entered on thig form hag been vesified and Is substantiated by records maintalned by my agency. if certiflad by DPSST, | understand
&u;’ that falsification of thd docment makes my cartification(s) subject to denlal, suspenslon or revocation tnder ORS 181A.840 and OAR 259.008-
W | G070, B . :
gl .
o Slghature AN il . Data: .
rined Name: ‘TTETEleTmdez, ntle: Lt (acting Chief) bessTNo. . 32195
Email Address imothy hernandez@grandronde.org X Phone:  903-879-1824
Please send to DPSST: Emall: schedulecert@state.grus; Fax: 503-378-4600; Mail: 4130 Aumsvilie HWY SE; Salem OR 97317
o | Gertifled Pasition Elpallca O Corcections LIP&P O Regulatory Speciallst Pate copy forwarded forreview | Progessed By/Date
a g Bives O No | O Telecommuncator . D EMD LT Insteuctar ke BT el7
£p Nurnber [EDS_D) Clear GJIN E-Count O Clesr i T Sl e et o
K
revisad: 08/03/2087 © Cuestlons? Cell DPSST at 508-328-2400 or emal scnedulecertl@&fhé?ilibﬁ{*?
_ Pagelo




o POLK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

B

&

“adls.. | POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 973383177 AARON FELTON
PO LK C O U NTY CRIMINAL DIVISION * (503) 623-9268 District Altorney
SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT * (503) 623-9269 JSelton.aaron@co.polk.oitis

VICTIM ASSISTANCE * (503) 623-9268
FAX  (503) 623-7556

September 28, 2018

G. Aron Perez-Selsky
Attorney at Law
Perex-Selsky Law Office
P.0. Box 1656

315 NE HEyans St # 8 & 9
McMinnville, OR 97128

Re:  James Wolfer
OSP Case No.: SP18-001897

Dear Mr. Perez-Selsky:

This matter has been referred back to this office by the Marion County District Attorney’s Office
-aftet completion of an independent investigation into the conduct of your client, James Wolfer, for
the actions he is alleged to have been taken on August 13, 2017.

The putposes of my evaluation of Mr. Wolfer’s actions ate two-fold. Fiist, to determine whether Mr,
Wolfet’s conduct constituted any sort of ctiminal act for which a prosecution is approptiate under
Oregon law. Second, whether Mr. Wolfer’s actions ttiggesed my duty to disclose his conduct in cases
in which he may be called as 2 witness for the state pursuant to Brady v. Maryland. Tet me be cleat, no
analysis I conducted or conclusion I reached should be impatted to any civil ot administrative
proceeding related to these events which is assighed 2 lower burden of proof by law,

T have reviewed the written matetials as well as the aundio and video media compiled as part of the
investigations conducted by the Otegon State Police, Dallas Police Department, and Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department, It is important to note that only the Oregon State Police had the benefit
of a complete, counseled, interview with M. Wolfer to rely on duting its investigation,
Consequently, I, too, had the benefit of that information before me in reaching my decision.

Based on my teview of these materials, I find that there is not sufficient evidence to prove a crime
beyond a reasonable doubt. Given the totality of the circumstances, in particular the witness
statements and level of threat believed by Mr. Wolfer to be imminent, there is not sufficient

LExhibit A3
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G. Aron Perez-Selsky
September 28, 2018
Page 2

evidence to overcome the use of force justification afforded peace officers in ORS 161,235 -
161.245,

However, 1 reach a different conclusion as regasds my duty under Brady ». Maryland. As you know,
‘The United States Supreme Coutt in Brady v. Magyland, as well as the Ninth Cireuit Court of Appeals
in United States v, Henthorn, has held that prosecutors bear a personal responsibility to make the court
aware of any materials possessed by an investigative agency that are helpful to the defense, Such
materials include not only exculpatory information, but also any findings or substantiated allegations
that call into question the credibility of a governtent witness (impeachment information). The
investigations conducted by the Grand Ronde Tribal Police, Dallas Police and Oregon State Police
cach contain matetial that would be considered exculpatory if Mr, Wolfer were to be called as a
witness for the state in any ctiminal proceeding, Therefore, pursuant to Brady ». Maryland, it will now
be the practice of this office to disclose these materials to defense counsel in Polk County cases {or
other cases that we are aware of) in which Mr, Wolfer may be called as a witness for the state,

If you have additional questions, please do not hesitate to contact me,

Aaron Felton
Disttict Attorney

cc: Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police

Kristen I Hibberds
Oregon Depattment of
Public Safety Standasds and Training

Exhibit A3
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Oregon State Police

Incident Details:

Incident: SP18001897

Page 1 of 37

CONFIDENTIAL
This information Is helng provided to
a Crlrninal Justice Agency for thelr
ofticial use anly, Do not redistribute
without permission from
Oregon State Police

Incident Type:
incident time:
Reported time:

incident location:

Incident status:

Summary:

Assault

08/13/2007 17:03 ~ 08/13/2017 1761
01/02/2018 16.63

27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE, POLK CR USA 87347 (SPIRIT

MOUNTAIN CASINO) (Beat; GHQ, Reglon: NWR) 97347

Referred to DA for consideration

On January 2, 2018, | was tasked with investigaling a use of force Incident from Grand Ronde
Tribat Pollce Depariment, focated in Polk Counly, Subsequent invesiigation revealed that
there was not piobable cause o charge James Wolfer with Assault IV,

Involved Persons:

Name: SCOTT, KAITLYN Gender: Female
Classification:  Witness DOB:
DL:
Address: 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASING)
(Beal: GHQ, Region: NWR) 97347
Telephone; (cel phone) G
Name: WOOD, MICKEY Gender: Male
Classification: Witness DOB: |
DL: ;
Address: 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
(Beat: GHQ, Raglon; NWR) 97347
Telephone: (celi phone) [ NEGcGccNcN
Name: MALMQUIST, LEN Gender:  Malo
Classification:  Witness DOB:
DL.:
Address: 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 87347 {SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
{Beal: BHQ, Reglon: NWR) 87347
Telephone: (Cell phone) [ EG_
Name: NORWEST, ROBIN Gender:  Male
Exhibit A4
Page 1 of 37
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Classification: Wilness DOB:
DL:
Address; 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
{Beal: GHQ, Reglon: NWR) 97347
Telephone: {Cell phone) (603) 873-3732
Name: [ ] Gender:  Female
Classification:  Witness DOB: [ ]
DL:
Address: M, KLAMATH FALLS, KLAMATH
eal: , Reglon: NWR)
Telephone: (Cell phone) NG
Name: HERNANDEZ, TIM Gender: Male
Classification:  Police Officer - outside agency DOB:
DL:
Address: 26870 SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE, PCLK
OR USA 97347 (Beal: MNO, Region: NWR) 97347
Telephone: (Landiine) (503) 879-2417
'Name: MCALLISTER, ROD Gender:: Male
Classification: . Police Officer - culside agency DOB:
DL:
Address:
Telephone: (Landline) (503) 879-1826
Telephone: (Landline) (641) 247-3242
.Name: MCKNIGHT, JAKE Gender: Male
Classification: Poilce Offlcer - cutside agency DOB;
DL:
Address:
Name: WOLFER, JAMES Gender: Male
Classification:  Other lnvolved person - DOB;

DL
Adidress:
Telephone;

(Landline) (503) 879-5211

Involved Property:

file:///C:/Users/lheathc/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Yellow) him

P18005066 / Police recording / Evidence / BODY CAM
P 18005067 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING
P 18005447 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING
P18005449 / Police recording / Evidensce / AUDIC RECORDING
F18005451 { Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING

Exhibit A4
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» P18010453 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING
» P18010454 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING

involved Officers:

Suppoerting officer / BARRIENTOS, CARLOS / #41614 / OSP / Officer / SALEM DETECTIVES
Supporting officer / MOISAN, THEODORE / #42094 / OSP / Officer / SALEM DETECTIVES

» Reporling Officer/Case Lead / HEGNEY-BACH, CAS! / #49678 / OSP / Offlcer / SALEM PATROL
s Dispatcher/TC2 / CLEMENTS, ARIN / #56444 / OSP / Officer / DISPATCH

Reports:

General report:

Author; #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 04/02/2018 15:26
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS| Entered time: 04/02/2018 16:26
Naryative:

Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:

Marlon County District Attorney's Office

ASSOCIATED CASES:
Grand Ronde Tribal Police GRT17000673

'CRIMES UNDER INVESTIGATION:
Assault IV — ORS 163,160

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Initial Report — Use of Force

SUSPECT:
Mr, Wolfer, James

00: [

MENTIONED:
N B

Vietim

Mother of Victim

Securlty Guard Robin Norwest
Splrit Mountaln Casino

Security Guard Len Malmguist

Exhibit A4
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Spirit Mountaln Casino

Securlty Guard Mickey Wood
Splrlt Mountaln Caslno

Security Guard Kaitlyn Scott
Spirlt Mountain Caslno

MENTIONED POLICE:
Sergeant Mait Lawson
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lleutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department

Sergeant Rod McAllister
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 — DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17.

CHB-E2 ~ interview with [} NGB

CHB-E3 ~ Intervlew with Robin Norwest
CHB-E4 - interview with Len Malmquist
CHB-E5 - interview with Kaltlyn Scott
CHB-E6 — Interview with Mickey Wood
CHB-E7 — Audio interview with James Wolfer

ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

Probable Cause Affidavit from James Wolfer

Incident Report from James Wolfer

Incident Supplement from Tokata Tehama

Dispatch Report

Inter-Office Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation

Inter-Office Memorandum Investigation Report
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Salem Health West Valley Emergency Report for ||| | ||} Gz
Arrest Report — Polk County Jail

Dallas Police Departinent Incident Review

Letter of Rcsignaﬁon from James Wolfer

Trespass Notice from Spirit Mountain Casino

Certified Letter that houses Trespass Notice

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Pollcy
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Use of Force Policy

Grand Ronde Trlbal Police Department Personnel Complaint Policy

Public Records Request from ||} [ GN

Taser Certification and Test for James Wolfer
Taset Instructor Cettification for Rod McAllister
Taser download for James Wolfer

DPSST Training record for James Wolfer

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 2, 2018, | was tasked with investigating a use of force case from Grand Ronde Ttlbal
Police Department, located in Polk County, Sergeant Matt Lawson explained to me that the
use of force occurred between former police officer, James Wolfer and a male he arrested,
B o/ ugust 13,2017, Sergeant Matt Lawson told me the case involved Mr.
Wolfer and the use of his taser during the arrest of Mr. |||l

| read through the documents of this case, watched the body camera footage from James
Wolfer and interviewed witnesses. According to the Grand Ronde Tribai Police Dispatch Report
the followlng events occurred prior to Mr. Wolfer making contact with Mr,

e 5:03pm Inltial call for service came from Spirit Mountain Casino. Caslno reported a
trespass,
5:04pm — 5:05pm, trespasser Identified as ||| desctiptors were given.
Male had been trespassed from casino before,
5:06pm, security officers were watching Mr.
5:09pm, conflrmed warrant for Assault Il, felony cautions reported.
5:10pm, Mr. Wolfer steps up response to casino and then also arrived on scene.

On January 2, 2018, | reviewed Mr. Wolfer’s body camera, Here Is a summary of what | saw on
Mr. Wolfer’s body camera:
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On August 13, 2017 at approximately 5:11pm, Mr, Wolfer was on duty and in uniform, At this
time Mr, Wolfer activated hls body camera at Spirit Mountaln Casino. He was on a calil for

service dealing with a trespassed male named ||| |||} [ EEGzNG

Mr, Wolfer got out of his patrol vehicle and briefly talked to a security officer, who told him
where Mr, [JJJl] was iocated In the parking lot. Mr. Wolfer ran toward Mr, in the
parking lot while also pulling out his Taser. A female appeared to be with Mr.,

As Mr. Wolfer ran toward Mr, - he yelled, “Hey Stop, Police, Stop, get on the ground.”
Mr, Wolfer had his Taser pointed toward Mr, - The female, later identified as -

B s, “\What do you want?”

Mr. Wolfer yelled, “Get on the ground now!” Ms, asked, “Me?” Ms. - at this
time stepped between Mr, Wolfer and Mr. Mr. Wolfer yelied commands to Mr.
B =< Vis. I =nd he used his hands to point at which person he was referring;
Mr. Wolfer began yelling commands, “No not you. Back up. Go to the side. You on the
ground, Get on the ground now! Move aside. Get on the ground or you wil| be tased. Back
away, get on the ground, now.” Get on the grou. ..” While Mr, Wolfer was yelling, Mr,
B out his hands up in the air and took steps backwards,

Next Ms. [l took a step toward Mr, Wolfer and at the same time Mr, Wolfer pulled the
trigger on his Taser deploying a taser cartridge that hit Mr. [JJJJJij In the front of his upper
body., Mr. i fe!l forward to the ground and then he rolled onto his back. Ms. |||l
yelled, “You mother fucker|”

Mr. Wolfer said to Ms. [l “Get on the ground or you will be tased tool” Ms. |||
yelled back “Fucking do it, bitchi” Mr, Wolfer continued to tell Ms. to get on the
ground, Security Supervisor Mickey Wood stepped in front of Ms., At this time, Mr,
- was lying on his back with his arms extended out to his sides and he remained
motionless,

Mr. Wolfer requested Dispatch to send medics to his location. Mr. Woifer told Ms, |||l
to say away, Mr, Wolfer then told Mr, - two times to roil over onto his side and Mr.
I complied with the commands and rolled onto his stomach,

Mr. Wolfer told Mr, he was under arrest for a warrant and trespassing. He knelt
down, gave Mr, commands so he could place him In handcuffs and Mr. [
complied, ‘

While Mr. Wolfer was cuffing Mr. ||| ] Vs I continued yelling at Mr. Woifer and
Mr. Wolfer yelled back at her,

once in handeuffs Mr., [l asked several times, “what did | do?” v, || appeared
to be getting getting agitated durlng the verhal exchange between Mr, Wolfer and Ms.
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B vhiie vy [ ves asking, “What did [ do,” he started pushing slightly off the
ground with his knees; his head stayed on the ground. Mr, Wolfer then told Mr. - he
had a warrant, Mr. [l st appeared agitated and flexed his arms and rolled slightly onto
his left shoulder and then he rolled back onto his stomach. Mr. Wolfer warned Mr, to
stay on the ground or he would tase him again. Mr. ] said, "Fuck you” and Mr, Wolfer
activated a flve second taser cycle, Mr, - was not flexing or rolling or moving his knees
at the time Mr, Wolfer activated the taser probes. '

After the taser cycled, Mr, Wolfer sald, “Don’t move or you'll get It again.” He then said to M,
“You done? You pull away from me again you’ll get it again, Turn your head the other

way, turn your head.” Mr, Wolfer put hls hand on the back of Mr. head to turn his

head and Mr. - moved his head to face away from Mr, Wolfer.

At approximately 5:22pm Mr. brother, [ Mr. [ 2rrived on scene. Mr.
B cic not recognize and sald, “Who the fuck are you?” Mr. was

verbally argumentative throughout the rest of the video footage. Mr. speech was
repetitive and slurred, He repeatedly asked what he did wrong and asked why he got tased.

At approximately 5:23pm, medics arrived on scehe. At approximately 5:26pm medics checked
wr. [ for injuries and found he had an elevated heart rate and no injuries. During this
time Mr, Wolfer was talking to a Deputy La Combe and explained the situation including that

vr. [ was Intoxicated.

At approximately 5:30pm, Mr. Wolfer talked to one of the Spirit Mountain’s security personnel
and told him that he tased Mr. [ because Mr. [ sauared up on him,

At approximately 5:34pm, Mr. Wolfer helped Mr. [ stand and then he double locked
the handcuffs, At approximately 5:35pm, Mr. Wolfer and Mr. [JJij waiked to Mr, Wolfer's
patrol vehlcle and Mr, - was placed in the backseat.

At approximately 5:37pm, Mr. Wolfer transported Mr. [JJij to the Polk County jall. At
approximately 5:39pm, Mr, Wolfer called Seargeant McAllister via telephone and told him the
followlng:

“Hey Just thought I'd let you know uh | tased |||} I So calline vou for the use of
force, It was right when LT went uh end of watch so he couldn’t back me up. So he was
already gone, So... uh...he (] was trespassed and uh also had a felony warrant,
wouldn’t stop when | told to his mom was getting in the middle and then he squared up on me
and so | had to tase him. And then | actually hit him a second time because he was resisting
when | put the..when | was trylng to get the cuffs on by myself s0.”

Mr, Wolfer continued telllng Sergeant McAllister that Mr. was medically ¢cleared on
scene and that he was on him way to Polk County Jall. During transport there was a banging
sound and Mr, Wolfer told McAllister that Mr. was banglng hls head agalnst the car.
Mr. Wolfer ended his phone call with McAllister and then Mr. ] began velling in the
backseat asking what he did. Mr, Wolfer told Mr. he was trespassing. Mr.
continued yelling for a few minutes including making threats that Mr. Wolfer may end up
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getting killed and then he was sllent for a while.

At approximately 5:48pm, Mr, Wolfer radloed to dispatch to let the jail know to have multiple
deputies ready to help because Mr, - was making threats to harm police. At
approximately 5:54pm, there was a banging sound and Mr, Wolfer told Mr. - to stop.
Mr, - agaln asked where he was golng. Mr. - began yelling agalh and was
argumentatlve, Mr, Wolfer initially talked with him and then ignored Mr. [ veline.

At approximately 6.03pm, Mr, Wolfer arrived at Polk County Jail. M, - refused to give
a breath sample to jail staff to show level of intoxication. Mr. Wolfer transported Mr,

to Salem Health West Valley Emergency room where he was medically cleared; report is
attached,

At approximately 6:40pm, Mr, Wolfer returned to the Jall and lodged Mr. [JJij on for the
followlng charges {according to the Probable Cause Affidavit):

1. “ORS 162.245 Crimlnal Trespass |l ~ for belng at Splrit Mountain Casino after
previously being arrested from criminal trespass at that location and being told he was
permanently trespassed from the locatlon,”

2. “ORS 162.247 Interfering with a Police Officer, when Mr., - refused to stap and
get on the ground when | [Wolfer] gave him several loud verbal commands to stop
walking and lay down on the ground.”

3, "ORS 162,315 Resisting Arrest: for attempting to pull away from me [Wolfer] after |
told him he was under arrest.”

4, ORS166.025 Disorderly Conduct in the second degree; For yelling loudly in the parking
lot, causing multiple patrons to stop and stare, as well as belng verbally confrontational
with casino security.”

5. “Yambhlll Court Felony Warrant 17CR53185.”

| reviewed the Probahle Cause Affidavit and the Arrest Report for the Polk County Jail, dated
August 13, 2017, | found the following actions listed in the report were hot seen in the body
camera footage (these were addressed during the interview with Mr, Wolfer):

o V. [ velling at Mr. Wolfer when confronted In the parking lot at Spirit
Mountalnh Casino.

o Mr. [l walking away during the confrontation with Mr, Wolfer,

o Mr. I turning towards Mr, Wolfer and taking an aggressive stance while yelling
and “squaring up” hls body.

o After flrst tase, Mr. - rolling away from Mr. Wolfer and contlnuing this behavior
until the taser was activated for a second cycle,

I reviewed the Incldent Report written by Mr, Wolfer on 8/14/17, Mr, Wolfer addressed some
of the above dlscrepancles by writing, “1 later reviewed my body camera footage and observed
that directly before | activated by Taser, - took a step backward with hls hands up. | did
not notice this during the Incident due to the speed at which events were unfolding and due to
the fact that Ms. [JJl] was approaching me and | belleved | was about to be assaulted and

Exhibit A4
Page 8 of 37

file:///C:/Users/theathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Y ellow). htm 8/20/2018




Untitled Page 9 of 37

would have to fight both Ms. || =~ I v/thout a cover unit.”

I reviewed the Incldent Supplement Report written by Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
Tokata Tehama. In the report he wrote that on 8/13/17 at approximately 2015 hours he went
to Spirit Mountain Casino and retrieved the Anti-Felon ldentificaiton Tags (AFID Tags) from the
Taser deployment and placed them into evldence for Mr, Wolfer,

| reviewed the Inter-Office Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation
written by Lieutenant Tim Hernandez, According to this memorandum Lieutenant Hernandez
reviewed the body camera footage from Mr, Wolfer dated 8/13/17 and concluded-the
following:

e The Taser applicatlon that he witnessed on the body camera footage violates
Confederated Tribes Grand Ronde (CTGR) policy 304.5.1 Application of Taser. This
pollcy states that the Taser device may be used when such application s reasonably
necessary to control a person that is violent or physically resisting or the subject has
demonstrated by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically resist, and
reasonably appears to present the potential to harm to others.

According to the Inter-Office Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation
on 8/14/17 at approximately 10:24am, Lieutenant Hernandez met with Mr. Wolfer and placed
him on pald adminlstrative leave. On 8/15/17, Lieutenant Hernandez made phone contact
with the City of Dallas Police Chief Tom Simpson and requested a use of force review. On

" 8/16/17 Dailas Pollce Lleutenant Mott completed a use of force report.

| reviewed the Dallas Police Department Incldent Review. In the incldent review Lieutenant
Mott wrote that Mr. Wolfer violated several sections of the Conducted Energy Device Policy
(Taser Policy):

e 304,5.1Application of Taser {aiready addressed above).

s 304,52 (d) by using a Taser on a handcuffed person who could otherwlse be restrained
without meeting threshold of increased risk to himself, the suspect or others.

e 304,5.2(f) by tasing an Individual who was standing on an asphait parking lot.

e 304.5.5 “This polley required Mr, Wolfer notify a supetrvisor of the Taser device
discharge. It is an Impiicit component of advising the supervisor to be honest in the
recounting of the event,

i reviewed the Inter-Office Memorandum Investigation Report written by Sergeant Rod
McAllister. In this report Sergeant McAliister reviewed the body camera and reports written by
Mr. Wolfer and recommended Mr. Wolfet’'s employment be terminated due to the followtng
policy violations:

e Policy 319 Standards of Conduct; 319.5.8 Performance(a)(b)(c) deals with false
statements, falsifying documents and falling to report false statements, etc,

* Polley 319 Standards of Conduct; 319.5.9 Conduct (b){c)(h) deals with unreasonable
force, exceeding lawful authority and criminal dishonest or disgraceful conduct,

{ Interviewed the followlng people in this case:
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Chlef Jake McKnight — Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez — Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McCallister — Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

I - other of S I

Robln Norwest — Security guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

ten Maimqulst — Securlty guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

Mickey Wood ~ Security guard at Spirit Mountaln Casine

Kaitlyn Scott ~ Security guard at Splrit Mountain Casino

James Wolfer — Suspect and former police officer at Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce
Department '

-

CONDO VP WON R

The four security guards | interviewed regarding this case believe Mr. Wolfer acted
appropriately and professionally and used the appropriate level of force to control the
sltuation, They all told me Mr. | was trespassing at Spirit Mountain Casino and he had a
warrant for Assault Il They also told me Mr, [JJi] was Intoxicated, confrontational,
belligerent and they believed him to be a vlolent and dangerous Indlvidual, See the Interview
reports, the audio recordings and the transcripts for Robin Norwest, Len Malmquist, Mickey
Wood and Kaltlyn Scott for more details,

All of those interviewed, who saw Mr, [JJlif Inside the Spirit Mountain Casino on August 13,
2017 told me he was Intoxicated and confrontational. When | interviewed Mr,

mom, she admitted her son was Intoxlcated and acting irrationally, However, she belleved Mr,
Wolfer used excessive force when he tased Mr. ||| | N

Ms. [l to'd me Spirit Mountaln Casino sent a trespass notice to Mr. [JJJJi§ after this
incldent, She sent me a picture of the certifled envelope, dated 8/22/17 and the Notice of
Trespass, The letter states ||| | ] I s \ndefinitely excluded from the Spirlt Mountaln
Caslno; signed by Securlty Manager Mickey Wood and dated 8/19/17.

lasked Ms, [ for contact information for Mr. [l She told me he was living in the
Portland area with his girifriend. She gave me the cell phone number to his girifriend, |}
B ' cove Vs I v contact information and she told me she would try to get Mr,
B (o call me. See the interview report, audio recording and transcript from the
interview with Ms. [l for more informatlon,

| made several attempts to reach Mr. [ | d'd get ahold of || I o» 1/25/18 and
tofd her [ needed to talk with Mr. [l and | explained the investigatlon to her. I gave her
my contact Informatlon, | stopped attempting to make contact in the beginnlng of February. |
have not heard back from Mr. I as of the day of this report.

On January 8, | met with Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and Sergeant McAllister
from Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department. Coilectlvely they provided me with the followlng
documents:

¢ Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Policy

¢ Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Use of Force Pollcy
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Grand Ronde Tribai Police Department Personnel Complaint Pollcy

Public Records Request from ||} [ sc<kine reports and video from the
incident that occurred on 8/13/17,

Taser Certification and Test for James Wolfer

Taser Instructor Certificatlon for Rod McAllister

¢ Taser download for James Wolfer

L 4

*

From my Interviews with Chief McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez, Sergeant McAllister and Mr,
Wolfer, | found Mr. Wolfer was never Interviewed regarding this incident. Mr, Wolfer was
placed on paid administrative leave on 8/14/17, Mr, Wolfer had a meeting with Lieutenant
Hernandez on 8/18/17 and he was told they were recommending termination due to violating
the Standards of Conduct and Taser policies. Mr. Wolfer wrote a letter of resignation that day;
attached to this report.

| additionally found from my Interviews with Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and
Sergeant McAllister that they unanimously belleve that Mr, Wolfer used excessive force that
rose to the level of a criminal assault, However the investigation report completed by Sergeant
Rod McAllister did not address excessive force, See the interview reports with Chief Jake
McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and Sergeant McAllister and the Investigation Report
campleted by Sergeant McAllister for more information.,

On March 2, | interviewed former Police Officer James Wolfer regarding the events that
occurred on August 13, 2017. My, Wolfer went Into detall describing his Interaction with Mr.
B V. Wolfer told me he was by himself. He told me while he was responding to the
scene, his supervisor warned him that Mr. [JJJJili] usually has his brother with him and then
his supervisor went off duty. He told me his back up from Polk County was at least ten minutes
away. He told me from his experience, most security officers won't get Involved in physical
confrontations, He told me he was aware that Mr. [Jij was violent, uncooperative, and
aggresslve prior to his arrival on scene,

Once on scene, the situation became more serious because he was faced with Mr,

and an unknown female who was Interfering with him making an arrest. He stated Mr,
B /as larcer than him In size and was not cooperative. He told me he also believed Mr,
B b other was somewhere In the area. After being cuffed, Mr. [ beger
reslsting again and Mr. Wolfer believed the unknown woman would make an effort to assault
him In an effort to free Mr. [l The unknown woman was later Identifled as
mother, Mr, Wolfer said he used his Taser to control the situation and stop Mr. from
reslsting further, Looking at the totality of the circumstances, Mr. Wolfer told me he used the
force he felt necessary In order to make an arrest,

Mr. Wolfer was able to articulate himself well and he addressed the differences seen on the
video compared to his reports, He talked about having tunnel vision and how the camera did
not pick up what he was feeling and seeing. Mr. Wolfer also explained that he was scared
during this Incldent and Lieutenant Hernandez told me durlng his Interview that Mr. Wolfer did
not do well with hostile contacts,
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In additlon, from 2011 through 2017, Mr. Woifer only attended one, one hour defensive tactles
training class, He Wolfer did not meet the malntenance standards set by DPSST for annual
required tralning for use of force, DPSST requires 8 hours every year for use of force or
firearms, From June 2046 to August 2017, Mr, Woelfer attended 6 hours of tralning, five of them
for firearms and one hour for defensive training; Counter Assault,

See the Interview report, audlo recording and transcript from the interview with Mr, Wolfer for
more Information,

The victim in this case, ||| |} ]} I 25 not cooperative and did not glve a statement
during this investigation.

DISPOSITION:
Refer to the Marion County District Attorney’s Office for conslderation.

Supplemental:
Author; #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time:  03/26/2018 13:62
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/26/2018 13:62
Narrative:
Case f{SP18001897

DiSTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney’s Office
SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:

Witness Interview -- -

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James
DO8B;
MENTIONED:

Security Manager Mickey Wood
Splrlt Mountain Casino
EVIDENCE: -

cHB-£2 ~ Interview with ||} I

ATTACHED:

Oregaon State Police Property Report Form 66

Trespass Notice from Spirit Mountain Casine
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Certified Letter Envelope that housed Trespass Notice

ACTION TAKEN:
On January 12, 2018 at approximately 10:23am ! Interviewed [} [ ' teferhone. | told Ms, McDaniel our
conversation was being recorded and | asked her to tell me what she witnessed on August 13, 2047 concerning her son,

s, [ to'c me that on August 12, 2017 she and her son were headed back home from a Pow-Wow In Slletz. She told
me they stopped at $plrlt Mountaln Casino to eat at the buffet, She told me when she went to pay for the buffet she realized
she needed her irlbal Identiflcation in order to get a discount, She told me she went back to her car and grabbed her ID and
when she got back her son was gone,

ms. [ told me staff told her [l wes using the bathroom, sha told me she waited for a long time and then
knocked on the men’s bathroom door and he wasn’t in there, She told me she went looking for him. She told me at first she
cotldn’t find him and she ended up ordering food In the dell. She told me she finally found him in the {ounge sitting at a bench
seat and thare were two security guards at each exit, She told me the security guards were staring at [ she told me
she walked up to her san and told him they were |aaving.

Ms. [ to'd me [ seemed drunk and she thought how could he be drunk when they had only been at the casino
for around twenty to twenty flve minutas, She told me she asked the bartender If she gave him shots, She told me the
bartender said she orly gave him bread and water, She told me she locked arms wlth her son at the elbow and sald, “Let’s go,”

s. [ continued teliing me [ was being difficult and he didn’t want to leave, She told him she ordered foad

from the deli and they needed to go plck it up and leave. She told me the security guards followed them when they feft, She
told me they exited the lounge through the high stakes gaming area. She told me [ evabbed a chalr that was sitting at
one of the slot machines and knocked it over. She told me she scolded him and told him he was going to make thlings worse.

Ms. [ to¢ me they went to the dell and got thelr food and the securlty guards were still followIng them from a distance
and watching them. She told me the securlty guards did not talk with her.

tasked Ms. [ i she tatked with [ sbout why security guards were followlng them and she told me
seemed drunk and was slurring his words so she didn't feel ilke she could ask him, She told me she Just wanted to get out of
there,

Ms. [ told me while they were In the parking lot walking towards her car Officer Wolfer came racing towards them
with his taser drawn. Below Is an excerpt from the interview with Ms. [ (page 2, tines 1- 44).

-- Um, well, 1 was trying to get my son to feave the casino with me, uh, 'cause we ordered food to go and It
was ready, and so we got our food from the dell and we were walking out the, um, entrance near,
um, the, uh, Legends **** and, uh, we went out that way and were probably 30 or 40 feet from
my car whan, um, we heard Offlcer Walfer, 1 didn't know who he was at the time, but, uh, come
running up behind us with his taser drawn, yelilng at us stop or I'm gonna tase you, and took my
son and | both — we were, | do, we wers the only people | saw around the parking lot "cause |
looked around llke Is he taiking to us?

Deteactive Hegney-Bach: Mm hmm.

] And, and, uh, turned around and looked at him and we both stopped and, uh, | wanna say we threw
our hands up and sald what, what did we do, we didn't do anything.

Detectlve Hegney-Bach: Yeah.

[ [ ] And, uh, and he told me, he threatened me saying, um, because my son was walking In front of me, so
. when we turned around to face Offlcer Wolfer that made me {n between Officer Woifer and my
son, and, and he said If you don't move, If you don't get out of the way I'm gonna tase you and |
sald what, | didn't do anythlng, and, and | kept saying we didn't do anythlng. What, what do you
want and, and my son stepped out from behind me and, and he Just tased him.

Detective Hegney-Buch. Mm hmm, okay,
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] And, um, and he just stiffened up and feil over and, um, it really — that was traumatizing to see your
son get tased llke that 'cause, { mean it's the helpless situatlon. 1 mean he -

Detectlve Hegney-Bach, Yeah,

-- —fell aver and i told him lke right away like that was totally uncalled for, that was unnecessary, what's
this all about?

Detectlve Hegney-Bach: Yaah,

] ] And, um, he Just started going over to my son and, and putting handcuffs on him and as he was laylng
there still stIff and 1 look at the securlty officers around there who apparently had gone and got,
called the tribal police officer, uh, to come and arrest him and he sald there's 2 warrant for his
arrest. |sald out of where and he said that doesn't concern you, and, um, and | pulled out my
phone to, um, video record it, but I didn't have enough memeory on my phone to video record
anything,

Ms. [ to'd me one of the security guards asked Officer Wolfer If he wanted him to take her (Ms. [JJJJJij down. she
told me Cfflcer Wolfer sald it’s okay she can take plctures and record video,

s, [ to'd me she called her other son [} I ho was working in the casino and he came out to the scene.

She told me she felt [ke she was being buliled by the offlcer and the securlty guards, but once [ showed up everyone

calmed down. She told me Offlcer Wolfer was belng rough on her son and had hls knee In the hack of his head ilke was trying

to grind his face Into the asphalt. She told me when [JJj showed up Officer Woifer loosened up and fet up on his knee, Ms,
told me i convinced her to leave the scene and she want home to Klamath Falls,

Ms. [ to'd me she saw [l around a week tater at the Polk County Jall and she told me she did not see any
obwlous Injury on [l she toid me she saw a little discoloration, like old bruises faded from the left side of his face
around his forehead and cheek. She thought the mark was probably where [JJJJJij fet 2nd hit the concrete, she told me
I - 5o comnplained to her that he was sore where the taser probes hit him.

| asked Ms. If she knew how | could get atold of [ ) I << to'd me he lives in the Portland area with his
girifriend, She told me she doesn’t know exactly where they are llving but she gave me Ms,- phone
number,

MS.F told me Spirlt Mountaln sent a delayed trespass notlce to i} she teld me she had the notice and wouid

send It to me, {asked her If knew he was trespassed from the caslne, She tald me she thought [ was aware

hecause she talked with and told het they went in June 2017 and they told him to leave and that he was golng to be
told her

trespassed. Sha told me was drunk at the fime,

sent me a plcture of the certlfied envelope, dated 8/22/17 and the Notlce of
Is Indeflnitely excluded from the Splrit Mountain Casine; signed by Securlty

This concluded our Interview, Ms.
Trespass, The letter states
Manager Mickey Wood and dated 8/18/17,

//End Renort//

Supplemental:

Author; #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: ~ 03/26/2018 14:26
Entered by: #40678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/26/2018 14.26
Narrative:

Case {5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney’s Offlice

SUBJECY OF THIS REPORT!
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Witness Interview — Robln Norwest

SUSPECT:
Woifer, James

coo: S

MENTIONED:
Robln Norwest
Securlty Officer at Spirlt Mountain Casine

- Victim
DoB:

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Ted Moisan
Oregon State Pollce

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E3 - Interview with Robln Norwest

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 30, 2018 Detectlva Ted Molsan and { went to Spirlt Mountaln Caslno to conduct interviews with security staff, At
approximately 3:11pm we Interviewed Robln Norwest. [ tokd Mr, Norwest cur conversation was belng recorded and | asked
him to tell me what he witnessed on August 13, 2017 concerning

Mr. Norwest told me on August 13, 2017 he was dlspatched to handle an Intoxicated person, He told me he recognlzed
because he has dealt with him before. He told me Mr. [JJJJl] was intoxicated and he knew this because
M, was rambling, the way he smelled, and his lack of focus. He toid me Mr. [JJJJliJ was bappy one moment and sad
the next, He told me Mr. - was In the lounge but the lounge did not serve him any alcohol, he showed up Intoxlcated,

Mr. Norwest told me he asked Mr. [ to teave the premises. He told me he told Mr. he would not be served
anymore and he needed to [eave because he was excluded from the caslno. He told me Mr, got really mad and
started screaming at him; cussing and swearing.

Mr. Norwest continued telling me when Mr. [JJJJij 1eft the lounge he went through High Stakes area and knocked over
chalrs because he couldn’t walk weil, he was stumbling and his mom had to hold him up.

My audio recorder ran out of batterles around thls time, {restarted a recordlng at approximately 3:19pm,

Mr. Norwest continued telling me Mr., exited the bullding with his mother out of the valet entrance. He toid me they
were in the green parking lot, He told me he saw Officer Wolfer walk up and he told Officer Wolfer Mr. [ was tn the red
shirt and polnted to his location. He told me he saw Officer Wolfer approach Mr,

Below Is an excerpt from the Interview with Mr, Norwest {page 2, lines 30 — 36),

Robin Norwest: Well, the verbal commands he was glving him to stop, he was lgnoring 'em, cussing and swearing. He
was stll] cussing and swearlng at me, His mom Kept trying to grab him and ***_on the ground,
He refused, kept dolng over and over, | don't knaw how many times he told them, you know,
1r4%, Flnally told him that he needed to get down or he wllt be tased. [ ¢dn't seem to
care about that, and he got tased, went down, kept fighting with Wolfer while he was down, got
tased the second tlme, and then became pretty compllant, Got the cuffs on. Wolfer kind up
helped him up 2 little bit, sltting up.

Mr. Norwest told me he was standing approximately flve feet away from Offlcer Wolfer during the confrentation with Mr.
He told me Mr. [l mom ket trying to get involved and they had to ask her multiple times to step away, He

told me Mr.— rom was cussing and swearlng at them, He told me Mr, bhrother who works at the casino
came outslde and talked with his mother and told her to go home, He told me Mr. mom flnally left around this

time.
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Mr, Norwest told me he thinks M. [l 's dangerous, but mr. [l has never assaulted any of the casino staff and has
anly verbally combatlve,

Mr. Norwest centinued telling me he thinks Offlcer Wolfer did the right thing. He told me he does not see any Issues with how
Officer Wolfer handied the sltuation.

This concluded our interview.

//€nd Report//

Suppliemental:

Author: 1149678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/26/2018 14:29
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time;  03/26/2018 14:28

Narrative:

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:

Marlon County Blstrict Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT!

Witness Interview — Len Malmagulst

SUSPECT:

Wolfer, Jaines

Dosg:

MENTIONED:

Len Malmquist

Security Offlcer at Spirit Mountaln Casino

Robin Norwest

Securlty Offlcer at Splrit Mountaln Caslno

Mickey Wood

Securlty Supervisor at Splrit Mountaln Caslno

Kaltlyn Scott

Security Offlcer at Splrit Mountaln Caslno
= Victlm

DOB;

MENTIONED POLICE;

Detectlye Ted Molsan

Oregon State Pollce

EVIDENCE:

CHB-E4 — Interview with Len Maimqulst

ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN: . -
On January 30, 2018 Detectlve Ted Moisan and | went to Spirit Mountaln Casine to conduct interviews with securlty staff, At

approximately 3:36pm we Intervlewed Len Malmqulst, 1 told Mr, Malmguist our conversation was belng recorded and I asked
him to tell me what he witnessed on August 13, 2017 concerning ||| | NGNGB

Mr. Malmgulst told me he was an acting superyisor on August 13, 2017 and the securlty staff got a call from survelilance saylng
that | B 2 oxcluded person was In Summit View Lounge. He told me Mr. was trespassed due to hls
violent tendencies and outbursts, He teld me they immediately called for law enforcement. He told me he, Robin Norwest,
Supervisor Mickey Wood and Kaltiyn Scott were near a door that goes between the Summit View Lounge and the high stakes
area,

Mr. Malmauist told ma the Summlt View Lounge manager was a woman named Kaylee and Kaylee asked that Mr. [ be
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removed from the lounge because he was getting very loud and causing a scene, He told me M, - appeared
intoxicated, he had slurred speach and an unsteady gait, He told me he and the other securlty staff were keeping an eye on
Mt, but did hot contact him at that time,

mr, Malmaulst totd me Mr. [ lllmother arrived at the lounge and she was trying to get Mr. [ to leave, tugging on
him and saying “come on, let's go, let’s go.” He told ma they went out the door that connacts the iounge to the high stakes
area and Mr. - threw a coupie of chalrs out of hls way and continued to make a scene, He told me he and security were
followlng from a distance. He told me Mr. [JJJJJij and his mom went to the dell, He told me while they were at the dell he
heard survelliance come across the radlo and say that a tribal pollce officer was on the property, He told me he broke away to
talk with the pollce offlcer,

Mr, Malmauist told me he went outslde and tatked with Offlcer Wolfer. He told me he told Officer Wolfer that vir. [ il
was heading towards the valet entrance to exit the caslno. He told me Officer Woifer drove to the valet entrance,

Mr. Malmqulst told me he walked around the outside of the bullding to the valet entrance. He told me he could hear on the

radlo that Mr, went from the valet entrance through the green lot, He told me as he approached the area where

Officer Wolfer was, he saw Mr. on tha ground face down, Offlcer Wolfer was trying to handeuff Mr.- and Mr,
was very combative and not following directlons.

Mr, Malmquist continued telling me Mr. mother was trylng to Intarfere with the arrest, He told me Mickey Wood
was trying to keep her out of Officer Wolfer's way. He told me he was standing around ten feet away durlng the confrontation
betwean Officer Wolfar and'Mr.

Mr. Malmaquist told me there were a few casino guests in the parking lot and he Immedlately tasked himself to crowd control.
He told me hs had his back to the confrontation and he glanced back to make sure things were golng ok when he heard

yelling. He told me he remembered Offlcer Wolfer yalling at Mr, to quit fighting. He told me this happened when
was lylng face down on the ground,

Offleer Wolfer was trying to handcuff tr. [ whie vr.
Below Is an excerpt from the transcript from the interview with Mr. Malmquist (page 9 lines 16-18).

Len Malmquist; Uh, when | approached him, he had tased him once. Um, got him on the ground. Was trying to
handcuff him. And, then  heard him qult fighting me, quit fighting me, you keep fighting me, I'm
gonna tase you again. And, | did hear the second tase.

Mr. Malmguist continued telllng me that durlng the second tase, Offlcar Walfer had one wrist handcuffad and was trying to gat
ahold of Mr.— other wrist, He told me Officer Wolfer was aiso yelling at Mr, mother to get out of the area.
He told me the following people witnessed the Incident besldes himseif: Kaitlyn Scott, Mickey Wood, Robin Norwest, Mary
Williams and Tyler White.

Mr. Malmquist told me Mr. [ continved to try and fight after Officer Wolfer put him In handeuffs. He told me Mr.
I =5 “irving to do something. Anything.”

I asked Mr. Malmquist If he had any concerns about what happened between Officer Wolfer and Mr, — He toid me he
spent flfteen years in the mllitary and four of those years as a military police officer, Belew Is an excerpt from the interview
with Mr. Malmaulst regarding some of hls tralning and experlence and hls opinfon regarding the Interaction between Officer
wolfer and mr. [ (paze 14 lines 22 - 55). '

Len Malmgqulst; ~1{also spent 5 years as a, um, antiterrorist force protection Instruction.
Detectfve Molsan: Okay,

Len Malmqulst; So, | taught self-defensa —

Datectlve Molsan: Uh huh,

Len Malmquilst: ~{ taught non-lethal weapons.

Deatectlve Molsan: Uh huh,

Len Malmauist, Nothing would have tripped any trlggers with me.

Detectlve Molsan: Huh, Ckay.
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Len Malmaquist: He's a singie officer, He didn't have a cover officer.
Detective Molsan, Rlght,
Len Malmgquist, I ;s known to sometimes be viofent.

Detective Hegney-Bach: When you say he’s been known to be violent, has, has he ever been physically viotent with you or any
of your staff or anyone you know of?

Len Malmqulst: Not hards on,

Detective Hegney-Bach: Okay,

‘Len Malmquist: Uh, he's thrown chalrs around and klcked stuff and -

Detective Hegney-Bach: Okay.

Len Malmquist; — um, and of course, ya know, v\(e've seen hls, ya know, on arrest.org.

Mr. Malmguist continued telling me Mr, [JJJj erabbed Officer Wolfer a couple times before he was handcuffed, He also
told me that Mr. [JJj savared off towards him inside the casino, He told me Mr. [ is around 512", fitand in his
mid to late 20's,

Thls concluded our Intervlew, ! ended the reccerding at 3:59am,

//End Report//

Supplementat:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/26/2018 14:51
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/26/2018 14,51

Narrative:

Case #i5P18001897
DISTRIBUTICN;
Marlon County District Attorney’s Offlce
SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Witness Interview ~ Mickey Woad
SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James
DOB:
MENTIONED:
Securlty Supervisor Mickey Wood
Splrit Mountain Casino

- Victim

DOB:

EVIDENCE;

CHB-E6 — Intervlew with Mickey Wood
ATTACHED:

Oragon Stale Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 30, 2018 at approximately 3;33pm, | Interviewed Mickey Wood via telephone, Mickey Wood s a securlty
supervisor at Splrit Mountain Casino, Mr, Wood was working On August 13, 2017 and witnessed the events that took place
between Officer James Woifer and 1 asked him to tell me about the events he witnessad,

Below ls an excerpt from the transcript from the interviaw with Mr, Wood (page 3 tines 23 - 55, page 4 lines 1-2).

Mickey Wood: Okay, uh, { got a call that, uh, [ was in the, uh, Summit View lounge, Uh, | belleved him to be
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indefinltely excluded from the casino. | contacted dispatch and conflrmed that ha was still currently excluded from the casino.
Dispatch advised me, uh, uh, okay, dispatch advised me the fast time we dealt wlth” uh,
lew enforcement came out, and he was combatlve, uh, and they actually took him down. Uh, so,
with that | requested jaw enforcement and went Into the, uh, to the area where he was. Uh,
once | saw him, and we knew who he was, uh, he was being, um, disruptive and botherlng guests,
and the, um, supervisar there, Kayley Compton, ub, had requested that he be removed from that
venue, hecause of the issues he was causlng. Uh, as he left that area, he went Into the high Bmits
area, and, uh, one of the reports sald he knocked over a chair, When | got there, uh, they were
Just plcking up the chalr, so tactually didn't witiess him knock It over, Just the picking up of It.
Uh, and, um, so anyhow, he was argumentative at the time, Him and the female that he was
with, who turned out to be his mother, uh, went out of high limits after being told they were
excluded and had to leave. They went Into, uh, a little area. It's called, ub, a dell where you get
sandwiches, The food and beverage supervisor, Tyler White, had showed up, because we were
golng to, uh, confirm that he had been cut off from alcohol, and typlically we try to get other
supervisors from food and heverage Involved, Uh, so,1, uh, | had told Tyler that we were, If they
were gonna sit there and Just not cause any trouble, we were just gonna wait titl law enforcement
got there, so that we wouldn't stir him up or agltate or make the situatlon any worse, Uh, then
they got up and left, uh, the mother and him, and thay headed out toward the green iot. Uh,
Officer Wolfer arrived and asked me where he was, and | pointed to * Uh, he
was the male In the red shirt, Uh, Offlcer, uh, Wolfer went out there and Immadiately, uh,
started telling him to get on the ground, uh, which he would not, uh, he wouldn't, he just
wouldn't do, and the mother repeatedly trled to step between, uh, Officer Wolfer and
uh, trying ta Interfere with the arrest. I'm not sure how many times, but It was muitiple times
that, uh, uh, Officer Wolfer told him to get on the ground, uh, and he just, he would not comply,
So, eventually, uh, Officer Wolfer was able to get, uh, between, uh, [JJJJj wthout the mother
involved, and he tased, tased him and took him down. Uh, after they got him down, he continued
and continued to struggle. The mother kept yelling and Interfering. Um, | belleve he was tased
agaln to try and malintaln control, Then, he basically was just left on the ground untit cover
officers cauld come, Uh, Wolfer called medics, uh, right after he got him down and somewhat
secured, and they came and, uh, medlcs removed the tongs, and he was placed In the patrol car
and taken to |ail.

f asked Mr. Wood to teli me about the prior Incidents where [JJj was combative. He told me has never had any

physical altercatlons with securlty but was verbally combative, He told m' Is unreasohable when he gets intoxicated,
He told me on one occaslon, when talking with Splrit Mountaln Sacurlty, sald, “elther you kil me or i will kil you,” He
told ime the report sald they had to take him to the ground and take him [ato custody,

Mr. Wood continued telling me that consldering [l had @ warrant for assault, a prior track record of being verbally
combative to security and police and - mother Interfaring he belleved Offlcer Wolfer responded approprlately to the
sltuation. He told me he believed If Offlcer Wolfer had not taken contral of the situation It wouid have escalated.

Thls concluded my interview with Mr. Woad.

//End Report//

Supplemental:

Author; #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS! Report time: 03/27/2018 12:36
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/27/2018 12:36

Narrative:

Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marfon County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Witness Interview — Kaitiyn Scott
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SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

ooe: S

MENTIONED;
Kaitlyn Scott
Security Officer at Spirlt Mountain Casino

Mickey Wood
Security Supervisor at Spirit Mountaln Casino

- Victim

DOB:

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Ted Moisan
Oregon State Police

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E5 —~ Interview with Kaitlyn Scott

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 30, 2018 Detective Ted Moisan and | went to Splrit Mountaln Casino to conduct
interviews with security staff, Atapproximately 4:08pm we Interviewed Kaltlyn Scott, | told
Ms. Scott our conversation was belng recorded and | asked her to tell me what she witnessed

on August 13, 2017 concerning ||| Gz TN

Ms. Scott told me on August 13, 2017 around 5pm || was “red lighted,” meaning he was
cut off from alcohol. She told me ] was being aggressive with walt staff and yelling,
she told me [Ji] was there with his mom. She told me [l mem was trying to calm
him down, but he was “definitely loud, definitely belligerent.” She told me she waited outside
of the lounge In the high limits area while other security officers were In the lounge.

Ms. Scott told me - knocked over chalrs and stormed outside, She told me

and hls mom “seemed to be in quite a rush after they found out that securlty had been
notlfled.” She told me they (the securlty guards) “were hanging back qulte a bit” because law
enforcement was on thelr way, She told me she was with Securlty Supervisor Mickey Wood
near the valet entrance. She told me shortly after this Officer Wolfer arrived at their tocation,

Below is an excerpt from the Interview with Ms, Scott {page 6 lines 3-11), regarding what she
remembered about Officer Wolfer's initial contact with ||l

Kaitlyn Scott: Um, he couid've been in a hurry because he thought he might have
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gotten In his vehicle. I'm not sure what his thought process was, It Just striked me as odd. Um,
so he hit the first row of cars, had his hand on his taser but hadn't pulled
It yet, if | remember correctly, and then went down, made contact, uh,
verbal contact with [JJij and sald, you know, Offlcer Wolfer, Tribal
Police, um, like, please raise your hands, or you need to put your hands
up, or you need to stop walklng. | believe he said to stop walking first,
and then, you know, | heed to see your hands, Um, and-
wanted no part of that. He was like I'm just gonna go home. His mom
got in the way of everything, Um, she got In Officer Wolfer's face,

Ms, Scott told me she hung back for crowd control. She told me while she was asking people in
the parking lot not to gawk she heard a “thud” behind her and when she turned around she
saw on the ground. She told me [JJij fe!! because Officer Wolfer tased him. She
told me tried to get up and Officer Wolfer gave him warnings like “you need to stay
where you are and he still irled to get up “so Officer Woifer tased him again. She told me
when the second tase occurred Officer Wolfer was still standing up and approaching [l

Ms. Scott told me she did not think that Officer Wolfer used excessive force during his

Interaction with -

//End of report//

Supplemental:

Author: #48678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/27/2018 12:49
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI ' Entered time: 03/27/2018 12:49

Narrative:

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County District Attorney's Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPQRT:
Interview with James Wolfer

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

oos: SN

MENTIONED:
Aaron Perez Selsky
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Attorney for James Wolfer

.
0os: S

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detectlve Carlos Barrlentos
Oregon State Police

EVIDENCE;
CHB-E7 — Audlo Interview with James Wolfer

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On February 12, 2018 | contacted James Wolfer to set up an interview, He told me he needed
to contact his lawyer and told me he would call me back on Thursday February 15, On
February 15, { was contacted by Aaron Perez-Selsky who told me he was Mr, Wolfer's
attorney, We set up an Interview for March 2, 2018 at 10:30am at the Salem Patrol Offlce,

Onh March 2, 2018 at approximately 10142 am, | Interviewed James Wolfer. Aaronh Perez-Seisky
and Detective Carlos Barrientos were also present during the Interview. | told Mr, Wolfer our
conversation was being recorded, | explained to Mr. Wolfer that | was investigating an Incident
involving him and | I th=t occurred on August 13, 2017, | told him | was
assigned to Investigate whether excessive force was used during the arrest.

i asked Mr, Wolfer to tell me about his [aw enforcement experience, He told me the following:
¢ He worked as a police officer for Warm Springs Police Department from October 2010 —

lanuary 2012,

He attended Basic Police Academy In January 2011,

He had a gap in law enforcement work from January 2012 — May 2016, During this
time he worked In banking and then for SAIF as a State Workers Comp Investigator,

He worked as a police officer for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department May 2016 —
August 2017, )

He went to Career Officer Development (COD} durlng his employment at Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department due to the gap In law enforcement employement,

| asked him questions about his duties and shift being worked on and around August 13, 2017,
He told me the following: _

* His scheduled shift was Sunday through Wednesday 6a-6p, _

¢ His job was focused on community policing with a high humber of contacts,

] asked Mr, Wolfer questions about his Taser training during his employment with Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department. He told he did not remember how long the inltlal Taser training
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lasted, but said it was “short.” He told me the training consisted of a power polnt presentation
and short scenarios where he shot a training cartridge, which does not shoot probes. He told
me thls was the only training he had with his Taser.

| asked him how his relationship was with the people he worked with at Grand Ronde Tribal
Police Department. He told me he and Lieutenant Hernandez “kinda butted heads.” He told
me he got along well with everyone else,

1 asked Mr. Wolfer to tell me about the events that occurred on August 13, 2017 at Grand
Ronde Casino, He told me tha following occurred leading up to seelng

Around 5pm, he recelved a call from dispatch that ||l was actlvely
trespassing at Grand Ronde Casino,

e He asked for back up and was told a Polk County Deputy was in route but was a ways
out.

«  Dispatch informed him that [JJJJij had a warrant for Assault i1,

e Lt, Hernandez told him vla radlo to be careful because has a brother who is
usually with him. He got the Impression that ﬁwouid helo (GG
fight,

s While In-route he called Grand Ronde Casino Security and they told him [ was
Inside at a bar and they told him [JJij was being “confrontational,”

o When he arrlved at the casino, he activated his body camera and was told || was
in the parking lot, :

s He felt that he coutd not wait for backup due to [JJij behavior and he initiated
contact,

Mr, Wolfer went into detall describing his Interaction with [JJij Review transcript page 27
lines 17-56, page 28 lines 1-42 for more detalls. Mr, Wolfer told me he drove to the parking lot
where security officers told him - was located; he got out of his vehicle and drew his
Taser. He sald, “if | saw him | was gonna have to arrest him 'cause he had a warrant and was
actlvely trespassing,”

Mr, Wolfer told me he was by himself. He told me from his experlence most security officers
won't get Invelved In physical confrontations, He told me when he saw there was a
woman with him and he found out later It was mother, He told me pointed the
Taser at [ and velled at I to get on the ground. He told me he kept yelling “Get
on the ground, get on the ground.” He told me [JJij wouldn’t get on the ground and the
woman kept trylng to get between them so he moved laterally. Mr. Wolfer sald, “I percelved
her to be a threat, but not as big of a threat as him ([

Mr, Wolfer continued telling me - was walking away and then he thought he yelled stop
and stopped and turned and the woman rushed at him. He told me at the same time
made a sudden movement that he perceived as about to charge him or
squating up to fight so he tased He said, “l remember he did something very, very
quickly and so right at the same time she was rushing me, so then | tased him, and | got ready
to go hands on with her, but she stepped back, and { think | said somethlin' like stay back or
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you'll get tased too, and so she stepped back but she was yellln’ at me, so then { went over to
him, Security was there, but they weren't like grabbing her.”

My, Wolfer told me there were a lot of people In the parking lot and he remembers looking
around for this other brother that might be there. He told me he was on the ground with his
back exposed to everybody. He told me the woman was still yelling at him as he put handcuffs
on [ He said, “I wasn't able to pat him down yet, and | was on top of him but not fully,
because | was also stiil tryin' to be ahle to spring back up in case | got hit from behind from
wherever this other brother was gonna be, and, um, and then | felt him moving, which 1
interpreted as him tryin' to get back up, and [ didn't know if he had weapons or anything yet.”

Below s an excerpt from the transcript from the interview with Mr. Wolfer describing what led
to the second cycle of taser activatlon (page 28 lines 21-42),

James Wolfer: When [ worked in Warm Springs, | have had people try to fight, Like | had
someone In handcuffs once like, like sho, run his shoulder Into me and knock me
over and like fight and then run, you know, so |, i don't know what, what he's
tryIn' to do. Just ‘cause he was in handcuffs, |, | don't even think | had double
locked 'em vet, and 1 kept tellin' him to stop resisting, um, and { felt like when he
would turn and look at me, and | remember tellin' him to ook away, when he'd
turn and look at me, like | felt like he was tryin' to get up off the ground 'cause |
would, i mean he, | felt, | felt ilke he was bigger than me, so he was, llke it was
like lifting me up. At the same time the mom was yelling at him or something,
and | remember telling her to shut up 'cause 1 felt like she was also amping him
up and | just wanted the situatlon to, to calm down and resolve, and |, | warned
him, | told him he was under arrest, | told him why, and, and | don't remember
if this happened before or after the tase but, a second tase, but [ remember to,
glving him saveral warnings that If he didn’t stop resisting | was gonna tase him
again, and he, | felt like he kept resisting. | kept feellng the movement and | felt
like he was gonna push me off of him, so | gave him a second tase, let It run
through the cycle, and then he, It stopped, and he stopped resisting, and so i
sald, "Are you done?" | think he said yes or something or | got the Impression he
was done, | detached it, holstered it, re ho, ltke was able to finish my pat down
and everything else, sat him up. Um at some point during that | remember the
female, | believe she started takin' a step towards me, and also so did the
security supervisor, and | remember yeiling llke stay back, and | meant her, but |
remember the security supervisor's face thought | was talkln' to him, so then he
stepped back and kinda put his arm near the, the female,

Mr, Wolfer told me at some polnt after things started to calm down the woman disappeared.
He told me paramedics arrlved on scene and he walted for a Polk County Deputy to arrive
pefore lettihg paramedics check on He told me he dldn’t want to risk any of the
paramedics belng attacked by He told me ] was “completely intoxicated” and
In his experience intoxicated people often “want to fight and don’t make good declsions,” He
told me once a deputy arrived, paramedics checked [JJJJilif out and then he was able to put
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- in his patrol vehicle,

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me he called Sergeant McAllister to notify him of the use of force.
He toid me he drove [ to the jail and at the jall refused to provide a breath test
for the intoxylizer. He told me he had to take to the hospital to get cleared due to hls
level of intoxicatlon, He toid me once was cleared he took him shack to the jail. He
told me he wrote a probable cause affidavit to lodge i in Jait and then cleared the call,

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me he went back to the patrol office and talked with Officer Dana
and watched the video footage for the first time. He told me he was “actually surprised to see
that W hadn’t squared up” with him. He told me he realized when he saw the video
that actually took a step back and raised his hands. He explained that he thought the
female was running at him and he had tunnel vision focused on this and when he saw
movement from ] be Interpreted the movement as a threat and he tased [ He
told me he felt the body camera saw more than he did, meaning a wider angle without tunnel
vision,

Mr. Wolfer then addressed the second taser cycle, He sald, “You couldn't see on the footage
what { felt which was, | felt like | was getting picked up from it, so, um, [ remember being

. physically moved from it or feellng like | was, so, and then accurately, |, | didn't feel like the, |
felt like the camera for the first tase showed more than | saw and | felt |lke for the second, it
showed less than | saw becatise It was on the center of the chest and I'm on top of him.”

Mr. Wolfer told me the next morning he returned to work to finish hls report in regards to

He told me when he finished the report Lieutenant Hernandez and a human
resources representative approached him, He told me Lieutenant Hernandez told him that he
reviewed the video footage with thelr tribal attorney and he (Hernandez) believed Wolfer
violated the Taser Policy. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez asked him a few brief questions
about why he tased - and then Lleutenant Hernandez told him he was being placed on
adminlstrative leave, He told me Lieutenant Hernandez hadn't even read his report when this
happened. He told me Sergeant McAllister called him on Wednesday and told him to come to
the office on Friday.

Mr. Wolfer told me he came Into the offlce on Friday and he was told by Lieutenant Hernandez
that he violated the Taser Policy and they had a write up recommending termination. He told
me Lt, Hernandez told him he could appeal within five days. He told me he asked Lt,
Hernandez If he violated anything else and Hernandez sald no. Lt. Hernandez toid him they did
not review this for use-of-force violation or anything else. He told me Lt, Hernandez told him
Dallas Police Department conducted a review of the case and found the video didn’t match up
to what he was saying. He told me Lt. Hernandez sald, “If you resigh today, we're not gonna
review It for anything else. We don't, we're not saying you violated the use-of-force policy, just
the Taser policy,” He told me he resigned In lieu of terminatlon,

| asked Mr. Wolfer a serles of questions related to his thoughts and decislons when he gave
commands to [l and how he fett when [ did not cooperate. Review the
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transcript from the Interview with Mr, Wolfer page 37 lines 8-55 and page 38 lines 1-46,

| asked Mr, Wolfer to define passive res|stance versus active reslstance, He told me passive
resistance would be like refusing to listen to commands and actlve resistance s ilke puliing
away or fighting. | asked him if ] was passively resisting or actively resisting. He

sald, “My perception was that he was actively reslsting, After watching the video later, | see
that, without knowing what his Intention was, it does appear he was passlve resisting when he
raised hls hands. | Interpreted that as an act of resisting as he, as a pre assault”

Mr, Wolfer told me he did not complete any defenslve tactics tralhlng while working at Grand
Ronde Tribal Police Department, Below Is an excerpt of the transcript from the Interview with
Mr, Wolfer (page 43 lines 41-56, page 44 lines 1-10)

Detective Hegney-Bach:

James Woilfer;
Detective Hegney-Bach:
James Wolfer:

Detective Hegney-Bach:

James Wolfer:
Detective Hegney-Bach:

James Wolfer:

Detective Hegney-Bach:

James Wolfer;

Okay. Um, how did the actions of the suspect during the
encounter make you feel?

Scared, thought | was gonna be assaulted.
Okay.,
So -

What about, um, when he was on the ground and you had him In
handcuffs?

Uh, | think | =
Much of the same?

Yeah, | was stlll afraid he was gonna push me off of him, and | had,
at the time, still belleved he had Just tried to assault me with this
other person that | didn't know who they were yet, um, so | was
afraid of that, you know, If | got knocked off balance, then she
might come run at me, and then now i'm on the ground, there's
two of 'em, and even though he's in handcuffs, you know, who
knows, or If he's got a weapon, |, { don't know vet, [, {don't
belleve I'd even done a pat-down yet or finished It -

Okay,

- before | tased him agaln, um, so | was, | was still in the same
frame of mind. Uh, | thought if | don't control this now, um, this
may stlll, | may still get assaulted at any point here, so ~

At this time during the interview we took a break. When we re-convened | asked a few
clarifying questions and | verifled hls contact Information. This concluded our interview.

//end Report//
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Supplemental:

Author: #49878 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/27/2018 14:38
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS! Entered time;  03/27/2018 14:38
Narrative: |

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION: '
Marion County Dlstrict Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview — Chilef Jake McKnight

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

00s: [

MENTIONED:
I

Victim

Mother of Victim

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Pollce

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAllister
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 — DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17,
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ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

Grand Ronde Trlbal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Policy
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Use of Force Policy

Grand Ronde Trlbal Pollce Department Personnel Compiaint Policy

Public Records Request from [} [ Gz

ACTION TAKEN; ;
On January 2, 2018, | contacted Chlef Jake McKnight with Grande Ronde Tribal Police
Department via telephone and set up a meeting for January 8. | sent him a follow up ematl
asking for the following documents: '

1, Taser Policy

2. Use of Force Policy

3. Internal Memos and documents relating to Case #GRT17000673

4, Coples of internal documents relating to disclplinary action for James Wolfer,

On January 8, 2018, Detective Carlos Barrientos and | went to Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department and interviewed the.following police officers; Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Tim
Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAllister,

At approximately 10:27 am, | interviewed Chief Jake McKnight, He provided me with copies of
Grand Ronde PD's Taser Policy, Use of Force Policy and Personnel Complalnt Policy.

I asked him to tell me what he knew about the events that occurred on August 13, 2017, He
told me he was at the FBI Academy at that time, but was Informed on August 14 around 7 am,
by Lieutenant Tim Hernandez of the events that occurred on August 13, He told me Lleutenant
Hernandez cafled him and told him there was an lssue with James Wolfer, He told me
Lieutenant Hernandez told him Woifer tased ||| | |} ] I 27ter he applied handcuffs,

Chief McKnight told me [l was someone they have dealt with before, He told me

Is not verbally compliant but hasn’t ever gotten physical with them. He told me
Officer Wolfer was more adrenailzed than he should have been. He told me Officer Wolfer was
not clear in his commands, He told me there were issues with the tasings but there were also
[ssues with the way he told the events to Sergeant McAllister. He told me Officer Wolfer was
Immediately placed on administrative leave.

Chief McKnight told Lieutenant Hernandez met with Wolfer and gave him the option to resign
after being put on administrative leave and Officer Wolfer chose to resign. He told me Officer
Wolfer worked for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department for a little over a year. He told me
Officer Wolfer was hot interviewed regarding the events that occurred on August 13, 2017
because he resigned,

Chief McKnlght toid me he that [} [ mother of N B ©/'<d 2 Public
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Records Request requesting copies of the police reports and the body camera footage
regarding the 8/13/17 interaction between Wolfer and || case #17-673.

This concluded our interview.

| reviewed the Conducted Energy Device Policy, Personnel Compiaints Policy and Use of Force
Policy. | found all of the policies to be faitly standard and are attached to this report.

//End Report//

Supplemental.

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS| Report time: 04/02/2018 14:22
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 14:22
Narrative: '

Case H1SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County Ristrict Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview with James Wolfer

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

oo S

MENTIONED:
Aaron Perez Selsky

Attorney for James Wolfer
Victim
MENTIONED POLICE;

Detectlve Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Pollce

Officer Dana
Grand Ronde Trlbal Pollce Department

EVIDENCE;
CHB-E7 -- Audio interview with James Wolfer

ATTACHED:

Qregon State Poilce Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

- On February 12, 2018 | contacted James Wolfer to set up an Interview. He told me he needed to contact his lawyer and told
me he would call me back on Thursday February 15. On February 15, | was contacted by Aaron Perez-Selsky who told me he
was Mr. Wolfer’s attorney. Wa set up an interview for March 2, 2018 at 10:30am at the Salem Patrol Office.
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On March 2, 2018 at approximately 10:42 am, | Intervlewed James Wolfer, Aaron Paraz-Selsky and Detectlva Carlos Barrlentos
were also present during the interview. 1 told Mr, Wolfer our conversatlon was belng recorded. | explained to Mr. Wolfer that
I was investigating an Incldent Involving him and [} I that occurred on August 13, 2017, | toid him | was assigned
to Investigate whether excessive force was used durlng the arrest,

1 asked Mr. Wolfer to tell me about his law enforcement experlence. He told me the following:

*  Heworked as a police officer for Warm Springs Pollce Department from October 2010 ~ January 2012,

+  He attended Baslc Police Academy in January 2014,

*  Hehad a gap In law enforcement work from january 2012 - May 2016 During thls time he worked In banking and
then for SAIF as a State Workers Comp Investlgater,
He worked as a police offlcer for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department May 2016 - August 2017,
He went to Career Offlcer Development (COD} during hls employment at Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department due
to the gap in law enforcement employment.

i asked him questlons about his shift and dutles on and around August 13, 2017, He told me the following:
¢ His scheduled shift was Sunday through Wednesday 6a-6p.
+  Hisjob was focused on community policing wlth a high number of contacts.

| asked Mr. Woller questions about his Taser tralning during his employment with Grand Ronde Trlbal Police Department. He
told he did not remamber how long the inltlal Taser tralning lasted, but sald it was “short,” He told me the tralning consisted of
a power point presentation and short scenarlos where he shot a tralning cartridge, which doas not shoot probes, He told me
this was the only training he had with his Taser,

1asked him how his relatlonship was wlih the pecple he workad with at Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department. He told me he
and Lleutenant Hernandez “kinda butted heads.” He told me he got along well wlth everyone else,

| asked Mr. Wol{er to tell me about the events that occurred on August 13, 2017 at Grand Ronde Caslno. He told me the
foliowlng occurred leadlng up to seeing
s Arcund 5pm, he received a call from dispatch that [ I I =: 2ctively trespassing at Grand Ronde Casino,
¢ He asked for back up and was told a Rolk County Deputy was in route but was a ways out,
*  Dispateh Informed him that [ had 2 warrant for Assault 1,
* Lt Herrandez told him via radio to be careful because has a brother who Is usuelly with him, He got the
Impression that ] brother would heip fight.
*  Whllein-route he called Grand Ronde Casino Security and they told him - was Inside at a bar and they told
hi [ was being “confrontational,”
When he arrived at the casino, he activated his body camera and was told - was in the parking lot.
He felt that he could not wait for backup due to [l behavicr and he Initiated contact.

L

Mr. Wolfer went Into detall describing his Interaction with [ {see transcrlpt page 27 lines 17-56, page 28 lines 1-42 for
more detalls), Mr. Wolfer told e he drove to the parking lot and securlty officers told him where— was located; he got
out of his vehicle and drew his Taser. He sald, “If | saw him | was gonna have to arrest him ‘cause he had a warrant and was
actively trespassing.”

Mr. Wolfer told me he was by himself. He told me from his experlence, most securlty offlcers won’t get involved In physlcal

confrontations, He told me when he saw there was a woman with him and he found out later she was
mother, He told me he polnted the Taser at and velled at to get on the ground, He told me he kept
yelling “Get on the ground, get on the ground.” He told me wouldn't get on the ground and the woman kept trylng to

get between them so he moved laterally. Mr, Wolfer sald, “l percelved her to be a threat, but not as big of a threat as him

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me that [l was walking away and he thought he yelled stop. He told me i stopped
and turned and the woman rushed at him, He told me when she rushed at him made a sudden movement that he
perceived as [l sbout to charge him or squaring up to fight so he tased He sald, I remember he did something
very, very quickly and so right at the same time she was rushing me, so then | tased him, and | got ready to go hands on with
her, but she stepped back, and | think | sald somethin' like stay back or you'll get tased too, and so she stepped back hut she
was yellln' at me, so then | went over to him, Security was there, but they weren’t llke grabblng her.”

Mr, Woifer told me there were a lot of people In the parking lot and he remembers looking around for this other brother thst
might be there, He told me he was on the ground with his back exposad to everybody, He told me the woman was stll| yelilng
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at him as he put handeuffs on [l He satd, /4 wasn't abie to pot him (] down vet, and 1 was on top of him but not
fully, because | was also stiil tryin' to be abla to spring back up In case | got hit from behind from wherever this other brother
was gonna be, and, um, znd then | felt him moving, which | Interprated as him tryln' to get back up, and { didn't know if he had
weapons of anything yet.”

Mir, Wolfer told me when he worked at Warm Springs someone In handcuffs tried to fight him. He told me he had not double
locked handcuffs yet, He toid me he kept telllng to stop reslsting and kept looking at him and he

felt like was trylng to get up off the ground. He told me kept lIfting him up off the ground and at the same

time the woman kept yelling and it caused [JJij to amp up.

Mr, Wolfer continued tellihg me he wanted the situation to calm down and he warned to stop reslsting or he would
tase him again. Ha fold me he felt like continued resisting so he gave him a second tase and then - stopped
resisting.

Mr. Wolfer told me at some palnt after things started to calm down the weman disappeared, He told me paramedlcs arrived
on scene and he waited for a Polk County Deputy to arrive before letting paramedics cheek on ” He told me he didn't
want to risk any of the paramedics belng attacked by He told me - was “completely intoxlcated” and in his
experlence intoxicated people aften “want to fight and don’t make good decislons.” Ha told me once a deputy arrived,
paramedlcs checked out and then he was able to put [ in h's patrol vehicle.

Mr, Wolfer continued telling me he called Sergeant McAlllster to notify him of the use of force, He told me he drove
to the Jall and at the jall refused to provide a breath test for the Intoxylizer. He told me he had to take to the
hospital to get cleared due to his level of intoxication. He told me once was cleared he took him back to the jail, He
told me he wrote a probable cause affidavt to lodge [JJJJij in J21 and then cleared the call.

Mr. Wolfer continued telllng me he went back to the patrol offlce and talked with Offlcer Dana and watched the video footage
for the first time, He told me he was “actually surprised to see that he (ij hadn’t squared up” with him. He told me he
reallzed when he saw the video that [l ctually took a step back and raised his hands, He explalned that he thought the
female was running at him and he had tunnel vislon focused on this and when he saw movement from he Interpreted
the movement as a threat and he tased [l He told me he felt the body camera saw more than he did, meaning a wider
angle without tunnel vision,

Mr. Wolfer then addressed the second taser cycle, He sald, “You couldn't see on the footage what | feit which was, | felt like |
was getting picked up from It, so, um, | remember being physicaily moved from it or feellng like [ was, so, and then accurately,
-, L didn't feel like the, i felt iike the camera for the first tase showed more than | saw and | felt like for the second, i showed
fess than | saw because It was on the center of the chest and I'm on top of him.”

Mr. Wolfer told me the next morning he returned to work to finish his report in regards to mHe told me when he
finished the raport Lieutenant Hernandez and a human resources representative approached him. He told me Lieutenant
Hernandez told him that he reviewed the video footage with thelr tribat attarney and he bellevad Wolfer violated the Taser
Policy. He told me Lieutenant Hernanhdez asked him a few brief questions about why he tased and then Lleutenant
Hernandez told him he was being placed on admlnistrative leave, He told me Lieutenant Hernandez hadn’t even read his
raport when this happened. He told me Sergeant McAllister called him on Wednesday and told him to come to the office on
Friday.

Mr. Wolfer told me he came into the offlce on Friday and he was told by Lleutenant Hernandez that he violated the Taser
Pollcy and they had a wrlte up recommending terminatlon. He told me Lt. Hernandez told him he could appeal within five
days. He told me he asked Lt. Hernandez If he violated anything else and Hernandez said no. Lt. Hernandez told him they did
not revlew this for use-of-force violation or anything else, He told me Lt. Hernandez told him Dallas Pollce Department
conducted a review of the case and found the video didn’t match up to what he [Wolfer] was saying. He told me Lt.
Hernandez said, “If you reslgn today, we're not gonna review it for anything else. We don't, we're not saylng you violated the
use-of-forca poflcy, just the Taser policy.” He told me he resigned in lleu of termination.

t asked Mr. Wolfer a serles of questions related to his thoughts and decisions when he gave commands to * and how he
feit when did not tooperate (see transeript from the Interview with Mr, Wolfer page 37 lines 8-55 and page 38 lines 1-
46 for addltional detalls). He told me he gave commands for to get on the ground hecause he through it would be
easler to handeuff He told me he thought would be less llkely ta be violent i he was lylng on the ground,

He told me he did not feel proflclent in hand to hand fighting because he had had no defensive tactics tralning since he
graduated the academy In 2011,

| asked Mr, Wolfer to deflne passlve resistance versus active resistance. He told me passlve resistance would be like refusing to
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listen to commands and actlve resistance Is llke pulling away or fighting. | asked him If [ wes passively resisting or
actively resisting, He sald, “My perceptlon was that he was actlvely resisting. After watching the video later, | see that, without
knowlng what hls Intention was, |t does appear he was passive reslsting when he ralsed hls hands. 1interpreted that as an act
of reslsting as he, as a pre assault”

Beiow Is an excerpt of the transcript from the interview with Mr, Wolfer {page 43 lines 41-56, page 44 lines 1-10)

Detactlve Heghey-Bach: Okay. Um, how did the actions of the suspect durlng the encountar make you feel?

James Wolfer: Scared, thought | was gonna be assaulted,

Detectlve Heghey-Bach: Okay.

James Wolfer! So~

Detective Hegney-Bach: What about, um, When he was on the ground and you had him In handeuffs?

James Wolfer, Uh, I think | =

Detectlve Hegney-Bach:  Much of the same?

James Wolfer. Yeah, ) was stlll afrald he was gonna push me off of him, and | had, at the time, stlli belleved he had
Just tried to assault me with thls other person that | didn't know who they were vet,
um, so | was afraid of that, you know, if | got knocked off balance, then she might
come run at me, and than now I'm on the ground, there's two of 'em, and even though
he's in handcuffs, you know, who knows, or If he's got a weapon, |, | don't know yet, |, |

don't belleve I'd even done a pat-down yet or finished it~

Detective Hegney-Bach:  Okay,

James Wolfer: ~before | tased him agaln, um, so { was, [ was still In the same frame of mind. Uh, 1 thought if |
don't control this now, um, this may stili, | may still get assaulted at any point here, so -

At this thme during the Interview we took a break. When we re-convened | asked a few clarlfylng questions and 1 verifled his
contact informatlon. This concluded our Interview,

//End Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #496878 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time:  04/02/2018 15:29
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 16:29

Narrative:

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney’s Offlce

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
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interview — Lieutenant Tim Hernandez

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

pos:

MENTIONED;
]

Vietim

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrlentos
Oregon State Police

Chlef Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAlllster
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 8, 2018, Detective Carlos Barrientos and | went to Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department and intervlewed the following police officers; Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Tim
Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAllister.

At approximately 11:00am, | interviewed Lieutenant Tim Hernandez, | asked him to talk with
me about the events that occurred on and after August 13, 2017 as it related to Officer Wolfer.
Lieutenant Hernandez told me he was driving home from work on August 13, 2017 around
5:00pm when he heard Offlcer Wolfer go out on a call for service at Spirlt Mountain Caslno. He
told me he listaned to the radio and heard that Officer Wolfer tased ||| | |} ] IEEGzNG

Lieutenant Hetnandez told me he came Into work the morning of 8/14/17 and reviewed the
video footage, He told me the use of force for the second tase was unjustified. He told me the
video revealed Officer Wolfer calling McAllister via telephone and saying ] savared off
on him so Officer Wolfer tased him. He told me the video also shows Officer Wolfer saying that
he was handcuffing by himself and [l resisted so he tased him again. He told me after
reviewing the video he Initlated a complaint with Sergeant McAlllster. He told me Sergeant
McAllister is their agency’s primary training officer and handles Investigations,

Lieutenant Hernandez told me Wolfer edited his report the next day and it reads differently
than his probable cause statement. | later reviewed both reports and found that the Probable
Cause Affldavit has a lot less detali than the Incident summary, which Is normal for police
reports. There are also differences in some of the justifications for the Initlal tase and reasons
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for charges he cited [l However none of these are the cauge for this investlgation so
they were not addressed during this Invastlgation,

Lleutenant Hernandez told me on 8/14/17 he placed Officer Wolfer on paid adminlistrative
leave, He told me Officer Wolfer toid him he meant [JJl] pointed his feet at him in an
aggresslve manner, not squared off. He told me Offlcer Wolfer was upset when placed on
administratlve leave. He toid me this was the second investigation Officer Wolfer has gone
through while working for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department,

Lleutenant Hernandez told me he was shocked when he watched Woifer's body camera, He
told me he was more surprised by the lle than the tasing. He told me Wolfer did well with
communlty policing but not with hostile contacts. | asked Lieutenant Hernandez to elaborate
and he told me that while on a traffic stop, Officer Wolfer dealt with a rowdy family and he
cowered. He told me Sergeant McCallister had to have a talk with him about officer safety,

Lieutenant Hernandez toid me on August 18, 2017, Officer Wolfer was given a preparation
letter and told he had a right to review all documents before being Interviewed. He told me
Officer Wolfer decided to reslgn,

i asked Lleutenant Hernandez about Wolfer’s police background and he told me Wolfer worked
for Warm Springs Triba! Pollce for around a year. He told me Wolfer was let go during his
probationary perlod with Warm Springs. He told me there was an evidence issue where Officer
Wolfer left marijuana out and other officers hid it as a joke. He told me Wolfer thought he put
it away. He told me Wolfer was investigated regarding this Incident and Wolfer passed a
polygraph. There was also a DUII Investigation where Wolfer's report did not match the events
that occurred. He told me he could not remember the exact reason, but knew it had to do with
the HGN test,

Lieutenant Hernandez continued telling me that Wolfer did not get along with his Sergeant in
Warm Springs and that sergeant was later flred for dealing martjuana. He told me Wolfer
applled with Vancouver Police Department around the same time he applled with Grand
Ronde, but was not hired by Vancouver because he didn’t pass the psychologlcal test, He told
me Wolfer did pass the psychological test for Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department,

Lieutenant Hernandez told me there have been no other complaints involving Wolfer and his
use of force. Other officers complained about Wolfers attltude. He told me Wolfer dld not get
along well with management. He told me Wolfer trled to start conflict between the officers
and management oh more than one occasion.

| asked Lleutenant Hernandez if after reviewing the case If he believed the use of force by
Wolfer against [l rose to the level of assault and he told me yes,

//End of Report//

Supplemental.

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 04/02/2018 16:29

Exhibit A4
Page 34 of 37

file:///C:/Users/Iheathc/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Yeliow) htm 8/20/2018




Untitled Page 35 of 37

Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 16:29
Narrative:
Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:;
Interview — Sergeant Rod McAllister

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

pos: [

MENTIONED:
I

Victim

Mother of Victim

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrlentos
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lleutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAllister
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 ~ DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17,

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65
ACTION TAKEN:

On January 8, 2018, Detectlve Carlos Barrientos and | went to Grand Ronde Trlbal Police
Department and Interviewed the following police officers; Chlef Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Tim
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Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAllister.

At approximately 11:39 am, | Interviewed Sergeant McAlllster, 1 asked him to talk with me
about the events that occurred on and after August 13, 2017 as It related to James Wolfer, He
told me August 13, 2017 was a Sunday and it was his day off. He told me he received a phone
calt from Wolfer that evening reporting that Wolfer used his taser two times on |||
B e told me Wolfer told him first tase was because [ sauared off on him and
would not listen to commands to get on the ground and the second cycle occurred when
Wolfer was trying to get |JJJili] into handcuffs and |l was not compliant and struggled
so he tased him again.

Sergeant McAllister told me he toid Wolfer to make sure his use of force report was done by
the end of his shift. He told me that the next morning Lleutenant Hernandez reported to him
that Wolfer was stlll working on his report, He told me Lieutenant Hernandez also reported the
use of force by Wolfer was bad. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez told him the video was
inconsistent with the notlfication to him [McAllister].

Sergeant McAllister told me he viewed Wolfer's body camera on elther Tuesday or Wednesday
and then began a personnel investigatlon Into Wolfer. He told me he did not interview
B o' any of the witnesses, He told me the focus of the Investigation was that Wolfer
was untruthful and violated the taser policy.

| asked Sergeant McAllister If Wolfer had ever been disciplined prior to this Incident and he toid
me yes, He told me Wolfer was given a letter of reprimand for violating Grand Ronde Police
Department policles during an Incident that occurred on September 10, 2016, He told me the
disclpline was not related to use of force. He told me it dealt with Inconsistencies between
Wolfers report and video footage and also the lack of use of his body camera.

Sergeant McAllister told me he is thelr agency’s primary training officer, | asked what kind of
reoccurring training they require from thelr offlcers and he told me they have the followlng
training:

1. Monthiy training modules through Police One,
2, Firearms training three times per vear,
3. Taser tralning once per year,
a. Includes written, practical, demo, commands, control and discharge {no
shooting live cartridges).

Sergeant McAlllster told me he is the Taser instructor, He told me he recelved his certification
in 2016 through Newburg Police Department with Taser Internatlonal, now called Axon, He
told me the class Included an online training module and sixteen hours of classroom tralning.

Sergeant McAllister provided me with the Taser download paperwork from the Taser used by
Wolfer, A copy of the Taser download Is attached to this report, The Taset’s life began May
2015, He told me the Taser belonged to a different officer before Wolfer, He told me Wolfer
was given the Taser In May 2016, He explained what the codes on the Taser download meant
and below Is a list of the codes and their meanings in regards to Wolfer’s Taser on August 13,
2017,
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06:38:18
06:38:18
06:38:24
06:38:25
06:38:30
17:15:20
17:15:27
17:16:51

17:20:40

Armed —Turned on
Safe — Holstered
Armed — Un-holstered
Trigger — Trigger pulied
Safe — Holstered
Armed — Turned on
Trigger — Trigger pulled
Trigger — Trigger pulled

Safe — Holstered

Page 37 of 37

Sergeant McAllister provided me with coples of his Taser Instructor Certlification, dated May
18, 2016. He also provided me with Wolfer's Taser Certification and Taser Tests dated June 16,

20186,

| asked Sergeant McAlllster If after reviewing the case, If he belleved the use of force by Wolfer

against [} rose to the level of assault and he told me yes.

This concluded our interview,

//End Report//

file:///C:/Users/theathc/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Y ellow). htm
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August 18, 2017

Officer James Wolfer hand delivered
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Re:  Administrative Investigation Findings regarding officer actions in connection with
Case Number GRT17000673

Dear James:

As you are aware, the actions you took in connection with Case Number GRT17000673 came
undet review due to your use of your Conducted Energy Device (Taser). This incident was
reviewed, as required by Policy 304.,8 of the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police
Department Policy Manual,

As a result of that review, we have conducted an administrative investigation into the above-
referenced case pursnant to Policy 1005.6. The resulting Investigation Report details the
circumstances, identifies the policies violated, and recommends appropriate discipline, The
findings conclude that you violated a number of depariment policies — specifically 319.5.8,
319.5.9, and various provisions of 304, The disciplinary recommendation in the report is
termination of your employment with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.

After reviewing the Investigation Report and supporting materials, I am accepting the
disciplinary recommendation to terminate your employment,

I reviewed the following materials in reaching this decision:
Body camera footage from the incident identified above.
GRTPD Crime Incident Report for Case ID GRT17000673 prepared by James Wolfer,
GRTPD Incident Supplement report Supplement 1D 341696 prepared by Tokata Tehama
Probable Cause Affidavit re: ancsteeh- prepared by James Wolfer
Arrest Report for Case 17-673
Materials from Salem Health West Valley re: patlent- -
LEDS report re:
GRTPD Dispatch Report for Case GRT 17000673
Dallas Police Department incident review report prepared by Lt. Jerry Mott 08/16/17
Investigation Report prepared by Sgt. Rod McAllister 08/16/17
Memo re: administrative investigation prepared by Acting Chief Hernandez 08/16/17
Policy 304 — Conducted Energy Device
Policy 319 — Standards of Conduct
Policy 1005 — Personnel Complaints

Pursuant to Policy 1005.10.2, you will be provided access to all the referenced materials as well
as an opportunity to respond to me orally or in writing within five days of receiving this notice.
If you would like further access to the materials during these five days, please call me at 503~
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Officer James Wolfer
August 18, 2017
Page 2

879-1824 to schedule an appointment, You may wish to review Policy 1005.11 regarding any
response you choose to provide. Your response must be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on
Friday, August 25, 2017, If you choose to respond orally, the policy requires us to record your
response. You may also elect to waive any such response.

I will issue a timely written decision following my review of any response you provide. Please
note that if you choose to resign prior to my decision being issued, Policy 1005.12 provides that
these disciplinary proceedings will cease.

enant Tim Hernandez
Actmg Chief of Police
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Dallas Police Department

To: Lt. Tim Hernandez
From: Lt. Jerry Mott

Date: August 16, 2017

Incident Review

On August 15, 2017, Grand Ronde Tribal Police Bepartment {(GRTPD) Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
requested assistance with the review of a use of force by one of GRTPD's police officers. Lt. Hernandez
asked the review be completed with thelr policy as metric for the appropriate force decision. Lt
Hernandez provided me with GRTPD Policy 304 “Conducted Energy Device.” Lt. Hernandez explained
their answer of force policles are tied to the implement and method used. GRTPD's policy 304 governs
force decisions where “Conducted Energy Device” tools are used. Taser use Is the specific authorized

tool governed by GRTPD policy 304,

Lt. Hernandez provided me with Officer Wolfer’s body-camera video,

Briefing of incident:

Lt. Hernandez provided me with the facts necessary for me to complete the level of evaluation
requested. L{. Hernandez told me the GRTPD officer, James Wolfer, responded to a call of a trespass at
the Casina. Lt. Hernandez told me the suspect was known to GRTPD officers from numerous previous
contacts and Is often intoxicated, Lt. Hernandez told me he relayed to Officer Wolfer that the suspect
was also wanted for an Assault Il by the Yamhill County Sheriff's Office and may have a warrant for that
crime. | asked if the suspect had a history of assaulting officers. Lt. Hernandez told me he was not

aware of any history of the suspect assaulting officers.

Involved Officer’s Experience (Graham v, Connor);

The standard of ohjective reasonableness established by Graham v, Connor requires examination

through the perspective of the officer on scene rather than applying 20/20 hindsight. For application of
this standard In making this evaluation, | acknowledge the training and experience differences between
Offlcer Wolfer and myself. For those reasons, | will detall observations but opinion Indicated as being in

“light most favorable to the officer” stands as my judgement,

Officer Training and Authorization to Carry Taser:

Lt. Hernandez told me Officer Wolfer was current on Taser tralning as required by GRTPD policy {304.3).
Offlcer Wolfer’s authorization to carry and use the Taser In accordance with policy is not questioned by

this review.
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Review of incident:

{ read the GRTPD's policy 304, | found it generally consistent with other police department policies
governing the use of Tasers. | did not observe anything in the policy that was extraordinary.

| watched the provided body-camera video. The video has a digital tag on the screen Indicating
“IWolfer, GRT PD” and date/time stamped “2017/08/13 5;11:42 PM."” The video opens with Officer
Wolfer making comment to someone to keep eyes oh a person and Officer Wolfer getting into a patrol

vehicle,

Officer Wolfer drives to a parking lot, | can see in the video that Officer Wolfer Is wearing black gloves.
They are not [atex gloves. It is my experience officers wear this type of glove when they anticipate the

need to use force or are going to search a person,

At about 5:12:33 PM, Officer Wolfer arrives in another parking lot. As he exits his vehicle, | hear him get
tocation description from a male telling him where the suspect is located. Officer Wolfer goes in the
direction apparently indicated. At5:12:44 PM, i see the suspect come Into the video, |¢an see his head
over the top of a car. It should be noted the camera view will vary from Officer Wolfet’s view. Officer
Wolfer gives clear command, “Stop. Police.” Officer Wolfer rounds a parked car and shouts, “Stop. Get

on the Ground.” A famale asks what he wants.

Officer Wolfer commands the suspect to “Get on the ground now.” He points a Taser at the suspect.
The waman asks if it is her who Officer Wolfer wants to get onto the ground. Officer Wolfer tells her no
and directs her to back up. She does not back up and instead places herself between Officer Wolfer and

the suspect. She begins to argue.

Officer Wolfer elevates his voice and shouts for the suspect to get on the ground. Officer Wolfer shouts
a warning to the suspect to get on the ground or he will be tased, Officer Wolfer shouted “back away!”
| belleve, based on the proximity of the female, he was shouting at the female but the male suspect
comphied with the command and backed away. Officer Wolfer gave command for the suspect to get on
the ground. Officer Wolfer tased the suspect. The suspect locked up and fell onto the asphalt parking

lot, The time was 5:23:04 PM,

I could see the suspect’s hands at his waist and visible when Officer Wolfer rounded the car In the
parking lot. | could see the suspect put his hands in the air from where they were at his walst and kept
them in the air until he was tased. The suspect did not make any threats. The suspect did not make any
physical movement indicating he would assault Officer Wolfer. The suspect did not run from Officer
Wolfer. The suspect did not comply with Officer Wolfer’s clear and repeat commands to get onto the

ground.,

Officer Wolfer told the female, who continued to argue and interfere, to get on the ground or she would
be tased. She replied for him to “fucking do It then Bitch.” | will note It is my opinion that tasing the
female would have been objectively reasonable at or before this point. She was reaching into a small
purse, her hands were not always visible, she was actively interfering with the arrest and had been given
clear and repeated warnings to get back. As this review does not address an answer of force to the
female, | will cease descriptlon of her actions as | am of the oplnion they do not have appropriate
bearing oh continued use of force on the suspect from this point on and a parson | recognize as casino

securlty deescalates her behavior.
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Officer Wolfer handcuffs the suspect who complies with commands and Is cuffed behind the back. The
suspect is face-down, on the asphalt with the Taser probes still attached. While being cuffed, Officer
Wolfer directs the suspect where to put his hands and warns he will be tased again Iif he does not
comply.

The suspect repeatedly asks what he did and rolls from side to side. Officer Wolfer tells the suspect he
has a warrant and warns him to stop moving or Officer Wolfer would tase him again. Officer Wolfar tells
the suspect not to move or he would tase him again. The suspect shouts, “Fuck you!” The suspect’s
body jars as an apparent component of his shouting and the assoclated use of chest muscles and
diaphragm. Officer Wolfer immediately initlates another cycle of his Taser. The time stamp was about
5:14:27 PM. Officer Wolfer again warns the suspect If he pulls away, “He will get it again.”

Officer Wolfer and casino staff begin effectively deescalating the suspect and female, Officer Wolfer
summons medics to evaluate the suspect. | will not further detail the period of time between this and

when Deputy La Combe {Polk County Sherlff's Office) arrives to cover Officer Wolfer and is briefed by
Officer Wolfer,

At about 5:27 PM, Deputy La Combe is being briefed on what happened by Officer Wolfer. Of note,
during this briefing, Officer Wolfer tells Deputy La Combe the suspect started to "square -off” with him,
This terminology describes a person assuming a fighting posture. | observed this suspect did not assume
a fighting posture at any time before belng tased. He also stated the female was jacking the suspect
up” and that he was trying to puil away from him on the ground.

At about 5:38:45 PM, Officer Wolfer uses a cellular phone to call Sgt. Rod McAllister, {know that is who
he calls because | can see the name and part of the phone number (541)***-7895 displayed on the
phone screen, Officer Wolfer briefs Sgt. McAllister. During the briefing, he tells Sgt. McAlilster that the
suspect “squared-up on me.” Officer Wolfer told Sgt. McAllister he tased the suspect a second time
hecause the suspect was resisting while he was trying to get the cuffs on by himself.

| also note that in the briefing to Sgt. McAllister, Officer Wolfer indicates the warrant for the suspect had
flags for assaulting and resisting a police officer. | am unable to validate the accuracy of this statement
‘with the resources provlded so will accept it as accurate for the purposes of this review.

Opinfon:
Officer Wolfer was authorized by GRTPD to carry and use a Taser,
Officer Wolfer gave warning before using the Taser as required in GRTPD policy 304.4.

Officer Wolfer violated GRTPD policy 304.5.1, This section of pollcy dictates {paraphrased) & person be
either (a) violent or physicaily resisting or {b} demonstrate by words or action an intention to be violent
or to physically resist, and appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or others

. com mands when the ﬂrst application of the Taser occurred

Ofﬁcer Woifer vloiated GRTPD policy 304,5.2 {d) by using a Taser ona handcuffed person who could
otherwise be restrained without meeting threshold of increased risk to himself, the suspect or others.
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Officer Wolfer violated GRTPD policy 304.5.2 {f) by tasing an individual who was standing on an asphalt
parking lot. However, this would not, in my opinion, be a violation if the use of the Taser was
appropriate under policy 304.5.1 (a) or {b} because the use would then meet policy 304.5,2’s balancing

test,

Officer Wolfer did not violate GRTPD policy 304.5.3 because his application of the Taser was dynamic
and did not lend itself to more careful targeting. Further, he summoned appropriate medical care for

the suspect.

Officer Wolfer did not violate GRTPD policy 304.5.4 because the decision to use multiple applications of
a Taser are left, as a matter of policy, to the opinion of the officer that the need to control the suspect
outweighs the potentially Increased risk posed by muitiple applications, It should be noted | do not
believe the second application of the Taser reasonable or lawful but in light most favorable to Officer
Wolfer, this narrow sectlon of policy leaves the decision to his discretion,

Officer Wolfer violated policy GRTPD 304.5.5. This policy required Officer Wolfer notify a supervisor of
the Taser device discharge. It Is an implicit component of advising the supervisor to be honest in the
recounting of the event. it Is possible, albeit remote, to attribute the telling of the initlal tasing of the
suspect to a perception error on Officer Wolfer’s part that the suspect “squared-up” with him or
prepared to fight. This does hot validate that perception but accepts it as possibility other than an
intentlonal false statement. However Officer Wolfer’s telling Sgt. McAllister he tased the suspect a

. second time becausé the suspect was resisting while he was trying to cuff the suspect is plainly fatse
The suspect had been secured in cuffs behind his back well before belng tased the second time,

MATERIALS RETENTION:

I will secure the copy of GRTPD Policy 304, the body-camera video and a copy of this document into
Dallas Police Department evidence as item #001 under case # DAP17001674, The report will contain no
personal identificatlon information and the narrative will state, “Assist for another agency Internal
review. Materials associated with this case number are exempted from public records release under
ORS 192.501.” The address for the event will be 187 SE Court St. Dallas, Oregon,
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GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLIGE BEPRRTHIENT

Inter-Office Memorandum

Date: August 16, 2017

To: Lieutenant Hernandez (Acting Chief of Police)
CC: Chief Jake McKnight

From: Sgt. Rod McAllister

Subject: Investigation Report

involving Officer James Wolfer, _ _ and ! while at Spirit Mountain
Casino located at 27100 Salmon River Hwy Ih Grand Ronde, Polk County Oregon.

During Officer Wolfer's contact with - and Officer Wolfer deployed his Department
issued CEW (Conducted Electrical Weapon) twice, After Lieutenant Hernandez reviewed video

footage, from Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera, it was determined that several
Department policies were violated by Officer Wolfer,

On 08-15-2017, | received information from Lisutenant Hernandez reﬁarding an incident

Lieutenant Hernandez requested that | complete an investigatfon into this incident, regarding the
violations of Department policies.

On the evening of 08-13-2017, while | was off duty and at my residence, | had recelved a
telephone call from Officer James Wolfer.

Officer Wolfer advised me that he was calling to let me know that he had been involved in a use
of force situation and that he had deployed his Taser while attempting to take
into custody on a felony assault in the second degree warrant and for trespassing at the Casino.

Officer Wolfer stated, “Hey, just thought that I'd let you know.” | tased 'm
calling you for the use of force,” “It was right when Lieutenant went end of watch, so he couldn't

back me up.” "He was already gone."
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RAND RONDE THIBAL POLICE DEPARTRENT

“He F was trespassed and also had a felony warrant.” "Wouldn’t stop when | told him
to." “His mom { kept getting in the middle,” "He squared up on me and so | had

referring toH
to tase him." " actually had to hit him a second time." "He was resisting while | was trying to get
the cuffs on him, by myseif,”

‘8o, Medics cleared him.” "So, | gathered, { took photos of where the doors called, the fibs,
whatever.” Took photos of those, secured them.” “Medics pulled the barbs out after the,

whatever they are, the probes after P-020 (Deputy Lacombe, Polk County Sheriff's Office) came
as my cover.” "He was there because he was semi-combative.” “He's (Deputy

. Lacombe) actually following me right now.

“Medics cleared him ” for transport and, so, we're headed to PCJ. (Polk County Jail)”
“So, just giving you a call on the use of force."

Officer Wolfer then began to go into details regarding the incident at Spirit Mountain Casino,
involving ﬁ and d

“Yeah, trespass.” “That's what the original call, that he’s ([ beon trespassed multiple
times." “Yes, he's (i a'so going to have that.”

“So, his M mom %almost got those same charges, but she [ walked away
when | told her that she would be arrested.” “Stop interfering and keep your distance.”

“So, she was trying to get between the two of us, multiple times.” "Which is part of what
escalated.” "1 put my spare one (Taser cartridge) in there."

- After Officer Wolfer provided me with the information regarding the use of force, involving
* I provided him with information regarding the coliection of the Taser
cartricge, the deployed probes and other evidence that needed to be entered into the evidence

room.

After providing Officer Wolfer with direction pertaining to the evidence, | then ended m
conversation with Officer Wolfer after he provided me with the information regarding

valid felony warrant, issued out of Yamhill County Circuit Court for the original charge of assault
in the second degree and the cautions entered regarding the history of resisting arrest and for

assatilt on an Officer.

While reviewing Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera footage, | observed Officer
Wolfer exit from his marked Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department vehicle and make contact
with Spirit Mountain casino Security who advised Officer Wolfer where [l was currently

focated at.
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- GRAKD RONDE TRIBAL POLIGE DEPARTMENT

Officer Wolfer then proceeds, across the green lot, towards H and location. As
Officer Wolfer works his way through the parked vehicles, Officer Wolfer yells, "Hey, Stop,

Police, Stop, Get on the ground!”
After Officer Wolfer gives his verbal commands, a male and female subject appear in view of
Officer Wolfer's body camera, as Officer Wolfer moves towards them. - then asks Officer

Wolfer, “What do you want?” _

Officer Wolf, states, "Get on the ground nowl* Officar Wolfer has his CEW pointed in the
direction of and : # and are stahding in the middle of the lane of
travel located between the parking stalls. s holding a white plastic bag in her left hand and

has nothing in his hands.

- then states, “Me?" Officer Wolfer answers, "No, not you!" “Back upl” “Go to the sidel” “You

e ground!" while pointing with his left hand and pointing the CEW with his right hand,
Is standing between h and Officer Wolfer. Is a couple of feet behind [}
and Officer Wolfer is several feet away from both an

Officer Wolfer then yells, "Get on the ground how!” “Move aside!” “Get on the ground now or you
will be Tased!”

At this point is standing there with both hands in the air, next to his head. It's clear
that has nothing in his hands. :

- steps towards Officer Wolfer. Officer Wolfer moves towards his left and yells, “Back away!"
“Get on the ground nowl!”

is observed taking small steps backwards while holding his hands In the air, next to his
head. is standing near , with her hands on her hips.

Officer Wolfer yells, while discharging his CEW, “Get on the ground!” Both CEW probes fravel
past [ and strike

- leans forward, brings his hands down to the front of his chest, just below his chin and
falls forward with his body stiff, lands face down on the asphalt and rolls onto his back

while receiving the electrical current from Officer Wolfer's CEW.

Officer Wolfer then notifies Dispatch that he has Tased [|JJjjjjij white ] steps towards
Officer Wolfer while stating, “You mother fucker!”
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GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE NEPARTHENT

Officer Wolfer then telis to "Get on the ground or you will be Tased tool” then yells,
“Fucking do it, Bitchl” Officer Wolfer continues to tell to “Get on the ground!” while Security

Supervisor Mickey Wood steps in front of

At this point, is lying on his hack with his arms extended out to his sides and slightly
towards his head, not moving.

Officer Wolfer continues to yell “Get on the ground!” “Get on the ground and don't move!" Il
is heard saying, “He didn't do anything!”

Officer Wolfer then requests Dispatch to notify medical personnel to respond to the location,
Officer Wolfer then tells Security Supervisor Wood to keep [JJJj away.

Officer Wolfer then tells m to roll over onto his side twice, which complies with
Officer Wolfer's commands is point, [l s lving on the asphalt, face down and not

moving arotnd.

Officer Wolfer then tells that he is under arrest. [l asks Officer Wolfer, "For
what?” Officer Wolfer then tells “You have a warrant and you have been trespassed.”
“You are under arrestl” “Do not move

Officer Walfer then moves towards H stays standing in the same spot and
does not move. Officer Wolfer points towards and says, "Stay back!” “Keep your hands
where we can see them!”

Officer Wolfer then kneels down beside H places hIS left hand in the lower area of
m back and says, Place your hands tight herel” is heard saying, “He had this
under control and you fucking know itl" Officer Wolfer telis

to "Shut up!”
Officer Wolfer then places H hands in the lower portion of his back and says, “Put your
hands right here or you'll get It againl” Officer Wolfer then places handcuffs on *
wrists, while his hands are behind his back. is not saying anything hor is he displaying
any indications that would indicate that is resisting. Officer Wolfer while being

handcuffed.

asks Officer Wolfer, “What did | do?” “What did | do?”

Afterm is handcuffed,

Officer Wolfer states, "Do not move asks again, “"What did | do?" Officer Waolfer
states, “Do not move!” At this point, is still lying face down, on the asphalt and not
displaying any indication or making any movements that wou!d constifute the crime of resisting

arrest,
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"GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLIGE DEPARTHENT

then asks Officer Wolfer, “What does he have a warrant for?” Officer Wolfer replies, "It
doesn't matter!” “Shut up!” [l begins to move and Officer Wolfer states, “Do not move or |

will give it to you again!”

Officer Wolfer then tells [ to “Shut up!” “It's not about you!” ] asks Officer Wolfer a
second time, "What does he have a warrant for?” Officer Wolfer states to [Jj *Shut upl’ “it's

none of your business!”

then moves towards his left side and yells, "It is my business!” Officer Wolfer tells
"Stop moving or | will Tase you again!” [JJJili] then states, "Fuck youl”

Officer Wolfer then discharges his CEW a second time, while is lying face down on the
asphalt, with his hands cuffed behind his back. Officer Wolfer allows his CEW to cycle for the
entire five seconds. is heard yelling during the entire five second cycle.

Officer Wolfer tells F “Don’t move or you'll get it again!” “Shut up!" Officer Wolfer then
asks F “You done?” Officer Wolfer then states, "You puli away from me again, you get

it againl” At ho point in time did ever pull away from Officer Wolfer nor did he make
any attempts at pulling away. appeared to only attempt to roli to his left side to look at
Officer Wolfer while he was saying, "Fuck youl"

H then telis Officer Wolfer, “You shot me fwicel” Officer Wolfer then answers, *You
S

ouldn't resist.” "| told you that you were under arrest and you resisted.” asks Officer
Wolfer, "How did | resist mother fucker?” Officer Wolfer then states that was moving

and pulling away.

After reviewing the video footage from Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera, |
reviewed the content of Officer Wolfer's report that he completed regarding this Incident. During
my review, | noted multiple iriconsistencles regarding the information contained in the report

compared to what actually happened on video.

| also learned that the information Officer Wolfer provided to me oh the evening of 08-13-2017,

regarding the use of force, was untruthful regarding the events that occurred and the conduct
Hdisplayed, which would justify the use of a CEW.
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Findings:
POLICY 319 -~ STANDARDS OF CONDUCT.

319.6.8 PERFORMANCE
(a) Failure to disclose or misrepresenting material facts, or making any false or misleading

statement on any application, examination form, or other official document, report or form, or
during the course of any work-related investigation:

(b) The falsification of any work-related records, making misleading entrles or statements with
the intent to deceive or the willful and unauthorized removal, alteration, destruction and/or
mutilation of any department record, public record, book, paper or document.

(c) Failure to participate in, or giving false or misleading statements, or misrepresenting or
omitting material information to a supervisor or other person in a position of authority, in
connection with any investigation or in the reporting of any department-related business.

Officer James Wolifer violated Policy 319.5.8 by intentionally making false statements
when reporting the incident to his supetvisor, after the deployment of the Department
issued CEW. Officer Wolfer made misleading entries into his criminal report, to the Po
County District Attorney’s Office, regarding the conduct of ﬁ and
F to facilitate additional criminal charges consisting of resisting arrest and
nterfering with a police officer.

319.5.9 CONDUCT

(b) Unreasonable and unwarranted force to a person encountered or a person under arrest.
(c) Exceeding lawful peace officer powers by unreasonable, unlawful or excessive conduct.
(h) Criminal, dishonest, or disgraceful conduct, whether on- or off-duty, that adversely affects

the member’s relationship with this department.

Officer James Wolfer violated Policy 319,5.9 by intentionally using unreasonable and
unwatranted force on H While — h was lying face down,
on the asphalt, with his hands restrained behind his back with the use of handcuffs,
Officer Wolfer intentionally discharged his Department issued CEW after rolled
towards his left side after being told not to move.

Officer Wolfer was untruthful when providing information, to his supervisor, regarding
I actions that led fo the justification to use a CEW to effectively make an arrest,
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GRIND ROKDE TRIBA POUICE DEPARTHENT

POLICY 304 - CONDUCTED ENERGY DEVICE

304.2 POLICY
The TASER device is intended to control a violent or potentially violent individual, while

minimizing the risk of serious injury. The appropriate use of such a device should result in fewer
serious injuties to officers and suspects.

304.5.1 APPLICATION OF THE TASER DEVICE
The TASER device may be used in any of the following circumstances, when the circumstances

perceived by the officer at the time indicate that such application is reasonably necessary to
controf a person;

(a) The subject is violent or is physically resisting.
(b) The subject has demonstrated, by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically

resist, and reasonably appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or others.
Mere flight from a pursuing officer, without other known circumstances or factors, is not good
cause for the use of the TASER device o apprehend an individual,

Officer Wolfer violated Policy 304.5.1 by using his Depariment issued CEW on

F who was not actively violent and not physically resisting while restraine! !y
{

e use of handcuffs.

304.5.2 SPECIAL DEPL.OYMENT CONSIDERATIONS

The use of the TASER device on certain individuals should generally be avoided unless the
totality of the circumstances Indicates that other available options reasonably appear ineffective
or would present a greater danger to the officer, the subject or others, and the officer reasonably
believes that the need to control the individual outwsighs the risk of using the device. This

includes:
(d) Individuals who are handcuffed or otherwise restrained.

Officer Wolfer violated Policy 304.5.2 by intentionally discharging his Department issued
CEW while || B 25 restrained by the use of handcuffs.
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#GRAND RONDE YRIBAL POLICE DEPARTMENT

RECOMMENDATION:

After reviewing all of the information provided, Officer Wolfer's footage from his Department
issued body camera and the review of his complsted police report, | find that Officer Woifer
grossly violated several Department policies, which affect the missicn and vision statements of

this Department.

| recommend the following;

o Termination of emplovment with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department,
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“GRAND RONDE TRIBM I’ﬂlll}E DEPRRTMENT

T A e S R ey

Inter-Office Memorandum

Dafe: August 16, 2017

To: Chief Jake McKnight

cC: Rod McAllister

From: Lt. Tim Hernandez (acting Chief of Police)

GRT 17-673 James Wolfer administrative investigation,

On 08/13/17 { was near my residence for my scheduled shift to end at 1700 hours. 1 heard radio traffic
from 911 Dispatch advising of a trespass in progress. | checked the call notes and saw the suspect was

I B | 2 cvised Officer Wolfer of My, [l past contacts and that | belleved that he

had a warrant for assault out of Yamhill County. {also requested Polk County respond to cover Officer
Wolfer,

I then monitored the radio traffic from my residence. | hear Officer Wolfer tell 911 Dispatch that he had
activated his taser while taking Mr. [l into custody. [later heard that medics had cleared Mr.

On 8/14/17 t responded to the Police department and i asked Evidence Technician Leno to make me a
copy of the use of force, Officer Wolfer's dally shift report advised that he tased Mr. i because
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“his mother was coming at me and he seemed to square up his feet.” He stated that he tased Mr.
I 2 sccond time because, “He resisted.”

| then reviewed the video and i saw Officer Wolfer give Mr. |JJJij commands at taser point to, stop
Police, get on the ground. Mr. |l mom gets In between Officer Wolfer and Mr. | V.
I :2iscs his hands in the air above his head and siowly walks backwards while asking, what did |

do? Officer Wolfer steps to the side and tases Mr. || ]

vy, [l immediately falls to the ground and his mother takes a step towards Officer Wolfer while
yelling at him, Officer Wolfer gives Mr. |l orders and Mr. |l complies. Officer Wolfer
handcuffs Mr. [JJJJli] behind bis back. Mr. [l is upset.and he and his mom begin to yell asking
what he did. Mr. ] moves while yelling and Officer Wolfer tells him not to move or he will be
tased again. Mr. [l ve!ls “Fuck you” and moves white saying this. Officer Wolfer tases him again
for a full five seconds. '

CTGR policy 304.5.1 Application of taser

The taser device may be used in any of the following circumstances, when the circumstances perceived
by the officer at the time indicate that such application is reasonably necessary to control a person:

{a} The subject is violent or Is physically resisting.
(b) The subject has demonstrated, by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically
resist, and reasonably appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or others.

The taser application that | witnessed on body camera footage does not fall in line with the policies of
the CTGR Police Department.

{ immediately made contact with the CTGR General Manager and the CTGR Tribal Police Attorney. |
asked them to view the body camera footage and | provided them with a copy of the CTGR Police
Conducted Energy Device policy. After they viewed the body camera footage we made the decision to
place Officer Wolfer on paid administrative leave until we could further review this incident.

On 08/14/17 at about 1024 hours, | met with Officer Wolfer at the Grand Ronde Police Department.
Also present was Human Resources, Patrick Dempsey. | introduced Officer Wolfer to Mr, Dempsey and |
advised him that his use of force was not in line with CTGR Police Department policies and that he was
being placed on administrative ieave.

| provided Officer Wolfer with a copy of the policy. Officer Wdlfer asked me If he could ask a question
and | told him he could. He asked what part was not in line. | asked him to lock at the policy and | told
him Mr. [l had his hands in the air and was slowly stepping backwards when he was tased.
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Officer Wolfer told me, “He squared up at me.” He said after he reviewed his body camera footage he
saw his hands were In the air but he felt Mr. [l fect were peinted towards him,

| then mentioned the second taser deployment and Officer Wolfer told me, “He kept trying to roll.” He
told me he had not patted Mr. [Jij down and he had not double locked the handcuffs. He told me
his taser deployment was done In good falth. Officer Wolfer asked what the level of punishment was for
anincident like this. | advised him that it could be anything from days off, more training or possible
termination, |told him we would have to have a full review of the incident,

| asked Officer Wolfer to feave his department equipment in his tocker. He was allowed to wear his duty
shirt and pants. Officer Wolfer asked me about his off duty wéapon and badge. | advised him he was
only on administrative leave and he could keep his off duty gear and credentials.

Our meeting concluded at 1030 hours. | walked to the locker room with Officer Wolfer and spoke with
him briefly as he was placing items in his locker. |asked him if Nicole was at home or if he wanted to call
Nicole with me present and he told me | did not need to. Officer Wolfer stated to me, “This seems like
Warm Springs all over again.”

| later reviewed the entire incident to its conclusion, | heard Officer Wolfer call Sgt, McAilister and
explain that he tased Mr. [} ©Officer Wolfer said he tased Mr. [JJij because be squared up to
me. He told Sgt. McAllister that he had to tase Mr. [l @ second time because he was resisting
while Officer Wolfer was trying to handcuff him by himself,

[ fater reviewed Officer Wolfer's report where he states that he tased Mr. [l because his feet
polnted towards him In an aggressive manner, He stated he tased Mr. [Jij @ second time because
he continued to try to rol! away from me, :

It is my oplnion that Mr. | mother, Mrs. [ was more aggressive than Mr. [ 1 did
not see anything In my opinion that either Mr. |l or Mrs. I ever displayed anything other
than verbal and passive resistance. Mr. |JJJJJi] was never toid he was under arrest until after he had
been tased and handcuffed. He was later handcuffed and lying face down with Officer Wolfer standing

over him when he was tased a second time.

On 8/15/17, | made phone contact with the Clty of Dallas Police Chief, Tom Simpson, |asked the Chief i
his department would be willing to assist our department with a use of force review. Chief Simpson
advised me he would have a supervisor contact me,
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i also briefed Sgt. MicAllister and | advised him that | wanted him to conduct an investigation into this
incldent.

| later spoke with Dallas Police, Lt, Mott. | advised Lt. Mott we had a taser deployment that we wanted
his department review and advise if it was in line with the CTGR Police Department policies. Lt. Mott
advised me that he would be willing to review our policy and the body camera footage and offer a
written opinton.

I later responded to the Dallas Police Departiment and | provided Lt. Mott with a complete copy of the
Grand Ronde Police Conducted Energy Device policy. | also provided him with a VD with the body
camera footage of the taser deployment against Mr. || N

On 8/16/17 | received a written response from Lt, Mott, Lt. Mott advised me that he believed that
Officer Woifer violated several CTGR Police Department policies. Please refer to Lt. Mott’s report for

additional information.

End of report.
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( Crlme/InGldent RepOIL Print Date: 08/14/2017 13:39:18
GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DEPARTMENT
Casa ld Typa Dascrplion Report Date
GRT17600673 TRESP1 TRESP1 08/13/2017 17:04
Locallon Qccurred From Occuned To
27100 SALMON RIVER HWY 08/13/2017 17:04 08/13/2017 19:42
Districl Linked Incident
01
Peperimont Rouiing
; PCDA
SYNOPSIS
OFFENSES
OFFENSE DESCRIPTION LOCATION TYPE UCR
164.245(a) Criminal Trespass Il CAS 26
TRESPASSED PERMANENTLY FROM CASINC GROUNDS SINCE
2016
162.247 Interfere with Police Officer CAS 999
REFUSED TO OBEY ORDERS, |l REFUSED TO
OBEY ORDERS
162.315(c) Resisting Arrest - Dis, Conduct CAS 24
ATTEMPTED TO ROLL AWAY WHILE BEING
HANDCUFFED :
166.025(b) Disorderly Conduct 2nd Deg CAS 24
YELLED DURING ENTIRE ARREST, WAS DISRUPTIVE
TO FOOD SERVICE
01207 AQA - Warrant Served CAS 999
YAMHILL COUNTY FELONY WARRANT-ASSAULT II-WNO
#17CRS53185
162.325(e) Hinder Prosecution - All Other CAS 999
- ATTEMPTED TO PHYSICALLY STOP ARREST OF
INVOLVED PARTIES = - T
DOB AGE SEX RACE WEIGHT HEIGHT HAIR EYE
ARRESTED [ 2 M NAT  I50lbs  SMi0in  BLK  BRO
‘l GRAND RONDE OR 97347
Home #: Bus #: ( Cell #: (
- ou: [
CHARGE DESCRIPTION CNTS  WARRANT # COURT
164.245(a) Criminal Trespass I 1 CIRC
162,247 Interfere with Polico Officer ! CIRC
162.315(c) Resisling Arrest - Dis. Conduet 1 CIRC
166.025(b) Disorderly Conduct 2nd Deg 2 CIRC
OTHER -' [ ] 37 M NAT  210lbs  Sftt0in  BLK BRO
GRAND RONDE OR 97347
Home #: Bus #: ( Cell#: (
ssn: piN: [ or
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otter [
' , OR
Home #: ( Bus #: ( Cell #: (
SSN: DLN:
SUSPECT I 517 F WHI 1801bs  5R02in BRO
,GRAND RONDE OR 97347
Home #: Bus# [ Ce'#: (
SSN: oLN: [ or
Complexion: Clothing:
Suspect Actions:
VICTIM SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO
27100 SALMON RIVER HWY ,GRAND RONDE OR 97347
Bus #: (503) 879-2350
PROPERTY
ltem i Tag Celegory Meke Model Sarlal#
001 R1700673G108001 MISCELLANEOUS
OAN COLOR NCIG UCR
K.
Dascilplion o
TASER PROBES, CARTRIDGE AND DOORS
Cunorehip Fropany Slaius  Estimate Properly Status  Esimale
Name: Evidence: Y 1,00
Phone;
Address:
Recovored! Selzed From - Sslzure
Name: Location:
Address; Officer:
Phone: Recovered Date:
Hem# Teg Category Mska Model Serial #
003 R1700673G108003 PHOTOS/FILM
OAN COLOR NCIC UCR
K.
Des¢ription
BODY CAMERA FOOTAGE
Ownorship Propardy Slalus  Eslimale Property Slalus “Eslimala
Name: Evidence: Y 1.00
Phone;
Address:
Racovered/ Solzed From | Sefure
Name: Locaticr:
Addrsss: Officer:
Phone: Recovered Date:
Hem ## Tag Calagory Meke Modet Serlal #
004 R1700673G108004 DOCUMENTS
OAN COLOR NGiC UCR
K.
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I'D_es—uliﬂon .
SECURITY INCIDENT REPORTS

Owanership

Property Stalus  Estimals
Evidence: Y 1.00

Proparly Slalus  Estimate

Name;
Phone:
Address;
Recovarad! Selzed From Seizure
Name; Location:
Address: Offlcer:
Phone: Recovered Date:
ftem# Yag Catagory Make Model Sarlal ##
005 R1700673G108005 PHOTOS/FILM
OAN COLOR NCiC UCR
K

Descripilon

CDR-photos of Taser Deployment area
Ownershlp Property Slakis  Estimale Proparly Stalus ~ Esiimate
Name: Evidence: Y 1.00
Phone:
Address:
Recoverad! Soizad From Selxura
Name: Location!
Address: Officer:
Phone! Recoverad Date:
MO
NARRATIVE

On 8/13/2017 1 was on duty, in full uniform and clearly displaying a badge. At 1703 hours | was
dispatched to Spirit Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Salmon River Highway, Grand Ronde, Polk
County, Oregon, for report of a male that was trespassing. While en route, dispatch advised that the
male was H DOB [l and that he had a felony warrant out of Yamhill County.
Lt. Hernandez advised he was already out of the county and end of watch, but advised thatd
brother, may be around and has assault law enforcement in the past. Dispatch further
advised that the warrant was confirmed for Asssault in the second degree and that had
caution flags for assault on a public safety officer. Dispatch also advised he was intoxicated. While en
route | located DMV photo and viewed it, as well as the warrant information.

| called for a cover unit, and the closest cover unit was Polk County Deputy LaCombe, who was
responding from Dallas. | called Spirit Mountain Casino Security, who advised that was
permanently trespassed from the casino and that he was being confrontational with security. | advised
dispatch | would be increasing my response and responding without waiting for a cover unit due to
casino security being at risk, especially given |} cautions for interfering with police and the
warrant being for assauit Il, which | know includes serious physical injury as an element.

As | arrived at the casino, Security Supeivisor Micky Wood advised that [[JJJJJl| was headed
towards the valet entrance and the green parking iot. | went to that location and security pointed out
Hwelking with a female in about the third row of parking. | recognized [l from his DMV
photo. I had my body camera activated already. The following happened in substance, to the best of

my recollection and perception at the time of the incident.
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I drew my Taser and loudly yelled "stopl Policel” and "get on the ground” to ||l The female,
later identified as |||} Gz 005 IR asked if | meant her or [ | oave verbal
commands for Ms. | to move to the side and gave verbal commands to [l to “get on
the ground!” [l refused to get on the ground and was yelling at me. Ms. was yelling at
me, | sidestepped to my left while pointing my Taser at while I continued to shout verbal
commands to “get on the ground, get on the ground NOW/"
R continued to refuse to get on the ground and yeited at me. Ms. continued to refuse
orders to move aside and kept physically putting herself between my Tas& | continued
to yell verbal commands to “stopl” and "get on the ground or you will be Tased!” while pointing my
Taser at [l from about 10 feet away. | observed [JJJli] put his hands up but point his feet
towards me in an aggressive stance, and | believed [Jli] was getting ready to assault me. At that
time, Ms. was still yelling at me and walking towards me aggressively.

Due to the severity of the crime of Assault i that [JJjiij was wanted for, the known factors of
R h=ving a history of interfering with police and associated cautions, the fact that was
continually refusing orders to get on the ground and his aggressive stance and shouts, the fact that
appeared to be larger than me, my cover unit likely still being 5-10 minutes away, as well as
Ms. waiking towards me while yelling and physically attempting to stop me from taking

into custody, | was afraid | would be assaulted and would have to physicaliy fight both Ms.

and . I quickly sidestepped to my left and pulled the trigger of my Taser while It was
pointed at

and It was effective, with the probes and wires hitting [JJJJJl| i» the upper Torso

area.
| observed fall back to the ground. Ms. [} began screaming at me “you
motherfucker!” and | had to yell verbal commands at her o “get on the ground or you will be Tased
tool” Ms. stood back about 6 feet from me, but continued to yeii at me and approach me, |
repeatedly had to yell at Ms. [l to ‘step back!” “get on the ground” and “shut up!l” because she
was yelling so loudly that | could not effectively give further instruction to |||l

I let dispatch know | had Tased ] and asked for medics to respond.
| told to turn over onto his stomach or he would be Tased again, and he complied. | told
ﬂt his hands on the small of his back. | told he was under arrest for a felony
warrant and for frespass. | began putting handcuffs on . continued to yell at me and
tried to roll away from me while tensing his body up. 1 told Highpine to stop resisting or he would be
tased again. As | attempted to double lock the handcuffs, tensed his body up and tried to roll
away from me, and | told him again to stop resisting but he continued to try and roll away from me. |
activated my Taser again for a 5 second cycle, and immediately stopped resisting. | was
able to secure to the ground with my knee on his upper back.

While securing Ms. [ repeatedly screamed at me and approached me. | had to yell
commands at her to stay back and Security Supervisor Wood stepped in and kept Ms. [l from
approaching me. Ms. [l began to record me on her cell phone. | told her that was fine because
[ was recording on my body camera, but that she needed to do it from that distance and not approach
me again. | told her | would need her information, and told me it was his mother,

B a Casino employee, came outside and identified himself as brother.
B Kopt trying to calm [l down as he would alternate between tensing his body up and
screaming at me, and then calming down. did not seem to recognize i at tmes, and !
could smell a moderate odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from [l person. | aiso observed

his speech to be extremely siurred.
B 2siced to sit up. | told him as long as he did not resist any more [ would let him sit up, and he
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agreed. | sat up into a seated position, and he continued to alternate between being calm
and screaming at me “what did | do." | repeatedly explained the warrant and trespass charges to

| asked [} if he had any injures, and he told me he had a heart condition but was not having
any issues now. When medics arrived, | advised them to wait for Deputy LaCombe, who was about 2
minutes away. When Deputy LaCombe arrived, medics checked on ||| removed the Taser
probes and wires, and cleared him for transport to the jail. | specifically asked them to check
B cac for any injuries from falling after being Tased, and they advised there were no visible
injuries and insisted he was fine,
At some point, Ms. [l left the scene and was not located again.
The medics placed the Taser probes Into a locked sharps container and gave that to me. |
photographed the area where | had deployed the Taser, | collected the Taser wires and doors but
could not find any other pieces of evidence. Deputy Lacombe and | assisted [} to his fest. |
checked the handcuffs for propet tightness and fit and conducted an officer safety patdown on

for weapons and means of escape and found none. | escorted to the back of my
patrol vehicle and placed him in the backseat, and placed his seatbelt on. | secured the Taser
evidence in the back of my patrol vehicle.
| transported |l to the Potk County Jail. While en route, ||| cycled between calm and
quiet to loudly screaming at me while banging his head on the cage divider. | toid ||} several
times to stop banging his head and he would immediately comply. While driving to the Polk County
Jail, asked my name repeatedly, and after [ told him, he told me that he would kill me. |

asked him when, and he said “maybe tonight, maybe next time | see you.”
| advised dispatch of the threats made and asked that extra deputies be available at the jail in case

was combative there.
At the jail, was hot combative. refused to have his blood alcohol content tested.

The corrections deputies explained that [ij needed to provide a sample to see if he was
medically cleared to be lodged, as they were worried about him having alcohol poisoning. ||
refused to provide a sample, so | transported him to the West Valley Hospital in Dallas, Oregon, At the
hospital, was cleared by medical staff and | was given a form. | kept a copy of the form

which will be attached to this report, .
| cailed Grand Ronde Tribal Police Sergeant Rod McAllister by telephone and advised him of the use

of force.,
I transported [l to the Polk County Jail, where he was lodged for the following charges:
Yamhill County Felony Warrant for Assault Il, Warrant # 17CR53185;
ORS 164.245 Criminal Trespass I, due to being at Spirit Mountain Casino after
knowingly being permanently trespassed from the casino property. It should be noted that
was previously arrested in case 16-515 for trespassing at the casino on 9/18/2016;
ORS 162.247 Interfering with a police officer, due to refusing several orders to stop and
get on the ground after | identified myself as a police officer and while warning him to get on the
ground or he would be Tased;

ORS 162.315 Resisting arrest, due to |Jili] physically tensing his body up and attempting to
roll away from my several times while | was handcuffing him, after | had informed him he was

under arrest for Trespass and a Felony Warrant;
ORS 166.025 Disorderly conduct (I, due to screaming loudly at me during and after the
arrest, causing several patrons to stop walking and stare, as well as being so disruptive while

being served food that he was asked fo leave by Casino staff.
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| returned to the Grand Ronde Police station and secured the Taser probes and cartridge in evidence
as ltem # 001.

-1 Officer Tehama returned to the scene of the incident and retrieved two AFIDS for me, which were
secured as ltem # 002, See Officer Tehama's supplemental report for further.

I downloaded my body camera footage into DEMS and saved it as evidence, item # 003,

I burned the photos | had taken onto a CDR and saved It in evidence as ltem # 005.

| later reviewed my body camera footage and observed that directly before | activated my Taser,

took a step backward with his hands up. | did not notice this during the incident due to the
speed at which events were unfolding and due to the fact that Ms. was approaching me and
[ believed | was about to be assaulted and would have to fight both Ms. and

without a cover unit.

On 8/14/2017 at 0836 hours | returned to Spirit Mountain Casino and spoke with Security Staff,
Security staff gave me the security reports for this incident, which is incident number INC-112829, as
well as the incident on 9/18/2016, INC-10541. in security report INC-10541, after was
arrested by Grand Ronde Tribal Police for trespass on 9/18/2016, Security explained to that
he was permanently and indefinitely excluded from the casino and that future incidents would result in
the Casino pursuing trespass charges. There is a copy of the written exclusion notice in that report.

| secured both reports in evidence as ltem #004.

| also requested SMC Surveiilance provide me a copy of the surveillance footage. 1 will attach that to
this report once received.

Security also identified Ms. as the female that was with | looked up Ms.
DMV photo and noted it was a match for the female that attempted to stop me from

arresting
At this time, | have probable cause to arrest Ms. for the following crimes:

ORS 162.325 Hindering prosecution, due to Ms. physically attempting to stop me from
taking into custody on his Felony warrant, when she continually stepped between me
and and refused orders to step aside;

ORS 162.247 Interfering with a police officer, due to Ms, ‘ refusing orders to get on the
ground, as well as refusing orders to step aside when | attempted to take -ginto

custody.
CASE CLOSED BY ARREST
Copy of repart to the Polk County District Attorney
- SUMMARY
REVIEW STATUS: PENDING REVW REVIEWED BY; DATE: 8/14/2017 9:45:15AM
INVESTIGATOR ASSIGNED: ASSIGNED DATE:
DEPT. CASE DISPOSITION: ARREST DATE: 8/14/2017 9:44:34AM
UCR STATUS: NA DATE: 8/13/2017 5:44:.01PM IBR EXEP CLEAR CLASS: NA
Reporting Officer Reviewad/Approved by Date Roviawad/Approved
G108 WOLFER,JAMES
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InCIdent Supplemeﬂt Print Date: 08/14/2017 13139;22

GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DEPARTMENT "

Gase 1D Supplement D Ogaurad Dale ‘ Evant Type

GRTI7008673 341696 08/13/2017 17:04 . |{TRESP1

Logatlon

27100 SALMON RIVER HWY

Subjoot

RECOVERY OF ANTI-FELON IDENTIFICATION TAG (AFID TAG)

Dept Roullng

; PCDA

NARRATIVE
On 08/13/2017 at approximately 20:15 hours, Grand Ronde Tribal Officer James Wolfer returned from
transporting his custody to Polk County Jail, Officer Wolfer advised me that he had deployed the

Taser Probes and asked for help in securing the evidence.
| asked Officer Wolfer if he had recovered any Anti-Felon Identification Tags (AFID Tags), and he

advised me that he could not locate any.
| returned to the area where Ofc. Wolfer's Taser was deployed and recovered two AFID Tags with

matching serial numbers. | transported the AFID Tags to the Grand Ronde Police Department where |
placed them onto clear tape so the numbers were clearly visible, | then placed the tape and tags into
an evidence bag and secured it into a locked evidence locker.

This ended my involvement in the case,
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Probable Cause Affidavit

State of Oregon ) Arresting Agency: Grand Ronde Tribal PD  Venue: B4 Polk County [ ] Other
)
Counly of Polk  } Circuit Court: [X] Dallas Municipal Court: 71 Monmouth Municipal Court: []

Behavioral Health Evaluation:  Yes:[]  No:

! the undersigned peace officer, after belng duly sworn upon
oath do hereby swear or affirm that the following Information Is
triue to the bast of my knowledge and belief.

Arrestee: [ EGzGNTEIEGNG Date & Time of Arrest: 8/13/2017 at 1711 hours
Arresting Officer: J. Wolfer Date of Crime(s): 8/13/2017 Venue: 4 Polk County [ Other

Crime(s) Alleged:

ORS 184,245 Criminal Trespass ||

ORS 162.247 Interfering with a Police Cfflcer

ORS 162,315 Resisting arrest

ORS 166.025 Discrderly conduct in the second degree
Felony Warrant, Yamhili County Warrant 17CR53185

Facts supporting probable cause;

On 8/13/2017 at 1703 hours | was dispatched to Spirit Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Saimon River Highway,

Gra \ nty, Oreaon for report of a male at the location trespassing. Dispatch advised that the male
was DCB Hand advised that he had been trespass from that {ocation In the past and
was not allowed to ba at the location. While en route, dispatch advised that Mr. had a felony warrant out

of Yamhill County and that he had a history of reslsting arrest and cautions for assauling a police officer.

| asked for a cover unlt and went towards the locatlon. The closest cover unit was a Polk County deputy coming
from the Dallas area. | called Casino Securlty, who advised that M. m was being confrontational with

securlty they were following him to the valet entrance. | went to the valet entrance and Security pointed
out Mr. previously pulled up Mr. DMV photo and recognized Mr, M It should be

noted that Mr. has been arrested on previocus occasions for heing at Spirit Mounta ,and he Is
awars he Is permanently trespassed from that location,
to the

Mr. a female that he later sald was his mother. | drew my taser and ordered Mr,
ground. Mr. began yelling at me and refusing to cooperate. | continued to order Mr. on the

ground and he continue e. The female kept stepping In between myself and Mr. he started
stop while pointing my taser at Mr” with [t t . and he turned
take an aggressive stance towards me whille yeil}ni. "squaring up" his body,

walking away. | told Mr.
towards me. | obsarved Mr.

and | was afrald that he was going to try and assault me, It should be noted that Mr, Is taller than me and
his mother continued to try to confront me as well, and | knew my closest cover unit was around 6-10 minutes
away. | pulled the trigger and activated the Taser, hitting Mr. in the upper Torso area. Mr. fell to
the ground, | toid him to turn over and he did. | told Mr. at he was under arrest for trespass and for a
felony warrant.

| placed handcuffs on Mr. [l Ater placing the handcutts on Mr. [ before | could double fock them,
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he began fo try and roil away from me and yell at me that he did not do anything. | told Mr. *to stop
me while yelling at me, |

reslsting and | tried to hold Mr. q down but he continued to try and roli away from
activated the taser a second time as | felt that Mr. was attempting to try and get up and push me off of

hm. During this time, the female continued to yeil at me and approach me while | yelled at her to stay back. After
the second taser cycls, Mr., stopped resisting. Security was keeping the female subject away from us.

M agreed to not try and resist any more, and | had him sit up. | asked Mr. - if he had any Injuries
and he sald no. | observed that Mr. H/ had a strong odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from his breath
and ierson and observed his speech to be slurred. A family member of Mr. came outside and tried to talk

fvir, into being more calm, as he was yelling loudly at me at times. Mr. did not recognize the
family member, who ldentifled himself as Mr, brother, From my training and experience as a police

officer, | believed Mr. [ was intoxicated.

t asked for medics to come and they arrived. When my cover unit, Deputy LaCombe arrived, medics came In and
removed the Taser probes from Mr. and determined he had no injuries and was okay to be fransported to

the Polk County Jail.

While en route to the Polk County Jall, Mr. q would alternate between being quiet and banging his head on
the window of my patrol vehicle while screaming at me. Mr. [JJJJilj 2/so told me that he would kill me, sither

tonight or next time he saw ma.

At the Polk County jail, Mr. “ refused to cooperate with Jall deputies to be medically cleared. | took '
ospitai in Dallas, OR where he was evaluated and medically clearsd. | took Mr.

mto West Valley H
ack 1o the Poik County Jail where he was lodged on the foliowlng crimes:

ORS 164.245 Criminal Trespass I, for being at Spirit Mountain Casino after previously being arrested for criminai
trespass at that location and belng told he was permanently trespassed from the location,

Yambhiil County Felony warrant# 17CR53186

ORS 162.247 Interfering with a Police Officer, when Mr. refused to stop and get on the ground when |
gave him several loud verbal commands to stop walking and iay down on the ground.

ORS 162.315 Reslsting arrest: for attempting to pull away from me after | told him he was under arrest.

ORS 166.026 Disorderly conduct in the second degree: For yelfling loudly In the parking lot, causing muitiple
patrons to stop and stare, as well as baing verbally confrontational with casino security.

Additional statement attached [_]

Signature of Arresting Offlcer:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me thls day of L 201

Release Assistance Offfcar/Depuly

Defendant released before probable cause determination.
Bail

Recog  Deputy Authorizing Release; Date & Time

{ 11 find probable cause exists to belleve the arrestee committed the crime(s).
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(1] find insufficlent probable cause exists, based on the Information provided harein,

Judge; Date Time
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ARREST REPORT

‘ CASE# 17-673

POLK COUNTY JAIL
NAME OF PERSON ARRESTED ALIAS OR NICKNAME(S) ARREST DATE
8/13/17
ADDRESS OF ARRESTEE OCGUPATION TIME
1711 hours

SOCIAL SEGURITY # | GITIZENSHIP | BIRTH PLAGE DRIVER'S LICENSE # STATE MAR, STAT | BIRTH DATE

OR 2/7/85
AGE RACE SEX | EYES | HARR LENGTH HEIGHT | WEIGHT BUILD
32 American Indian/Alag M Brown Brown Short 5'10" {185 Medium
WHERE ARRESTED HOW ARREST MADE | COURT OFFENSE DATE
Spirit Mountain Casino PC, warrant Polk County 8/13/2017
VIG:FIM NAME / DOB/ RACE K Drunk Cursed [T Spit at Officers
Spitit Mountain Casino 1 Drinking Reslsted X Under Influence / Drugs

MENTAL HEALTH
VICTIM NAME / DOB/ RACE CONCERN GANG

[]Yes [T Neo
WEAPON |E ARMED OTHER PERSONS ARRESTED FOR SAME OFFENSE
PROPERTY PLAGED IN PROPERTY ROOM RECEIPT #
NAME OF COMPLAINANT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
WITNESS'S NAME BEST CONTACT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
1.
WITNESS'S NANME BEST CONTACT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
2,
STATUTE CHARGE DESCRIPTION DOMESTIC? CRIME CLLASS BAIL
164.245 Criminal Trespass IT No C misd
162.247 Interfering with police officer No A misd
162.315 Resisting arrest No A misd
166.025 Disoxderly conduet IT No B misd
Warrant Felony Warrant, Yamhill County # 17CR53185 No Felony
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OFFICER’S NARRATIVE
On 8/13/2017 at 1703 hours I was dispatched to Spirit Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Salmon River Highway,

Grand Ronde, Polk County, Oregon for report of a male at the location trespassing. Dispatch advised that the male
was -- DOB , and advised that he had been trespass from that location in the past and
was not allowed fo be at the location, While en route, dispatch advised that Mr. had a felony warrant out
of Yamhill County and that he had a history of resisting arrest and cautions for assauliing a police officer,

1 asked for a cover unit and went towards the location, The closest cover unit was a Polk County deputy coming
from the Dallas area, I called Casino Security, who advised that Mr. was being confrontational with
security staff and they were following him to the valet entrance. I went to the valet enirance and Security pointed
out M. 1 had previously pulled up M, DMV photo and recognized Mz, It should be
noted that Mr. has been arrested on previous occasions for being at Spirit Mountain Casino, and he is

aware he is permanently trespassed from that location,

M, Wh a female that he later said was his mother. I drew my taser and ordered Mr.
ground, Mr, began yelling at me and refusing to cooperate, I continued to order Mr. to lay on
the ground and he continued to refuse. The female kept stepping in between myself and M,
started walking away. I told M. to stop while pointing my taser at M, with 1t turned on, and he
turned towards me. [ observed Mr., take an aggressive stance towards me while yelling, "squaring up" his
body, and I was afraid that he was going to try and assault me, It should be noted that M, is taller than
me and his mother continued to try to confront me as well, and I knew my closest cover unit was around 5~10
minutes away. I pulled the trigger and activated the Taser, hitting Mr, in the upper Torso area. Mr.

fell to the ground. I told him to turn over and he did, I told M. that he was under arrest for

trespass and for a felony warrant.

I placed handeuffs on Mr. || After placing the handeuffs on Mr. [ before I could double lock them,

he began to try and roll away from me and yell at me that he did not do anything, I told M, to stop
resisting and I tried to hold Mr. down but he continued to fry and roll away from me while yelling at me.

I activated the taser a second time as I felt that M, was attempting to fry and get up and push me off of
him, During this time, the fomale continued to yell at me and approach me while I yelled at her to stay back, After
the second taser cycle, M. stopped resisting, Secutity was keeping the female subject away from us,

Mr, [ agreed to not try and resist any more, and I had him sit up. I asked Mr. F if he had any
injuries and he said no. I observed that M. had a strong odor of an alccholic beverage coming from his

breath and person and observed his speech fo be slurred. A family member of M, came outside and tried
to talk Mr, h into being more calm, as he was yelling loudly at me at times. M. did not recognize

the family member, who identified himself as M. brother. From my fraining and experience as a police
officer, I believed Mr, [ was intoxicated.

I asked for medics to come and they arrived, When my cover unit, Deputy LaCombe arrived, medics came in and
removed the Taser probes from Mr, and determined he had no injuries and was okay to be transported to

the Polk County Jail,

While en route to the Polk County Jail, Mr, - would alternate between being quiet and banging his head on
the window of my patrol vehicle while screaming at me, M, also told me that he would kill me, either

tonight or next time he saw me.

At the Polk County jail, Mr. - refused to cooperate with jail deputies to be medically cleared, I took Mr.
to West Valley Hospital in Dallas, OR whete he was evalvated and medically cleared. I took M,

back to the Polk County Jail where he was lodged on the following crimes:

ORS 164,245 Criminal Trespass II , for being at Spirit Mountain Casino after previously being arrested for
criminal trespass at that location and being told he was permanently trespassed from the location, Exhibit A9
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ARRESTING OFFIGER/AGENCY

REPORT MADE BY

FINAL DISPOSITION
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Wor/School Excuse Letter

) SALEM HEALTH
An OHSU Partner

OHSU

525 Se Washington St
Dallas OR 97338
503-623-8301

August 13, 2017

patient, | N SR

Date of Birth:

Date of Visit: | 8/13/2017

To Whom It May Concern

B B o5 sccn and treated In our emergency department on 8/13/2017, He
may be lodged In Jall without restrictions .

Additicnal Information:

If you have any questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to call,

Attending Physiclan Webb C Wilson, MD

Exhibit A9
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) SALEM HEALTH
(k, 7 WEST VALLEY
Eﬁs'ﬁ An OHSU Partner

Memo

To! Patients of Salem Heaith West Valley Emargenoy Department
"From:  Dallas Oregon Emargency Physiclans
Re; Patient Billing

Dallas Oregon Emergency Physicians (the "Physitlans” group in the Emergency Department at Salem Health West Valley, Dallas
Cregon} Is cumently contracted as In in-network provider with multiple Insurance payers,

We will accept the insurance paver's allowable amount as payment in full (the amount may or may not include

patient’'s co-insurance, co-pays and/or deductibles).

You are responsible for any appllcable co-insurance, co-pay, and/or deductible under your insurance plan up to
the allowed amount.

if you receive an Explanation of Benefits (EOB) statement from your lnsurance paver and it shows
a remaining balance other than the applicable co-insurance, co-pay, and/or deductible, please fax

your EOB fo the fax number listed below {use this document as the fax cover) to ensure that the

~ bill is adjusted accordingly and shows the applicable co-insurance, co-pay. and/or deductible, and
ait for a final statement fro e Dallags Oregon Emergency Physicians that will reflect the

corrected balance,

1. Should your Insurance company send a chack dlrectly to you Instead of the Physiclans, elther
A.  Sign over and send the Insuranca check to Dallas Oragen Emergenoy Physiclans along with any co-lnsurance,
co-pay, and/or deductible; or
B.  Cash the Insuranca chack and send a parsonal check (fo Include the insurance payrnent and applicable co-
insurance, co-pay, and/or daductibie) to the Dallas Gregon Emergency Physiclans at the address ilsted below,
Please Include your EOB, and If you choose option B, please also Include a copy of the Insurance check,

Address,

Dallas Oregon Emergency Physiclans
PO Box 98586

Las Vegas, NV. 89193-8685

If you have any questlons, our dedlcated customer service team can respond immediately. The number is 800-355-2470
(this number Is also printed on each statement)

Fax Number: 610-834-2826

Attentlon: Michelie Lawls, Patient Lialson (WDQ Account)

Subject: EOB Copy ~ Request insurance Adjustment & Revised Bill

Patlent Name:
Date of Service (Date of ED Visit).
No. of Pages:

1 Exhibit A9
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SALEM HEALTH

WEST VALLEY
An QHSU Pariner

525 SE Washington St., Dallas, OR 97338

After Visit Summary
8/13/2017 1 EH
Survey

If you were glven a patient satisfaction survey during this vislt, please complete It and place in the box as you
leave. Your opinion does matter to us, If you have been referred to your PCP or a local doctor for foliow up,

please let the office know you were seen In the West Valley Emergency Department at the time you make
your appointment so that your records can be obtalned prior to your visit,

Do you have questions? Here are some numbers to help

1, Imaging (X-ray, Scans) or Lab results: Please contact your primary provider,

2. Discharge instructions from the Emergency Department: Please call 503-623-8301,
ask for the Emergency Depariment or access your instructions following the

'MyChart' instructions on your discharge documents.

3. Dallas Oregon Emergency Physician bill: Please call 1-800-3565-2470 (M-F
0930-4:00)

4. West Valley Hospital bill: Please call 503-681-1747

CHEC

An excellent Salem Health resource for educational information or research on medical conditfons
is the Salem Health Community Health Education Center (CHEC) at 503-814-2432 or go online to
Salemhealth.org and ciick on the CHEC link.

You were seen by
You were seen by Wilson, Webb C, MD.

Visit Information
Date & Time Department Encounter #
8/13/2017 6:27 PM Emergency Department 55454265

Reason for Visit

MEDICAL CLEARANCE
Reason for Visit History

Clinical Impression
Your diaghosis was MEDICAL CLEARANCE FOR INCARCERATION.

Exhibit A9
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If you were given prescriptions, they are listed below. PLEASE NOTE: No
refills will be given for prescriptions written in the ED. Please contact your
Physician or referring physician for refills.

¥ Notice
You have hot been prescribed any medications.

Additional Information

Based on the information you provided to us, as well as any changes during this visit, the following
fist is your updated medication list. Please do the following: + Update or discard any previous
medication lists you may have » Compars this list with your prescription botiles at home and
discard any medications that this list indicates shouid be stopped. + Bring your most up to date
medication list to your follow up primary care physician visit, » If you have any questions or
concerns,, contact your primary care physician's office.

-Follow-up Information
Schedule an appointment as soon as possible for a visit with Health, Grand Ronde

Tribal.
Why: As needed, If symptoms worsen

Contact information:
9615 Grand Ronde RD

Grand Ronde OR 97367
1-503-879-5211
Appointments for Next 3 Days
None

MyChart Instructions
Activate your MyChart account today!

Thank you for your interest in signing up for MyChart. Please follow the instructions below to securely access
your online health Information,

Why Should | Sign Up?

+ Communicate with your primary care provider's (PGP) office
* Request prescription refllis

+ View test resuits

+ Schedule appolntments with your PCP

* Review informatlon from future and past appointments

¢+ Revlew your discharge instructions

How Do | Sign Up?
1. In your Internet browser, go to hitp://www.salemheaith .ora/mychart
+ Under "New User?" click "Sign Up Now"

2. On the "Pleass Identify Yourself' screen, enter the followlng information:
* Your MyChart Activation Cade exactly as It appears:

JBSFP-VTKDJ

Exhibit A9
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Expires: 9/27/2017 6:35 PM
+ Your Date of Birth (mm/dd/yyyy)
» Last 4 digits of your Social Security Number
+ Click Next

3, On the "Choose a Username & Password" screen, enter the followlng information:.
+ Create and Type In a MyChart Usernaime
+ Type in a MyChart password

Retype your Password
Select a Securlty Question from the dropdown list

Type I your Secret Answer
Click Next

. & o =

4, On the "E-mail Notifications"” screen, enter the followlng informatton:
» Click the Yes button to Enable E-mall Notlfications
» Type In your personal e-mail address
* Retlyps your e-mall address
+ Click Slgn In

For help with the MyChart web site please refer to the MyChart home page FAQs at

https:/imychart. salemhealth.org/mychart/default. asp?mede=stdfile&option=fag

For questions about your medical Information in MyChart, please contact your doctor or clinic.

Exhibit A9
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SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENT
Prepare for Eclipse on Aungust 21%, 2017

Local authorities have predicted a significant population increase in our community
before, during, and after the eclipse. Please refer to the below suggestions regarding

your healthcare needs during this time,

Community impact:
We anticipate that some community services and medical clinics may be closed on

August 21% the day of the eclipse. If you anticipate needing non-emergent medical
services (lab work, imaging), we encourage you to please call the week prior to
determine their availability.

Go to an emergency department or call 911 for problems such as:
* Suddenly not able to speak, see, walk or move

* Dizziness or weakness that does not go away

* Trouble breathing

* Chest pain, pain in jaw or arm

» Coughing or throwing up blood

« Inhaled smoke or poisonous fumes

* Poisoning or overdose of drug/alcohol

« Unusual or bad headache, sudden onset

» Broken bones, deep wounds, heavy bleeding

* Suicidal thoughts

 Throwing up or loose stools that does not stop

* High fever that does not get better with medicine

« High fever with headache and stiff neck

» Severe allergic reaction with trouble breathing, swelling, hives
* Passing out, fainting :

*» Chemical butns

* Sudden confusion

* Seizures

« Severe pain anywhere on the body

When to go to an Urgent Care:

« Common illnesses, such as colds, the flu, earaches, sore throats, migraines, low-
grade fevers, and mild rashes

» Minor injuries, such as sprains, back pain, or minor cuts
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GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DISPATCH REPORT

Case Number: GRT17000673

Response

Page 1 of 3

Locatlon: 27100 SALMON RIVER HW ( 27100 SALMON RIVER HW, @SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO {MapBaok:2792), POLK COUNTY }
SaquenceNumber; GRT201708130027

Response Type: TRESP1

Craation Date; 08/13/17 17:04:28

Pilorly: 8
Primary Unit; G108

Disposition Codes

Code
01- REPORT

Caller Information

CallerName: ELLIS, TANNER
Caller Address: SEGURITY

Response Statuses

Zone: QRTOY

Dispatch Group: GRTO

AlarmLevel:

TimaStamp
08/13/17 19:37.01

Caller Phone: 603-879-3732

Status Nama Siatus Dale/Time
PENDING 08/13/17 17:04:29
DISPATCH 08/13/17 17:06:62
ENROUTE 08/13/17 17:09:65
AT SCENE 08M13/17 17:10:50
TRANSPORT_ 08/18/17 17:37:31
AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:03:06
TRANSPORT. 08/13/17 18:17:19
LEAVE SCENE 08/18/17 18:38:22
AT_FAGILITY 08/13/17 18:38:24
TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18:38:26
AT_FACILITY 08/18/17 18:40:62
CLEAR 0871317 18:37:02
DISPOSED 08/13/17 19:42:04
Hesource Statuses
Resoures Nams Resource Agency Stalus Stalus Date/Time
G108 GRT DISPATCH 08/18M7 17:06:52
G108 GRT ENROUTE 08/13/17 17:09:64
ai08 GRT AT SCENE 08/18/17 17:10:60
G108 GRT TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 17:37:31
G108 GRT AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:03:08
G108 QRT TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18117119
G108 GRT LEAVE SCENE 08/13/17 18:38:22
atos GRT AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:38:24
G108 GRT TRANSFORT.. 08/13/17 18:38:26
@108 GRT AT_FACIHITY 08/13/17 18:40:52
G108 GRT CLEAR 08/13/17 19:37:02
Response Nofes
Note Date/Time Agent display Name
{G108) G108 Slatug has been changed to DISPATCH 08/13/17 17:068:63 PPSS
Agent ABRANLUND WorlstatlomCP10
(Q108) G108 Stalus has been changed to ENROUTE 08/18/17 17:08:56 PPSS
Agent: ABRANLUND Workstatton:CP10
(G108) (G108 Status has been changed lo AT SCENE 0811817 17:10:60 PPSS
Agent: ABRANLUND Workstatlon:GP10
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(G108) ONE TASED 08/13/17 17:13:16 ABRANLUND
Milestone of "QRT201708130027" has been modified to "CODE 4" 08/13/17 17:18:03 ABRANLUND
(G108) G108 Stalus has besn changed to TRANSPORT 08/13/17 17:37:31 PPSS
Agent:ABRANLUND Waorkstation:CP10

Milestene of "GRT201708130027" has been madifted to "LOCATE  [08/18/17 17:46:16 ABRANLUND
ROUTED"

(G108) G108 Slatus has baen changed to AT_FAGILITY 08/13/17 18:03:08 PPSS
Agent:ABRANLUND Workstation:CP10

(G108) G108 Status has been changed to TRANSPORT_ 08/18/17 18:17:19 PPSS
Agent:ABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP{0

(G108) G108 Status has besn changed to LEAVE SCENE 08/19/17 18:38:22 PPSS
[Agent:ABRANLUND Workstation:CP10

(G108} G108 Status has baen changad to AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:38:24 PPSS
AgentABRANLUND Workstatlon:GP10

(G108) G108 Status has been changed fo TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18:38:27 PPSS
[Agent:ABRANLUND Workstation:GP10

{3108) PCJ 08/13/17 18:38:35 ABRANLUND
{(1108) (1108 Stalus has heen changed to AT_FACILITY Agent:RHAY [08/18/17 18:40:52 PPSS
Workstailon:CP10

(G108) G108 Status has been changed to CLEAR Agent:RHAY 08/13/17 19:37:03 PPSS
Workstation:CP10 :
Incldent Notes

Note Date/Tims - |Agent display Name
{603-879-3732] MALE AT LOC WHO IS TRESPASSING., MALE IS [08/13/17 17:03:36 MGWYN

IN THE SUMMIT ViEW LOUNGE

[603-878-3792] WILLING TO PRESS CHARGES 08/13/17 17:08:42 MGWYN
[603-B79-3732] MAL APX 30'S 08/18/17 17:04:16 ]MGWYN
[603-878-3732) MALE HAS BEEN TRESPASSED BEFORE 08/13/17 17:04:24 IMGWYN
DOB 08/18/17 17:04:40 IMawYN
MALE/WMA,MED BUILD,DARK HAIR,UNK CLOTHING 08/13/17 17:06:20 lMGWYN
JUNK WEAPONS/ MALE IS INTOX{CATED ON ALCOHOL |08/13/17 17:05:52 IMEWYN
SECURITY OFCR'S ARE WATCHING MALE 08/18/17 17:06:02 IMGWYN
**CONFIRMED OFN/ASSAULT 2 DOW/2017/08/11 CRT/OR036015J J08/13/17 17:00:456 ABRANLUND
- YAMHILL COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT WTP/FEL WNO/17CR63185

BAL/160000-00,.FELONY CAUTION**

STEPPING UP RESPONSE 08/13/17 17:10;10 ABRANLUND
SUBJ IS NOW CONFRONTATIONAL ON SUBJ 08/13117 17:11:26 ABRANLUND
YAMRBILL CO HAS PC THEY HAVE PC 08/13/17 17:11:48 ABRANLUND
ROLL MEDICS 08/13/17 17:13:46 ABRANLUND
CALING YCOM.. FOR MEDICS 08/13/17 17:14:09 ABRANLUND
QUTSIDE VALLET 08/13/17 17:14:44 ABRANLUND
G108 ON QROUND HOLDING HIM UNTIL COVER ARRIVES 08/13/17 17:16:26 ABRANLUND
G108 CODE 4 FOR MEDICS TO ENTER..SUBJS STILL ON THE 08/13/17 17:18:62 ABRANLUND
GROUND BUT BEING COMPLIANT

P020>> COMPLETE CODE 4 08/13/17 17:31:36 ABRANLUND
PCJ WILL NEED MULTIPLE DEPS,, THREATS TO OFFICERS 08/13/17 17:48:13 ABRANLUND
ETA 10.. JAIL ADVISED 08/18/17 17:49:02 ABRANLUND
Disposition Notes
|Note | Date/Time |Agent display Name |

Person nformation

First
Last Name: || Nams:
License: !lale:

Middte Name: ]  Gender:Race:

por:
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Confederated Tribes of Grand

Ronde Police Department
Policy Manual

Conducted Energy Device

304.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
This policy provides guidelines for the issuance and use of TASER® devices.

304.2 POLICY
The TASER device Is intended to control a violent or potentially violent individual, while minimizing

the risk of serious injury. The appropriate use of such a device should result in fewer serious
injuries to officers and suspects.

304.3 ISSUANCE AND CARRY!NG TASER DEVICES
Only members who have sticcessfully completed department-approved training may be issued
and carry the TASER device.

TASER devices are issued for use during a member's current assignment. Those leaving a
particular assignment may be required to return the device to the department's inventory,

Officers shall only use the TASER device and cariridges that have been issued by the Department.
Uniformed officers who have been issued the TASER device shall wear the device in an approved
holster on their person,

Members carrying the TASER device should perform a spark test on the unit prior to every shift,

{a)  All TASER devices shall be clearly and distinctly marked to differentiate them from the duty
weapon and any other device,

{(b) Whenever practicable, officers should carry two or more cartridges on their person when
carrying the TASER device.

{¢) Officers shall be responsible for ensuring that their issued TASER device is properly
maintained and in good working order.

{d) Officers should not hold both a firearm and the TASER device at the same time.

304.4 VERBAL AND VISUAL WARNINGS

A verbal warning of the intended use of the TASER device should precede its application,
unless it wouild otherwise endanger the safety of officers or when it is not practicable due to the
circumstances. The purpose of the warning is to:

{a) Provide the individual with a reasonable opportunity to voluntarily comply.

(b) Provide other officers and Individuals with a warning that the TASER device may be
deployed.

If, after a verbal warning, an individual is unwilling to voluntarily comply with an officer's lawful
orders and it appears both reasonable and feasible under the circumstances, the officer may, but
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Conducted Energy Device

is not required to, display the siectrical arc {provided that a cartridge has not been loaded into the
device), or the laser in a further attempt to galn compllance prior to the application of the TASER
device, The aiming laser should never be intentionally directed into the eyes of another as it may
permansently impair hisfher vision.

The fact that a verbal or other warning was given or the reasons it was not given shall be
documented by the officer deploying the TASER device in the related report.

304.5 USE OF THE TASER DEVICE
The TASER device has limitations and restrictions requirlng consideration befare its use. The

TASER device should only be used when its operator can safely approach the subject within the
operational range of the device. Although the TASER device |s generally effective In controlling
most individuals, officers should be aware that the device may not achieve the intended results

and be prepared with other options.

304.5.1 APPLICATION OF THE TASER DEVICE
The TASER device may be used in any of the following circumstances, when the circumstances
perceived by the officer at the time indicate that such application is reasonably necessary to control

a person.
{(a} The subject is violent or is physically resisting.

{b) The subject has demonstrated, by words or action, an intention to be violent or io physicaily
resist, and reasonably appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or

others.

Mere flight from a pursuing officer, without other known circumstances or factors, is not good
cause for the use of the TASER device to apprehend an individual.

304.5.2 SPECIAL DEPLOYMENT CONSIDERATIONS

The use of the TASER device on certain individuals shoutd generally be avoided unless the totality
of the clrcumstances indicates that other avallable options reasonably appear ineffective or would
present a greater danger to the officer, the subject or others, and the officer reasonably belleves
that the need to control the individuai outwelighs the risk of using the device. This includes:

(a) Individuals who are known to be pregnant.

{b) Elderly individuals or obvious juveniles.

{c) Individuals with obviously low body mass.,

{d} Individuals who are handcuffed or otherwise restrained.

(e} Individuals who have been recently sprayed with a flammable chemical agent or who
are otherwise in close proximity to any known combustible vapor or flammable material,
Including alcohol-based oleoresin capsicum (OC) spray.
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{(f  Individuals whose position or activity may result in collateral injury (e.g., falls from height,
operating vehicles).

Because the application of the TASER device in the drive-stun mode (l.e., direct contact without
probes) relies primarily on pain compliance, the use of the drive-stun mode generally should be
limited to supplementing the probe-mode to complete the circult, or as a distraction technique
to gain separation between officers and the subject, thereby giving officers time and distance to
consider other force options or actions.

The TASER device shall not be used to psychologically torment, elicit statements or to punish
any individual.

304.5.3 TARGETING CONSIDERATIONS
Reasonable effarts should be made to target lower center mass and avoid the head, neck, chest

and groin. If the dynamics of a situation or officer safety do not permit the officer to limit the
application of the TASER device probes to a precise target area, officers should monitor the
condition of the subject If one or more probes strikes the head, neck, chest or groin until the subject
© is examined by paramedics or other medical personnel.

304.5.4 MULTIPLE APPLICATIONS OF THE TASER DEVICE

Officers should apply the TASER device for only one standard cycle and then evaluate the situation
hefore applying any subsequent cycles. Multiple applications of the TASER device against a single
individual are generally not recommended and should be avoided unless the officer reasonably
believes that the need to control the individual outweighs the potentially increased risk posed by

muitiple applications.

If the first application of the TASER device appears to be ineffective In gaining control of an
individual, the officer should consider certain factors before additional applications of the TASER
device, including:

(a) Whether the probes are making proper contact.

(b) Whether the individual has the ability and has been given a reasonable opportunity to
comply.

(c) Whether verbal commands, other options or tactics may be more effective.

Officers should generally not intentionally apply more than one TASER device at a time against
a single subject.

304.5.5 ACTIONS FOLLOWING DEPLOYMENTS

Officers shall notify a supervisor of all TASER device discharges. Confetti tags should be collected
and the expended cartridge, along with wire, should be submitted into evidence. If under the
circumstances, the Patrol Sergeant advises submitting the probes, both probes shall also be
submitted into evidence. The cartridge serial number should be noted and documented on
the evidence paperwork. The evidence packaging should be marked "Biohazard" if the probes
penetrated the subject’s skin. '

Copynght Lexipot, LLG 2017/02/08, All Rights Reservad. Conducted Energy Bahihit del 1
Published with permission by Confederated Tribes of Grand Page 3 of 21
Ronde Police Departrent £



Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Policy Mani:al

Conducted Energy Device

304.5.6 DANGEROUS ANIMALS
The TASER device may be deployed against an animal as part of a plan to deal with a potentially

dangerous animal, such as a dog, if the animal reasonably appears to pose an imminent threat to
human safety and alternative methods are not reasonably available or would likely be ineffective,

304.5.7 OFF-DUTY CONSIDERATIONS

Officers are not authorized to carry department TASER devices while off-duty.

Officers shall ensure that TASER devices are secured while in their homes, vehicles or any other
area under their control, in a manner that will keep the deévice inaccessible to others,

304.6 DOCUMENTATION
Offlcers shall document all TASER device discharges in the related arrest/crime report and the

TASER device report form. Notification shall also be made to a supervisor in compliance with the
Use of Force Policy. Unintentional discharges, pointing the device at a person, laser activation
and arcing the device will also be documented on the report form.

304.6.1 TASER DEVICE REPORTING

ttams that shall be included in the use of force report are:

(@) The type and brand of TASER device and carirldge and cartridge serial number.
{b) Date, time and location of the incident,

{c)  Whether any display, laser or arc delerred a subject and gained compliance.

(d}  The number of TASER device acflvations, the duration of each cycle, the duration between
activations, and (as best as can be determined) the duration that the subject received

applications.
(e} The range at which the TASER device was used.
(fy  The type of mode used (probe or drive-stun),
(@) Location of any probe impact,
(h)  Location of contact in drive-stun mode.
(i)  Description of where missed probes went.
() Whether medical care was provided to the subject.
(k)  Whether the subject sustained any injuries.

() Whether any officers sustained any injuries,

The Tralning Officer should periodically analyze the reports to identify trends, including deterrence
and effectiveness.
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304.6.2 REPORTS
The officer should include the following in the arrest/crime report:

(a} Identification of all personnel firing TASER devices

(b) [dentification of all withesses

(¢) Medical care provided to the subject

{d} Observations of the subject's physical and physiological actions

(e} Any known or suspected drug use, intoxication or other medical problems

304.7 MEDICAL TREATMENT
Consistent with focal medical personnel protocols and absent extenuating circumstances, it

is preferred that appropriate medical personnel should remove TASER device probes from a
person’s body. Used TASER device probes shali be treated as a sharps bichazard, similar o a
used hypodermic needle, and handled appropriately. Universal precautions should be taken.

All persons who have been struck by TASER device probes or who have been subjected to the
electric discharge of the device shall be medically assessed prior to booking. Addittonally, any
such individual who falls under any of the following categories should, as soon as practicable, be
examined by paramedics or other qualified medical personnel:

(a) The person is suspected of being under the influence of controlled substances and/or
alcohol.

(b) The person may be pregnant.
{c) The person reasonably appears to be in need of medical attention.

{d) The TASER device probes are lodged in a sensitive area (e.g., groin, female breast, head,
face, neck).

(e) The person requests medical treatment.

Any individual exhibiting signs of distress or who Is exposed to muitiple or prolonged applications
(i.e., more than 15 seconds) shall be transported to a medical facility for examination or medically
evaluated prior {o booking. If any individual refuses medical attention, such a refusal should be
withessed by anocther officer and/or medical personnel and shall be fully documented in related
reports. If an audio recording is made of the contact or an interview with the individual, any refusal
should be included, if possible.

The transporting officer shali inform any person providing medical care or receiving custody that
the individual has been subjected to the application of the TASER device.

Copyright Lexigel, 1LC 201 7102108, AY Righis Raservad. Conducted Ener +A11
Pubiishad with parmiaslon by Conlederatod Tribes of Grand 0y Deltids
Ronda Police Daparimant , Page 5 of 21



Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Policy Manuat

Conducted Energy Device

304.8 SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES
When possible, supervisors should respond to calls when they reasonably believe there is a

likelthood the TASER device may be used, A supervisor shoutd respond to all incldents where
the TASER device was activated,

A supervisor should review each incident where a person has been exposed o an activation of
the TASER device. The device's onboard memory should be downloaded through the data port
by a supervisor or Rangemaster and saved with the related arrest/crime report, Photographs of
probe sites should be taken and witnesses interviewed.

304.9 TRAINING
Personnel who are authorized to carry the TASER device shall be permitted to do so only after

successfully completing the nitlal department-approved training. Any personnel who have not
carried the TASER device as a part of their assignment for a period of six months or more shall
be recertified by a department-approved TASER device instructor prior to again carrying or using
the device,

Proficiency training for personnel who have been issued TASER devices should occur every year,
A reassessment of an officer's knowledge and/or practicai skill may be required at any time if
deemed appropriate by the Training Officer. All training and proficiency for TASER devices will
be documented in the officer's training file.

Command staff, supervisars and investigators should receive TASER device training as
appropriate for the investigations they conduct and review,

Officers who do not carry TASER devices should receive fraining that is sufficlent to familiarize
them with the device and with working with officers who use the device,

The cerlified TASER [nstructor In the Departmentis responsible for ensuring that afll members who
carry TASER devices have received Initial and annual proficiency training. Periodic audits should
be used for verification.

Application of TASER devices durlng training could result in injury to personnel and should not
be mandatory for certification.

The certified TASER Instructor in the Depariment should ensure that all training includes:
{a} A review of this policy.
(b) A review of the Use of Force Policy.

(¢)  Performing weak-hand draws or cross-draws to reduce the possibllity of unintentionally
drawing and firing a firearm,

(d} Target area considerations, to inciude techniques or options to reduce. the unintentional
application of probes near the head, neck, chest and groin.

{e) Handouffing a subject during the application of the TASER device and transitioning to other
force optlons.
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(f)  De-escaiation techniques.

(@) Restraint techniques that do not impair respiration following the application of the TASER
device.
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Standards of Conduct

3191 PURPOSE AND SCOPE 4
This policy establishes standards of conduct that are consistent with the values and mission of

the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Poiice Department and are expected of all department
members, The standards contained In this policy are not intended to be an exhaustive list of
requiremerts and prohibitions but they do identify many of the important matlers concerning
conduct. In additlon to the provisions of this policy, members are sublect to all other provisions
contained in this manual, as well as any additional guidance on conduct that may be disseminated
by this department or a member's supervisors.

319.2 POLICY
The continued employment or appointment of every member of the Confederated Tribes of Grand

Rondse Police Department shail be based on conduct that reasonably conforms fo the guidelines
set forth herein. Failure to meet the guidelines set forth In this policy, whether on- or off-duty, may
be cause for disciplinary action.

319.3 DIRECTIVES AND ORDERS
Members shall comply with lawful directives and orders from any department supervisor or person

in a position of authority, absent a reasonable and bona fide justification,

319.3.1 UNLAWFUL OR CONFLICTING ORDERS
Supervisors shall not knowingly issue orders or directives that, if carried out, would result in a

violation of any law or department policy. Supervisors shouid not issue orders that conflict with
any previous order without making reasonable clarification that the new order is Intended fo
countermand the earlier order.

No member is required o obey any order that appears to be in direct conflict with any federat
law, state law or local ordinance. Following a known unlawful order is not a defense and does not
relieve the member from criminal or civil prosecution or administrative discipline. If the legality of
an order is in doubt, the affected member shall ask the issuing supervisor to clarify the order or
shall confer with a higher authority. The responsibility for refusal to obey rests with the member,
who shall subsequently be required {o justify the refusal.

Unless It would jeopardize the safety of any individual, members who are presented with a lawful
order that Is in conflict with a previous lawful order, depariment policy or other directive shall
respectfully inform the issuing supervisor of the conflict. The issulng supervisor Is responsible
for sither resolving the conflict or clarifying that the lawful order is intended to countermand the
previous lawful order or directive, in which case the member is obiiged to comply. Members who
are compelled to follow a conflicting lawful order after having given the issuing supervisor the
opportunity to correct the conflict, will not be held accountable for disobedience of the lawfui order

or directive that was initially issued.
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The person countermanding the original order shall notify, in writing, the person Issuing the original
order, indicating the action taken and the reason.

319.3.2 SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES
Supervisors and managers are required to follow all policies and procedures and may be subject

te discipline for:

(a) Failure to be reasonably aware of the performance of their subordinates or to provide
appropriate guidance and control.

(b} Faifure to promptly and fully report any known misconduct of a member to his/her immediate
supervisor or to document such misconduct appropriately or as required by policy.

{c) Directing a subordinate to violate a policy or directive, acquiesce to such a violation, or are
indifferent to any such violation by a subordinate.

{d} The unequal or disparate exercise of authority on the part of a supervisor toward any member
for malicious or other improper purpecse,

319.4 GENERAL STANDARDS
Members shall conduct themselves, whether on- or off-duty, in accordance with the United States

and Oregon Constitutions and all applicable laws, ordinances and rules enacted or established
pursuant to legal authority.

Members shall familiarize themselves with policies and procedures and are responsible for
compilance with each. Members should seek ciarlfication and guidance from supervisors in the
event of any perceived ambiguity or uncertainty.

Discipline may be Initiated for any good cause. It is not mandatory that a specific policy or ruie
viclation be cited to sustain discipline. This policy is not intended to cover every possible type of
misconduct.

319.5 CAUSES FOR DISCIPLINE

The following are illustrative of causes for discipiinary action, This listis not intended to cover every
possible type of misconduct and does not preclude the recommendation of disciplinary action
for violation of other rules, standards, ethics and specific action or inaction that Is detrimental to

efficient department service.

319.5.1 LAWS, RULES AND ORDERS

{a) Violation of, or ordering or instructing a subordinate o violate any policy, procedurs,
rule, order, directive, requirement or failure to follow instructions contained In
department, CTGR or CTGR manuals.

(b) Disobedience of any legal directive or order issued by any department member of g higher
rank.

(c) Violation of federal, state, tribal or administrative laws, rules or regulations.
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319.5.2 ETHICS

{a} Using or disciosing one's status as a member of the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde
Police Depariment in any way that could reasonably be percelved as an attempt to gain
influence or authority for non-department buslness or activity,

(by The wrongful or unlawful exercise of authority on the part of any member for malicious
purpose, personal gain, willful deceit or any other improper purpose.

{c)  The recelpt or acceptance of a reward, fee or gift from any person for service Incident to
the performance of the member's dutles {lawful subpoena fees and authorized work permits
excepted).

(d) Acceptance of fees, gifts or money contrary to the rules of this department andfor laws of
the state.

(8) Offer or acceptance of a bribe or gratuity.
(fy  Misappropriation or misuse of public funds, property, personnel or services.
(@) Any other failure to abide by the standards of ethical conduct.

319.56.3 DISCRIMINATION, OPPRESSION OR FAVORITISM

Discriminating against, oppressing or providing favoritism to any person because of age, race,
color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orlentation, gender identity or expression, national origin,
ancastry, marital status, physlcal or mental disability, medical condition or other classification
protected by law, or intentionally denying or impeding another in the exercise or enjoyment of any
right, privilege, power or immunity, knowing the conduct is untawful.

319.5.4 RELATIONSHIPS

{a) Unwelcome solicitation of a personal or sexual relationship while on -duty or through the
use of one's official capacity.

(b} Engaging In on -duty sexual aclivity including, but not limited to, sexual intercourse,
excessive displays of public affection or other sexual contact,

(c) Establishing or maintaining an inappropriate personal or financial relationship, as a resulf of
an investigation, with a known victim, witness, suspect or defendant while a case Is being
investigated or prosecuted, or as a direct resuit of any official contact.

(d}  Associating with or Joining a criminal gang, organized crime and/or criminal syndicate when
the member knows or reasonably should know of the criminal nature of the organization.
This includes any organization involved in a definable criminal activity or enterprise, except
as speclfically directed and authorized by this department.

{e) Associating on a personal, rather than official basis with persons who demonstrate recurring
Involvement in serious viclations of stale or federal iaws after the member knows, or
reasonably should know of such criminal activities, except as specifically directed and
authorized by this depariment,
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319,6.5 ATTENDANCE

(a) Leaving the job to which the member Is assigned during duty hours without reasonable
excuse and proper permission and approval.

(v) Unexcused or unauthorized absence or tardiness.
{c) Excessive absentesism or abuse of leave privileges.

(d) Failure to report to work or to place of assignment at time specified and fully prepared to
perform duties without reasonable excuse,

319,56 UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS, DISCLOSURE OR USE

(a) Unauthorized and inappropriate intentional release of confidential or protected information,
materials, data, forms or reports obtained as a result of the member's position with this
depariment.

(b) Disclosing to any unauthorized person any active investigation infoermation,

{c} The use of any information, photograph, video or ather recording obtained or accessed as
a result of employment or appointment to this department for persenal or financial gain or
without the express authorization of the Chief of Police or the authorized designee.

{d} Loaning, selling, allowing unauthorized use, giving away or appropriating any Confederated
Tribes of Grand Ronde Poiice Department badge, uniform, identification card or department
property for personal use, personal gain or any other improper or unauthorized use or
purpose.

(e) Using department resources in association with any portion of an independent civil action.
These resources include, but are not limited to, personnel, vehicles, equipment and non-
subposnaed records,

319.6.7 EFFICIENCY

{a) Neglect of duty.

(b) Unsatisfactory work performance including, but not limited to, failure, incompetence,
inefficiency or defay in performing andfor carrying out proper orders, work assignments or
the instructions of supervisors without a reascnable and bona fide excuse.

(c) Concealing, attempting o conceal, removing or destroying defective or incompetent work.

(d) Unauthorized sleeping during on-duty time or assighments.

{e) Fallure to notify the Department within 24 hours of any change in residence address, contact
telephone numbers or marital status.

319.5.8 PERFORMANCE

{a) Failure to disclose or misrepresenting material facts, or making any false or misleading
statement on any application, examination form, or other official document, report or form,
or during the course of any work-related investigation.
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(b} The falsification of any work-related records, making misleading entrles or statements with
the intent to deceive or the willful and unauthorlzed removal, alteration, desitruction and/or

mutilation of any department record, public record, book, paper or document.

{c) Failure to participate in, or giving false or misleading statements, or misrepresenting or
omitling material information to a supervisor or other person in a position of authority, in
connection with any Investlgation or in the reporting of any department-related business.

(d) Belng untruthful or knowingly making false, misleading or malicious statements that are
reasonably calculated to harm the reputation, authority or official standing of this department
or lIts members.

{(e) Disparaging remarks or conduct concerning duly constituted authority to the extent that such
conduct disrupts the efficiency of this department or subverts the good order, efficlency and
discipline of this department or that would tend to discredit any of its members.

()  Uniawful gambling or unlawful betting at any time or any place. Legél gambling or betting
under any of the following conditions:

1. While on depariment premises.

2. At any work site, while on-duly or while in uniform, or while using any department
equipment or system,

3. Gambling activity undertaken as part of an officer’s official duties and with the
express knowledge and permission of a direct supervisor is exempt from this
prohibition.

() Improper political activity including:
1. Unauthorized attendance while on-duty at official legislative or political sessions.

2. Solicitatlons, speeches or distribution of campaign literature for or against any
political candidate or position while on-duty or on department property except as
expressly authorized by CTGR policy or the Chief of Police.

(h} Engagingin political activities during assigned working hours except as expressly authorized
by CTGR policy or the Chief of Police.

() Any act on- or off -duty that brings discredit to this depariment.

319.5.9 CONDUCT

{a) Failure of any member to promptly and fully report activities on his/her part or the part of
any other member where such activities resulted In contact with any other law enforcement
agency or that may result In criminal prosecution or discipline under this policy.

(b) Unreasonable and unwarranted force to a person encountered or a person under arrest,
{c) Exceeding lawful peace offlcer pbwers by unreasonable, unlawful or excessive conduct.

(d}  Unauihorized or untawfui fighting, threatening or attempting to inflict unlawful bodily harm
on another.

(e} Engaging in horseplay that reasonably could result in injury or property damage.
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(f)  Discourteous, disrespectful or discriminatory treatment of any member of the public or any
member of this department or the CTGR,

(g) Use of obscene, indecent, profane or derogatory language while on--duty or in uniform,

(h) Criminal, dishonest, or disgraceful conduct, whether on- or off-duty, that adversely affects
the member’s relationship with this department,

(it  Unauthorized possession of, [oss of, or damage lo department property or the property of
others, or endangering It through carelessness or maliciousness.

() Attempted or actual theft of department property; misappropriation or misuse of public
funds, property, personnet or the services or property of others; unauthorized removat or
possession of department property or the property of another person.

(k) Activity that is incompatible with 8 member's conditions of employment or appointment as
established by law or contract to include fraud in securing the appointment or hire.

() Initiating any clvil action for recovery of any damages or injuries incurred in the course and
scope of employment or appointment without first notifying the Chief of Police of such action.

{m) Any other on-- or off--duty conduct which any member knows or reascnably should know is
unbecoming a member of this department, is contrary to good order, efficiency or morale,
or tends to reflect unfavorably upon this department or lis members,

319.5.10 SAFETY
(a) Failure to observe or violating department safety standards or safe working practices.

(b} Failure to maintain current licenses or certiflcations required for the assignment or position
(e.g., driver's license, first aid). :

{c} Failure to maintain good physical condition sufficient to adequately and safely perform law
enforcement duties.

{d) Unsafe firearm or other dangerous weapon handling to include ioading or unloading firearms
in an unsafe manner, either on- or off-duty.

(e) Carrying, while on the premises of the work place, any firearm or other lethal weapon that
is not authorized by the member’s appointing authority.

(fy  Unsafe or Improper driving habits or actions in the course of employment or appointment.
(g) Any personal action contributing lo a preventable traffic collision.

(h) Concealing or knowingly failing to report any on-the-job or work-related accident or injury
as soon as practicable but within 24 hours.

318.5.11 INTOXICANTS

{a) Reporting for work or being at work while intoxicated or when the member’s ability to perform
assigned duties is impaired due to the use of alcohol, medication or drugs, whether legal,
prescribed or illegal.

{b) Possession or use of aicohol at any work site or while on-duty, except as authorized In the

performance of an official assignment. A member who is authorized to consume alcohol is
not permitted to do so to such a degree that it may impair on-duty performance.
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{(¢) Unauthorized possession, use of, or attempting to bring a controlled substance, illegai drug
or non-prescribed medication to any work site.
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1005.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy provides guidelines for the reporting, investigation and disposition of complaints
regarding the conduct of members of the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police
Department. This policy shall not apply to any questioning, counseling, instruction, informai verbal
admonishment or other routine or unplanned contact of a member in the normal course of duty,
by a supervisor or any other member, nor shall this policy apply to a criminal investigation.

1005.2 POLICY
The Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department takes seriously all complaints

regarding the service provided by the Departrment and the conduct of its members.

The Department will accept and address all complaints of misconduct in accordance with this
policy and applicable federal, state and local law, municipal and county rules and the requirements
of any collective bargaining agreements.

It is also the policy of this department to ensure that the community can report misconduct without
concern for reprisal or retaliation.

1005.3 PERSONNEL COMPLAINTS
Personnel complaints include any allegation of misconduct or improper job performance that, if

true, would constitute a violation of department policy or of federal, state or local law, policy or
rule. Personnel complaints may be generated internally or by the public.

Inguiries about.conduct or performance that, if true, would not viclate department policy or federal,
state or local law, policy or rule may be handled informally by a supervisor and shail not be
considered a personnel complaint. Such inquiries generally include clarification regarding policy,
procedures or the response to specific incidents by the Department.

1005.3.1 COMPLAINT CLASSIFICATIONS
Personnel complaints shall be classified in one of the following categories:

Informal - A matter In which the Patrol Sergeant Is satisfied that appropriate action has heen
taken by a supervisor of rank greater than the accused member.

Formal - A matter in which a supervisor determines that further action is warranted. Such
complaints may be Investigated by a supervisor of rank greater than the accused member
or referred to the Sergeant or Chief, depending on the seriousness and complexity of the
Investigation.

Incomplete - A matter In which the complaining party either refuses to cooperate or becomes
unavailable after diligent follow-up investigation. At the discretion of the assigned supervisor or
the Sergeant or Chief, such matters may be further investigated depending on the seriousness of
the complaint and the availability of sufficient information.
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1005.3.2 SOURCES OF COMPLAINTS
The following applies to the source of complaints:

(a) Individuals from the public may make complaints in any form, including in writing, by emali,
in person or by telsphone,

{b)  Any department member becoming aware of alleged misconduct shall immediately notify
a supervisor,

(c) Supervisors shall initlate a complaint based upon chserved misconduct or receipt from any
source alleging misconduct that, If lrue, could result in discipiinary action.

{d} Anonymous and third-party complaints should be accepted and investigated to the extent
that sufficient information is provided.

{8) Tort claims and lawsuits may generate a personnel complaint.
1005.4 AVAILABILITY AND ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLAINTS

1005.4.1 COMPLAINT FORMS
Personnel complaint forms will be maintained in a clearly visible location in the public area

of the police facility.Personnel complaint forms in languages other than English may also bhe
provided, as determined necessary or practicable.

1006.4.2 ACCEPTANCE

All complaints will be courteously accepted by any depariment member and promptly given to
the appropriate supervisor. Although written complaints are preferred, a complaint may aiso be
filed orally, sither in person or by telephone. Such complaints will be directed to a supsrvisor, If
a supervisor is not immediately available to take an oral complaint, the receiving member shall
obtain contact information sufficient for the supervisor to contact the complainant. The supervisor,
upon contact with the compiainani, shall complete and submit a complaint form as appropriate,

Although not required, complainants should be encouraged to file compiaints In person so that
proper identification, signatures, photographs or physical evidence may be obtained as necessary,

1005.5 DOCUMENTATION
Supervisors shall ensure that all formal and informal complaints are documented on a complaint
form, The supervisor shall ensure that the nature of the complaint is defined as clearly as possible.

1005.5.1 COMPLAINTS ALLEGING PROFILING
Complaints related to profiling should be cisarly marked to assist In reporting as required in the

Raclal or Blas-Based Profiling Policy {ORS 131.820).

1005.6 ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATIONS
Allegations of misconduct will be administratively investigated as foliows.
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1005.6.1 SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES

In general, the primary responsibility for the investigation of a personnel complaint shall rest with
the member's Immediate supervisor, unless the supervisor is the complainant, or the supervisor
is the ultimate decision-maker regarding disciplinary action or has any personal invoivement
regarding the alleged misconduct. The Chief of Police or the authorized designee may direct that
another supervisor investigate any complaint,

A supervisor who becomes aware of alleged misconduct shall take reasonable steps to prevent
aggravation of the situation.

The responsibilities of supervisors include, but are not limited to:

(a) Ensuring that upon receiving or initiating any formal complaint, a complaint form is
completed.

1. The original complaint form will be directed to the Patrol Sergeant of the accused
member, via the chain of command, who will take appropriate action and/or
determine who will have responsibility for the investigation.

2. In circumstances where the integrity of the investigation could be jeopardized by
reducing the complaint to writing or where the confidentiality of a complainant is
at issue, a supervisor shall orally report the matter to the member's Sergeant or
the Chief of Poiice, who will initiale appropriate action.

(b) Responding to all complaints in a courteous and professional manner.
(c) Resolving those personnel complaints that can be resolved immediately.

1, Follow-up contact with the complainant shouid be made within 24 hours of the
Department receiving the complaint.

2. Ifthe malter is resolved and nc further action is reguired, the supervisor will note the
resolution on a complaint form and forward the form to the Patrol Sergeant,

(d) Ensuring that upon recelpt of a complaint involving aliegations of a potentially serious nature,
the Patrol Sergeant and Chief of Police are notified vla the chaln of command as soon as
practicable.

{8} Promptly contacting the Department of Human Resources and the Patrol Sergeant for
direction regarding thelr roles In addressing a complaint that relates to sexual, racial, ethnic
or other forms of prohibited harassment or discrimination.

(fy Forwarding unresolved personnel complaints to the Patrol Sergeant, who will determine
whether to contact the complainant or assign the complaint for investigation.

{g) Informing the complainant of the investigator's name and the complaint number within three
days after assignment.

{h) Investigating a complaint as follows:

1. Making reasonable efforts to obtain names, addresses and telephone numbers of
withesses.

2,  When appropriate, ensuring immediate medical attention is provided and
photographs of alleged injuries and accessible uninjured areas are taken.
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(i)  Ensuring that the procedurat rights of the accused member are foflowed.
()  Ensuring interviews of the complainant are generaily conducted during reasonable hours,

(k) Providing the complainant with periodic updates on the status of the investigation, as
appropriate. ’

1005.7 ADMINISTRATIVE SEARCHES
Assignred lockers, storage spaces and other areas, including desks, offices and vehicles, may be

searched as part of an administrative investigation upon a reasonable suspicion of misconduct.

Such areas may also be searched any time by a supervisor for non-investigative purposes, such
as obtalning a needed report, radio or other document or equipment.

1005.8 ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE
When a complaint of misconduct Is of a serlous nature, or when circumstances indicate that

allowing the accused to continue to work would adversely affect the mission of the Department,
the Chief of Police or the authorized designee may temporarily assign an accused smpioyee to
administrative leave, Any employee placed on adminisirative leave:

(a) May be required to relinguish any department badge, identification, assigned weapons and
any other department equipment.

(b) Shall be required to continue to comply with all policies and lawful orders of a supervisor,

(c) May be temporarily reassigned to a different shift, generally a hormal business-hours shift,
during the investigation. The employee may be required to remain available for contact at
all times during such shift, and will report as ordered.

10059 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION
Where a member is accused of potential criminal conduct, a separate supervisor or Investigator

shali be assigned fo investigate the criminal allegations apart from any administrative investigation.
Any separate administrative investigation may parallet a criminal investigation.

The Chief of Police shall be nofified as soon as practicabie when a member is accused of criminal
conduct, The Chief of Police may request a criminal investigation by an outside law enforcement
agency.

A member accused of criminal conduct shall be provided with all rights afforded fo a civillan,
The member should not be administratively ordered to provide any information in the criminal
investigation,

No information or evidence administratively coerced from a member may be provided to anyone
involved In conducting the criminal Investigation or to any prosacutor.

The Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department may release information concerning
the arrest or detention of any member, including an officer, that has not led to a conviction. No
disclplinary action should be taken until an independent administrative investigation is conducted,
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100510 POST-ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

Upon completion of a formal Investlgation, an investigation report should be forwarded to the Chief
of Police through the chain of cormmand. Each level of command should review and Include their
comments in writing before forwarding the report. The Chief of Police may accept or modify any
classification or recommendation for disciplinary action. Foerms of discipline include, but are not
limited to, training, counseling and punitive action.

1005,10.1 SERGEANT RESPONSIBILITIES
Upon receipt of any completed personne! investigation, the Sergeant of the involved member shall

review the entire investigative file, the member's personnel file and any other relevant materials,

The Sergeant may make recommendations regarding the disposition of any allegations and the
amount of discipline, If any, to be imposed.

Priar to forwarding recommendations to the Chief of Police, the Sergeant may return the entire
Investigation to the assigned investigator or supervisor for further investigation or action.

When forwarding any written recommendation to the Chief of Police, the Sergeant shall include
all relevant materials supporting the recommendation. Actual copies of a member's existing
personnel file need not be provided and may be incorporated by reference.

1005.10.2 CHIEF OF POLICE RESPONSIBILITIES
Upon receipt of any written recommendation for disciplinary action, the Chief of Police shall

review the recommendation and all accompanylng materials. The Chief of Police may modify any
recommendation and/or may return the file to the Sergeant for further investigation or action.

Once the Chief of Police Is salisfied that no further investigation or action is required by staff,
the Chief of Police shall determine the amount of discipline, if any that should be imposed, In the
event disciplinary action is proposed, the Chief of Police shall provide the member with a written
notice and the following:

(a) Access to all of the materials considered by the Chief of Police in recommending the
propased discipline. '

(b)  Anopportunity to respond orally or in writing to the Chief of Police within five days of receiving
the notice. :

1. Upon a showing of good cause by the member, the Chief of Police may grant a
reasonable extension of time for the member to respond.

2. If the member elects to respond orally, the presentation shall be recorded by
the Department. Upon request, the member shall be provided with a copy of the
recording,

Once the member has completed his/her response or if the member has elecled to waive any such
response, the Chief of Police shall consider all information received in regard to the recommended
discipline. The Chief of Police shall render a timely written declsion to the member and specify
the grounds and reasons for discipline and the effective date of the discipline. Once the Chief of
Police has issued a written decision, the discipline shall become effective.
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1005.11 PRE-DISCIPLINE EMPLOYEE RESPONSE

The pre-discipline process is intended to provide the accused employee with an opportunity o

present a written or oral response to the Chief of Police after having had an opportunity to review

the supporting materials and prior to imposition of any recommended discipline. The employee

shall consider the following:

{a) The response is not infended to be an adversarial or formal hearing.

(b) Aithough the employee may be represented by an uninvolved representative or legal
counsel, the response is not designed to accommodate the presentation of testimony or
witnesses.

{c) The employee may suggest that further Investigation could be conducted or the employee
may offer any additional information or mitigating factors for the Chief of Police to consider.

(d) In the event that the Chief of Police elects to cause further investigation to be conducted,
the employee shall be provided with the results prior to the Imposition of any discipline.

(e) The employee may thereafter have the opportunity to further respond orally or In writing to
the Chief of Police on the limited issues of information raised in any subsequent materials,

1005.12 RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS PRIOR TO DISCIPLINE

In the event that a member tenders a wrilten resignation or notice of retirement prior to the
imposition of discipiine, it shali be noted in the file. The tender of a resignation or retirement by
itself shall not serve as grounds for the termination of any pending investigation or discipline.

1005.13 POST-DISCIPLINE APPEAL RIGHTS

Non-probationary employess have the right to appeal a suspenslon without pay, punitive transfer,
demotion, reduction in pay or step, or termination from employment. The employee has the right to
appeal using the procedures established by any collective bargaining agreement and/or personnel
rules.

1005.14 PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES AND OTHER MEMBERS

At-will and probationary employees and members other than non-probationary employees may
be disciplined and/or released from employment without adherence to any of the procedures set
out in this policy, and without notice or cause at any time. These individuals are not entitled to
any rights under this policy. However, any of these individuals released for misconduct should be
afforded an opportunity solely to clear their names through a liberty interest hearing, which shall
be timited lo a single appearance before the Chief of Police or the authorized designee.

Any probatlonary period may be extended at the discretion of the Chlef of Police in cases whers the
individual has been absent for more than a week or when additional time to review the individuai
Is conslidered {o be appropriate.
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100515 RETENTION OF PERSONNEL INVESTIGATION FILES
All personnel complaints shall be maintained in accordance with the established records retention

schedule and as described in the Personnel Files Policy.
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James Wolfer
DPSST# 51798

Newberi, OR 97132

To:
Kristen Hibberds, DPSST Professional Standards Coordinator/investigator
DPSST Palice Policy Commilttee

Ms. Hibberds and members of the Police Policy Committese,

This letter is regarding the incident that occcurred on August 13, 2017 regarding the use of force
and associated reports and statements made by me, as well as the allegations of dishonesty
being reviewed by the committee.

| would like to begin by stating that | was never dishonest in any of my dealing with the Grand
Ronde Tribal Police Department in any capacity, neither in my official capacities nor in any
unofficiat capacity. Specifically, | was not dishonest during the use of force that occurred on
August 13, 2017, nor was | dishonest in the phone call to my Sergeant, Sgt. McAllister, nor was
* 1dishonest in any of my written reports or statements.

| was, however, mistaken as to what had occurred, and reported to my supervisors and in my
written reports what had occurred according to my perception of the events during a high stress,
rapidly evolving and vioclent situation. During the incident on August 13, 2017, | was alone, with
no backup, as the closest backing officer was still about ten minutes away and had told me so
via radio. The suspect was repotted to be violent, and both dispatch and my Lieutenant had
advised me vla radio that the suspect had warnings for violent conduct. Addltionally, the suspect
had a valid and confirmed warrant for Assault Il, which | knew meant he was suspected of
causing serious physical injury to somecne. The suspect was reported to be actively
trespassing at the Spirit Mountain Casino as well,

| called casino securlty via my cell phone, and was advised that the suspect was hecoming
“confrontational” with casino staff. | believed that meant that the risk to the public was
increasing, including non-sworn secutity staff, and that waiting for backup could mean that a
member of the public could be injured by a wanted and known violent individual. | believed it
was my duly {o intervene at that time in order to protect members of the public. Upon arrival, |
was pointed to the suspect by casino security, who was walking away from them in the parking
lot and towards a vehicle. There was a female with him, who was later identified as the
suspect’s mother. Due to the fact that | was alone, without backup, and there were now two
subjects, including one known to be viclent and wanted for Assault i1, | had my taser out.

| gave multiple commands to the suspect, calling him by name, to get on the ground, while [ was
clearly identified as a police officer. | do not recail if at that time | verbally identified myself as a
police officer, but | was in full patrol uniform on a clear, sunny day. The suspect, who { had
positively identified, continually ignored my verbal commands to get on the ground. He kept
aitempling to walk away while the female subject yelled al me and kept getting in between the
suspect and myself. | gave commands to the female to back away and to the suspect to get on
the ground.
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At one point, the suspect stopped and faced me. | kept giving commands to the male suspect to
get on the ground or he would be tased, and the female subject suddenly rushed me. At that
moment, the male suspect quickly raised his hands about shoulder height into what | believed at
the time to be a fighting stance. 1 had tunnel vision and was afraid | was about to have to fight
both subjects alone and witheut backup. | believed that the male subject, who was a known
violent person, was the greater threat, and | tased him and was ready to utilize hands on
techniques with the female. The female backed away while continually yelling at me. The taser
deployment was effective, and the male suspect had fallen on his back. The suspect turned over
on his stomach per my verbal commands. 1 began to try and handcuff the male suspect while he
was facedown, and the female subject continued to yell at me,

| had not double locked the handcuffs yet, and the male subject hegan to respond te the female
subject’s yelling. The maie suspect began to move around, and what | helieved at the time 1o be
attempting to get up. Even though the suspect was in handcuffs, they were not double locked
and | had not yet completed a putdown for weapons. Additionally, | was still worried that the
female subject would attempt to rush me as | had to yell at her to stay back, and if she did so,
even a handcuffed subject with an additional subject’s help could attempt to overwhelm me. |
gave multiple commands to the suspect to stop resisting or he would be tased again, and he
continued to move, while yelling at me “F- youl” With the tenseness of the suspect’s body, the
highly escalated situation, | believed the suspect was attempted to push me off of him and |
activated the taser again. After the cycle, the suspect stopped moving and complied with my
verbal commands. The female subject disappeared soon after that. Per policy, | called for
medical personnel via radio to evaluated the suspect.

L ater, after backup and medical personnsl had arrived and cleared the subject for transport, |
had him in the back of my vehicle. | calied my Sgt., Sgt. McAllister, per policy, to advise him on
the use of the force. 1 told Sgt. McAllister what | believed had happened: that the suspect had
“squared up on me,” i.e. taken a fighting stance, and that he had resisted on the ground while |
was still applying handcuffs. At this time, | had not seen the body camera footage, and | was still
flooded with adrenaline.

| took the suspect to the jail. The suspect refused {o use the Intoxilyzer, and was extremely
intoxicated, so jail staff had me transport the suspect to the hospital to be evaluated. He was
eventually medicaily cleared for lodging at the jail, and was transported back to the jail and
lodged by me. | typed a Probable Cause affidavit to lodge the suspect, and again, had not yet
seen my body camera footage, so | wrote the affidavit with what | believed happened: that the
male subject had “squared up” his body and took an aggresslve stance towards me while at the
same time the female subject was trying to confront me, so | tased the male suspect. | also
wrote that the suspect tried to roll away from me before | could double lock the handcuffs, and
that he ignored verbal commands to stop resisting so | activated the taser a second time.

Later, at the police station, per policy, while wtiting my repott | viewed the body camera footage.
| was surprised to see that during the initial confrontation with the suspect, when he raised his
arms into what | believed to be a fighting stance, | observed that he raised his arms about
shoulder high and began walking backwards, and did not appear to actually be taking a fighting
stance. | also observed that while | was handecuffing him, the body camera did not pick up all of
the factors that | did, such as the suspect s body tensing up, and so it appeared that the suspect
was not resisting greatly.
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| wrote my report the next morning. During my report, | wrote “the following happened in
substance, to the best of my recollection and perception at the time of the incident.” | then wrote
about what | had experienced and believed af the time of the incident, Including that | believed
the suspect “put his hands up but point his feet towards me in an aggressive stance, and |
believed [the suspect] was getting ready to assault me. At that time, {female subject] was still
yelling at me and walking towards me aggressively.” | then described all the factors { had in
making the use of force decision, and described tasing the suspect. | also described how the
female subject kept approach me while | was attempting to handcuff the male suspect, and that
| continually had to yell commands at her to back up.

| also wrote that the male suspect “continued to yell at me and tried to roll away from me while
tensing his body up. | told [suspect] to stop resisting or he would be tased again. As | altempted
to double lock the handcuffs, [suspect] tensed his body up and tried to roll away from me, and 1
told him again to stop resisting but he continued to try and roll away from me. | activated my
Taser agaln for a five second cycle, and [suspect] immediately stopped resisting.”

On the last page of my narrative, | also noted the discrepancies between the video footage and
my perception at the time of the incldent. | wrote “ later reviewed my body camera footage and
observe that directly before | activated my Taser, [suspect] took a step backward with his hands
up. | did not notice this durlng the incident due to the speed at which events were unfolding and
due to the fact that [female subjeci] was approaching me and | believed | was about to be
assaulted and would have to fight both [female subject] and [male suspect] without a cover unit."

Directly after | completed my report, Lt. Hernandez asked me to come to his office. Lt.
Hernandez was there with a representative of HR, and told me that he had not yet read my
report, but that he watched the body camera footage and believed | violated policies. He asked
me why | tased someone with their hands up, and | told him that at the time, | believed he was
not putting his hands up, but trying to actively assault me. | also advised Lt. Hernandez that |
had addressed the discrepancy in my report. Lt. Hernandez toid me | was being placed on
leave, and directed me to be available for an interview and to make a statement with an outside
agency, either Oregon State Police or Polk County Sheriff's Office.

During the week, | was called by Sgt. McAllister and advised | needed 1o come to a meeting on
Friday, August 18, 2017 at HR. During that meeting, | was given several pieces of paper (that |
was not allowed to keep) that advised that a review had been done of the use of force and that
at this time, they were recommending termination. | read a report by Dallas Police Department
that indicated that they agreed with Lt. Hernandez that | had violated policy, and in fact, they
believed 1 should have tased the female subject, not the male subject. | do not have a copy of
the Dallas Police Report at this time.

| asked Lt. Hernandez why | was not being interviewed and having my statement taken. Lt.
Hernandez advised me that he was acting Chlef, as the Chief was currentiy at a training in
Virginia. Lt. Hernandez told me they did not require my statement or any interview on my use of
force to make the decision to terminate me. Lt. Hernandez advised me that at this time, | was
only being recommended for termination based on a violation of the Taser policy, and no other
violations. Lt. Hernandez told me | had the right to appeal the termination for five days and give
any recorded statement | would like, but that if anything | sald would be given to the DA for
prosecution. Lt. Hernandez told me that if 1 resigned immediately, the investigation would stop at
that point, only lsting the reason for termination as being a violation of the Taser policy, and that
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he would advise the DA that they believed | was acting in good faith. | specifically asked Lt.
Herandez if he was terminating me based upon any belief that | was dishonest, and told him
that | never fied to him or Sgt. McAllister, and had accurately toid them what | believed had
happened based upon my perception at the time of the incident, in good faith. L.t. Hernandez
told me that he would be reporting to DPSST that | was resigning In lieu of termination for a
violation of the Taser policy, because he had not interviewed me and could not say if | had
purposely been dishonest or not, and so he was not doing to list dishonesty as the reason for
termination if | resigned immediately. He did tell me that both the DA and DPSST could do
“whatever they want” with an investigation, but that he would let them know he did not believe |
should be charged as | was acting in good faith. | then asked why, since | had no citizen
complaints and no letters of reprimand in my file, and he believed | was acting in good faith, he
did not suspend me instead and do retraining. Lt. Hernandez told me that as acting chief, he
could not “five with” the second taser use while the suspect was in handculffs,

| wrote a letter of resignation and reiterated that | was never dishonest and never meant o
mistead anyone. ‘

Later, in February of 2018, | was contacted by OSP Detective Hegney-Bach, who advissed she
was investigating allegations of excessive force in a criminal investigation and would iike my
statement. | contacted an attorney and requested the attorney accompany me to give my
statement, and told the attorney that 1 had nothing to hide and wanted to give my statement
from the beginning, and that this was my first opportunity to do so. My attorney contacted
Detective Hegney-Bach and scheduled a statement in March of 2018,

During the interview in March 2018, Detective Hegney-Bach asked many questions regarding
the use of force, my mindset, and what | believed happened. | gave a complete statement,
lasting several hours, voluntarily. As a result of Detective Hegney-Bach's statement, where she
recommended that no probable cause existed for Assault, the DA advised that | did not exceed
the legal justifications for use of force in Oregon.

During Detective Heghey-Bach’s report, she viewed the body camera footage and noted that
when | first tased the male suspect, he had his hands raised and took steps backward, at the
same time the female subject “tock a step toward Mr. Wolfer.” She also notes during the second
taser deployment:

While [suspect] was asking, "What did | do, "he started pushing slightly off the ground with his
knees; his head stayed on the ground. Mr. Wolfer then told [suspect] he had a warrant.
[Suspect] still appeared agitated and fiexed his arms and rolled slightly onto his {eft shouider
and then he rolled back on to his stomach. Mr.Wolfer warned [suspect] to stay on the ground or
he would tase him again, [Suspect] said, “Fuck you" and Mr.Wolfer activated a five second taser
cycle. [Suspect] was not flexing or rolling or moving his knees at the time Mr.Wolfer activated
the taser probes.”

While Detective Hegney-Bach notes that the suspect was not flexing or rolling or moving his
knees at the time | activated the taser, | believed he was slill resisting and was still tense.
Looking back, that may have been his body tensing as he yslled to curse at me, which | may
have misinterpreted as a continuation of his previously flexing and rolling and pushing off of the
ground. Again, | had adrenaline and had a suspect | believed to be resisting who 1 believed had
just tried to assault me.
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Detective Hegney-Bach notes during her investigation that | addressed some of the
discrepancles in my report as | noted above. She also notes that there was no probable cause
to charge me with Assault IV, and that all withesses belleved | had not been excessive. The
focus of Detecilve Hegney-Bach's investigation was not to determine dishonesty, merely to
review if the use of force was legal, and she notes that those allegations would not be fully
pursued during her investigation. Additionally, multiple witnesses told Detective Hegney-Bach
that they observed the suspect to be resisting while on the ground.

Additlonally, in Ociober of 2018 1 received copies of both Sgt. McAllister's and Lt, Hernandez's
reviews of the use of force. After reviewing the reports, hoth Sgt. McAllister and Lt. Hernandez
differ greatly in their perception of the events they viewed on my body camera. Not only do they
differ from each other, but they differ from Detective Hegney-Bach’s review of the incldent. For
example, Sgt. McAllister writes about what he observed from my body camera regarding the
first use of force:

“Officer Wolfer then yells, ‘get on the ground now!' ‘Move asidel’ ‘Get on the ground now or you
will be Tased!’ At this point, [suspect] is standing there with both hands in the air, next to his
head. Il's clear that [suspect] has nothing in his hands, [Female subject] steps toward Officer
Wolfer. Officer Wolfer moves towards his left and yells ‘Back away! Get on the ground now!’

[Male suspect] Is observed taking small steps backwards while holding his hands in the alr, next
to his head...”

Lt. Hernandez, by contrast, writes that in his review, the male suspect “ralses his hands in the
alr above his head and slowly walks backwards while asking what did | do?"

Lt. Hernandez also writes that while the male suspect was on the ground, he maves while

- yelling and that | told him not to move or he would be tased, and notes: “[Male suspect] yells
‘fuck you’ and moves while saying this. Officer Wolfer tases him again for a full five seconds.”
Sgt. McAllister writes of the same incident:

“[Male suspect] then moves towards his left side and yells It is my business! Officer Wolfer tells
Imale suspect] ‘Stop moving or | will tase you againl’ [Male suspect] then states ‘Fuck you!” -
Officer Wolfer then discharges his CEW a second time, while [male suspecti] Is lying face down
on the asphalt, with his hands cuffed behind his back...[male suspect] appeared to only attempt
{o roli to his left side to look at Officer Wolfer while he was saying ‘Fuck yout”

I believe it should be noted that Sat. McAllister’s review of the first incident indicates that the
male suspect had his hands raised to about his head, while Lt. Hernandez believed that the
male subject had his hands above his head. From my recollection, his hands were raised to
about shoulder/head height, which is alsc a fighting stance, and with the adrenaline and tunnel
vision | was experiencing at the time while the female subject also aggressively took steps
towards me, | interpreted that as a fighting stance. Additionalily, both Sgt. McAllister and Lt.
Hernandez's review of the footage indicate that the suspect was moving while | was handcuffing
him, but they Interpreted that as “only attempting to roll to his left side to look at Officer Wolfer.”

According to the landmark case, Graham v. Connor, “the ‘reasonableness’ inquiry in an
excessive force case is an objective one: the question is whether the officers' actions are
'objectively reasonable’ in light of the facts and circumstances confronting them, without regard
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to their underlying intent or motivation...The ‘reasonableness’ of a particular use of force must
he judged from the perspective of a reasonable officer on the scene, rather than with the 20/20
vision of hindsight.” | believe that Sgt. McAllister and Lt. Hernandez were interpreting not only
the suspect’s motives in his moving around as being passive, while they were not there to feel
his level of resistance, while [ interpreted it as active resistance from a known and violent
offender. The later review by OSP and the DA concluded that “Given the totality of the
circumstances, in particular the witness statements and level of threat belleved by Mr. Wolfer to
be Imminent, there is not sulficient evidence to overcome the use of force justification afforded
peace officers in ORS 161.235- 161.245.”

| fully admit there are discrepancies between the video footage and my perception of what
occurred. Lt. Hernandez and Sgt. McAllister both interpreted my actions as dishonesty, rather
than a mere mistake of fact due to a “rapidly-evolving” situation, as stated in Graham v. Connor,
| attempted to address this in my report, as noted above and noted by Detective Hegney-Bach. |
want to reiterate that | was never dishonest during my dealings in this case, or any other time,
with the Girand Ronde Tribal Police Department, Oregon State Police, the Polk County District
Attorney, or any other time. During this use of force incident, | truly believed that the male
suspect was attempting to assault me, and that during the second tase, | interpreted his
movements as trying to pull away from me.

| do believe that my perception of the events was mistaken. From the beginning, | have been
forthright and honest in my perception by immediately calling Sgt. McAllister and telling him
what | believed happened, and later, when | learned that my perception was incorrect, | was
forthright and honest in addressing that in my official report. My phone call addressing the use
of force to Sgt. McAllisier was fully recorded on body camera. | had no reason to believe | was
not telling Sgt. McAllister the full truth of what happened. | did not know at the time | was
mistaken. | never once tried to cover up my mistaken perception, and by writing about both my
perception and what | later viewed on the body camera footage in my official report, | was taking
full responsibility for my perception of the events being different.

| have attached an article from the Force Science Institute regarding body cameras and use of
force. Of note in the article is that a camera and the officer’s perception can be drastically
different, such as an officer’s brain suppressing “some incoming visual images that seem
unimportant in a life-threatening situation so you can completely focus very narrowly on the
threat. You won't be aware of what your brain Is screening out...in short, there can be a huge
disconnect between your field of view and your visual perception and the camera’s. Latet,
someone reviewing what’s caught on camera and judging your actlons could have a profoundly
different sense of what happened that you had at the time it was occurring.”

Additionally, the article talks about how “Some important danger cues can't be recorded,”
including “resistive tension.” Of particular note Is this paragraph: “And of course, the camera
can't record the history and experience you bring to an encounter.. .for instance, an assauitive
subject who brings his hands up may look to a civilian like he’s surrendering, but to you, based
on past experience, that can be a very intimidating and combative movement, signaiing his
preparation for a fighting attack. The camera just captures the action, not your interpretation.”

And finally, the ariicles says that of greater consequence is the body camera’s depiction of
action and reaction times. “Based on the reactionary curve, an officer can be half a second or
more behind the action as it unfolds on the screen.” This is what occurred with me when the

-
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male suspect was tensing up and rolling away. While Detective Hegney-Bach notes that the
suspect stopped rolling and tensing immediately as I tased him, | was behind the reactionary
curve and believed he was still resisting.

| made a mistake of perception in good faith when | interpreted the actions of the male suspect
and female subject as an altempt to assault me, and have been upfront about that from the
beginning. Additionally, during my termination hearing, | asked Lt. Hernandez for additional
training so that | would not make such good faith mistakes in the future. | was absolutely,
unequivocally not dishonest. | never had any intent to deceive anyone, neither outright nor by
omission, | wished to give a full interview and statement after the event and made myself
available, but the first time | was able to give a full statement was in March of 2018 during my
interview with Detective Hegney-Bach.

I have been heartbroken that my former employer Interpreted my actions as dishonest. Honesty
and Integrity are both extremely important to me, and | have tried to live my life with those
values, especially in all official dealings. | am truly sorry that | was mistaken that day, and
saddened that | was not given the opportunity to prove that | was honest. | would have gladly
accepted retraining, additional training, and other consequences for my good faith mistakes, but
I never lied,

Attached to this are two letters from professionals | have worked with. The first is a letter from
Officer Fred Dilworth of Cottage Grove, who worked with me for over a year at our first
department, Warm Springs Tribal Police, from 2010-2012. The second Is a letter from my
immediate supervisor in the Coast Guard Reserve, Petty Officer First Class Jason Armstrong. |
have served in the Coast Guard Reserve since 2013, and am a Second Class Petty Officer
serving as a Maritime Enforcement Specialist. In this role, | conduct Federal Law Enforcement
boardings on the Willamette and Columbia River, and before that, in the Puget Sound area. We
conduct civilian law enforcement, under a different set of use of force guidelines, however, we
do conduct law enforcement with members of the boating public. | have received several
awards in my time in the military, specifically in a law enforcement role, and my supervisors and
chain of command have nothing but praise for my conduct and integrity. | hope this letter from
PO1 Armstrong can serve to demonstrate that.

I appreciate the time taken to review this matter and this letter. | hope that the Committee is able
lo see that | acted in full good faith with no intent to deceive or be excessive, and have been
forthright and honest from the beginning In this,

Very respectiully submitted,

James K. Wolfer
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FORCE SCIENCE INSTITUTE, Ltd.

Headquarters: 124 Bast Walnut Street - Sulte 120 Mankato, MN 56001 USA. Ti 507.387-1290 B 507.387-1261

10 limitations of body cams you need to know for your protection
A special report from the Force Science Institute

The idea is building that once every cop is equipped with a body camera, the controversy
will be taken out of police shootings and other uses of force because “what really
happened” will be captured on video for all to see,

Well, to borrow the title from an old Gershwin tune, “It Ain’t Necessarily So.”

There’s no doubt that body cameras— like dash cams, cell phone cams, and surveillance
cams—can provide a unique perspective on police encounters and, in most cases, are
likely to help officets, But like those other devices, a camera mounted on your upiform or
on your head has limitations that need to be understood and considered when evaluating
the images they record.

“Rushing to condemn an officet for inappropriate behavior based solely on body-camera
evidence can be a dicey proposition,” cautions Dr. Bill Lewinski, executive director of
the Force Science Institute. “Certainly, a camera can provide more information about
what happened on the street, But it can’t necessarily provide all the information needed
to make a fair and impartial final judgment. There still may be influential human factors
involved, apart from what the camera sees.”

In a recent conversation with Force Science News, Lewinski enumerated 10 limitations
that are important to keep in mind regarding body-camera evidence (and, for the most
part, recordings from other cameras as well) if you are an investigator, a police attorney,
a force reviewer, or an involved officer, This information may also be helpful in efforts to
educate your community.

(Some of these points ate elaborated on in greater depth during the Force Science
Certification Coyrse. Visit www forcescience.org for information on the course. An
eatlier report on body cam limitations appeared in Force Science News #1435, sent
3/12/10. You will find online it at: www forcescience.org/fsnews/145 html)

1., A camera doesn’t follow your eyes or see as they see,

At the current level of development, a body camera is not an eye-tracker like FiSI has
used in some of its studies of officer attention, That complex apparatus can follow the
movement of your eyes and superimpose on video small red circles that mark precisely
where you ate looking from one microsecond to the next,

“A body camera photographs a broad scene but it can’t document where within that scene
you ate looking at any given instant,” Lewinski says, “If you glance away from where the
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camera is concentrating, you may not see action within the camera frame that appears to
be occurring ‘right before your eyes.’

“Likewise, the camera can’t acknowledge physiological and psychological phenomena
that you may experience under high stress, As a survival mechanism, your brain may
suppress some incoming visual images that seem unimportant in a life-threatening
situation so you can completely focus very narrowly on the threat, You won’t be aware of
what your brain is screening out,

driving a vehicle toward you, for example, it will seem to be closer, larger, and faster
than it really is because of a phenomenon called ‘looming,” Camera footage may not

“Your brain may also play visual tricks on you that the camera can’t match, If a suspect is
convey the same sense of threat that you experienced,

|
|
~ 4
“In short, there can be a huge disconnect between your field of view and your visual ]
perception and the camera’s, Later, someone reviewing what’s caught on camera and |
judging your actions could have a profoundly different sense of what happened than you |
had at the time it was occurring.”
#* 2.Some important danger cues can’t be recorded.
“Tactile cues that are often important to officers in deciding to use force are difficult for
cameras to capture,” Lewinski says, “Resistive tension is a prime example,

may quickly apply force as a preemptive measure, but on camera it may look like you
made an unprovoked attack, because the sensory cue you felt doesn’t record visually.”

[}‘You can usually tell when you touch a suspect whether he or she is going to resist. You

And, of course, the camera can’t record the history and experience you bring to an
encounter. “Suspect behavior that may appear innocuous on filtn to a naive civilian can
convey the risk of mortal danger to you as a streetwise officer,” Lewinski says. “For
instance, an assaultive subject who brings his hands up may look to a civilian like he’s
surrendering, but to you, based on past experience, that can be a very intimidating and
combative movement, signaling his preparation for a fighting attack. The camera just
captures the action, not your interpretation,”
Yo,

% 3. Camera speed differs from the speed of life.
Because body cameras record at much higher speeds than typical convenience store or
correctional facility security cameras, it’s less likely that important details will be lost in
the millisecond gaps between frames, as sometimes happens with those cruder devices,

“But it’s still theoretically possible that something as brief as a muzzle flash or the glint
of a knife blade that may become a factor in a use-of-force case could still fail to be
recorded,” Lewinski says.

Of greater consequence, he believes, is the body camera’s depiction of action and
reaction times.

“Because of the reactionary curve, an officer can be half a second or more behind the
action as it unfolds on the screen,” Lewinski explains, “Whether he’s shooting or
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stopping shooting, his recognition, decision-making, and physical activation all take
time-—but obviously can’t be shown on camera.

“People who don’t understand this reactionary process won’t factor it in when viewing
the footage. They’ll think the officer is keeping pace with the speed of the action as the
camera records it. So without knowledgeable input, they aren’t likely to understand how
an officer can unintentionally end up placing rounds in a suspect’s back or firing
additional shots after a threat has ended.”

4, A camera may see better than you do in low light.

“The high-tech imaging of body cameras allows them to record with clarity in many low-
light settings,” Lewinski says. “When footage is screened later, it may actually be
possible to see elements of the scene in sharper detail than you could at the time the
camera was activated.

“If you are receiving less visual information than the camera is recording undet time-
pressured citcumstances, you are going to be more dependent on context and movement
in assessing and reacting to potential threats, In dim light, a suspect’s posturing will
likely mean more to you immediately than some object he’s holding. When footage is
reviewed later, it may be evident that the object in his hand was a cell phone, say, rather
than a gun, If you’re expected to have seen that as clearly as the camera did, your
reaction might seem highly inappropriate.”

On the other hand, he notes, cameras do not always deal well with lighting transitions.
“Going suddenly from bright to dim light or vice versa, a camera may briefly blank out
images altogether,” he says.

5. Your body may block the view.

“How much of a scene 2 camera captures is highly dependent on where it’s positioned
and where the action takes place,” Lewinski notes. “Depending on location and angle, a
picture may be blocked by your own body parts, from your nose to your hands.

“If you're firing a gun or a Taser, for example, a camera on yout chest may not record
much more than your extended arms and hands, Or just blading your stance may obscure
the camera’s view. Critical moments within a scenario that you can see may be missed
entirely by your body cam because of these dynamics, ultimately masking what a
reviewer may need to see to make a fair judgment.”

6. A camera only records in 2-D.
Because cameras don’t record depth of field—the third dimension that’s perceived by the
human eye—accurately judging distances on their footage can be difficuilt.

“Depending on the lens involved, cameras may comptess distances between objects or
make them appear closer than they really are,” Lewinski says. “Without a proper sense of
distance, a reviewer may misinterpret the level of threat an officer was facing.”

Tn the Force Science Certification Course, he critiques several camera images in which
distance distortion became problematic. In one, an officer’s use of force seemed
inappropriate because the suspect appears to be too far away to pose an immediate threat.
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In another, an officer appears to strike a suspect’s head with a flashlight when, in fact, the
blow was directed at 2 hand and never touched the head.

“There ate technical means for determining distances on 2-D recordings,” Lewinski says,
“but these are not commonly known or accessed by most investigators,”

7. The absence of sophisticated time-stamping may prove critical.

The time-stamping that is automatically imposed on camera footage is a gross number,
generally measuring the action minute by minute, “In some high-profile, controversial
shooting cases that is not sophisticated enough,” Lewinski says, “To fully analyze and
explain an officet’s perceptions, reaction {ime, judgment, and decision-making it may be
critical to break the action down to units of one-hundredths of a second ot even less.

“There are post-production computer programs that can electronically encode footage to
those specifications, and the Force Science Institute strongly recommends that these he
employed, When reviewers see precisely how quickly suspects can move and how fast
the various elements of a use-of-force event unfold, it can radically change their
perception of what happened and the pressure involved officers were under to act,”

8. One camera may not be enough.

“The more cameras there are recording a force event, the more opportunities there are
likely to be to clarify uncertainties,” Lewinski says. “The angle, the ambient lighting, and
other elements will almost certainly vary from one officer’s perspective to another’s, and
syncing the footage up will provide broader information for understanding the dynamics
of what happened, What looks like an egregious action from one angle may seem
perfectly justified from another.

“Think of the analysis of plays in a football game. In resolving close calls, referees want
to view the action from as many cameras as possible to fully understand what they’re
seeing. Ideally, officers deserve the same consideration, The problem is that many times
there is only one camera involved, compared to a dozen that may be consulted in a
sporting event, and in that case the limitations must be kept even firmer in mind.

9. A camera encourages second-guessing,

“According to the U, S. Supreme Court in Graham v. Connor, an officer’s decisions in
tense, uncertain, and rapidly evolving situations are not to be judged with the 20/20
vision of hindsight,” ” Lewinski notes, “But in the real-world aftermath of a shooting,
camera footage provides an almost irresistible temptation for reviewers to play the
coulda-shoulda game,

“Under calim and comfortable conditions, they can infinitely replay the action, scrutinize
it for hard-to-see detail, slow it down, freeze it, The officer had to assess what he was
experiencing while it was happening and under the stress of his life potentially being on
the line, That disparity can lead to far different conclusions.

“As part of the incident investigation, we recommend that an officer be permitted to see
what his body camera and other cameras recorded, He should be cautioned, howevet, to
regard the footage only as informational. He should not allow it to supplant his first-hand
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memory of the incident, Justification for a shooting or other use of force will come from
what an officer reasonably perceived, not necessarily from what a camera saw.”

[For more details about FSI's position on whether officers should be allowed to view
video of their incidents, see Force Science News #114 (1/17/09). You will find online it
at: www forcescience org/fsnews/114 html]

10, A camera can never replace a thorough investigation.

When officers oppose weating cameras, civilians sometimes assume they foar
“transparency.” But more often, Lewinski believes, they are concerned that camera
recordings will be given undue, if not exclusive, weight in judging their actions,

“A camera's recording should never be regarded solely as zhe Truth about a controversial
incident,” Lewinski declares. “It needs to be weighed and tested against witness
testimony, forensics, the involved officer’s statement, and other elements of a fair,
thorough, and impartial investigation that takes human factors into consideration.

“This is in no way intended to belittle the merits of body cameras. Barly testing has
shown that they tend to reduce the frequency of force encounters as well as complaints
against officers.

“But a well-known police defense attorney is not far wrong when he calls cameras ‘the
best evidence and the worst evidence.” The limitations of body cams and others need to
be fully understood and evaluated to maximize their effectiveness and to assure that they
are not regarded as infallible ‘magic bullets’ by people who do not fully grasp the
realities of force dynamics.”

Our thanks to Parris Ward, director and litigation graphics consultant with Blodynamics
Engineering, Inc., for his help in facilitating this report.

For more information on the work of the Force Science Institute, visit

www forcescience.org. To reach the Force Science News editorial staff please e-mail:
editor@forcescience.org.
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Greetings,

I met James Wolfer in October 2010 while we were both employed by the Warm Springs
Police Department, I became employed with the Warm Springs Police Depattment in
September 2010, and James was hired approx one month later,

Due to our different hire dates, he and I were in different phases of our field training, but
I observed early on James had what appeared to be an attention for detail with interviews,
investigations, and repotts. I observed James was well spoken and confident in his job,
and appeared to possess a high level of education which was easy to identify while
speaking with him and from reading his police reports. To this day James' Warm Springs
Police Department police reports are some of the best police reports I have ever read.

I observed James' investigations were methodical, honest, logical, and fair, I never
observed James take any shott cuts or engage in any questionable practices, I worked
with James repeatedly and handled countless calls for service with him, At no time did I
ever observe anything dishonest or unethical, James always had a calm, professional, and
logical demeanor, T never observed James abuse his police powers in any way, and all use
of force incident I was aware of always appeared reasonable and justified.

There were a total five officers hired around the same time James and I hired, and James
quickly became my favorite officer to work with, I atiended the D.P.S.S.T. police
academy with James and during our time there I observed he became liked and respected
by the rest of the class, and wag always helpful to other new recruits,

James and I have maintained a friendship since we both left the Warm Springs Police
Department, I continue to visit with James on a regular basis, and I know he is still
working in a career where he is regularly conducting investigations, T also know James is
still an active Coast Guard member and conducts law enforcement operations in that

capacity.

I am still currently employed in full time law enforcement and I have on multiple
occasions contacted James with law enforcement related questions, and I have always

~ trusted and respected his opinions and advice, And if T was given the opportunity to work
with James in a law enforcement capacity again I would do so without hesitation,

Fred Dilworth,
541-601-2859
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U.S. Department of
Homeland Security

United States
Coast Guard

MEMORANDUM

From: I R, Armstrong, ME]
STA PORTLAND

To: Whom it May Concetn
Subj:  ME2 James Wolfer, ---5776

Offtcer In Charge
U.8, Coast Guard
Station Portland

6767 North Basin Avenue
Poriland, OR 97217
Phane: 503-240-9365

0754
26 DEC 18

Reply to
Attnof:  Jason R, Armstrong MEI
909-758-6262

The purpose of this letter is to speak to the character of Petty Officer James Wolfer. T have
known Petty Officer Wolfer for over four yeats while working together at Station Portland as
reserve members of the United States Coast Guard. We have performed numerous waterborne
law enforcement missions together, and for the last three yeats I have served as Petty Officer

Wolfer’s direct supervisor,

Petty Officer Wolfer has proven himself to me to be a man of integrity and someone that I can
count on. [ have never once questioned his judgement in a faw enforcement capacity in the
performance of his duty hete at the station, Petty Officer Wolfer has demonstrated leadership in
volunteeting to train other members at the station on a variety of law enforcement skills. He is
dependable and often volunteers to assist with additionat tasks that need to be accomplished at
the station. I have full faith in Petty Officer Wolfor’s ability and forthrightness as a law
enforcement officer, T can be reached on my cell phone at (909) 758-6262 or by email at

Jason.r.armstrong@uscg.mil if you have any further questions,

#
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Department of Public Safety Standards and Training

Memo
Date: February 21, 2019
To: Police Policy Committee
From: Kristen Hibberds

Professional Standards Coordinator/Investigator
Discipline:  Police
Subject: Wolfer, James DPSST# 51798
Basic Police Certification
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
OVERVIEW:
In August, 2017, DPSST received notification that Wolfer separated from employment
with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

After reviewing the investigative materials staff has identified potential violations of the

Board’s minimum moral fitness standards for public safety professionals. Specifically:
o On August 13,2017, Wolfer allegedly engaged in dishonesty when he stated that

a suspect “squared-up on me” leading to the use of his Taser,

e  Wolfer allegedly engaged in dishonesty when he stated that he tased the suspect a
second time because the suspect was resisting while he was trying to get cuffs on

him.

POLICY COMMITTEE DELIBERATION:

#1 VOTE: Determine whether to adopt the staff report as the record upon which its

recommendations are based,

Wolfer, James DPSST #51798 Police Policy Committee
February 21, 2019 Page | of 3
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#2 CONSENSUS: By discussion and consensus, determine if the officer violated the
Board’s moral fitness standard by engaging in behavior that constitutes any or all of the

following:

a. Gross Misconduct: Includes behavior that deliberately or recklessly disregards
the law, threatens persons or property or the efficient operations of any agency.
(Ineligibility period if actionable: 3 years to 10 years)

b. Disregard for the Rights of Others: Includes conduct that knowingly violates
the constitutional or civil rights of others. (Ineligibility period if actionable: 3
years to 15 years)

¢. Misuse of Authority: Includes the use or attempt fo use one’s position to obtain a
benefit, avoid a detriment, or harm another while acting under the color of office.
(Ineligibility period if actionable: 3 years to 10 years)

d. Dishonesty: Includes conduct that is knowingly dishonest and includes
untruthfulness, dishonesty by admission or omission, deception,
misrepresentation, falsification or reckless disregard for the truth. (Ineligibility

period if actionable: 10 years to Lifetime)
**The following is considered when violations of the moral fitness standard are identified**

AGGRAVATING/MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES:

Pursuant to OAR 259-008-0070(4)X()(B) staff has identified no mitigating
circumstances.

Pursuant to OAR 259-008-0070(4)(£)(B) staff has identified the following aggravating
circumstances:

o Conduct occurred during employment in public safety;
¢ Conduct occurred while acting in an official capacity.

Pursuant to OAR 259-008-0070(4)(f)(B) the following circumstances have been
considered neutral:

* The conduct did not occur multiple times;

e The individual’s conduct did not result in a criminal disposition;

Wolfer, James DPSST #51798 Police Policy Committec
February 21, 2019 Page2 of 3







e The individual’s conduct has not been reviewed in the past by the Committee and
Board;

o The individual’s conduct did not involve domestic violence or child abuse.

#3 CONSENSUS: By discussion and consensus, when considering only what is
contained in the record, identify any additional aggravating or mitigating circumstances

specific to this case.

#4 VOTE: After considering the identified violations of the Board’s moral fitness
standard and weighing the aggravating and mitigating circumstances unique to this case,

should Board action be taken against the individual’s certification/application?

**Proceed if the Committee votes YES to #4**

#5 VOTE: Determine the period for which this individual will be ineligible to hold

public safety certification based on the identified behavior.
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Department of Public Safety Standards and Training

Professional Standards Coordinator/Investigator :

Memo Q3rrorm |

|

Date: February 21, 2019
To: Police Policy Committee
From: Kristen Hibberds |

Discipline:  Police

Subject: Wolfer, James DPSST# 51798
Basic Police Certification
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

OVERVIEW;

In August, 2017, DPSST received notification that Wolfer separated from employment
with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

After reviewing the investigative materials staff has identified potential violations of the

Board’s minimum moral fitness standards for public safety professionals. Specifically:

e On August 13, 2017, Wolfer allegedly engaged in dishonesty when he stated that

a suspect “squared-up on me” leading to the use of his Taser.

*  Wolfer allegedly engaged in dishonesty when he stated that he tased the suspect a
second time because the suspect was resisting while he was trying to get cuffs on

him.

POLICY COMMITTEE DELIBERATION:

Video
Q 2. %QH- #1 VOTE: Determine whether to adopt the staff report as the record upon which its

recommendations are based.
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#2 CONSENSUS: By discussion and consensus, determine if the officer violated the
Board’s moral fitness standard by engaging in behavior that constitutes any or all of the

following:

a. Gross Misconduct: Includes behavior that deliberately or recklessly disregards
the law, threatens persons or property or the efficient operations of any agency.
(Ineligibility period if actionable: 3 years to 10 years)

b. Disregard for the Rights of Others: Includes conduct that knowingly violates
the constitutional or civil rights of others. (Ineligibility period if actionable: 3
years to 15 years)

c. Misuse of Authority: Includes the use or attempt to use one’s position to obtain a
benefit, avoid a detriment, or harm another while acting under the color of office.
(Ineligibility period if actionable: 3 years to 10 years)

d. Dishonesty: Includes conduct that is knowingly dishonest and includes
untruthfulness, dishonesty by admission or omission, deception,
misrepresentation, falsification or reckless disregard for the truth. (Ineligtbility

period if actionable: 10 years to Lifetime}

**The following is considered when violations of the moral fitness standard are identified**

AGGRAVATING/MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES:

Pursuant to OAR 259-008-0070(4)(f)(B) staff has identified no mitigating
circumstances.

Pursuant to QAR 259-008-0070(4)(){B) staff has identified the following aggravating
circumstances:

» Conduct occurred during employment in public safety;
o Conduct occurred while acting in an official capacity.

Pursuant to OAR 259-008-0070(4)(f)(B) the following circumstances have been
considered neutral:

¢ The conduct did not occur multiple times;

¢ The individual’s conduct did not result in a criminal disposition;
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¢ The individual’s conduct has not been reviewed in the past by the Committee and
Board;

s The individual’s conduct did not involve domestic violence or child abuse.

#3 CONSENSUS: By discussion and consensus, when considering only what is
contained in the record, identify any additional aggravating or mitigating circumstances

specific to this case.

#4 VOTE: After considering the identified violations of the Board’s moral fitness
standard and weighing the aggravating and mitigating circumstances unique to this case,

should Board action be taken against the individual’s certification/application?

**Proceed if the Committee votes YES to #4**

#5 VOTE: Determine the period for which this individual will be ineligible to hold

public safety certification based on the identified behavior.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY STANDARDS AND TRAINING

OF THE STATE OF OREGON
In the Matter of the Revocation/Suspension of
the Basic Police Certification for: DEPARTMENT EXHIBIT LIST
JAMES WOLFER
DPSST No.: 51798
EXHIBIT # DESCRIPTION OFFERED ADMITTED
Al DPSST Training Profile
A2 8-18-17 | F4 — Resignation during investigation
Letter from DA regarding prosecution
A3 9-28-18
and Brady
A4 8-13-07 | Orcgon Statc Police Incident Report
AS 8-18-17 | Administrative Investigation Findings
A6 8-16-17 | Dallas PD review of use of force
A7 8-16-17 | Grand Ronde Investigation Report
A8 8-16-17 | Memo to Chief — Administrative [V
Wolfer’s Incident Report, Supplemental,
A9 8-13-17
‘ PC & Misc.

- S
Grand

Al2

Mitigation

NOTE: Only the portions of the Investigative materials pertaining to the behavior identified above have
been included. Information determined not to be relevant to the Board’s certification standards have been

redacted.

Department Exhibit List: Wolfer, James DPSST #51798
February 21,2019
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Department of Public Safety Standards and Training
Memo

Date: February 21, 2019
To: Police Policy Committee
From: Kristen Hibberds

Professional Standards Coordinatot/Investigator
Discipline:  Police
Subject: Wolfer, James DPSST# 51798
Basic Police Certification
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
OVERVIEW:
In August, 2017, DPSST received notification that Wolfer separated from employment
with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.

STAFF ANALYSIS:

After reviewing the investigative materials staft has identified potential violations of the

Board’s minimum moral fitness standards for public safety professionals. Specifically:
e On August 13, 2017, Wolfer allegedly engaged in dishonesty when he stated that

a suspect “squared-up on me” leading to the use of his Taser.

o  Wolfer allegedly engaged in dishonesty when he stated that he tased the suspect a
second time because the suspect was resisting while he was trying to get cuffs on

him,

POLICY COMMITTEE DELIBERATION:

#1 VOTE: Determine whether to adopt the staff report as the record upon which its

recommendations are based.
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#2 CONSENSUS: By discussion and consensus, determine if the officer violated the
Board’s moral fitness standard by engaging in behavior that constitutes any or all of the

following:

a. Gross Misconduct: Includes behavior that deliberately or recklessly disregards
the law, threatens persons or property or the efficient operations of any agency.
(Ineligibility period if actionable: 3 years to 10 years)

b. Disregard for the Rights of Others: Includes conduct that knowingly violates
the constitutional or civil rights of others. (Ineligibility period if actionable: 3
years to 15 years)

c. Misuse of Authority: Includes the use or attempt to use one’s position to obtain a
benefit, avoid a detriment, or harm another while acting under the color of office.
(Ineligibility period if actionable: 3 years to 10 years)

d. Dishonesty: Includes conduct that is knowingly dishonest and includes
untruthfulness, dishonesty by admission or omission, deception,
misrepresentation, falsification or reckless disregard for the truth, (Ineligibility

period if actionable: 10 years to Lifetime)
*¥*The following is considered when violations of the moral fitness standard are identified**

AGGRAVATING/MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES:

Pursuant to OAR 259-008-0070(4)(f)(B) staff has identified no mitigating
circumstances.

Pursuant to OAR 259-008-0070(4)(f)(B) staff has identified the following aggravating
circumstances:

s Conduct occurred during employment in public safety;
¢ Conduct occurred while acting in an official capacity.

Pursuant to QAR 259-008-0070(4)(H)(B) the following circumstances have been
considered neutral:

o The conduct did not occur multiple times;

¢ The individual’s conduct did not result in a criminal disposition;
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e The individual’s conduct has not been reviewed in the past by the Committee and
Board;

o The individual’s conduct did not involve domestic violence or child abuse,

#3 CONSENSUS: By discussion and consensus, when considering only what is
contained in the record, identify any additional aggravating or mitigating circumstances

specific to this case.

#4 VOTE: After considering the identified violations of the Board’s moral fiiness
standard and weighing the aggravating and mitigating circumstances unique to this case, )

should Board action be taken against the individual’s certification/application?

**Proceed if the Committee votes YES fo #4**

#5 VOTE: Determine the period for which this individual will be ineligible to hold

public safety certification based on the identified behavior.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY STANDARDS AND TRAINING

OF THE STATE OF OREGON
In the Matter of the Revocation/Suspension of
the Basic Police Certification for: DEPARTMENT EXHIBIT LIST

JAMES WOLFER
DPSST No.: 51798

EXHIBIT # DESCRIPTION OFFERED ADMITTED
Al DPSST Training Profile -
A2 8-18-17 | F4 — Resignation during investigation -

| Letter from DA regarding prosecution
A3 9-28-18 -
and Brady .
A4 8-13-07 | Oregon State Police Incident Report -
AS 8-18-17 | Administrative Investigation Findings -
A6 8-16-17 | Dallas PD review of use of force -
A7 8-16-17 | Grand Ronde Investigation Report -
A8 8-16-17 | Memo to Chief — Administrative IV -
Wolfer’s Incident Report, Supplemental,
A9 8-13-17 -
PC & Misc.

All Grand Ronde PD Policies -
Al12 Mitigation -

NOTE: Only the portions of the Investigative materials pertaining to the behavior identified above have
been included. Information determined not to be relevant to the Board’s certification standards have been
redacted.

Departinent Exhibit List: Wolfer, James DPSST #51798 Police Policy Committee
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Wolfer, James K. (51798)

Gender Male
Birth Date |G
Age 31

File Number

_ Employment Summary

" EmpType
 Ethniclty
Education

" Email
Supervlsor

White

ques.wol_fga_r_@grandfonde._qtg . !

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
Hired; 5-23-2016

- Inactive Total Service: 1 Years

Last Action: 8-18-2017 Resigned

Assignment:

Level:

Shift;
Function: Police

Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Class:

Warm Springs Police Department
Hired: 10-18-2010

- Inactive Total Service: 1 Years ©1Days

Last Actlon: 1-17-2012 Discharged

Assignment:

Level:

Shift:
Function: Police

" Certification
Date Status

" Certified

Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Class:

" Expires  Probation Cert#

Police Maintenance / Basic
1-01-2017  Required

12-31-2019

Police Officer / Basic
12-22-2016  Granled

12-22-2016

11-18-2017

. Employment History

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Departiment
Date: 8-18-2017 Action: Resigned

Status: Inactive

Assighment:

Level

Shift:
Function: Police

Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Class;

.
*

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
Date: 5-23-2016 Action: Hired

Service; 1 Years 87 Days

Status: Active

Assignment;
Level:
Shift:

Pos/Rank: Pollce Officer
Class:

[
r
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Wolfer, James K, (51798)

Function: Police

Warm Springs Police Department

Date: 1-17-2012 Action: Discharged Status: [nactive
Assignment: Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Level: Class:
Shift: :
Function: Police
Warm Springs Police Department Service: Years 363 Days
Date: 1-20-2011 Action: DPSST Reclassification Status: Active
Assignment: Pos/Rank: Police Officer
Level: Class:
Shift: :
Function: Police
Warm Springs Police Department Service: Years 96 Days
Date: 10-18-2010 Action: Hired Status: Active
Assignment: Pos/Rank: Civillan Employee
Level: Class:
Shift: ,
[Training T - o _]
Course Title T S 7T 77T 77 77 pate | Hours | Score Status
|[F6C24972 ifirearms Training _ l'e282017 ] 100 | 000 |Passed
CITY: Grand Ronde TINSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ;. AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED 8Y:
[_ﬁ@1§153 | Firearms Qualification _ . - | 6-28-2017 J 1.00 | 0.00 |Passed
CITY: Grand Ronde ;  INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: . AUTHORIZEDSUBM!TTER SUBMITTED BY:
_F6C38316 IEthlcs Builetin Vol 164 I 6-26-2017 l. 0.50 | 000 |Passed
“TTTGITY: Grand Ronde; INSTRUCTOR CONTAGT: 1~ AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: - SUBMITTED BY.
| F6C04461 |Advanced Roadside Impaired Driving Enforcement | 6-09-2017 | 1600 | 0.00 .!lPassed
CITY: Portland: INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ; AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY:
|F6C30724 |Ethies Bufletin Vot 161 14192017 | 050 | 0.0 {Passed
CITY: Grand Ronde; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: s AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER SUBMITTED BY:
LF6014523 { Hazmat First Responder Awareness (FRA) Level | 1 ~3-31-2017 L 2.00 1 000 |Passed L
7 7 Grand Ronde T~ S o S T T
|F6C18537 | Counter Assauit o 13222017 | 1.00 | 0.00 [Passed |
CITY: Dallas; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C02801 | Naloxone Tralning Protocol | 3-13-2017 | 1.00 . | 0.00 |Passed
o CITY: Grand Ronde; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER SUBMITTED BY:
|F6C37327  |Ethics Bulletin Vol 160 | 3102017 | 0.50 | 0.00 |Passed
CITY: Grand Rondé;, INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: | AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C13068 J_Ethlcs Bulletin Vol 169 B o | 3-10-2017 [ 0.50 | 0.00 |Passed. o
CITY: Grand Ronde: INSTRUCTORCONTACT: . AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER:, SUBMITTED BY:
|F6C26596 | Initial Response and Investigation of Child Deaths | 2-22-2017 | 1.00 | 0.00 |Passed
o GITY Grand Ronde;  INSTRUCTOR CONTACT —; AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: © SUBMITTED BY
|F6C29664 {40 Hour CITR Training Day 1 | 2-17-2047 | 800 [ 0.00 |Passed AJ
T TUCITY: Daflas, INSTRUCTOR CONTAGT AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY:
Exhibit Al
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Wolifer, James K. {51798)
| F6C29664 |40 Hour CITR Training Day 1 | 2-16-2017 | 800 | 0.0 lPassed |
“TCITY: Dallas: INSTRUCTOR CONTACT ™+ AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: | SUBMITTED BY:
{F6C29664 {40 Hour CITR Training Day 1 | 2-15-2017 | a 00 0.00 |Passed
CITY: Dallas; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: | AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C29664 |40 Hour CITR Training Day 1 | 2-14-2017 | 8.00 0.00 |Passed ]
GITY Dallas, INSTRUCTOR CONTACT. 7 AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER:; SUBMITTED BY:
| F6C29664 |40 Hour CITR Tralining Day 1 b 2-13-2017 800 | 000 [Passed |
CITY Dallas; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: | AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER:; SUBMITTED BY: g
|F60394344§Low Light/Night Shocting/Qualification | 1-25-2017 | 3.00 0.00 |Passed ] é
CITY: Grand Ronde, INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY.
| F6C23657 |DPSST Ethics Bulletin Vol 158 } 1242017 | 050 | 0.00 !Passed'
CITY. Grand Ronde, INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER:, SUBMITTED BY:
| FEC04689 | Agency Poficles and Proceedures-Lexipol | 1-16-2017 | 8.00 0.00 |Passed |
CITY. Grand Ronde; INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER:, SUBMITTED BY.
2017 Pass/Complete: 76.50
|F6C31343 | DPSST Ethics Bulletin Vol 157 {12-27-2016 | 050 | 0.00|Passed |
CITY. Grand Ronde,  INSTRUCTOR CONTAGT — ~ "AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ;, SUBMITTED BY: ‘
| F6C19092 | DPSST Ethics Bulietin Vol 156 141172016 | 050 | 0.00 |Passed |
CITY: Grand Ronde: INSTRUCTOR CONTACT ;. AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY: %
16 T001 { Police Fleld Training Manual 111-14-2016 50.00 | 0.00 |Completed |
'16-0008 1DPSST Basic Police COD ~ " T [{1-11-2016 ‘ so‘.oT“', 0.00 Passed ]
Sgl. Hornandez 603-879-1824 ;limothy. hetnandez@grandronde.org
083016 mriesterer changed froim pending o regist.
| F6AD1949 | DPSST Ethics Builetin Vol 153 | 8-26-2016 | 050 | 0.00 lPassed |
Grand Ronde
{FBA01774 | GPR/First Ald Recertification /AED ) | 8122016 |  6.00 | 000 |Passed B
Grand Ronde
| 16-0011 |Intoxilyzer 8000-Training hours included in Basic L811 2016 | 800 | 0.0 |Passed |
Salem, Oregon T
{F6A01827  |SFST/DID | 8-04-2016 | 2400 | 000 |Passed |
Salem, Oregon . )
|F6C31336 | DPSST Ethics Bulletin | 6-27-2016 | 050 | 0.00 'Passed
o CITY. Grand Ronde;  INSTRUCTOR CONTACT: ;| AUTHORIZEDSUBMITTER: ; SUBMITTED BY:
FBA00784 | Ethics Bulletin #149 6-14-2016 | 0.50 0.00 |Passed
FBA00765 | Ethics Bulletin #150 - 6443016 | 050 | 0,00 |Passed T
77777 2018 PassICompIete: T 171.00 '
11-0834 | Investigaticn Training - Other 192-16-2011 | 1.00 0.00 |Passed
110132 |Firearms Qualffication =~ "~ 00472011 } " 400 | 70.00 |Passed
11-0008  |DPSST Basic Police e 176162011 1 640,00 | 0.00 |Passed
Lt Oswald "Bear" Tias, 541-553-3272 o(las@ws!rlbes or fax 541-5653-1376 7
11-0011 | Intoxilyzer 8000-Training hours included in Basic 8-19-2011 | 0.00 ; 0.00 |Passed
T0010 | SEST/DID- Training hours included in Basic 1 &-17-2011 1000 "tﬁ:bcﬂ Passed
13087 | L ar Gharalors Califsa T 7272011 [ 600 000 |Passed
113092 |Radar Operalors Course 1 Foia2011 T 8.00 | 0.00 [Passed
11-1106 | Criminal Jurisdiction in Indian Cointry lTaag20id T 206J 0.00 |Passed
11-0132 ! Firearms Qualification ' - {:_4 05-2011 T 4. OOJ_ 0.00 fF’a\ssed_w ]
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Wolfer, James K. (51798)

4-06-2011 | 2.00

11-1116 Legal/Legislative Update i - 0.00 jPassed
111237 Traffic Enforcement | 3-24-2011 | 3.00 0.00 |Passed
11-1198 Bullding Searches 3-23-2011 3.00 0.00 {Passed
11-1075 Intoxilyzer 8000 1-142011 | 8.00 0.00 |Passed
- o ' ) "2011 Pass/Complete: 681,00 ‘
[10-1120  |Search & Seizure 112302010 | 1.00 | 0.0 |Passed |
2010 Pass/Complete: 1.00
Total Pass/Complete: 929,50

Education
' Date  Degree  Major School " Hours QIS
Attributes - B

Effective Expires Topic Attribute

8-25-2016 Training Deficency F4 Personne! action report missing

5-23-2016 Form Recelved F2 completed on

1-20-2011 Form Received F4

1-20-2011 Form Recelved F6

1-03-2011 Form Received F2 completad on
| Notes . B m e - .

Date Topic Title / Description
11-03-2016  Code of Ethics OK
3-12-2012  Certification Notes F-8 Received-ok
5-23-2071  Code of Ethics oK

Exhibit Al
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OREGON DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY STANDARDS.AND' tRAINING

Personnel Action .:;,: DY

Send to DPSST within ten days of effective dute of action fOAR 259-0

O B e N I D S 3

ason for Apsendment):

m | L Type of Action: [Naw Hire [Tlstatus Change [dSeparation [JAmended (Re
% 2. Name: Last Flrst i 3, DOB: 4, Hira Date: | 5, DPSST Number {ieave blank If new)
g | Wolfer James K 05232016 [51798 51 7F &
@ | 6 Agency 7, Division/Branch/listitutlon 8. Rank or Position
5 (Grand Ronde Tribal Police . [Patrol Patro] Officer
&' |9, Current Discipline{s) which employee Is agtively working,
g [X] Police [] Regulatory Speciafist [ Telecommunications 7] Resetve police Officer
é’- [ corractions [ parele & Probation El Emergency Medical Dispatch [:] OPSST/DOC Mandated Course Thstructor 2
10, 1s Multl Diselpline cartification required to fulfll a need for the efficlent aperation of your sgency? B QOves GNa
11, Gender 12, Rgcéﬁthnicltye 13, High School O Diploma-  School Name, Logation, State!
> | OMale OFamale Education QaGEb
2 [ 14, Background/Fingerprints @
X | a Date Fingarprints submitted to Oragon State Police LD, Services.
5 b, Has a background lavestigation been compietad s regulred by OAR 258-008-0035? @ OvYes ONo

¢. Optiomat: Did the background investigation reveal any convictions or pending eriminal matiers other than teaffic vielattens? B8 QYes ONe
15, Status Change Date: | 16, Status Change

‘§ [JName Change: From: Tor

'é QPromotlan (> Multl-Discipline Rectassification (O lLeave of Absenca

Q ORaclassificatlon O Demnntlon OMiittary Leave of Absence

W QboL Transfer O bemation-Voluntary O Return from Leave of Absence

% 16a. Praviays Rank, Posltion, Branch, Discipling: | 16b. Current Rank, Position, Branch, Discipline: | 16a. O Certlfisble

Onon-Certiflable

&g)lsffggf,go'lﬁff? 17a. Is this employee scheduled fo attend a DPSST academy? @ OYes @Ne

@ |18 SeparationType " (- O Reslgnation ORetiramant-During an InvestigationA
g 8;(;:?2 . O tesignationsSettiement Agresment. b ORetlrament-in llew of terminationsh
g, ) godt: Reslgnation-Ourlng an lnvestigation . (ORetirament-Medical )
B Oray-off O ResignationeIn flau of termination. b Oother: A Attach addltional poges as necessary.
O Probationary Mscharge . O Retirement '
Qtrobationary Dlschar'sg (FTEP Folluro) Q Retlrement-Settiement Agreement. I, A WHE requlre further reviow by DPSST

20, Provide up to three Individuals who DPSST may contact regarding this form, Include only work email addresses. @
Rank, Name, Emall and Phone Number:

timothy.hernandez@grandronde.org b,

rod.moallister@grandronde,org ﬁ Gt

juke.mcknight@grandronde.org = ¢uyae
| sttest that { am the Dapattment Head or hold DPSST Certification and am authorized by the Department Head to sign balow. certify that the

s1021u0)

« Inforenation entered on hls form has baen verified and is substantiated by records maintalned by my agency. if certified by DPSST, | understand
g that falsificatton of thig doot takas fy cartification(s) subject to denfal, suspension or revotatien undar ORS 1814.640 and CAR 253.008-
‘® | 0070 B . .
E : s
3 Slgnature Y T . pate:  glig 17
: Printed Name: Tl?ﬁﬁéﬁ%d@z Ties Lt. (acting Chief) DPSST Nout 32195
emall Address - timothy hemandez@grandronde.org i Phone:  903-879-1824
Please send to DPSST: Emall: schadulecert@state,grus; Fax: 503-378-4600; Mall: 4190 Aumsvilie HWY SE; Salem OR 87317
o | Cenl Nad Positlon | Elboiice (O Correctlons [ P&P (3 Regulatory Specialist Pate copy forwarded for review | Processed y/Date
E 2 [QiYes ONo | 0 Telecommunicator LI EMD L3 instructor - T2 G-y
AR [ £ ? ‘
£P Numbar [EDS [ Clegr OIIN E-Coun O Cleor - e ety
teleets 03/01/2017 © Questions? Call DPSST at 503-378-2100 or emallseheduiecen @IHBILAZ

C-e?m} i FS ~ B ~ Pagelof 1




Lo r” PorLk County DISTRICT ATTORNEY

g™ "
L8 <L POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE  DALLAS, OREGON 973383177 AARON FELTON
P OLK CO U N TY CRIMINAY, DIVISION « (503) 623-9268 District Attorney
SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT * (503) 623-9269 Jelton.aaron@eopolk ov e

VICTIM ASSISTANCE * (503) 623-9268
VAX * {503) 623-7556

Septembet 28, 2018

G. Aron Perez-Selsky ‘
Attorney at Law
Perez-Selsky Law Office
P.O. Box 1656

315 NE Bvans St. # 8 & 9
McMinnville, OR 97128

Re:  James Wolfer
OS8P Case No.: SP18-001897

Dear M. Perei—Selsky:

‘This mattes has been refesyed back to this office by the Mation County District Attorney’s Office
-after completion of an independent investigation into the conduct of your client, James Wolfer, for
the actions he is alleged to have been taken on August 13, 2017,

"The putposes of my evaluation of Mz, Wolfer’s actions are two-fold. Figst, to determine whether M,
Wolfet’s conduct constituted any sort of criminal act for which a prosecution is appropriate undet
Otegon law, Second, whether Mr, Wolfer’s actions triggered my duty to disclose his conduct in cases
in which he may be called as a witness for the state pursuant to Brady . Maryland. Let me be clear, no
analysis I conducted ot conclusion I teached should be imparted to any civil or administrative
proceeding related to these events which is assigned a lower burden of proof by law.

I have reviewed the written materials as well as the audio and video media compiled as past of the
investigations conducted by the Oregon State Police, Dallas Police Depattment, and Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department. It is important to note that only the Oregon State Police had the benefit
of a complete, counseled, interview with M, Wolfer to tely on during its investigation.
Consequently, I, too, had the benefit of that information before me in reaching my decision.

Based on my seview of these materials, I find that there is not sufficient evidence to prove a crime
beyond a reasonable doubt, Given the totality of the circumstances, in particular the witness
statements and level of threat believed by M. Wolfer to be imminent, thete is not sufficient

Exhibit A3
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G, Aron Perez-Selsky
September 28, 2018
Page 2

evidence to overcome the use of force justification afforded peace officets in ORS 161.235 —
161.245,

However, I reach a different conclusion as regasds my duty under Brady ». Maryland. As you know,
The United States Supreme Coutrt in Brady v. Maryland, as well as the Ninth Citcuit Counrt of Appeals
in Usited States v. Fenthorn, has held that prosecutors bear a personal responsibility to male the court
awate of any matetials possessed by an investigative agency that are helpful to the defense. Such
materials include not only exculpatory information, but also any findings ot substantiated allepations
that call into question the credibility of a govetnment witness (impeachment information), The
investigations conducted by the Grand Ronde Tibal Police, Dallas Police and Oregon State Police
each contain material that would be considered exculpatory if Mr. Wolfer wete to be called as a
witniess for the state in any criminal proceeding. Thegefore, putsuant to Brady v. Matyland, it will now
be the practice of this office to disclose these materials to defense counsel in Polk County cases (o
other cases that we are awate of) in which My, Wolfer may be called as a witness for the state.

If you have additional questions, please do not hesitate to contact e,
S

/

Aaron Felton
District Attorney

et Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police

Kristen L. Hibberds
Otegon Depattment of
Public Safety Standatds and Training
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Oregon State Police

Incident Details:

Incident: SP18001897

Page | of 37

CONFIDENRTIAL

This information is heing provided to
a Crirninal fustive Agency for thelr
officlal use only. Do not redistribute

without permission from
(Oregon State Police

Incident Type:

incident time:

Reported time:

Incident location:

Incident status:

Summary:

Assauit

08/13/2007 17:03 - 08/13/2017 17:61

01/02/2018 15653

MOUNTAIN CASINO) (Beat: GHQ, Reglon: NWR}) 97347

Referrad lo DA for consideration

27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE, POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT

On January 2, 2018, | was tasked with invesligaling a use of force Incident from Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department, located In Polk Counly. Subsequent Investigation revealed that
there was not probable cause to charge James Wolfer with Assault V.

fnvolved Persons:

Name: SCOTT, KAITLYN Gender: Female
Classification: Wilness DOB:
DL:
Address: 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLI OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
(Beat: GHQ, Reglon: NWR) 97347
Telephone: (Cell phone) [ INNENENEGENN
Name: WOOD, MICKEY Gender: Male
Classification:  Willness DOB:
DL:
Address: 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 987347 {SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
(8eat: GHQ, Reglon: NWR) 97347
Telephone: (cell phone) NG
Name: MALMQUIST, LEN Gender: Male
Classification: Wilness DOB:
DL:
Address: 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
(Beat: GHQ, Reglon: NWR) 97347
Telephone:  (Cell phone) NN ’
Name: NORWEST, ROBIN Gender; Male

file:///C:/Users/theathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Yetlow) htm
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Classification:  Witness DOB:
DL:
Address: 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
(Beat: GHQ, Reglon: NWR) 97347
Telephone: (cel phone) || GGG
Name: e Gender;  Female
Classification:  Wilness DOB: ]
DL:
Address; KLAMATH FALLS, KLAMATH
OR USA (Beat: SMO, Region: NWR)
Telephone: (cell phone) ||| GG
Name: HERNANDEZ, TIM Gender: Male
Classification:  Police Officer - outside agency DOB:
DL:
Address: 26870 SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE, POLK
OR USA 97347 {Beal: MNO, Reglon: NWR) 87347
Telephone: (Landline) (603) 879-2417
Name: MCALLISTER, ROD Gender::  Male
Classification:  Police Officer - outside agency DOB:
DL
Address:
Telephone: (Landline) (603) 879-1826
Telephone: (Landline) (541) 247-3242
Name: MCKNIGHT, JAKE Gendler: Male )
Ciagsification: Police Officer - oulside agency DOB:
DLy
Address:
Name: WOLFER, JAMES Gender: Male
Classification:  Other Invelved person - DOB:

DL:
Address:
Telephone:

(Landline) (503) 879-5211

Involved Property:

P18005066 / Police recording / Evidence / BODY CAM

[ ]

« P18005067 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING
« P18005447 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING
« P18005449 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIC RECORDING
s P18005451 / Police recording / Evidence { AUDIO RECORDING

file:///C:/Users/heathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Yellow). htm
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» P18010453 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIC RECORDING
» P18010454 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING

involved Officers:

Supporting officer / BARRIENTOS, CARLOS / #41614 / OSP / Officer / SALEM DETECTIVES
Supporting officer / MOISAN, THEODORE / #42094 / OSP / Officer / SALEM DETECTIVES

» Reporting Officer/Case Lead / HEGNEY-BACH, CASI / #49678 / OSP / Officer / SALEM PATROL
» Dispatcher/TC2 / GLEMENTS, ARIN / #56444 / OSP / Officer / DISPATCH

Reports:

General report:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 04/02/2018 15:26
Entered hy: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 16:26
Narrative:

Case {#SP18001837

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney’s Office

ASSOCIATED CASES:
Grand Ronde Tribal Police GRT17000673

CRIMES UNDER INVESTIGATION:
Assault IV -~ ORS 163.160

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Initial Report — Use of Force

SUSPECT:
Mr, Wolfer, James

pos: | IIEGcNBc
MENTIONED:

Vietim

Mother of Victim

Securlty Guard Robin Norwest
Splrit Mountaln Casino

Security Guard Len Malmqulst

Exhibit A4
Page 3 of 37
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Splrit Mountaln Casino

Securlty Guard Mickey Wood
Spirit Mountain Casino

Security Guard Kaitlyn Scott
Spirit Mountain Casino

MENTIONED POLICE:
Sergeant Matt Lawson
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAllister
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 — DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17,

CHB-E2 ~ Interview with || EGN

CHB-E3 ~ interview with Robin Norwest
CHB-E4 — intervlew with Len Malmquist
CHB-E5 ~ Interview with Kaltlyn Scott
CHB-E6 ~ Interview with Mickey Wood
CHB-E7 — Audio interview with James Wolfer

ATTACHED:

Oregon State Pelice Property Report Form 65

Probable Cause Affidavit from James Wolfer

Incident Report from James Wolfer

Incident Suppl.em ent from Tokata Tehama

Dispatch Report

Inter-Office Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation

Inter-Office Memorandum Investigation Report

Exhibit A4
Page 4 of 37

file:///C:/Users/Iheathe/ AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Yellow) htm 8/20/2018




Untitted Page 5 of 37

Salem Health West Valley Emergency Report for ||| | |l TGN

Arrest Report — Polk County Jail

Dallas Police Department Incident Review
Letter of Resignation from James Wolfer
Trespass Notice from Spirit Mountain Casino

Certified Letter that houses Trespass Notice

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Pollicy
Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department Use of Force Policy

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Personnel Complaint Policy

Public Records Request from [l I N

Taser Certification and Test for James Wolfer
Taset Instructor Cettification for Rod McAllister

Taser download for James Wolfer

DPSST Training record for James Wolfer

ACTION TAKEN:
On January 2, 2018, | was tasked with investigating a use of force case from Grand Ronde Tribal
Pollce Department, Jocated In Polk County. Sergeant Matt Lawson explained to me that the
use of force occurred between former police officer, James Wolfer and a male he arrested,

on August 13,2017, Sergeant Matt Lawson told me the case involved Mr.
Wolfer and the use of his taser during the arrest of Mr. |||

| read through the documents of this case, watched the body camera footage from James
Wolfer and interviewed witnesses, According to the Grand Ronde Trlbal Police Dispatch Report
the following events occurred-prior to Mr, Wolfer making contact with Mr.

s 5:03pm Initial call for service came from Spirit Mountain Casino. Casino reported a
trespass.
5:04pm ~ 5:05pm, trespasser identified as ||| I descrivtors were given.
Male had been trespassed from casino before,
5:06pm, security officers were watching Mr.
5:09pm, confirmed watrant for Assault i, felony cautions reported.
5:10pm, Mr. Wolfer steps up response to casino and then also arrlved on scene.

»

On January 2, 2018, | reviewed Mr. Wolfer’s body camera. Here Is a summary of what | saw on
Mr. Wolfer’s body camera:

Exhibit A4
Page 5 of 37
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On August 13, 2017 at approximately 5:11pm, Mr, Woifer was on duty and in uniform. At this
time Mr, Wolfer activated his body camera at Spirit Mountain Casino. He was on a call for

service dealing with a trespassed male named ||| TGN

Mr. Wolfer got out of hls patrol vehicie and briefly talked to a securlty officer, who told him
where Mr. [l was located In the parking lot. Mr, Wolfer ran toward Mr, In the
parking lot while aiso pulling out his Taser. A female appeared to be with Mr,

As Mr, Wolfer ran toward Mr. - he yelled, “Hey Stop, Police. Stop, get on the ground.”
Mr, Wolfer had his Taser pointed toward Mr, - The female, later Identifled as-

B s: <. “What do you want?”

Mr. Wolfer yelled, “Get on the ground now!” Ms, asked, “Me?” Ms. [ ot this
time stepped between Mr, Wolfer and Mr., Mr. Wolfer yelled commands to Mr.
B - Vs [ 2 he used his hands to point at which person he was referring;
Mr, Wolfer began yelling commands, “No not you, Back up. Go to the side. You on the
ground, Get onthe ground nowl Move aslde. Get on the ground or you will be tased. Back
away, get on the ground, now.” Get on the grou, . .” While Mr, Wolfer was yelling, Mr,

B o1t his hands up In the alr and took steps backwards.

Next Ms. [l took a step toward Mr, Woifer and at the same time Mr. Woifer pulled the
trigger on his Taser deploying a taser cartridge that hit Mr. [JJJJJJij \n the front of his upper
body. Mr. [ fe!l forward to the ground and then he rolled onto his back. Ms. |||l
velled, “You mother fucker|”

Mr. Wolfer said to Ms. | “Get on the ground or you will be tased tool* WM. |||
yelled back "Fucking do it, bitchl” Mr. Wolfer continued to tell Ms- to get on the

ground. Security Supervisor Mickey Wood stepped In front of Ms, At this time, Mr,
I /=5 Iving on his back with his arms extended out to his sides and he remained
motionless,

Mr, Wolfer requested Dispatch to send medics to his location, Mr, Wolfer told Ms. ||| |l
to say away, Mr, Wolfer then told Mr. - two times to roll over onto his side and Mr.
I complied with the commands and rolled onto his stomach.

Mr. Wolfer told Mr. [l he was under arrest for a warrant and trespassing. He knelt
down, gave Mr, [l commands so he could place him in handeuffs and Mr. [l
complied, :

While Mr, Wolfer was cuffing Mr. || | ] Vs I continved velling at Mr, Wolfer and
Mr. Woifer yelled back at her.

Once in handeuffs Mr. [ asked several times, “What did 1 do?” Mr. |} appeared
to be getting getting agltated durlng the verbhal exchange between Mr. Wolfer and Ms,

Exhibit A4
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- While Mr. - was asking, “What did [ do,” he started pushing slightly off the
ground with his knees; his head stayed on the ground. Mr, Wolfer then told Mr, he
had a warrant. Mr, - still appeared agitated and flexed his arms and rolled slightly onto
his left shoulder and then he rotled back onto his stomach. Mr, Wolfer warned Mr, to
stay on the ground or he would tase him again. Mr. [JJJJi said. “Fuck you” and Mr. Wolfer
activated a five second taser cycle, Mr, [JJJJij was not flexing or rolling or moving his knees
at the time Mr. Wolfer actlvated the taser probes. '

After the taser cycled, Mr, Wolfer sald, “Don’t move or you'll get It agaln.” He then said to Mr,

“You done? You pull away from me agaln you'll get it agaln. Turn your head the other
way, turn your head.” Mr. Wolfer put his hand on the back of Mr. |JJJij head to turn his
head and Mr. [l moved his head to face away from Mr, Wolfer.

At approximately 5:22pm Mr, brother, [ v artived on scene, Mr,
did not recognlze and sald, “Who the fuck are you?” Mr, was
verbally argumentative throughout the rest of the video footage. Mr, speech was

repetltive and slurred, He repeatedly asked what he did wrong and asked why he got tased.,

At approximately 5:23pm, medics arrived on scene. At approximately 5:26pm medics checked
Mr, for Injuries and found he had an elevated heart rate and no Injuries, During this
time Mr, Wolfer was talking to a Deputy La Combe and explained the sltuation Including that

vr. [ was intoxicated.

At approximately 5:30pm, Mr. Woifer talked to one of the Spirit Mountain’s security personnel
and told him that he tased Mr. [ because Mr. [ savared up on him,

At approximately 5:34pm, Mr. Wolfer helped M. B st-1d and then he double locked
the handeuffs. At approximately 5:35pm, Mr. Wolfer and Mr. [JJij walked to Mr. Wolfer’s
patrol vehicle and Mr, - was placed in the backseat.

At approximately 5:37pm, Mr, Wolfer transported Mr. [Jij to the Polk County Jall, At
approximately 5:39pm, Mr, Wolfer called Seargeant McAllister via telephone and toid him the
following: :

“Hey just thought I'd let you know uh | tased | NN I So c2''ing you for the use of
force. It was right when LT went uh end of watch so he couldn't back me up. So he was
already gone. So... uh...he (| was trespassed and uh aiso had a felony warrant,
wouldn’t stop when | told to his mom was getting In the middle and then he squared up on me
and so | had to tase him, And then | actually hit him a second time because he was resisting
when | put the,..when | was trying to get the cuffs on by myself so.”

Mr., Wolfer continued telling Sergeant McAllister that Mr. [JJij was medically cleared on
scene and that he was on him way to Polk County Jall. During transport there was a banging
sound and Mr. Wolfer told McAllister that Mr, was banging his head agalnst the car.
Mr. Wolfer ended his phone call with McAllister and then Mr, began yelling in the
backseat asking what he did. Mr, Wolfer told Mr, he was trespassing, Mr. F
continued yelllng for a few minutes including making threats that Mr. Wolfer may end up

Exhibit A4
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getting killed and then he was sllent for a while.

At approximately 5:48pm, Mr, Wolfer radioed to dispatch to fet the Jail know to have muitiple
deputies ready to help because Mr, - was making threats to harm police, At
approximately 5:54pm, there was a banging sound and Mr. Wolfer told Mr, to stop.
vr. I 2cain asked where he was going. M. [ began veling agaln and was
argumentative, Mr, Wolfer inltlally talked with him and then ignored Mr. - velling,

At approximately 6:03pm, Mr. Wolfer arrived at Polk County Jail, Mr. [JJjj refused to give
a breath sample to jail staff to show level of intoxication. Mr. Wolfer transported M. _
to Salem Health West Valley Emergency room where he was medically cleared; report 1s
attached.

At approximately 6:40pm, Mr, Wolfer returned to the jall and lodged Mr. [JJjjjjij on for the
followlng charges (according to the Probable Cause Affidavit}:

1. “ORS 162.245 Crimlnal Trespass Il - for being at Spirit Mountain Casino after
previously being arrested from criminal trespass at that location and being told he was
permanently trespassed from the location.”

2, “ORS 162,247 Interfering with a Police Officer, when Mr. - refused to stop and
get on the ground when i [Wolfer] gave him several loud verbal commands to stop
walking and lay down on the ground.”

3, “ORS 162.315 Reslsting Arrest: for attempting to pull away from me [Wolfer] after |
told him he was under arrest.”

4, ORS166.,025 Disorderly Conduct in the second degree: For yeliing loudly In the parking
lot, causing multiple patrons to stop and stare, as well as belng verbally confrontational
with caslno security.”

5, “Yamhlll Court Felony Warrant 17CR53185.”

| reviewed the Probable Cause Affidavit and the Arrest Report for the Polk County Jall, dated
August 13, 2017, | found the following actlions listed In the report were hot seen in the body
camera footage (these were addressed during the Interview with Mr. Wolfet):

e Mr, - yelling at Mr. Wolfer when confronted in the parking lot at Splrit
Mountain Casino.

*  Mr, - walking away during the confrontation with Mr, Wolfer.

o Mr, turning towards Mr, Wolfer and taking an aggressive stance while velling -
and "squaring up” his body,

e After flrst tase, Mr. - rolling away from Mr. Wolfer and continuing this behavlor
untll the taser was actlvated for a second cycle,

| reviewed the Incldent Report written by Mr, Wolfer on 8/14/17, Mr. Wolfer addressed some
of the above discrepancies by writing, “l later revlewed my body camera footage and observed
that directly before | activated by Taser, |JJ N look 2 step backward with his hands up. | did
not notice thls during the incldent due to the speed at which events were unfolding and due to
the fact that Ms. ﬁ was approaching me and | belleved | was about to be assaulted and

Exhibit A4
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would have to fight both Ms. || nc [ »'thout a cover unit.”

| reviewed the incident Supplement Report written by Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
Tokata Tehama. In the report he wrote that on 8/13/17 at approximately 2015 hours he went
to Spirit Mountain Casino and retrieved the Anti-Felon Identificalton Tags (AFID Tags) from the
Taser deployment and placed them into evidence for Mr. Wolfer,

| reviewed the Inter-Office Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation
written by Lieutenant Tim Hernandez. According to this memorandum Lieutenant Hernandez
reviewed the body camera footage from Mr, Wolfer dated 8/13/17 and concluded the
following:

¢ The Taser application that he withessed on the body camera footage violates
Confederated Tribes Grand Ronde (CTGR) policy 304,5.1 Application of Taser. This
pollcy states that the Taser device may be used when such application Is reasonably
necessaty to control a person that is violent or physically resisting or the subject has
demonstrated by words or action, an intentlon to be violent or to physically resist, and
reasonably appears to present the potentlal to harm to others.

According to the Inter-Cffice Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation
on 8/14/17 at approximately 10:24am, Lieutenant Hernandez met with Mr. Wolfer and placed
him on pald administrative leave. On 8/15/17, Lleutenant Hernandez made phone contact
with the City of Dallas Pollce Chief Tom Simpson and requested a use of force review. On
8/16/17 Dallas Police Lisutenant Mott completed a use of force report.

| revlewed the Dallas Police Department Incident Review. [n the incident review Lieutenant
Mott wrote that Mr. Wolfer violated several sections of the Conducted Energy Device Polley
(Taser Polley):

¢ 304.5.1Application of Taser (already addressed above).

¢ 304.5.2 (d) by using a Taser on a handcuffed person who could otherwise be restrained
without meeting threshold of Increased risk to himself, the suspect or others.

¢ 304.,5.2{f) by tasing an Indlviduai who was standing on an asphalt parking lot.

¢ 304.5.5 "“This policy requlred Mr, Wolfer notlify a supervisor of the Taser device
discharge. It is an Impliclt component of advising the supervisor to be honest in the
recounting of the event.

| reviewed the Inter-Office Memorandum Investigation Report written by Sergeant Rod
McAliister. In this report Sergeant McAllister revlewed the body camera and reports written by
Mr. Wolfer and recommended Mr, Wolfer's employment be terminated due to the following
policy violatlons:

e Policy 319 Standards of Conduct; 319.5.8 Performance({a){b){c) deals with false
statements, falsifying documents and failing to report false statements, etc.

e Polley 319 Standards of Conduct; 319.5.9 Conduct {b)(c){h) deals with unreasonable
force, exceeding lawful authority and criminal dishonest or disgraceful conduct.

| interviewed the following people in this case:

Exhibit A4
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Chief Jake McKnight — Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez -~ Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McCallister — Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

. - —mother of --

Robin Norwest — Security guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

Len Maimqulst — Securlty guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

Mickey Wood — Securlty guard at Splrit Mountain Casino

Kaitlyn Scott — Security guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

James Wolfer ~ Suspect and former police offlcer at Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department '

LN REWBVNR

The four security guards | interviewed regarding this case belleve Mr, Wolfer acted
appropriately and professionally and used the appropriate level of force to control the
situation, They all told me M, - was trespassing at Spirit Mountain Caslno and he had a
warrant for Assault il They also told me Mr, [JJj was intoxicated, confrontational,
belligerent and they belleved him to be a violent and dangerous individual. See the interview
reports, the audlo recordings and the transcripts for Robin Norwest, Len Maimqulst, Mickey
Wood and Kaltlyn Scott for more detalls.

All of those Interviewed, who saw Mr. [ inside the Spirit Mountain Casino on August 13, |
2017 told me he was intoxicated and confrontatlonal. When | Interviewed Mr,

mom, she admltted her son was Intoxicated and acting irrationally, However, she belleved Mr,
Wolfer used excessive force when he tased Mr. |||

Ms. [ to'd me Spirit Mountaln Casino sent a trespass notice to Mr. [ after this
Incldent. She sent me a picture of the certifled envelope, dated 8/22/17 and the Notice of
Trespass, The letter states ||| NI 's indefinitely excluded from the Spirit Mountain
Caslno; signed by Securlty Manager Mickey Wood and dated 8/19/17.

| asked Ms. [ for contact information for Mr. [} She told me he was living In the
Portland area with his gitifrlend. She gave me the cel! phone number to his girtfriend, [

- | gave Ms. - my contact information and she told me she would try to get Mr,

to cali me. See the interview report, audlo recording and transcript from the
interview with Ms. [ for more information.

| made several attempts to reach W | did get ahold of [} [ on 1/25/18 and

told her { needed to talk with Mr. and | explained the investigation to her, fgave her
my contact information, | stopped attempting to make contact in the beginning of February. | i
have not heard hack from Mr. [ 2 of the day of this report.

On January 8, I met with Chlef Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and Sergeant McAllister
from Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department, Collectively they provided me with the followlng
documents:

e Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Policy

¢ Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Use of Force Policy

Exhibit Ad
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Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Personnel Complaint Policy

public Records Request from [} [l seekine reports and video from the
Incident that occurred on 8/13/17,

Taser Certification and Test for James Woifer

Taser instructor Certification for Rod McAllister

+ Taser download for James Wolfer

From my Interviews with Chief McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez, Sergeant McAllister and Mr.
Wolfer, | found Mr. Wolfer was never Interviewed regarding this Incident, Mr, Wolfer was
placed on paid administrative {eave on 8/14/17, Mr, Wolfer had a meeting with Lieutenant
Hernandez on 8/18/17 and he was told they were recommending termination due to violating
the Standards of Conduct and Taser policies, Mr, Wolfer wrote a letter of rasignation that day;
attached to this report,

| additionally found from my interviews with Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and
Sergeant McAllister that they unanimously belleve that Mr. Wolfer used excesslve force that
rose to the level of a criminal assault, However the Investigation report completed by Sergeant
Rod McAllister did not address excessive force, See the interview reports with Chief Jake
McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and Sergeant McAllister and the Investigation Report
completed by Sergeant McAlllster for more information.

On March 2, | Interviewed former Police Officer James Wolfer regarding the events that
occurred on August 13, 2017, Mr. Wolfer went into detail describing his Interaction with Mr,

Mr, Wolfer told me he was by himself. He teld me while he was responding to the
scene, his supervisor warned him that Mr, [JJJJij vsvally has his brother with him and then
his supervisor went off duty. He told me his back up from Polk County was at least ten minutes
away. He told me from his experience, most security officers won't get involved in physlcal
confrontations. He told me he was aware that Mr. [l was violent, uncooperative, and
aggressive prior to his arrlvai on scene,

Once on scene, the sltuatlon became more serious because he was faced with My,
and an unknown female who was Interfering with him making an arrest. He stated Mr.

was larger than him In size and was not cooperative. He told me he also helieved Mr.,

brother was somewhere In the area. After being cuffed, Mr. began

resisting again and Mr. Wolfer belleved the unknown woman would make an effort to assault
him In an effort to free Mr. [l The unknown woman was later identifled as
mother. Mr, Wolfer said he used hls Taser to control the situation and stop Mr, from
resisting further, Looking at the totality of the clrcumstances, Mr. Wolfer told me he used the
force he felt necessary in order to make an arrest.

Mr, Wolfer was able to articulate himself well and he addressed the differences seen on the
video compared to his reports, He talked about having tunnel vision and how the camera did
not pick up what he was feellng and seelng. Mr, Wolfer also explained that he was scared
during this Incident and Lieutenant Hernandez toid me during his Interview that Mr, Wolfer did
not do well with hostlle contacts,

Exhibit Ad
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In additlon, from 2011 through 2017, My, Wolfer only attended one, one hour defensive tactics
tralning class. He Woifer did not meet the malntenance standards set by DPSST for annual
required training for use of force. DPSST requires 8 hours every year for use of force or
firearms, From June 2016 to August 2017, Mr, Woifer attended 6 hours of training, five of them
for firearms and one hour for defensive training; Counter Assault,

See the Interview report, audlo recording and transcript from the interview with Mr. Wolfer for
more Informatlon,

The victim in this case, || | | }EN S 25 not cooperative and did not give a statement
during this investigation,

DISPOSITION:
Refer to the Marlon County District Attorney’s Office for consideration,

Supplemental;

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time; 03/26/2018 13:52
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/26/2018 13:52
Narrative:

Case #1SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:

Marlon County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:

witness Interview ~ [} G

SUSPECT:

Wolfer, James

oos: I

E TION ED;

vle]-}

—Vlctim

Gir"rh

Phone: _

Securlty Manager Mickey Wood
Spirlt Mountain Casino
EVIDENCE:

cHB-£2 ~ Interview with [}

ATTACHED:!
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

Trespass Notice from Spirlt Mounlain Casino

Exhibit A4
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Cerlified Letter Envelope that housed Trespass Notice

ACTION TAKEN:
On January 12, 2018 at approximately 10:23am ! interviewed ||} [ V2 televhone. i told ms. | v
conversation was being recorded and | asked her to tell me what she witnessed on August 13, 2017 concerning her son,

s, [ toid me that on August 12, 2017 she and her son were headed back home from a Pow-Waw In Slletz. She told
me they stopped at Splrlt Mountain Casino to eat at the buffet, She told me when she went to pay for the buffet she resllzed
she needed her tribal Identiflication in order to get a discount, She told me she went back to her car and grabbed her ID and
when she got back her son was gone,

Ms.- told me staff told her- was using the bathroom. She told me she walted for a fong time and then
knocked on the men’s bathroom door and he wasn't In there, She told me she want looking for him, She told me at flrst she
coutdn’t find him and she ended up ordering food in the dell. She told me she flnally found him In the lounge sitting at a banch
seat and there were two security guards at each exlt. She told me the securlty guards were staring at- She told me
she walked up to her son and told him they were leaving.

Ms. [ to'd me [ scemed drunk and she thought how could he be drunk when they had only been at the casino
for around twanty to twenty five minutes. She told me she asked the bartender If she gave him shots, She told ma the
bartender said she only gave him bread and water, She told me she locked arms with her son at the elbow and sald, “Let's go.”

Ms. o tinued teliing me- was baing difficult and he didn’t want to leave. She toid him she ordared food

from the dell and they needed to go plck It up and leave, She told me the securlty guards followed them when they left. She
told me they exlted the lounge through the high stakes gaming area. She told me- grabbed a chalr that was sltting at
one of the stot machines and knocked it over, She told me she scolded him and told him he was golng to make things worse,

Ms,- told me they went ta the dell and got thelr food and the securlty guards were still followlng them from a distance
and watchlng them, She told me the securlty guards did not taik with her.

| asked Vs, [ f she taiked with [ about why security guards were following them and she told me
seemed drunk and was sfurrlng his words se she dldn’t fee! Ilke she couid ask him. She told me she lust wanted to get out of
there.

Ms. [ toid me while they were In the parking lot walking towards her car Officer Wolfer came racing towards them
with his taser drawn. Below Is an excerpt from the Interview with Ms. [ (page 2, fines 1-41),

-- Um, well, | was trylng to get my son to leave tha casino with me, ub, ‘cause we ordered food to go and It
was ready, and sa we got our food from the dell and we were walking out the, um, entrance near,
um, the, uh, Legends **** and, uh, we went out that way and were probably 30 or 40 feet from
my car when, um, we heard Offlcer Wolfer, | dldn't know who he was at the time, but, uh, come
running up behind us with his taser drawn, velling at us stop or {'m gonna tase you, and took my
son and | both ~ we were, | do, we were the only people | saw around the parking lot ‘cause |
looked around ltke Is he taiking to us?

Detactive Hegney-Bach, Mm hmm,

[ ] ] And, and, uh, turned around and looked at hlm and we both stopped and,. uh, | wanna say we threw
our hands up and sald what, what did we do, we didn’t do anything,

Detective Hegney-Bach: Yeah,

[ [ ] And, uh, and he told me, he threatened me saying, um, because my son was walking In front of ms, so
: when we turned around to face Officer Wolfer that made me In between Officer Wolfer and my
son, and, and he sald (f you don't move, If you don't get out of the way I'm gonna tase you and |
sald what, | didn't do anything, and, and | kept saylng we didn't do anythlng, What, what do you
want and, and my son stepped out from behind me and, and he Just tased him.

Detective Hegney-Bach: Mm himm, okay,
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] And, um, and he Just stiffened up and fell over and, um, it really - that was traumatizing to see your
son get tased like that 'cause, I mean It's the helpless situatlon, | mean he — .

Detectlve Hegney-Bach: Yeah,

.- ~fell aver and § told him Ilke right away like that was totally uncalled for, that was unnecessary, what's
thls all about?

Detectlve Hegney-Bach: Yeah,

] And, um, he Just started going over to my son and, and puttlng handeuffs on him and as he was laying
there still stiff and { look at the security officers around there who apparently had gone and got,
called the tribal police offlcer, uh, to come and arrest hlm and he sald there's a warrant for hls
arrest, 1sald out of where and he said that doesn't concernyou, and, um, and | pulled out my
phone to, um, video recard It, but | didn't have enough memory on imy phone to video record
anything,

s, [l to'd me one of the securlty guards asked Offlcar Wolfer If he wanted him to take her (Ms. [JJJJij cown. she
told me Officer Wolfer sald it’s okay she can take plctures and record video,

Ms. I oc me she called her other son ||} I who was working In the casino and he came out to the scene,
She told me she felt like she was being buliled by the offlcer and the securlty guards, but once [JJJj showed up everyone
calmed down. She told me Offlcer Wolfer was belng rough on her son and had his knee In the back of his head like was trying
to grind his face Into the asphalt. She told me when [JJJJj showed up Officer Wolfer loosened up and let up on his knee. Ms,
I oid me [ convinced her to leava the scene and she went home to Klamath Falls,

s, [ to'c me she saw I = ound a week later at the Polk County Jail and she told me she did not see any
abvlous Injury on - She told me she saw a little discoforation, llke old brulses faded from the {eft slde of his face
around his forehead and cheek. She thought the mark was probably where [ f2!! and hit the concrete. she told me
I - 's0 complained to her that he was sore where the taser probes hit him.

| asked Ms, if she knew how { could get ahold of [ NI she toid me he llves in the Portland area with hls
glrifriend, She told me she doesn’t know exactly where they are living but she gave me Ms. [ phone
number,

Ms, told me Splrlt Mountaln sent a delayed trespass notice to [Jij she told me she had the notice and wouid

send It to ma, 1 asked her if knew he was trespassed from the casino. She told me she thought [Jij was aware

bacause she talked with and told her they went In June 2017 and they told him to leave and that he was golng to be
told her

trespassed, She teld me was druinik at the time,

sent me a plcture of the certlfied envelope, dated 8/22/17 and the Notice of
Is indefinitely excluded from the Spirlt Mountaln Casiro; signed by Security

This concluded our [nterview, Ms.
Trespass, The letter states
Manager Mickey Wood and dated 8/19/17.

J/End Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time:  03/26/2018 14:26
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time: 03/26/2018 14:26
Narrative:

Case §SP18C01897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT?
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Witnhess Intervlew — Robln Norwest

SUSPECT:

Wolfer, James

oos: I

MENTIONED:
Rohln Norwest
Security Offleer at Spirit Mountaln Castno

«Victim
DOB:

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detectlve Ted Molsan
Oregon State Pollce

EVIDENCE:

CHB-E3 — Interview with Robin Narwest
ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 30, 2018 Detective Ted Molsan and | went to Spirlt Mountaln Caslno to conduct Interviews with security staff, At
approximately 3;11pm we Intervlewed Robin Norwest. | told Mr. Norwest our conversation was belng recorded and [ asked
him to tell me what he witnessed on August 13, 2017 concerning

Mr. Narwest told me on August 13, 2017 he was dispatched to handle an Intoxicated person. He told me he recognlzed

because he has deat with him before. He told me mr. [l was Intoxicated and he knaw this because
M, was rambling, the way he smelled, and his lack of focus, He told me Mr. - was happy one moment and sad
the hext.

e told me Mr,- was In the founge but the founge dld not serve him any alcahol, he showed up Intoxicated.

Mr. Norwest told me he asked Mr, to Jeave the premises. He told me he told Mr, he would not be served
anymore and he needed to leave because he was excluded from the casino. He told me Mr, got really mad and
started screaming at him; cussing and swearlng,

Mr. Norwest contlnued telling me when Mr. [ et the lounge he went through High Stakes area and knocked over
chalrs because he couldn’t walk well, he was stumbilng and hts mom had to hoid him up.

My audlo recorder ran out of batterles around this tlme, | restarted a recording at approximately 3:19pm.

Mr, Nerwest continued telllng me Mr. ] exited the bullding with his mother out of the valet entrance. He told me they
were In the green parking lot. He told me he saw Officer Wolfer walk up and he told Otficer Wolfer Mr. [ was n the red
shirt and polnted to his location, He told me he saw Officer Wolfer approach Mr. | I

Below is an excerpt from the Interview with Mr, Norwest (page 2, lines 30 - 36),

Robin Norwest: Well, the verbal commands he was giving him to step, he was lgnoring 'em, cusslng and swearing. He
was still cussing and swearlng at me. Hls mom kept trying to grab him and ***_on the ground,
He refused, kept dolng over and over, | don’t know how many tiimes he told them, you know,
%% Finally told him that he needed to get down or he wlil be tased, didn't seem to
care about that, and he got tased, went down, kept fighting with Welfer while he was down, gat
tased the second tlme, and then became pretty compliant, Got the cuffs on. Wolfer kind up
helped him up a little blt, sltting up.

Mr, Norwest told me he was standlng approximately flve feet away from Officer Walfer durlng the confrontation with Mr,
He told me Mr. [l mom kent trving to get Involved and they had to ask her multiple times to step away. He

told me Mr, ] mom was cussing and swearing at them. He totd me Mr, brother who works at the casino
came outslde and talked with his mothar and told her to go home. He told me Mr. mom flnally left around thls
time, '
Exhibit A4
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Mr, Norwest told me he thinks Mr. [ s dangerous, but Mr. i has never assaulted any of the casino staff and hos
only vérbally combative.

Mr. Norwest continued telling ma he thinks Officer Wolfer did the right thing. He told me he does not see any Issues with how
Offlcer Weifer handled the situation,

This concluded our Intervlew,

{/Enc Report//

Supplemental;

Author: #149678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/26/2018 14:28
Entered by: #40678 HEGNEY.-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/26/2018 14:29

Narrative:

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:

Marian County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:

Witness Interview — Len Malmquist

SUSPECT:

Wolfer, James

DoB:

MENTIONED:

Len Malmgulst

Security Offlcer at Spirit Mountain Caslno

Robln Norwest

Securlty Officer at Spirit Mountain Casino

Mickey Wood

Securlty Supervisor at Spirit Mountaln Caslho

Kaltlyn Scott

Securlty Offlcer at Splrlt Mountaln Caslno
= Vletlm

£oB,

MENTIONED POLICE:

Detectlve Ted Molsan

Oregon State Pollce

EVIDENCE;

CHB-E4 — Intervlew with Len Malmquist
ATTACHED;

Oregon Siate Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN; )
On January 30, 2018 Detective Ted Molsan and | went to Splilt Mountain Casino to conduct interviews with securlty staff. At

approximately 3:36pm we Interviewed Len Malmquist, | told Mr, Malmaquilst our conversation was belng recorded and | asked
him to tell me what he witnessed on August 13, 2017 concernlng ||| N N

Mr, Malmqulst told me he was an acting supervisor on August 13, 2017 and the securlty staff got a call from survelltance saying
that | IEEEEN B =~ <xc'uded person was in Summit View Lounge, He told me Mr. was trespassed due to hls
violent tendencles and outbursts, He told me they Immediately calted for law enforcement, He told me he, Robln Norwest,
Supervisor Mickey Wood and Kaltlyn Scott were near a door that goes hetween the Summit View Lounge and the high stakes
area,

Mr, Malmqulst teld me the Summit View Lounge manager was a woman nared Kaylee and Kaylee asked that Mr. [ i be
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removed from the [ounge because he was getting very loud anhd causing a scene, He told me Mr, appeared
Intoxlcated, he had slurred speach and an unsteady gait. He told me he and the other security staft were keeping an eye on
wr. I but d1d not contact him at that time.

Mr. Malmqulst told me Mr.-mother arrived at the lounge and she was trylng to get Mr, to leave, tugging on
him and saying “come on, let's go, let’s go.” He told me they went out the door that connects the lounge to the high stakes
area and Mr, h threw a couple of chalrs out of his way and continued to make a scene, He told me he and securlty were
following from a distanca, He told me Mr. [ and his mom went to the dell. He toid me whlle they were at the dell he
heard survelllance come across the radlo and say that a tribal police officer was on the property, He told me he broke away to
talk with the police offlcer. .

Mr. Malmquist told me he went outside and talked with Officer Wolfer, He told me he told Cfflcer Wolfer that Mr.-
was heading towards the valet entrance to exit the casino. He told me Offlcer Wolfer drove to the valet entrance.

Mr. Malmquist told me he walked around the outslde of the budlding to the valet entrance. He told me he could hear on the

radio that Mr, JJJJ went from the valet entrance through the green lot. He told me as he approached the area where

Officer Wolfer was, he saw Mr. [ on the ground face down. Officer Wolfer was trying to handeuff vr. [ 2nd Mr.
was very combatlve and not following directions,

Mr, Malmqulst continued telling me Mr. mother was trylhg to Interfere with the arrest. He told me Mickey Wood
was trying to keep her out of Officer Wolfer's way. He told me he was standing around ten feet away durlng the confrontation
between Offlcer Wolfer and Mr. | :

Mr. Malmquist told me there were a few casino guests In the parking lot and he Immediately tasked himself to crowd control.
He told me ha had his back to the confrontation and he glanced back to make sure things were going ok when he heard

yelllng, He told me he remembered Offlcer Wolfer yelling at Mr. to qult fighting, He told me thls happened when
Offtcer Wolfer was trying to handeutf vr. [, voie Mr. was lylng face down on the ground.

Below Is an excerpt from the transcript from the Interview with Mr. Maimqulst {page 9 lines 16-18).

Len Malmaqulst: Uh, when | approached him, he had tased him once. Um, got him on the ground, Was trylng to
handcuff him. And, then | heard him quit fighting me, quit fighting me, you keep fighting me, I'm
gonna tase you agaln. And, | dld hear the second tase.

Mr. Malmguist continued telling me that durlng the second tase, Officer Wolfer had ene wrlst handeuffed and was trying to get
ahold of M, other wrlst, He told me Officer Wolfer was also yelllng at Mr, *’s mother to get out of the area.
He told me the following people witnessed the Incldant besldes himself: Kaitiyn Scott, Mickey Wood, Robin Norwest, Mary
Willlams and Tyler White,

mr, Malmauist told me Mr. [ continued to try and fight after Officer Wolfer put him in handcuffs. He told me Mr.
was “lrying to do something. Anything.”

I asked Mr, Malmauist i he had any concerns ahout what happened between Offlcer Welfer and Mr.“ He told me ha
spent fifteen years In the milltary and four of those years as a military police offlcer. Below Is an excerpt irom the Interview
with Mr. Malmaulst regarding some of his tralning and experience and his oplnion regarding the Interactlon between Officer
Wolfer and Mr. (page 14 lines 22 - 55), '

Len Malmquist: - | also spent § years as a, um, antlterrorlst force protection Instructlon,
Detectlve Molsan: Okay.

Len Malmgquist, So, | taught self-defense ~

Detectlve Mo!san: Uh huk,

Len Malmquist: -« j taught non-tethal weapons.

Deteactive Molsan: Uh huh,

Lan Malmquist. Nothing would have tripped any triggers with me.

Detective Molsan; Huh, Okay.
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Len Malmaquist: He's a single offlcer. He didn't have a cover offlcer,
Detective Molsun; Right.
Len Malmqulst: I s known to sometimes be violent,

Detective Hegney-Bach: When you say he's been known to be violent, has, has he ever been physically violent with you or any
of your staff or anyone you know of?

Len Malmqulst, Not hands on.,

Detective Heghey-Bach: Okay,

Len Malmqulst: Uh, he's thrown chairs around and kicked stuff and -

Detectlve Hegney-Bach: Okay,

Len Malmquist: - um, and of course, ya know, v«:e've sean his, ya know, on arrest.org.

mr. Malmqulst continued teiling me Mr. [ erabbed Officer Wolfer a coupie times before he was handcuffed. He also
told me that Mr. i savared off towards him nslde the casino. He told me M. [JJij 's around 5447, fit and In his
mld to late 20's,

This concluded our Intervlew. | ended the recording at 3:59pm,

//€nd Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time:  03/268/2018 14:51
Entered hy: #46678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered fime:  03/26/2018 14:51
Narrative:

Case fiSP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:

Marlon County Distrlct Attorney’s Offlce
SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:

Witness Interview — Mlckey Wood
SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James
DoB;
MENTIONED:

Securlty Supervisor Mickey Wood
Splrit Mountain Casino

Victim

DOB:

EVIDENCE;

CHB-E6 ~ Intervlew with Mickey Wood
ATTACHED:

Oregon Stale Pollce Propery Repert Form 656

ACTION TAKEN:
On January 30, 2018 at approximately 3:33pm, | Interviewed Mickey Wood via telephone, Mickey Wood {s a securlty
supervisor at Splrlt Mountain Casino, Mr, Wood was working On August 13, 2017 and withessed the events that took place

between Officer James Wolfer and || ] I | 2sked him to tell me about the events he withessed,
Below Is an excerpt from the transcript from the interview with Mr, Wood (page 3 fines 23 — 55, page 4 lines 1-2),
Mickey Wood! Okay, uh, 1 got  call that, ub, | was in the, uh, Summit View lounge. Uh, I belleved him to be
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Indefinitely excluded from the casino. | contacted dispatch and confirmed that he was still currently excluded from the casino.
Dispatch advised me, uh, uh, okay, dispatch advised me the last time we dealt with [ N «b,
taw enforcement came out, and he was combatlve, uh, and they actualiy took him down, Uh, so,
with that | requestad law enforcement and went into the, uh, to the area where he was, Uh,
once | saw him, and we knew who he was, uh, he was belng, um, disruptive and hothering guests,
and the, um, supervisor thera, Kayley Compton, uh, had requested that he be removed from that
venue, because of the [ssues he was causing. Uh, as he left that area, he want Inio the high limits
area, and, uh, one of the reports sald he knccked over a chalr, When | got there, uh, they were
Just plcking up the chair, so 1 actually didn't witness him knock It over, Just the plcking up of it
Uh, and, um, so anyhow, he was argumentative at the time. Him and the female that he was
with, who turned out to be hls mother, uh, went out of high limlts after balng told they were
excluded and had to leave. They went Into, uh, a ittle area. it's called, uh, a dell where you get
sandwlches, The food and beverage supervisor, Tyler White, had showed up, because we were
golng to, uh, conflrm that he had been cut off from alcohol, and typlcally we try to get other
supervisors from food and beverage Involved. Uh, so, |, uh, 1 had told Tyler that we were, if they
were gonna sit there and Just not cause any trouble, we were Just gonna walt tiif law enforcement
got there, so that we wouldn't stir him up or agitate or make the situation any werse, Uh, then
they got up and left, uh, the mother and him, and they headed out toward the green lot. Uh,
Officer Wolfer arrlved and asked me where he was, and 1 polnted to F Uh, he
was the male in the red shirt. Uh, Offlcer, uh, Wolifer went out there and immediately, uk,
started teiling him to get on the ground, uh, which he would not, uh, he wouldn't, he just
wouldn't do, and the mother repeatediy tried to step between, uh, Officer Wolfer and_
uh, trying to Interfere with the arrest. I'm not sure how many times, but it was multiple times
that, ub, uh, Offlcer Wolfer told him to get on the ground, uh, and he just, he wouid not comply.
so, eventually, uh, Offlcer Wolfer was able to get, uh, between, uh, [JJJJJij without the mother
Involved, and he tased, tased him and tock him down. Uh, after they got him down, he continued
and continued to struggle, The mother kept yelling and interfering. Um, | belleve he was tased
agaln to try and malntain control. Then, he basically was Just left on the ground untll cover
offlcers could come. Uh, Wolifer called medles, uh, right after he got hlm down and somewhat
secured, and they came and, uh, medics removed the tongs, and he was placed in the patrol car
and taken to jali.

} asked Mr. Wood to teil me about the prior Incidents where [JJj wes combative. He told me has never had any
physical altercations with securlty but was verbally combative, He told me Is unreasonable when he gets Intoxicated.
He told me on one occasion, when talking with Spirit Mountain Security, sald, “elther you kil me or I wll kilf you,” He
told me the report sald they had to take him to the ground and take him Into custody.

Mr. Wood contihued telling me that cons!derlng- had a warrant for assault, a prlor track record of belng verbally
combatlve to securlty and police and - mother interfering he belleved Offlcer Wolfer responded appropriately to the
situation. He toid me he believed if Officer Wolfer had not taken control of the sltuation it would have escalated.

This concluded my Interview with Mr, Wood,

//End Report//

Supplemental;
Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time:  03/27/2018 12:38
Entered by:  #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/27/2018 12:36

Narrative:

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County District Attorney’s Offlce

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Witness Interview — Kaitlyn Scott
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SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

pos: I

MENTIONED:
Kaltlyn Scott
Security Officer at Spirit Mountain Casino

Mickey Wood
Securlty Supervisor at Spirtt Mountain Casino

B B - ictim
ooe: I

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Ted Moisan
Oregon State Police

EVIDENCE:
CHB-ES5 ~ Interview with Kaitlyn Scott

ATTACHED:!
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 30, 2018 Detective Ted Moisan and | went to Splrit Mountain Casino to conduct
Interviews with securlty staff. At approximately 4:08pm we Interviewed Kaltlyn Scott, | told
Ms, Scott our conversation was being recorded and | asked her to tell me what she witnessed

on August 13, 2017 concerning ||| | G TN

Ms. Scott told me oh August 13, 2017 around Spm - was “red |ighted,” meaning he was
cut off from ajcohol. She told me [Jlj was belng aggressive with walt staff and yeliing.
She told me- was there with his mom. She told me - mom was trylng to calm
him down, but he was “definitely loud, definitely belligerent,” She told me she waited outside
of the founge In the high {imits area while other security officers were In the lounge.

Ms. Scott told me - knocked over chalrs and stormed outside, She told me -
and his mom “seemed to be in quite a rush after they found out that securlty had been
notlfled.” She told me they (the securlty guards) “were hanging back qulte a bit” because law
enforcement was on their way. She told me she was with Security Supervisor Mickey Wood
near the valet entrance. She told me shortly after this Officer Wolfer arrived at their location.

Below is an excerpt from the interview with Ms, Scott {page 6 lines 3-11), regarding what she
remembered about Offlcer Wolfer's Initial contact with [l

Kaitlyn Scott: Um, he could've been Ih a hurry because he thought he might have
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gotten in his vehicle. I'm not sure what his thought process was, it Just striked me as odd, Um,
so he hit the first row of cars, had his hand on his taser but hadn't pulled
it vet, if | remember correctly, and then went down, made contact, uh,
verbal contact with [ and sald, you know, Officer Wolfer, Tribal
Pollce, um, like, please raise your hands, or you need to put your hands
up, or you need to stop walking. | believe he said to stop walking first,
and then, you know, | need to see your hands. Um, and Highpine
wanted no part of that, He was like I'm just gonna go home. Hls mom
got In the way of everything, Um, she got In Officer Wolfer's face,

Ms, Scott told me she hung back for crowd control. She told me while she was asking people in
the parking ot not to gawk she heard a “thud” behind her and when she turned around she

saw Ithe ground. She told me [Jij fe!! because Officer Wolfer tased him, She

told me tried to get up and Officer Wolfer gave him warnings like “you need to stay
where you are and he still tried to get up “so Officer Wolfer tased him again. She told me
when the second tase occurred Officer Wolfer was still standing up and approaching -

Ms, Scott told me she did not think that Ciflcer Wolfer used excesslve force during his

interaction with |||l

//End of report//

Supplemental:

Authory: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/27/2018 12:49
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI ' Entered time:  03/27/2018 12:49

Narrative:

Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney's Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview with James Wolfer

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

pos: I

MENTIONED:
Aaron Perez Selsky
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Attorney for James Wolfer

DOB:

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrientos
QOregon State Police

EVIDENCE;
CHB-E7 ~ Audlo Interview with James Wolfer

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On February 12, 2018 | contacted James Wolfer to set up an interview, He told me he needed
to contact his lawyer and told me he would call me back on Thursday February 15, On
February 15, | was contacted by Aaron Perez-Selsky who told me he was Mr, Woifer’s
attorney. We set up an interview for March 2, 2018 at 10:30am at the Salem Patrol Office,

On March 2, 2018 at approximately 10:42 am, | Interviewed James Wolfer, Aaron Perez-Selsky
and Detectlve Carlos Barrlentos were also present during the interview, | told Mr. Wolfer our
conhversatlon was being recorded. | explalned to Mr. Wolfer that | was Investigating an Incldent
Invelving him and [ I th=t occurred on August 13, 2017, 1told him | was
asslgned to investlgate whether excessive force was used during the arrest,

| asked Mr. Wolfer to tell me about his law enforcement experience, He told me the following:
*» He worked as a police officer for Warm Springs Police Department from October 2010 -

January 2012,

He attended Baslc Police Academy in January 2011,

He had a gap in law enforcement work from January 2012 — May 2016, During this
time he worked in banking and then for SAIF as a State Workers Comp investigator,

He worked as a police officer for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department May 2016 ~
August 2017, .

He went to Career Offlcer Development {COD) during hls employment at Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department due to the gap In law enforcement amployement,

L

| asked him questions about his duties and shift being worked on and around August 13, 2017,
He told me the following:

¢ His scheduled shift was Sunday through Wednesday 6a-6p. .

* His job was focused on community policing with a high number of contacts,

| asked Mr, Wolfer questions about his Taser training during his employment with Grand Ronde
Trikal Police Department, He told he did not remember how long the Initial Taser training
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lasted, but said It was “short,” He told me the training consisted of power point presentation
and short scenarios where he shot a tralntng cartridge, which does not shoot probes. He told
me this was the only training he had with his Taser.

| asked him how his relationship was with the people he worked with at Grand Ronde Tribal
Police Department. He told me he and Lieutenant Hernandez “kinda butted heads.” He told
me he got alohg well with everyone else.

| asked Mr. Wolfer to tell me about the events that occurred on August 13, 2017 at Grand
Ronde Casino. He told me the followling occurred leading up to seeing
* Around 5pm, he recelved a call from dispatch that |||l was actively
trespassing at Grand Ronde Casino,
« He asked for back up and was told a Polk County Deputy was In route but was a ways
out,
o Dispatch Informed him that [JJij bad a warrant for Assault II.
¢ [t, Hernandez told him vla radio to be careful because has a brother who is
usually with him. He got the impression that -ﬁ would help [N
fight,
e While In-route he called Grand Ronde Casino Security and they told him || was
Inside at a bar and they told him i was being “confrontational.”
e When he arrived at the casino, he activated his body camera and was told [JJJjij was
in the parking lot. :

¢ He felt that he could not walt for backup due to [Jj behavior and he Inltiated
contact.

Mr, Wolfer went into detail descrlbing his interaction with . Review transcript page 27
lines 17-56, page 28 lines 1-42 for more detalls. Mr. Wolfer told me he drove to the parking lot
where security officers told him [l was located; he got out of his vehicle and drew his
Taser. He sald, “If | saw him | was gonna have to arrest him 'cause he had a warrant and was
actlvely trespassing.”

Mr, Wolfer told me he was by himself. He told me from hls experlence most security officers
won't get Involved In physical confrontations. He told me when he saw [Jjjjj there was a
woman with him and he found out later It was mother, He told me pointed the
Taser at [ and velled at [ to got on the ground. He told me he kept yelling “Get
on the ground, get on the ground.” He teld me wouldn’t get on the ground and the
woman kept trying to get between them so he moved laterally, Mr. Wolfer said, “i percelved
her to be a threat, but not as big of a threat as him (||

Mr. Wolfei continued telling me- was walking away and then he thought he yelled stop

W stopped and turned and the woman rushed at him, He told me at the same time
made a sudden movement that he perceived as [JJj about to charge him or

squaring up to fight so he tased - He said, “l remember he did something very, very

quickly and so right at the same time she was rushing me, so then | tased him, and | got ready
to go hands on wlith her, but she stepped back, and | think | sald somethin' like stay back or
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you'll get tased too, and so she stepped back but she was yellin’ at me, so then | went over to
him, Security was there, but they weren't like grabbing her,”

Mr. Wolfer told me there were a lot of people In the parking lot and he remembers looking
around for this other brother that might be there, He told me he was on the ground with his
back exposed to everybody. He told me the woman was still yelling at him as he put handcuffs
on [l He sald, I wasn't able to pat him down yet, and | was on top of him but not fully,
because | was also still tryin' to be able to spring back up in case | got hit from behind from
wherever this other brother was gonna be, and, um, and then | felt him moving, which |
Interpreted as him tryin' to get back up, and | didn’t know If he had weapons or anything yet.”

Below s an excerpt from the transcript from the interview with My, Wolfer describing what led
to the second cycle of taser actlvatlon {page 28 lines 21-42).

James Wolfer: When | worked In Warm Springs, | have had people try to fight, Like | had
someone In handcuffs once like, like sho, run his shoulder Into me and knock me
over and like fight and then run, you know, so |, [ don't know what, what he's
tryin' to do, Just 'cause he was in handcuffs, I, | don't even think | had double
locked 'em yet, and | kept tellin' him to stop resisting, um, and | felt like when he
would turn and look at me, and t remember tellin’ him to look away, when he'd
turn and look at me, llke | felt like he was tryin' to get up off the ground 'cause |
would, | mean he, [ felt, | felt lIke he was bigger than me, so he was, llke it was
like lifting me up. At the same time the mom was velling at him or something,
and | remember telling her to shut up ‘cause | felt like she was also amping him
up and | just wanted the sltuation to, to calm down and resolve, and |, | warned
him, | told him he was under arrest, | told him why, and, and | don't remember
if this happened hefore or after the tase but, a second tase, but [ remember to,
giving him several warnings that if he didn't stop resisting | was gonna tase him
again, and he, | felt like he kept resisting. | kept feeling the movement and | felt
like he was gonna push me off of him, so | gave him a second tase, let It run
through the cycle, and then he, it stopped, and he stopped resisting, and so |
sald, "Are you done?" { think he sald yes or something or | got the impression he
was done, | detached It, holstered it, re ho, like was able to finish my pat down
and everything else, sat him up. Um at some point during that | remember the
female, | belleve she started takin' a step towards me, and also so did the
security supervisor, and | remember yelling like stay back, and | meant her, but |
remember the security supervisor's face thought | was talkin' to him, so then he
stepped back and kinda put his arm near the, the female.

Mr. Wolfer told me at some point after things started to calm down the woman disappeared,
He told me paramedics arrived on scene and he walted for a Polk County Deputy to arrive
before letting paramedics check on He told me he dldn’t want to risk any of the
paramedics belng attacked by He told me [l was “completely intoxicated” and
In hls experlence intoxlcated people often “want to fight and don’t make good decisions.” He
told me once a deputy arrived, paramedics checked - out and then he was able to put
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- in his patrol vehlcle,

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me he called Sergeant McAllister to notify him of the use of force.
He told me he drove - to the Jail and at the jail refused to provide a breath test
for the intoxyilzer. He told me he had to take to the hospital to get cleared due to hls
level of intoxication. He told me once was cleared he took him sback to the Jall, He
told me he wrote a probable cause affidavit to lodge [JJJJij In Jall and then cleared the call.

Mr, Wolfer continued telling me he went back to the patrol office and talked with Officer Dana
and watched the video footage for the first time. He told me he was “actually surprised to see
that W hadn’t squared up” with him. He told me he reallzed when he saw the video
that actually took a step back and raised his hands. He explained that he thought the
female was running at him and he had tunnel vision focused on this and when he saw
movement from [JJJl] he interpreted the movement as a threat and he tased [ij He
told me he felt the body camera saw more than he did, meaning a wider angle without tunnel
vision,

Mr. Wolfer then addressed the second taser cycle, He sald, “You couldn't see on the footage
what | felt which was, | felt like | was getting picked up from it, so, um, | remember being

- physlcally moved from it or feellng like | was, so, and then accurately, |, | didn't feel like the, |
felt like the camera for the flrst tase showed more than | saw and | felt like for the second, it
showed less than | saw because It was on the center of the chest and I'm on top of him.”"

Mr. Wolfer told me the next morning he returned to work to finish his report In regards to
B < told me when he finished the report Lieutenant Hernandez and a human
resources representative approached him, He told me Lieutenant Hernandez told him that he
reviewed the video footage with thelr tribal attorney and he (Hernandez) believed Wolfer
vlolated the Taser Policy. He told me Lleutenant Hernandez asked him a few brlef questions
about why he tased [ and then Lieutenant Hernandez told him he was being placed on
administrative leave. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez hadn’t even read his report when this
happened. He told me Sergeant McAllister calied him on Wednesday and told him to come to
the office on Friday.

Mr. Wolfer told me he came Into the office on Friday and he was told by Lieutenant Hernandez
that he violated the Taser Policy and they had a write up recommending termination, He told
me Lt. Hernandez told him he could appeal within five days. He told me he asked Lt.
Hernandez If he violated anything else and Hernandez said no. Lt. Hernandez told him they did
not review this for use-of-force violation or anything else, He told me Lt. Hernandez told him
Dallas Police Department conducted a review of the case and found the video didn’t match up
to what he was saying. He told me Lt, Hernandez said, “If you reslgn today, we're not gonna
review it for anything else. We don't, we're not saying you violated the use-of-force policy, just
the Taser policy.” He told me he resigned In lieu of terminatlon.

| asked Mr. Wolfer a serles of questions related to his thoughts and decisions when he gave
commands to [l and how he feit when [JJi] d1d not cooperate. Review the
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transcript from the interview with Mr. Wolfer page 37 lines 9-55 and page 38 lines 1-46.

| asked Mr, Wolfer to define passive resistance versus actlve resistance, He told me passive
resistance would be like refusing to listen to commands and active resistance Is like pulling
away or fightlng. | asked him if [ was passively resisting or actively resisting. He

sald, “My perception was that he was actively resisting, After watching the video later, | see
that, without knowing what his intentlon was, [t does appear he was passive resisting when he
ralsed his hands, |interpreted that as an act of resisting as he, as a pre assault”

Mr. Wolfer told me he did not complete any defenslve tactlcs training while working at Grand
Ronde Tribal Police Department. Below Is an excerpt of the transcript from the interview with
Mr. Wolfer (page 43 lines 41-56, page 44 |Ines 1-10)

Detective Hegney-Bach: Okay. Um, how did the actlons of the suspect during the
encounter make you feel?

James Wolfer; Scared, thought | was gonna be assaulted.

Detective Hegney-Bach: Okay,

James Wolfer: So—

Detective Hegney-Bach: What about, um, when he was on the ground and you had him In
handcuffs?

James Wolfer: Uh, ! think | -

Detective Hegney-Bach: Much of the same?

James Wolfer: Yeah, | was stili afraid he was gonna push me off of him, and | had,
at the time, stili belleved he had Just trled to assault me with this
other person that | didn't know who they were yet, um, so | was
afrald of that, you know, If | got knocked off balance, then she
might come run at me, and then now I'm on the ground, there's
two of 'em, and even though he's in handcuffs, you know, who
knows, or If he's got a weapon. |, | don't know vet, |, [don't
belleve {'d even done a pat-down yet ot finished it -

Detectlve Hegney-Bach;  Okay.

James Wolfer, - before | tased him again, um, so | was, | was stlll in the same
frame of mind. Uh, | thought if | don't control this now, um, this
may stlli, | may still get assaulted at any polint here, so -

At this time during the interview we took a break. When we re-convened | asked a few
clarlfying questions and | verified his contact Information, This concluded our interview,

//End Report//
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Supplemental:
Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time:  03/27/2018 14:38
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/27/2048 14:38
Narrative:
Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marton County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview — Chief Jake McKnight

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

pos: NN

MENTIONED:

Victim

Mother of Vietim

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detectlve Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Police

Chlef Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAlllster
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 - DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17.
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ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

Grand Ronde Trlbal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Policy
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Use of Force Policy

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Personnel Complalnt Policy

Public Records Request from ||| G

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 2, 2018, | contacted Chlef Jake McKnlght with Grande Ronde Tribal Police
Department via telephone and set up a meeting for January 8, | sent him a follow up emall
asking for the foliowing documents: '

1, Taser Policy

2, Use of Force Policy

3. Internal Memos and documents relating to Case #GRT17000673

4, Coples of Internal documents relating to disciplinary actlon for James Wolfer,

On January 8, 2018, Detective Carlos Barrientos and | went to Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department and Interviewed the following police officers; Chlef Jake McKnlght, Lieutenant Tim
Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAlllster,

At approximately 10:27 am, { intervlewed Chief Jake McKnlght, He provided me with copies of
Grand Ronde PD's Taser Polley, Use of Force Policy and Personnel Complaint Policy,

| asked him to tell me what he knew about the events that occurred on August 13, 2017. He
told me he was at the FB] Academy at that time, but was informed on August 14 around 7 am,
by Lieutenant Tim Hernandez of the avents that occurred on August 13, He told me Lieutenant
Hernandez called him and told him there was an Issue with James Wolfer, He told me
Lleutenant Hernandez told him Woifer tased |||} I =fter he 2pplied handcuffs,

Chlef MeKnlght told me [l was someone they have dealt with before, He told me

is not verbally compllant but hasn’t ever gotten physical with them, He told me
Offlcer Wolfer was more adrenalized than he should have been, He told me Officer Wolfer was
not clear in his commands, He told me there were Issues with the tasings but there were aiso
{ssues with the way he told the events to Sergeant McAllister. He told me Officer Wolfer was
Immediately placed on administrative leave.

Chief McKnight told Lieutenant Hernandez met with Wolfer and gave him the option to resign
after belng put on administrative leave and Officer Wolfer chose to resign, He told me Officer
Wolfer worked for Grand Rende Tribai Police Department for a little over a year, He told me
Offlcer Wolfer was not Interviewed regarding the events that occurred on August 13, 2017
because he resigned.

Chlef McKnight told me he that - - mother of- - filed a Public
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Records Request requesting coples of the pollce reports and the body camera footage
regarding the 8/13/17 interaction between Wolfer and [JJiij case #17-673.

This concluded our interview,

| reviewed the Conducted Energy Device Policy, Personnel Complaints Policy and Use of Force
Policy. I-found all of the policies to be fairly standard and are attached to this report,

//End Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 04/02/2018 14:22
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 14:22

Narrative:

Case #1SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney’s Offlce

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview with James Wolfer

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James
DoB:

MENTIONED:
Aaran Perez Selsky
Attorney for James Wolfer

Vietim
MENTIONED POLICE!

Detectlve Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Police

Officer Dana
Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E7 — Audio Intervlew with James Wolfer

ATTACHED;

Oregon State Police Propeity Repor Form 85

ACTICN TAKEN:

On February 12, 2018 | contacted James Wolfer to set up an interview, He told me he needed to contact his lawyer and told
me he would call me back on Thursday February 15. On February 15, | was contacted by Aaron Parez-Selsky who told me he
was Mr. Wolfer's attorney, Wa set up an Interview for March 2, 2018 at 10:30am at the Salem Patral Offlce.
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On March 2, 2018 at approximately 10:42 am, | interviewed James Wolfer. Aaron Perez-Selsky and Detective Carlos Barrientos
were ajso present durlng the interview, |told Mr, Wolfer our conversation was being recorded, |explained to Mr, Wolfer that
I was Investigating an Incldent Involving him and ||| I that occurred on August 13, 2017, 1told him 1 was assigned
to Investlgate whether excesslve force was used during the arrast,

I asked Mr, Wolfer to tell me about his law enforcement experlence, He told me the following:
. He worked as a police offlcer for Warm Springs Pollce Department from October 2010 - January 2012,
¢ He attended Baslc Police Academy In January 2011,
° He had a gap In law enforcemant work from January 2012 - May 2016 During this time he worked In banklng and
then for SAIF as a State Workers Comp lnvestigator,
He worked as a pollce offlcer for Grand Ronde Triba! Pofice Department May 2016 — August 2017,
*  He went to Career Offlcer Development (COD} durlng hls employment at Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department due
to the gap in law enforcement employment,

| asked him questions about his shift and dutles on and around August 13, 2017, He told me the followlng:
¢ His scheduled shift was Sunday through Wednesday 6a-6p.
¢ His job was focused on community pollcing with a high number of contacts,

| asked Mr. Wolfer questlons about his Taser tralning durlng his employment with Grand Ronde Trlbal Police Department, He
told he did not remember how long the Initial Taser training lasted, but sald it was “short,” He told me the training conslsted of
a power point presentation and short scenarlos where he shot a tralnlng cartridge, which does not shoot probes, He told me
this was the only tralning he had with hls Taser,

tasked him how his relationshlp was with the people he worked with at Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department. He told me he
and Lleutenant Hernandez “kinda butted heads.”” He told me he got along well with averyone else,

I asked Mr, Wolfer to tell me about the avents that occurred on August 13, 2017 at Grand Ronde Caslno. He told me the
following accurred leading up to seeing [
*  Around 5pm, he recelved a call from dispatch that |||l I 25 2ctiveiy trespassing at Grand Ronde Casino.
*  He asked for back up and was told a Polk County Deputy was in route but was a ways out,
*»  Dispatch Informed him that [Jij had 2 warrant for Assault it
.

Lt. Hernandez told him via radio to be careful because has @ brother who is usually with him. He got the
impression that [ brother would help fight,

While in-route he called Grand Ronde Caslno Security and they told him [JJJij was inside at a bar and they told
him [l was belng “confrontational.”

*  Whenhe arrlved at the caslno, he actlvated hls body camera and was told - was In the parking lot.

He feit that he could not walt for backup dua to [ behavior and he inltiated contact.

Mr. Wolfer went Into detall describing his Interaction with - {see transcript page 27 lines 17-56, page 28 |ines 1-42 for
morae detalls), Mr. Wolfer told me he drove to the parking lot and securlty officers told him whereﬂ was located; he got
out of hls vehicle and drew his Taser, He sald, “If 1 saw him | was gonna have to arrest hint 'cause he had a warrant and was
actively trespassing.”

Mr. Wolfer told me he was by himself, He told me from his experlence, most security officers won't get Invelved In physical

confrontatlons, He told me when he saw there was a woman with him and he found out later she was
mother. He told me he pointed the Taser at and yelled at to get on the ground, He told me he kept
yalllng "Get on the greund, get on the ground.” He told me wouldn’t get on the ground and the woman kept trylng to

gat between them so he moved laterally, Mr. Woller said, “I percelved her to be a threat, but not as big of a threat as him
"

Mr, Wolfer continued telling me that [JJJJij was walking away and he thought he yelled stop, He totd me [ storped
and turned and the woman rushed at hlm, He told me when she rushed at him made a suddeh movement that he
percelved as [ about to charge him or squaring up to fight so he tased He sald, ¥l remember he did something
very, very quickly and so rlght at the same time she was rushing me, so then [ tased hlm, and | got ready to go hands on with
her, but she stepped back, and | think [ sald somathin' like stay back or you'|l get tased too, and so she stepped hack but she
was yellin' at me, so then | went over to him, Securlty was there, but they weren't llke grabbing her.”

Mr. Wolfer told me there were a lot of people in the parking lot and he remembers looking around for this other brother that
might be there. He told me he was on the ground with his back exposed to everybody. He told me the woman was still yeliing
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at him as he put handeuffs on [ e said, 4 wasn't able to pat him {[Jij down vet, and i was on top of him but not
fully, because | was aiso still tryln‘ to be able to spring back up In case [ got hit from behind from wherever this other brother
was gonna be, and, um, and then ! felt him moving, which [ interpreted as him tryin' to get back up, and | didn't Xnow If he had
weapons or anything yet.”

Mr. Wolfer told me when he worked at Warm Springs someone In handeuffs tried to fight him. He toid me he had not double

{ocked handcuffs yat. He told me he kept telling to stop resisting and kept lcoking at him and he
felt like was trying to get up off the ground. He told me kept lifting him up off the ground and at the same
time the woman kept velling and It caused [ to am® up.

ivir. Wolfer continued telling me he wanted the situation to calm down and he warned to stop reslisting or he would
tase him agaln. He told me he feit ilke- continuad resisting so he gava him a second tase and then - stopped

resisting.

Mr. Wolfer told me at some point after things started to calm down the woman disappeared. He told me paramedics arrived
on scene ahd he wailted for a Polk County Deputy ta arrlve before letting paramedics check on He told me he didn't
want to rlsk any of the paramedics balng attacked by He told me - was “completely intoxicated” and In hls
experience Intoxicated people often “want to fight and don’t make good declslons.” He told me once a deputy arrived,
paramedics checked out and then he was able to put iy in h's patrol vehicle,

Mr, Wolfer continued talling me he called Sergeant McAllister to notify him of the use of force. He told me he dw
0 the
He

to the Jall and at the Jail refused to provide a breath test for the intoxylizer. He told me he had to take
hospital to get clearad due to his ievel of intoxication. He told me once was cleared he took him back to the jall;
told me he wrots a probable cause affidavit to lodge [JJij in J2l and then cleared the cali.

Mr. Wolfer continued telllng me he went back to the patrol offlce and tatked with Offlcer Dana and watched the video footage
for the first time, He told me he was “actually surprised to see that he [j hadn’t squared up” with him. He told me he
realized when he saw the video that [l actually took a step back and raised his hands., He explained that he thought the
female was running at him and he had tunnel vision focused on thls and when he saw movement from he interpreted
the movement as a threat and he tased [JJJl] He told me he felt the body camera saw more than he dld, meaning a wider
angle without tunnel visioh,

Mr. Wolfer then addressed the second taser cycle. He sald, “You couldn't see on the footage what | felt which was, [ felt like |
was getting picked up from It, so, um, § remember being physically moved from it or feeling llke | was, so, and then accurately,
1, 1 didn't feel like the, 1 felt like the camera for the first tase showed more than [ saw and | felt like for the sacond, 1t showed
less than | saw because it was on the center of the chest and I'm on top of him.”

Mr. Wolfer told me the next morning he returned to work to finlsh his report In regards to mm told me when he
finlshed the raport Lieutenant Hernandez and a human resources representative approached him. He told me Lieutenant
Hernandez told him that he reviewed the video footage with their trlbal attorney and he belleved Wolfer violated the Taser
Policy. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez asked him a few brief questlons about why he tased and then Lieutenant
Hernandez told him he was heing placed on adminlstrative leave, He told me Lieutenant Hernandez hadn’t even read his
report when this happened, He told me Sergeant McAllister called him on Wednesday and told hin to coma to thea office on
Friday.

Mr. Wolfer told me he canve Into the office on Frlday and he was told by Lleutenant Hernandez that he violated the Taser
Pollcy and they had a wrlte up recommending termination, He told me Lt. Hernandez told him he could appeal within flve
days. -He tald me he asked Lt, Hernandez If he vlolated anything else and Hernandez sald no. Lt Hernandez told him they did
not revlew thls for use-af-force violatlon or anything else. He told me Lt. Hernandez told him Dallas Pollce Department
conducted a review of the case and found the video didn’t match up to what he [Wolfer] was saying. He told me Lt.
Hernandez said, “If you reslgn today, we're not gonna review It for anything else. We don't, we're not saying you violated the
use-of-force policy, just the Taser polley.” He told me he resigned in lieu of termination,

| askad Mr, Wolfer a series of questlons related to his thoughts and decisions when he gave commands to” and how he
felt when did not tooperate {see transcrlpt from the Interview with Mr. Wolfer page 37 lines 9-55 and page 38 lines 1-
46 for additional detalls), He told me he gave commands for to get on the ground kecause he through It would be
easler to handeuff Hs told me he thought would be less llkely to be violent if ha was lying on the ground,
He tald me he did not feei proficlent In hand to hand fighting because he had had no defensive tactles tralning since he
graduated the academy In 2011,

| asked Mr, Wolfer to deflne passlve reslstance versus active resistanca. He told me passive resistance would be ke refusing to
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listen to commands and actjve resistance Is llke pulling away or fighting, | asked him If was passively resisting or
actively reslsting, He sald, “My perception was that he was actlvely resisting, After watching the video later, | see that, without
knewIng what his intentlon was, it does appear he was passive resisting when he raised hls hands. 1interpreted that as an act
of reslsting as he, as a pre assault”

Below is an excerpt of the transcript from the Interview with Mr. Wolfer (page 43 linas 41-56, page 44 lines 1-10)

Dateactlve Hegney-Bach: Ckay. Um, how dld the actions of the suspect durlng the encounter make you feel?

James Wolfer: Scared, thought | was gonna be assaulted.

Detectlve Hegney-Bach: Okay,

James Wolfer: So—

Detective Hegney-Bach:  What about, um, when he was on the ground and you had him In handcuffs?

James Wolfer: Uh, Ithink 1 =

Detectlve Hegney-Bach:  Much of the same?

James Wolfer: Yeah, | was still afrald he was gonna push me off of him, and I had, at the time, stlll belleved he had
Just tried to assault me with this other person that | didn’t know who they were yet,
um, so | was afrald of that, you know, If | got knocked off halance, then she might
come run at me, and then now ['m on the ground, there's two of 'em, and even though

he's In handcuffs, you know, who knows, or If he's got a weapon. |, I don't know yet. |, |
dan't belleve {'d even done a pat-down yet or finlshed it—

Detactive Hegney-Bach:  Okay,

James Wolfer: - before I tased him agaln, um, so { was, | was silll in the same frame of mind, Uh, I thought If |
don't control this now, um, thls may stlli, 1 may still get assauited at any point here, so -

At this time during the Intervlew we took a break, When we re-convened | asked a few clarifylng questions and | verlfled his
centact Information, This conciuded our Interview,

//€nd Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 04/02/2018 16:29
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 16:28

Narrative:

Case #SP1.8001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
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Interview — Lieutenant Tim Hernandez

SUSPECT:
Woalfer, James

oos: I

MENTIONED:
I
Victim '

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos 8arrlentos
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnlght
Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAlllster
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 8, 2018, Detectlve Carlos Barrientos and { went to Grand Ronde Trlbal Police
Department and interviewed the following police officers; Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Tim
Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAllister.

At approximately 11:00am, | interviewed Lieutenant Tim Hernandez. Iasked him to talk with
me about the events that occurred on and after August 13, 2017 as it related to Officer Wolfer.
Lleutenant Hernandez told me he was driving home from work on August 13, 2017 around
5:00pm when he heard Offlcer Wolfer go out on a call for service at Spirit Mountain Casino, He
told me he listened to the radio and heard that Officer Wolfer tased --

Lleutenant Hernandez told me he came Into work the morning of 8/14/17 and reviewed the
video foctage. He told me the use of force for the second tase was unjustified, He told me the
video revealed Officer Wolfer calling McAllister via telephone and saying - squared off
on him so Officer Wolfer tased him. He told me the video also shows Officer Woifer saying that
he was handcuffing by himself and - resisted so he tased him agaln, He told me after
reviewing the video he Initlated a complaint with Sergeant McAllister, He told me Sergeant
McAllister is thelr agency’s primary training officer and handles Investigations,

Lleutenant Hernandez told me Wolfer edited his report the next day and it reads differently
than his probable cause statement. {later reviewed both reports and found that the Probable
Cause Affidavit has a lot less detail than the Incident summary, which 1s normal for police
reports, There are also differences in some of the justifications for the Initial tase and reasons
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for charges he cited [} However none of these are the cause for this Investigation so
they were not addressed during this investigation,

Lieutenant Hernandez told me on 8/14/17 he placed Officer Wolfer on paid administrative
leave. He told me Officer Wolifer told him he meant- polnted his feet at him in an
aggressive manner, not squared off. He told me Offlcer Wolfer was upset when placed on
administrative leave, He told me this was the second Investigation Offlcer Wolfer has gone
through while working for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department,

Lieutenant Hernandez told me he was shocked when he watched Wolfer’s body camera, He
told me he was more surprised by the lie than the tasing. He told me Wolfer did well with
communlty policing but not with hostile contacts, | asked Lieutenant Hernandez to elaborate
and he told me that while on a traffic stop, Officer Wolfer dealt with a rowdy family and he
cowered, He told me Sergeant McCalllster had to have a talk with him about officer safety.

Lleutenant Hernandez told me on August 18, 2017, Officer Wolfer was given a preparation
letter and told he had a right to review all documents before heing Interviewed, He told me
Officer Wolfer declded to resign.

| asked Lleutenant Hernandez about Wolfer’s police background and he told me Wolfer worked
for Warm Springs Tribal Police for around a year, He told me Wolfer was let go during his
probationary period with Warm Springs. He told me there was an evidence Issue where Officer
Wolfer left marijuana out and other officers hid It as a joke. He told me Wolfer thought he put
It away. He told me Wolfer was Investigated regarding this incident and Wolfer passed a
nolygraph. There was also a DUIl investigation where Wolfer's report did not match the events
that occurred, He told me he could not remember the exact reason, but knew It had to do with
the HGN test.

Lleutenant Hernandez continued telling me that Wolfer did not get along with hls Sergeant in
Warm Springs and that sergeant was later flred for dealing marljuana. He told me Wolfer
applled with Vancouver Police Department around the same time he applied with Grand
Ronde, but was not hired by Vancouver because he didn’t pass the psychologlcal test, He told
me Wolfer did pass the psychological test for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.

Lleutenant Hernandez told me there have been no other complaints involving Wolfer and his
use of force, Other officers complained about Wolfers attitude. He told me Wolfer did not get
along well with management. He told me Wolfer tried to start conflict between the officers
and management on more than one occaslon,

| asked Lieutenant Hernandez If after reviewing the case If he belleved the use of force by
Wolfer agalnst- rose to the level of assault and he told me yes.,

//End of Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 04/62/2018 15:29
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Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 15:29

Narrative:

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview — Sergeant Rod McAlllster

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

poe: I

MENTIONED:
]

Victim

Mother of Victim

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Pollce Department

Sergeant Rod McAlllster
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 - DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17.

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65
ACTION TAKEN:

On January 8, 2018, Detectlve Carlos Barrientos and | went to Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department and Interviewed the followlng police officers; Chlef Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Tim
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Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAllister.

At approximately 11:39 am, | Interviewed Sergeant McAlllster, | asked him to talk with me
about the events that occurred on and after August 13, 2017 as it related to James Woifer, He
told me August 13, 2017 was a Sunday and it was his day off, He told me he recelved a phone
call from Wolfer that evening reporting that Wolfer used his taser two times on || i}

He told me Wolfer told him first tase was because |JJJjj scuared off on him and
would not listen to commands to get on the ground and the second cycle occurred when
Wolfer was trylng to get [ 'nto handcuffs and i} was not compliant and struggled
so he tased him agaln,

“Sergeant McAlllster told me he told Wolfer to make sure his use of force report was done by
the end of his shift. He told me that the next morning Lieutenant Hernandez reported to him
that Woifer was still woriing on his report, He told me Lleutenant Hernandez also reported the
use of force by Wolfer was bad. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez told him the video was
inconsistent with the notlification to him [McAllister).

Sergeant McAllister told me he viewed Wolfer's body camera on either Tuesday or Wednesday
and then began a personnel investigatlon into Wolfer, He told me he did not Interview
B o' 21y of the witnesses, He told me the focus of the Investigation was that Wolfer
was untruthful and violated the taser policy,

I asked Sergeant McAllister if Wolfer had ever been disciplined prior to this incident and he told
me yes, He told me Wolfer was given a letter of reprimand for violating Grand Ronde Pollce |
Department pollcies during an incident that occurred on September 10, 2016, He told me the i
discipline was not related to use of force, He told me It dealt with Inconsistencles between
Wolfers report and video footage and also the lack of use of his body camera,

Sergeant McAllister told me he Is thelr agency’s primary training officer. | asked what kind of
reoccurring tralning they require from thelr officers and he told me they have the following
training:

1,  Monthly tralning modules through Police One,
2. Firearms training three times per year.
3. Taser tralning once per year,
a. Includes written, practical, demo, commands, control and discharge {no
shooting live cartridges).

Sergeant McAllister told me he Is the Taser instructor, He told me he recelved his certification
in 2016 through Newburg Police Department with Taser Internatlonal, now calfed Axon, He
told me the class included an online training module and sixteen hours of classroom training.

Sergeant McAllister provided me with the Taser download paperwork from the Taser used by
Wolfer, A copy of the Taser download Is attached to this report, The Taser’s life began May
2015, He told me the Taser belonged to a different officer before Wolfer, He told me Wolfer
was given the Taser in May 2016, He explained what the codes on the Taser download meant ;
and below is a st of the codes and their meanings in regards to Wolfer's Taser on August 13,
2017,
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06:38:18
06:38:18
06:38:24
06:38:25
06:38:30
17:15:20
17:15:27
17:16:51

17:20:40

Armed — Turned on
Safe ~ Halstered
Armed — Un-holstered
Trigger — Trigger pulled
Safe — Holstered
Armed = Turned on
Trigger — Trigger pulled
Trigger — Trigger pulled

Safe — Holstered

Page 37 of 37

Sergeant McAllister provided me with coples of hls Taser Instructor Certification, dated May
19, 2016, He also provided me with Wolfer's Taser Certification and Taser Tests dated June 16,

2016,

| asked Sergeant McAllister If after reviewing the case, If he belleved the use of force by Wolfer

against [ rose to the level of assault and he told me yes,

This concluded our Interview.

//End Report//

file:///C:/Users/lheathc/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Y ellow) him

Lxhibit A4
Page 37 of 37

8/20/2018



August 18, 2017

Officer James Wolfer hand delivered
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Re:  Administrative Investigation Findings regarding officer actions in connection with
Case Number GRT17000673

Dear James:

As you ate aware, the actions you took in connection with Case Number GRT17000673 came
under review due to your use of your Conducted Energy Device (Taser). This incident was
reviewed, as required by Policy 304.8 of the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police
Department Policy Manual.

As a result of that review, we have conducted an administrative investigation into the above-
referenced case pursuant to Policy 1005.6. The resulting Investigation Report details the
circumstances, identifies the policies violated, and recommends appropriate discipline. The
findings conclude that you violated a number of department policies — specifically 319.5.8,
319.5.9, and various provisions of 304. The disciplinary recommendation in the report is
termination of your employment with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.

After reviewing the Investigation Report and supporting materials, I am accepting the
disciplinary recommendation to terminate your employment.

I reviewed the following materials in reaching this decision:
Body cameta footage from the incident identified above.
GRTPD Crime Incident Report for Case ID GRT17000673 prepared by James Wolfer,
GRTPD Incident Supplement report Supplement ID 341696 prepared by Tokata Tehama
Probable Cause Affidavit re: arrestee&- prepared by James Wolfer
Atrest Report for Case 17-673
Materials from Salem Health West Valley re: paticnt |||} NG
LEDS repott re:
GRTPD Dispatch Report for Case GRT 17000673
Dallas Police Department incident review report prepared by Lt. Jerry Mott 08/16/17
Investigation Report prepared by Sgt. Rod McAllister 08/16/17
Memo re: administrative investigation prepared by Acting Chief Hernandez 08/16/17
Policy 304 — Conducted Energy Device
Policy 319 — Standards of Conduct
Policy 1005 — Personnel Complaints

Pursuant to Policy 1005.10.2, you will be provided access to all the referenced materials as well
as an opportunity to respond to me orally or in writing within five days of receiving this notice.
If you would like further access to the materials during these five days, please call me at 503~
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Officer James Wolfer
August 18, 2017
Page 2

879-1824 to schedule an appointment. You may wish to review Policy 1005.11 regarding any
response you choose to provide. Your response must be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on
Friday, August 25, 2017, If you choose to respond orally, the policy requires us to record your
response. You may also elect to waive any such response.

I will issue a timely written decision following my review of any response you provide. Please
note that if you choose to resign prior to my decision being issued, Policy 1005.12 provides that
these disciplinary proceedings will cease.

ehant Tim Hernandez
Actmg Chief of Police
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Dallas Police Department

To: Lf. Tim Hernandez
From: Lt, Jerry Mott
Date: August 16, 2017

Incident Review

On August 15, 2017, Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department (GRTPD) Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
requested assistance with the review of a use of force by one of GRTPD's police officers. Lt. Hernandez
asked the review be completed with their policy as metric for the appropriate force declsion. Lt,
Hernandez provided me with GRTPD Policy 304 “Conducted Energy Device.” Lt. Hernandez explained
thelr answer of force policies are tied to the implement and method used. GRTPD's policy 304 governs
force decisions where “Conducted Energy Device” tools are used. Taser use is the specific authorized

tool governed by GRTPD policy 304.

Lt. Hernandez provided me with Officer Wolfer’s body-camera video.

Briefing of incident:

Lt. Hernandez provided me with the facts necessary for me to complete the level of evaluation
requested. Lt, Hernandez told me the GRTPD officer, James Woifer, responded to a call of a trespass at
the Casino. Lt. Hernandez told me the suspect was known to GRTPD officers from numerous previous
contacts and Is often intoxicated. Lt. Hernandez told me he relayed to Offlcer Wolfer that the suspect
was also wanted for an Assault il by the Yamhill County Sheriff's Office and may have a warrant for that
crime. 1 asked If the suspect had a history of assaulting officers. Lt. Hernandez told me he was not

aware of any history of the suspect assaulting officers.

involved Officer’s Experlence (Graham v. Connor):

The standard of objective reasonableness established by Graham v. Connor requires examination

through the perspective of the officer on scene rather than applying 20/20 hindsight, For application of
this standard in making this evaluation, | acknowledge the training and experience differences between
Officer Wolfer and myself. For those reasons, | will detall observations but opinlon indicated as being in

“light most favorable to the officer” stands as my judgement.
Officer Training and Authorization to Carry Taser:

Lt. Hernandez told me Officer Wolfer was current on Taser tralning as required by GRTPD policy {304.3}.
Officer Wolfer's authorization to carry and use the Taser In accordance with policy Is not questioned by

this review.
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Review of Incident:

| read the GRTPD's policy 304. | found It generaliy consistent with other police department policies
governing the use of Tasers. 1 did not observe anything in the policy that was extraordinary.

| watched the provided body-camera video. The video has a digital tag on the screen Indicating
“IWolfer, GRT PD” and date/time stamped “2017/08/13 5:11:42 PM.” The video opens with Officer
Wolfer making comment to someone to keep eyes on a person and Officer Wolfer getting into a patrol

vehicle.

Officer Wolfer drives to a parking lot. 1 can see in the video that Offlcer Wolfer Is wearing black gloves,
They are not latex gloves, 1t is my experience officers wear this type of glove when they antlcipate the

need to use force or are going to search a person.

At about 5:12;33 PM, Officer Wolfer arrives In another parking lot. As he exits his vehicle, | hear him get
location description from a male telling him where the suspect Is located. Officer Wolfer goes in the
direction apparently indicated. At 5:12:44 PM, | see the suspect come Into the video. | can see his head
over the top of a car, lt should be noted the camera view will vary from Officer Wolfer's view. Officer
Woilfer gives clear command, “Stop. Police.” Offlcer Woifer rounds a parked car and shouts, “Stop, Get

on the Ground.” A famale asks what he wants.

Officer Wolfer commands the suspect to “Get on the ground now.” He points a Taser at the suspect,
The woman asks If it Is her who Officer Wolfer wants to get onto the ground. Officer Wolfer tells her no
and directs her to back up. She does not back up and instead places herself between Officer Wolfer and

the suspect. She begins to argue.

Officer Wolfer elevates his voice and shouts for the suspect to get on the ground. Officer Wolfer shouts
a warning to the suspect to get on the ground or he will be tased. Officer Wolfer shouted “back away!”
[ belleve, based on the proximity of the female, he was shouting at the female but the male suspect
complied with the command and backed away. Officer Wolfer gave command for the suspect to get on
the ground. Officer Wolfer tased the suspect. The suspect locked up and fell onto the asphalt parking

lot. The time was 5:23:04 PM.,

| could see the suspect’s hands at his waist and visible when Officer Wolfer rounded the car In the
parking lot. { could see the suspect put his hands in the air from where they were at his waist and kept
them in the alr untll he was tased, The suspect did not make any threats. The suspect did not make any
physical movement indicating he would assauit Officer Wolfer. The suspect did not run from Officer
Wolfer. The suspect did not comply with Offlcer Wolfer’'s clear and repeat commands to get onto the

grotnd.

Officer Wolfer told the female, who continued to argue and interfere, to get on the ground or she would
be tased. She replied for him to “fucking do it then Bitch.” | will note it is my opinion that tasing the
female would have been objectively reasonabie at or before this polnt. She was reaching Into a smali
purse, her hands were not always visible, she was actively interfering with the arrest and had been given
clear and repeated warnings to get hack. As this review does not address an answer of force to the
female, | will cease description of her actions as | am of the oplnion they do not have appropriate
bearing o continued use of force on the suspect from this point on and a person | recognize as casino

security deescalates her behavior.
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Offlcer Wolfer handcuffs the suspect who complies with commands and Is cuffed behind the back. The
suspect is face-down, on the asphalt with the Taser probes still attached. While being cuffed, Officer
Wolfer directs the suspect where to put his hands and warns he will be tased agaln If he does not
comply.

The suspect repeatedly asks what he did and rolls from side to side. Officer Wolfer tells the suspect he
has a warrant and warns him to stop moving or Officer Wolfer would tase him again. Officer Wolfer teils
the suspect not to move or he would tase him again, The suspect shouts, “Fuck youl” The suspect’s

body Jars as an apparent component of his shouting and the associated use of chest muscles and
diaphragm. Officer Wolfer immediately initlates another cycle of his Taser. The time stamp was about

5:14:27 PM. Officer Wolfer again warns the suspect If he pulls away, “He will get it again.”

Officer Wolfer and casino staff begin effectively deescalating the suspect and female. Officer Wolfer
summens medics to evaluate the suspect. | will not further detail the period of time between this and
when Deputy La Combe {Polk County Sherlff's Office) arrives to cover Officer Wolfer and is briefed by

Officer Wolfer.,

At about 5:27 PM, Deputy La Combe is belng briefed on what happened by Officer Wolfer. Of note,
durlng this briefing, Officer Wolfer tells Deputy La Combe the suspect started to “square-off” with him,
This terminology describes a person assuming a fighting posture, | observed this suspect did not assume
a flghting posture at any time before being tased. He also stated the female was ”Jacking the suspect

up” and that he was trying to pull away from him on the ground.

At about 5:38:45 PM, Officer Wolfer uses a cellular phone to call Sgt. Rod McAllister, | know that Is who
he calls because | can see the name and part of the phone number (541)***-7895 displayed on the
phone screen. Officer Wolfer briefs Sgt. McAllister. During the briefing, he tells Sgt. McAllister that the
suspect “squared-up on me.” Officer Wolfer told Sgt. McAllister he tased the suspect a second time

hecause the suspect was resisting while he was trying to get the cuffs on by himself.

 also note that In the briefing to Sgt. McAllister, Officer Wolfer indicates the warrant for the suspect had
ﬂags for " assaulting and resisting a police officer. I am unable to validate the accuracy of this statement

Opm[on.
Officer Wolfer was authorized by GRTPD to carry and use a Taser,

Officer Wolfer gave warning before using the Taser as required in GRTPD policy 304.4.

Officer Wolfer violated GRTPD policy 304.5.1. This sectlon of policy dictates (paraphrased) a person be
either (a) violent or physically resisting or {b) demonstrate by words or actlon an intention to be violent
or to physlcally resist, and appears to present the potentlal to harm officers, him/herself or others,

" When viewed in light most favorable to Officer Wolfer, the suspect was merely not complylng with )

commands when the flrst app!ication of the Taser occurreci

Ofﬂcer Wo!fer vlolated GRTPD policy 304.5.2 {d} by using aTaserona handcuffed person who could
otherwlise be restralned without meeting threshold of Increased risk to himself, the suspect or others,
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Officer Wolfer violated GRTPD policy 304.5.2 (f) by tasing an individual who was standing on an asphalt
parking fot. However, this would not, in my opinion, be a viotation if the use of the Taser was
appropriate under policy 304.5.1 (a) or (b} because the use would then meet policy 304.5.2's balancing

test.

Officer Wolfer did not violate GRTPD policy 304.5.3 because his application of the Taser was dynamic
and did not lend itself to more careful targeting. Further, he summoned appropriate medical care for

the suspect.

Officer Wolfer did not violate GRTPD policy 304.5.4 because the declsion to use multiple applications of
a Taser are left, as a matter of policy, to the oplnion of the officer that the need to control the suspect
outweighs the potentially Increased risk posed by multiple applications. t should be noted I do not
helieve the second application of the Taser reasonable or lawful but in light most favorable to Officer

Wolfer, this narrow section of policy leaves the declision to his discretion,

Officer Wolfer violated policy GRTPD 304.,5,5, This policy required Officer Wolfer notify a supervisor of
the Taser device discharge. It is an implicit component of advising the supervisor to be honest in the
recounting of the event. It Is possible, albeit remote, to attribute the telling of the initial tasing of the
suspect to a perception error on Officer Wolfer's part that the suspect “squared-up” with him or
prepared to fight, This does not validate that perception but accepts it as possibility other than an
intentional false statement. However, Officer Wolfer’s telling Sgt. McAllister he tased the suspect a

- second time because the suspect was resisting while he was trying to cuff the suspect is plainly false.
The suspect had been secured in cuffs behind his back well before being tased the second time,

MATERIALS RETENTION:

I will secure the copy of GRTPD Policy 304, the body-camera video and a copy of this document into
Dallas Police Department evidence as item #001 under case # DAP17001674. The report will contain no
personal identification information and the narrative will state, “Assist for another agency Internal
review. Materials associated with this case number are exempted from public records retease under
ORS 192.501." The address for the event will be 187 SE Court St. Dallas, Oregon,
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- GRAND RONDE TAIBAL POLICE DEPARTHIENT

Inter-Office Memorandum

Date: August 16, 2017

To: Lieutenant Hernandez (Acting Chief of Police)
CC: Chief Jake McKnight

From: Sgt. Rod McAllister

Subject: Investigation Report

On 08-15-2017, | received information from Lisutenant Hernandez regarding an incident
involving Officer James Walfer, H* and q while at Spirit Mountain
Casino lccated at 27100 Salmon River Hwy in Grand Ronde, Polk County Oregon.

During Officer Wolfer's contact withF and Officer Wolfer deployed his Department
issued CEW (Conducted Electrical Weapon) twice, After Lieutenant Hernandez reviewed video

footage, from Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera, it was determined that several
Depattment policies were violated by Officer Woifer.

Lieutenant Hernandez requested that | complete an investigation into this incident, regarding the
violations of Department policies.

On the evening of 08-13-2017, while { was off duty and at my residence, | had received a
telephone call from Officer James Wolfer.

Officer Wolfer advised me that he was calling to let me know that he had been involved in a use
of force situation and that he had deployed his Taser while attempting to take
into custody on a felony assault in the second degree warrant and for trespassing at the Casino.

Officer Wolfer stated, “Hey, just thought that I'd {et you know.” | tased 'm
calling you for the use of force.” “it was right when Lieutenant went end of watch, so he couldn't

back me up.” "He was already gone.”
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GRANI SONDETIBAL POLIOE DEPRRTHIAT

was trespassed and also had a felony warrant.” "Wouldn’t stop when | fold him

Ho (N
to.” “His mom (referring to kept getting in the middie.” "He squared up on me and so | had
to tase him." “{ actually had to hit him a second time." "He was resisting while | was trying to get

the cuffs on him, by myself.”

“So, Medics cleared him.” “So, | gathered, | took photos of whete the doors called, the fibs,
whatever.” Took photos of those, secured them,” "Medics pulled the barbs out after the,

whatever they are, the probes after P-020 (Deputy Lacombe, Polk County Sheriff's Office) came
as my cover.” “He was there because he was semi-combative.” “He's (Deputy

Lacombe) actually following me right now.”

“Medics cleared him H for transport and, so, we're headed to PCJ. (Polk County Jail)”
“So, just giving you a call on the use of force.”

Officer Wolfer then beian {0 go into details reiarding the incident at Spirit Mountain Casino,

involving [ I and [l

"Yeah, trespass.” “That’s what the original call, that he's (] been trespassed multiple
times.” "Yes, he's (] a'so going to have that.”

"So, his M mom m)almost got those same charges, but she walked away
when | told her that she would be arrested.” “Stop interfering and keep your distance.”

“So, she was trying fo get between the two of us, multiple times." “Which is part of what
escalated.” "l put my spare one (Taser cartridge) in there.”

After Officer Wolfer provided me with the information regarding the use of force, involving
? | provided him with information regarding the collection of the Taser
cartridge, the deployed probes and other evidence that needed to be entered into the evidence

room.

Atfter providing Officer Wolfer with direction pertaining to the evidence, | then ended m
conversation with Officer Wolfer after he provided me with the information regarding h
valid felony warrant, issued out of Yamhill County Circuit Court for the original charge of assault
in the second degree and the cautions entered regarding the history of resisting arrest and for

assault on an Officer.

While reviewing Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera footage, | observed Officer
Wolfer exit from his marked Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department vehicle and make contact
with Spirit Mountain casino Security who advised Officer Wolfer where was currently

iocated aft.
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Officer Wolfer then proceeds, across the green lot, towards [ I and location. As
Officer Wolfer works his way through the parked vehicles, Officer Wolfer yells, "Hey, Stop,

Police, Stop, Get on the ground!”

After Officer Wolfer gives his verbai commands, a male and female subject appear in view of
Officer Wolfer's body camera, as Officer Wolfer moves towards them. then asks Officer

Wolfer, “What do you want?”

Officer Wolfer then states, “Get on the ground nowt” Officer Wolfer has his CEW pointed in the
direction of and and are standing in the middle of the {ane of

travel located belween the parking stalls. is holding a white plastic bag in her left hand and
has nothing In his hands.

then states, "Me?" Officer Wolfer answers, “No, not youl” “Back up!” “Go to the sidel” “You

on the ground!” while pointing with his left hand and pointing the CEW with his right hand,
is standing between hand Officer Wolfer, is a couple of feet behind

and Officer Wolfer Is several feet away from both an

Officer Wolfer then yelis, “Get on the ground now!” "Move aside!” “Get on the ground now or you
will be Tased!”

At this point Is standing there with both hands in the air, next to his head. It's clear
that has nothing in his hands. .

H steps towards Officer Wolfer, Officer Wolfer moves towards his left and yells, “Back away!”
et on the ground now{”

is observed taking small steps backwards while holding his hands In the air, next to his
ead. is standing near ||} with her hands on her hips.

Officer Wolfer yells, while discharging his CEW, “Get on the ground!” Both CEW probes travel
past [JJJjj and strike »

F leans forward, brings his hands down to the front of his chest, just below his chin and
alls forward with his body stiff. || il ands face down on the asphalt and rolis onto his back
while receiving the electrical current from Officer Wolfer's CEW.

Officer Wolfer then notifies Dispatch that he has Tased [ | white ] steps towards
Officer Wolfer while stating, "You mother fucker!”
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Officer Wolfer then tells ] to "Get on the ground or you will be Tased tool” [ then yells,
“Fucking do it, Bitch!” Officer Wolfer continues to tell to "Get on the ground!” while Security

Supervisor Mickey Wood steps in front of

At this point, [ is tving on his back with hls arms extended out to his sides and slightly
towards his head, not moving.

Offlcer Wolfer continues to ysli “Get on the ground!” "Get on the ground and don’t move!” |}
is heard saying, “He didn’t do anything!”

Officer Wolfer then requests Dispatch to notify medical personnel to respond to the logation,
Officer Wolfer then tells Security Supervisor Wood to keep [JJJjj away.

Officer Wolfer then tells m to roll over onto his side twice, which complies with
Officer Wolfer's commands is point, [l is ving on the asphalt, face down and not

moving around.

Officer Wolfer then tells that he s under arrost. [JJilif asks Officer Wolfer, “For
what?” Officer Wolfer then tells “You have a watrant and you have been trespassed.”

“You are under arrest!” “Do not move

Officer Wolfer then moves towards H stays standing in the same spot and
does not move, Officer Wolfer points towards and says, “Stay backl” “Keep your hands

where we can see them!”

Officer Wolfer then kneels down beside places his left hand in the lower area of
back and says, Place your hands right herel” is heard saying, "He had this
under control and you fucking know iil" Officer Wolfer tells to “Shut up!”

_ hands in the lower portion of his back and says, “Put your
et it againl” Officer Wolfer then p!aces handcuffs on nghplne s

is not saying anything nor is he displaying
Is resisting Officer Wolfer while being

Officer Wolfer then places
hands right here or you'll g
wrists, while his hands are behind his back.
any indications that would indicate that
handcuffed.

asks Officer Wolfer, “What did | do?” "What did | do?”

Afterm is handcuffed,

Officer Wolrer states, "Do not move asks again, “What did | do?” Officer Wolfer
states, “Do hot movel” At this point, is still lying face down, on the asphaIt and not
displaying any indication or making any movements that WOuld constitute the crime of resisting

arrest.
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then asks Officer Wolfer, ‘What does he have a warrant for?” Officer Wolfer replies, “It
oesn't matterl" "Shut up!” Highpine begins to move and Officer Wolfer states, "Do not move or |

will give it to you again!”

Officer Wolfer then telis to “Shut up!” "it's not about you!” asks Officer Wolfer a
second time, “What does he have a warrant for?" Officer Wolfer states to [ “Shut up!” "It's

none of your business!" |
then moves towards his left side and yells, "It is my business!” Officer Wolfer tells
“Stop moving or | will Tase you againl” _ then states, “Fuck youl”

Officer Wolfer then discharges his CEW a second fime, while is lying face down on the

asphait, with his hands cuffed behind his back, Officer Wolfer allows his CEW to cycle for the
entire five seconds. is heard yelling during the entire five second cycle.

Officer Wolfer tells H “Don't move or you'll get it againl” “Shut up!" Officer Wolfer then
asks “You done?” Officer Wolfer then states, “You pull away from me again, you get

it againi” At no point in time did ever puli away from Officer Wolfer nor did he make
any attempts at pulling away. appeared to only attempt to roll to his left side to look at
Officer Wolfer while he was saying, "Fuck youl”

Highpine then tells Officer Wolfer, “You shot me twice!" Officer Wolfer then answers, “You
shouldn't resist.” *| told you that you were under arrest and you resisted.” asks Officer
Wolfer, "How did | resist mother fucker?” Officer Wolfer then states that was moving |

anhd pulling away,

After reviewing the video footage from Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera, |
reviewed the content of Officer Wolfer's repott that he completed regarding this incident. During ‘
my review, [ noted multiple inconsistencies regarding the information contained in the report 9

compared to what actually happened on video.

| also learned that the information Officer Wolfer provided to me on the evening of 08-13-2017,

regarding the use of force, was untruthful regarding the events that cccurred and the conduct i
Hd'ssplayed, which woulld justify the use of a CEW. -
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R R L

Findings:
POLICY 312 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT.

319.5.8 PERFORMANCE
(a) Failure to disclose or misrepresenting matetial facts, or making any false or misleading

statement on any application, examination form, or other official document, report or form, or
during the course of any work-related investigation.

(b) The falsification of any work-related records, making misleading entries or statements with
the intent to deceive or the willful and unauthorized removal, alteration, destruction and/or
mutitation of any department record, public record, boak, paper or document.

(c) Failure to participate in, or giving faise or misleading statements, or misrepresenting or
omitting material information to a supervisor or other person in a position of authority, in
connection with any investigation or in the reporting of any department-related business.

Officer James Wolfer violated Policy 319.5.8 by intentionally making false statements
when reporting the incident to his supervisor, after the deployment of the Department

Issued CEW, Officer Wolfer made misleading entries into his criminal report, to the Polk
County District Attorney’s Office, regarding the conduct of ﬁ and
to facilitate additional criminal charges consisting of resisting arrest and

interfering with a police officer,

319.5.2 CONDUCT
(b) Unreasonable and unwarranted force to a person encountered or a person under arrest.
(c) Exceeding lawfut peace officer powers by unreasonable, unlawful or excessive conduct.

(h) Criminal, dishonest, or disgraceful conduct, whether on- or off-duty, that adversely affects
the member’s relationship with this department.

Officer James Wolfer violated Policy 319.5.9 by intentionally using unreasonablie and
unwarranted force on Whiie H was lying face down,
on the asphalt, with his hands restrained behind his back with the use of handcuffs,

Officer Wolfer intentionally discharged his Department issued CEW after rolied
towards his left side after being told not to move.

Officer Wolfer was untruthful when providing information, to his supervisor, regarding
actions that led to the justification to use a CEW to effectively make an arrest,
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POLICY 304 - CONDUCTED ENERGY DEVICE

304.2 POLICY
The TASER device is intended to controt a violent or potentially violent individual, while
minimizing the risk of serious injury. The appropriate use of such a device should result in fewer

serious injuries to officers and suspects,

304.5.1 APPLICATION OF THE TASER DEVICE

The TASER device may be used in any of the following circumstances, when the circumstances
percelved by the officer at the time indicate that such application is reasonably hecessary to
control a person:

(a) The subject is violent or is physically resisting.
{b) The subject has demonstrated, by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically

resist, and reasonably appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or others.
Mere flight from a pursuing officer, without other known circumstances or factors, is not good
cause for the use of the TASER device to apprehend an individual.

Officer Wolfer violated Policy 304.6.1 by using his Department issued CEW on ||| | | I
F who was not actively violent and not physically resisting while restrained by
the use of handcuffs,

304.5.2 SPECIAL DEPLOYMENT CONSIDERATIONS

The use of the TASER device on certain individuais should generally be avoided unless the
totality of the circumstances Indicates that other available options reasonably appear ineffective
or would present a greater danger to the officer, the subject or others, and the officer reasonably
believes that the need to control the individual outwelighs the risk of using the device, This

includes;
(d) Individuals who are handcuffed or otherwise restrained.

Officer Wolfer violated Policy 304.5.2 by intentionally discharging his Department issued
cew while [ N i was restrained by the use of handcuffs.

Exhibit A7
Page 7 of 8




| RAND HOHIJETHIML POLIGE DEPARTMENT

HENA

RECOMMENDATION:

After reviewing all of the information provided, Officer Wolfer's footage from his Department
issued body camera and the review of his completed police report, | find that Officer Wolfer
grossly viclated several Department policies, which affect the mission and vision statements of

this Department,

I recommend the foliowing;

o Termination of employment with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department,
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Inter-Office Memorandum

Date: August 16, 2017

To: Chief Jake McKnight

CC: Rod McAllister

From: Lt. Tim Hernandez (acting Chief of Police}

GRT 17-673 James Wolfer administrative investigation.

On 08/13/17 | was near my residence for my scheduled shift to end at 1700 hours. | heard radio traffic
from 911 Dispatch advising of a trespass in progress. | checked the call notes and saw the suspect was

B | -cvised Officer Wolfer of Mr. | past contacts and that 1 believed that he

had a warrant for assauit out of Yamhill County. | also requested Polk County respond to cover Officer
Wolfer,

| then monitored the radio traffic from my residence. | hear Officer Wolfer tell 911 Dispatch that he had
activated his taser while taking Mr. - into custody. {later heard that medics had cleared Mr,

On 8/14/17 | responded to the Police department and 1 asked Evidence Techniclan Leno to make me a
copy of the use of force. Officer Wolfer's dally shift report advised that he tased M., [ because
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“his mother was coming at me and he seemed to square up his feet.” He stated that he tased Mr.
B - sccond time because, “He resisted.” '

I then reviewed the video and | saw Officer Wolfer give Mr. [l commands at taser point to, stop
Police, get on the ground. Mr. ||l mom sets In between Officer Wolfer and Mr. [ ™.
I r2iscs his hands in the air above his head and slowly walks backwards while asking, what did |

do? Officer Wolfer steps to the side and tases Mr. [ N

mr. [l immediately falls to the ground and his mother takes a step towards Officer Wolfer while
yeliing at him. Officer Wolfer gives Mr. i orders and Mr. |l complies. Officer Wolfer
handcuffs Mr. |l behind his back. Mr, |l is upset and he and his mom begin to yell asking
what he did. Mr. |JJJi] moves while yelling and Officer Wolfer tells him not to move or he wiil be
tased again. Mr. [l ve'ls “Fuck you” and moves while saying this. Officer Wolfer tases him again
for a fuli five seconds. :

CTGR policy 304,5.1 Application of taser

The taser device may be used in any of the following circumstances, when the circumstances perceived
by the officer at the time indicate that such application is reasonably necessary to control a person:

{a) The subject is violent or is physically resisting.
{b) The subject has demonstrated, by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically
resist, and reasonably appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or others.

The taser application that | witnessed on body camera footage does not fall in line with the policies of
the CTGR Police Department,

{immediately made contact with the CTGR General Manager and the CTGR Tribal Police Attorney. |
asked them to view the hody camera footage and | provided them with a copy of the CTGR Police
Conducted Energy Device policy, After they viewed the body camera footage we made the decision to
piace Officer Wolfer on paid administrative leave untll we could further review this incident,

On 08/14/17 at about 1024 hours, { met with Officer Wolfer at the Grand Ronde Police Department.
Also present was Human Resources, Patrick Dempsey. 1introduced Officer Wolfer to Mr, Dempsey and |
advised him that his use of force was not In {ine with CTGR Police Department policies and that he was
being placed on administrative leave,

| provided Officer Wolfer with a copy of the policy. Officer Wolfer asked me If he could ask a question
and | told him he could. He asked what part was not in line. [ asked him to look at the policy and | told
him Mr. [l had his hands in the air and was slowly stepping backwards when he was tased.
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Officer Wolfer told me, “He squared up at me.” He said after he reviewed his body camera footage he
saw his hands were In the air but he felt Mr. [JJJJl] feet were pointed towards him.

I then mentioned the second taser deployment and Officer Wolfer told me, “He kept trying to roll.” He
told me he had not patted Mr. |l cown and he had not double locked the handcuffs. He told me
his taser deployment was done In good faith., Officer Wolfer asked what the level of punishment was for
an incident like this, 1advised him that it could be anything from days off, more training or possible
termination, | told him we would have to have a full review of the incident,

| asked Officer Wolfer to leave his department equipment in his locker. He was allowed to wear his duty
shirt and pants. Officer Wolfer asked me about his off duty wéapon and badge. |advised him he was
only cn administrative leave and he could keep his off duty gear and credentials.

Our meeting concluded at 1030 hours. | walked to the locker room with Officer Woifer and spoke with
him briefly as he was placing items in his locker. |asked him if Nicole was at home or if he wanted to call
Nicole with me present and he told me ! did not need to. Officer Wolfer stated to me, “This seems like
Warm Springs all over again.”

Hater reviewed the entire Incident to its conclusion, | heard Officer Wolfer call Sgt. McAllister and
explain that he tased Mr. ] Officer Wolfer said he tased Mr. |JJi] because he squared up to
me. He told Sgt. McAllister that he had to tase Mr. ] 2 second time because he was resisting
while Officer Wolfer was trylng to handcuff him by himself.

I later reviewed Officer Wolfer’s report where he states that he tased Mr. [JJJJl] because his feet
pointed towards him in an aggressive manner. He stated he tased Mr. [JJJij 2 second time because
he continued to try to roll away from me,

It Is my opinton that Mr, [ mother, Mrs. I was more aggressive than Mr. [ ) did
not see anything In my opinion that either Mr. [l or Mrs. I ever displayed anything other
than verbal and passive resistance. Mr. [} was never told he was under arrest until after he had
been tased and handcuffed. He was later handcuffed and lying face down with Officer Wolfer standing
over him when he was tased a second time.

On 8/15/17, | made phone contact with the City of Dallas Police Chlef, Tom Simpson. |asked the Chief if
his department would be willing to assist our department with a use of force review. Chief Simpson
advised me he would have a supervisor contact me,
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{ also briefed Sgt, McAllister and | advised him that | wanted him to conduct an Investigation into this
Incident.

| later spoke with Dallas Police, Lt. Mott. | advised Lt. Mott we had a taser deployment that we wanted
his department review and advise if it was in line with the CTGR Police Department policies. Lt. Mott
advised me that he would be willing to review our policy and the body camera footage and offer a
written opinion.

I later responded to the Dallas Police Department and { provided Lt. Mott with a complete copy of the
Grand Ronde Police Conducted Energy Device policy. 1 also provided him with a DVD with the body
camera footage of the taser deployment against Mr. ||

On 8/16/17 | received a written response from Lt. Mott. Lt. Mott advised me that he believed that
Officer Wolfer violated several CTGR Police Department policies, Please refer to Lt. Mott’s report for
additional Information,

End of report.
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Caso Id Type Dascripton Report Date
GRT17000673 TRESP1 TRESP1 08/13/2017 17:04
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27100 SALMON RIVER HWY 08/13/2017 17:04 08/13/2017 19:42
Dlstriet L Inked lncldent
01
Deparimant Rouling —]
s PCDA
SYNOPSIS
, OFFENSES
OFI'ENSE DESCRIPTION LOCATION TYPE UCR
164.245(a) Criminal Trespass II CAS 26
TRESPASSED PERMANENTLY FROM CASINO GROUNDS SINCE
2016
162,247 Interfere with Police Officer CAS 999
REFUSED TO OBEY ORDERS, [l R5FUSED TO
OBEY ORDERS
162.315(c) Resisting Arrest - Dis. Conduct CAS 24
ATTEMPTED TO ROLL AWAY WHILE BEING
HANDCUFFED
166.025(b) Digorderly Conducet 2nd Deg CAS 24
YELLED DURING ENTIRE ARREST, WAS DISRUPTIVE
TO FOOD SERVICE
01207 AOA - Warrant Served CAS 999
YAMHILL COUNTY FELONY WARRANT-ASSAULT II-WNO
#17CRS318S
162.325(¢e) Hinder Prosecution - All Other CAS 999
- ATTEMPTED TO PHYSICALLY STOP ARREST OF
INVOLVED PARTIES -
poOB AGE SEX RACE WEIGHT HEIGHT BAIR EYE
ARRESTED B = M NAT 150is  SA10l BLK  BRO
GRAND RONDE OR 97347
Home# | 5Bus#: ( Cell i (
ssN: I oLn: [
CHARGE DESCRIPTION ' CNTS  WARRANT # COURT
164.245(a) Criminal Trespass Il 1 CIRC
162.247 Interfere with Police Officer 1 CIRC
162.315(c) Resisting Arrest - Dis, Conduct 1 CIRC
166.025(b) Disorderly Conduct 2nd Deg 2 CIRC
OTHER B 7 ™ NAT  2i0lbs  SRt0lm  BLK  BRO
‘GRAND RONDE OR 97347
Home #: Bus #: ( Cell#: (
ssn: pLN: I or
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,GRAND RONDE OR 97347
Home # || b5vs M co!# (
SSN: pDLN: IEEOR
Complexion: Clothing:
Suspect Actions:
VICTIV SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO
27100 SALMON RIVER HWY ,GRAND RONDE OR 97347
Bus #: (503) 8792350
PROPERTY
Jem # Tag Celegory Make Moade) Serial #
3 001 R1700673G108001 MISCELLANEQUS
OAN COLOR NeIC UCR
K.
Oasetiption
TASER PROBES, CARTRIDGE AND DOORS
Ownarship Properly Slalus  Eslimaie Properly Sialus  Estimale =
Name: Evidence: Y 1.00
Phone!
Address:
Recovered/ Selzed From B Selzure
Nama: L.ocation.
Address! Officer:
Phene: Recovered Date!
tem # Tag Calagory Nake Model Sedal #
003 R17006873G108003 PHOTOS/FILM
OAN COLOR NCIC UCR
K.
Descriplion
BODY CAMERA FOOTAGE
Ownership Proporly Siatus  Estimale Propoerly Slalts — Estimala
Name: Evidence: Y 1.00
Phone:
Address:
Racovared/ Selzad From Selzure o
Name: Location:
Address: Officer:
Phone; Recovered Date:
[tem # Tag Category Make Mcdel Serial #
004 R1700673G108004 DOCUMENTS
OAN COLOR NCIC UCR -
Kl
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Dazedpllon
SECURITY INCIDENT REPORTS
Owaorship Proparty Slalus  Esllmate Propary Stalus  Estmate
Name; Evidence: Y 1.00
Phone:
Address!
Recovarad! Selzed Frem Seliure
Name: Locatlon:
Address: Offfcar:
Phone: Recovered Dale;
Hem# Teg Calepory Make Madel Seddel #}
005 R1700673G108005 PHOTOS/FiLM
O0AN CGLOR Nete UCR
Kl
Dascriplion
CDR-photos of Taser Deployment area
Gwnérship Propenty Siaius _ Esiimale Proparly Stalus  Eslimate
Name: Evidence: Y 1,00
Phone:
Address:
Rocoveradf Sslzed From Solxura
Name; Locatfon:
Address: Officer;
Phone: Recovered Date:
" MO
NARRATIVE

On 8/13/2017 | was on duty, in full uniform and clearly displaying a badge. At 1703 hours | was
dispatched to Spirlt Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Salmon River Highway, Grand Ronde, Polk
County, Oregon, for report of a male that was trespassing. While en route, dispatch advised that the
male was H B Ooc I and that he had a felony warrant out of Yamhill County.
Lt. Hernandez advised he was already out of the county and end of watch, but advised that i
brother, may be arotind and has assault law enforcement in the past. Dispatch further
advised that the warrant was confirmed for Asssault in the second degree and that had
caution flags for assault on a public safety officer. Dispatch also advised he was intoxicated. While en
route | located DMV photo and viewed it, as well as the warrant information.
I called for a cover unit, and the closest cover unit was Polk County Deputy LaCombe, who was
responding from Dallas. | called Spirit Mountain Casino Security, who advised that [l was
permanently trespassed from the casino and that he was being confrontational with security. | advised
dispatch | would be increasing my response and responding without waiting for a cover unit due to
casino security being at risk, especially given [JJJJJli| cautions for interfering with police and the
warrant being for assault Il, which | know includes serious physical injury as an element.
As | arrived at the casino, Security Supervisor Micky Wood advised that [JJJJJli| was headed
towards the valet entrance and the green parking lot. | went to that location and security pointed out
walking with a female in about the third row of parking. | recognized [JJJJil| fom his DMV
photo. | had my body camera activated already. The following happened in substance, to the best of
my recollection and perception at the time of the incident,
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The female,

I drew my Taser and loudly yelled "stop! Police!” and “get on the ground” to
| gave verbal

later identified as [} DOB | asked if | meant her or
commands for Ms. to move to the side and gave vetbal commands to to “get on
the ground!" [l refused to get on the ground and was yelling at me. Ms, was yelling at
me. | sidestepped to my left while pointing my Taser at while | continued to shout verbal
commands to “get on the ground, get on the ground NOWJ"

continued to refuse to get on the ground and yelled at me, Ms. continued to refuse
orders to move aside and kept physically putting herself between my Taser and I continued
to yell verbal commands to “stopl” and “get on the ground or you will be Tased!" while pointing my
Taser at [} from about 10 feet away. I observed put his hands up but point his feet
towards me in an aggressive stance, and | believed was gefting ready to assault me. At that
time, Ms. [ was stil yelling at me and walking towards me aggressively.

Due to the severity of the crime of Assault Il that [JJij was wanted for, the known factors of
having a history of interfering with police and associated cautions, the fact that [Jij was
continually refusing orders to get on the ground and his aggressive stance and shouts, the fact that
appeared to be larger than me, my cover unit likely still being 5-10 minutes away, as well as
Ms. walking towards me while yelling and physicaily attempting to stop me from taking

into custody, | was afraid | would be assaulted and would have to physically fight both Ms.

I quickly sidestepped to my left and pulled the trigger of my Taser while it was

and
pointed atm it was effective, with the probes and wires hitting i} in the upper Torso

area.
| observed fall back to the ground. Ms. |} began screaming at me “you
motherfucker!” and | had to yell verbal commands at her to “get on the ground or you will be Tased
tool” Ms. stood back about 6 feet from me, but continued to yell at me and approach me. |
repeatedly had to yell at Ms. to “step back!” “get on the ground” and “shut up!” because she
was yelling so loudly that | could not effectively give further instruction to

[ let dispatch know | had Tased [l and asked for medics to respond.
| told to turn over onto his stomach or he would be Tased again, and he complied. | told

to put his hands on the small of his back. | told he was under arrest for a felony
warrant and for frespass. | began putting handcuffs on continued to yell at me and
tried to roll away from me while tensing his body up. | told to stop resisting or he would be
tased again. As | attempted to double lock the handcuffs, tensed his body up and tried to rol!
away from me, and | told him again to stop resisting but he continued to try and roll away from me. |
activated my Taser again for a 5 second cycle, and ] immediately stopped resisting. | was

able to secure [l to the ground with my knee on his upper back.
While securing Ms. repeatedly screamed at me and approached me. | had to yell

commands at her to stay back and Security Supervisor Wood stepped in and kept Ms. ||l from
approaching me. Ms. began to record me on her cell phone. | told her that was fine because
| was recording on my body camera, but that she needed to do it from that distance and not approach
me again. | told her | would need her information, and told me it was his mother,

B a Casino employee, came outside and identified himself as [l brother.
B icpt trying to calm [ down as he would alternate between tensing his body up and
screaming at me, and then calming down. did not seem to recognize [ at times, and |
could smelf a moderate odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from ||l person. 1 also observed

his speech to be extremely slurred.
ﬁasked to sit up. | told him as long as he did not resist any more | would let him sit up, and he

"PRIORS: geo¥11 Inc Case ID: GRT17000673  Rep. Oficer:G108 - WOLFER,JAMES Printed By elono  EXNDITPa"q of ¢
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agreed: | sat |l up info a seated position, and he continued to alternate between being calm
and screaming at me “what did | do.” [ repeatedly explained the warrant and trespass charges to

h if he had any injures, and he told me he had a heart condition but was not having

any issues now. When medics arrived, | advised them to wait for Deputy LaCombe, who was about 2
minutes away. When Deputy LaCombe arrived, medics checked on removed the Taser
probes and wires, and cleared him for transport to the jail. | specifically asked them to check
head for any injuries from falling after being Tased, and they advised there were no visible
JInjuries and insisted he was fine.
At some point, Ms. feft the scene and was not located again.
The medics placed the Taser probes Into a locked sharps container and gave that to me, |
photographed the area where | had deployed the Taser, | collected the Taser wires and doors but
could not find any other pieces of evidence. Deputy Lacombe and | assisted [ to his feet. |
checked the handcuffs for proper tightness and fit and conducted an officer safety patdown on

for weapons and means of escape and found none. | escorted [ to the back of my
patrol vehicle and placed him in the backseat, and placed his seatbelt on. | secured the Taser
evidence in the back of my patrol vehicle.
| transported |l to the Polk County Jail. While en route, ||l cycled between calm and
quiet to loudly screaming at me while banging his head on the cage divider. | told [|Jl] several
times to stop banging his head and he would immediately comply. While driving to the Polk County
Jail, asked my name repeatedly, and after [ told him, he told me that he would kill me. |
asked him when, and he said "maybe tonight, maybe next time | see you.”
| advised dispatch of the threats made and asked that extra deputies be available at the jail in case
was combative there.
At the jail, |l was not combative. refused to have his blood alcohol content tested.
The corrections deputies explained that heeded to provide a sample to see if he was
medicaily cleared to be fodged, as they were worried about him having alcohol poisoning. || Gz
refused to provide a sample, so | transported him to the West Vailey Hospital in Dallas, Oregon. At the
hospital, was cleared by medical staff and | was given a form. | kept a copy of the form

which will be attached to this report.
| called Grand Ronde Tribal Police Sergeant Rod McAllister by telephone and advised him of the use

of force.
| transported [Jilij to the Polk County Jail, where he was lodged for the following charges:

Yamhill County Felony Warrant for Assault i, Warrant # 17CR53185,;

ORS 164,245 Criminal Trespass I, due to |||}l I >cing at Spirit Mountain Casino after
knowingly being permanently trespassed from the casino property, It should be noted that

was previousiy arrested in case 16-515 for trespassing at the casino on 9/18/2016;
ORS 162.247 Interfering with a police officer, due to [JJij refusing several orders to stop and
get on the ground after | identified myself as a police officer and while warning him to get on the

ground or he would be Tased,;
ORS 162.315 Resisting arrest, due to [JJij physically tensing his body up and attempting to
roll away from my several times whiie | was handcuffing him, after | had informed him he was

under arrest for Trespass and a Felony Warrant;

ORS 166.025 Disorderly conduct il, due to screaming loudly at me during and after the
arrest, causing several patrons to stop walking and stare, as well as being so disruptive while
being served food that he was asked to leave by Casino staff.

Rep, Officer:G108 - WOLFER, JAMES Printed By: eleno  EXWIDt A85a 5 oF ¢
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| refurned to the Grand Ronde Police station and secured the Taser probes and cartridge in evidence
as ltem # 001.

Officer Tehama returned to the scene of the incident and retrieved two AFIDS for me, which were
secured as Item # 002. See Officer Tehama's supplemental report for further.

I downloaded my body camera footage into DEMS and saved it as evidence, Item # 003,

| burned the photos | had taken onto a CDR and saved it in evidence as ltem # 005,

| later reviewed my body camera footage and observed that directly before I activated my Taser,
I ook a step backward with his hands up. | did not notice this during the incident due to the

speed at which events were unfolding and due to the fact that Ms. was approaching me and
[ believed | was about to be assautted and would have to fight both Ms. and [ IEGEGNG

without a cover unit.

On 8/14/2017 at 0636 hours | returned to Spirit Mountain Casino and spoke with Security Staff.
Security staff gave me the security reports for this incident, which is incident number INC-112829, as
well as the incident on 8/18/2016, INC-10541. In security report INC-10541, after was
arrested by Grand Ronde Tribal Police for trespass on 9/18/2016, Security explained to that
he was permanently and indefinitely excluded from the casino and that future incidents would result in
the Casino pursuing trespass charges. There is a copy of the written exciusion notice in that report

| secured both reports in evidence as ltem #004,
i also requested SMC Surveillance provide me a copy of the surveillance footage. | will attach that to

this report once received.
Security also identified Ms. ||l as the female that was with |l | looked up Ms.

Whom and noted it was a match for the female that attempted to stop me from
arresting .

At this time, | have probable cause to arrest Ms. for the following crimes:
ORS 162.325 Hindering prosecution, due to Ms, physically attempting to stop me from
taking into custody on his Felony warrant, when she continually stepped between me

and and refused orders to step aside;
ORS 162,247 Interfering with a police officer, due to Ms. refusing orders to get on the
ground, as well as refusing orders to step aside when | attempted to take [JJjjjjjijj into

custody.

CASE CLOSED BY ARREST
Copy of report to the Polk County District Attorney

SUMMARY
REVIEW STATUS: PENDING REVW REVIEWED BY: DATE: 8/14/2017 9:45:15AM
INVESTIGATOR ASSIGNED: ASSIGNED DATE:
DEPT. CASE DISPOSITION; ARREST DATE: 8/14/2017 9:44:34AM
UCR STATUS: NA DATE: 8/13/2017 5:44:.01PM  IBR EXEP CLEAR CLASS: NA
. Date Revlawad/Approvad

Reporting Officar Reviewad/Approved by

G108 WOLFER,JAMES

lli-A

u/x lllll
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In(ndent Supplement Print Date: 08/14/2017 13:39:22

GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DEPARTMENT

Caso i Supplament 1 Qecurred Date Evont Type
GRT17066673 341696 08/13/2017 17:04 TRESP1
Louation

27100 SALMON RIVER HWY

Subjeat

RECOVERY OF ANTI-FELON IDENTIFICATION TAG (AFID TAG)

Dapt Rouling
1 PCDA

. NARRATIVE
On 08/13/2017 at approximately 20:15 hours, Grand Ronde Tribal Officer James Woifer returned from
transporting his custody to Polk County Jail, Officer Wolfer advised me that he had deployed the

Taser Probes and asked for help in securing the evidence,
| asked Officer Wolfer if he had recovered any Anti-Felon Identification Tags (AFID Tags), and he

advised me that he couid not locate any.
! returned to the area where Ofc. Wolfer's Taser was deployed and recovered two AFID Tags with

matching serial numbers. | transported the AFID Tags to the Grand Ronde Police Department where |
placed them onto clear tape so the humbers were clearly visible, | then placed the tape and tags into
an evidence bag and secured it Into a locked evidence locker,

This ended my involvement in the case.

CASE STATUS: CLOSED

OFFENSES
INVOLVED PARTIES
| PROPERTY
Ham# Tag Calegory Make Madel Satiat#
002 R17060673G107002 LAW ENF EQ C4103AMCR
OAN
Diaserlption
TWO ANTI-FELON IDENTIFICATION TAGS SECURED ON INVISIBLE TAPE
Drug Typs Drug Weight Quzanlly Weagpen Stze/Callore NGIC UCR
2
Ovmorship Properly Stalus  Estimate Propedy Stalus  Eslimala
Name: Evidence: Y 1,00
Phone:
Address:
Racoysred! Salzed From Selzure
Name: Location:
Address: Offlcer:
Officer id: G107 Officer Name: TEHAMA,TOKATA dgency: GRT Date: 8/13/2017 2144
Reviewed Statys:  PENDING REVW | Reviewed by: Date: 8/13/2017 21:53
PRIORS: geco17 Inc Case  GRTI7000673 Suppl 341696 Extibitd 155 2
Page 7 of 23
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Inc}den‘[' Supplement Print Date: 08/14/2017 1313922
GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DEPARTMENT
Cage D Supplomant 1D Ouourod Dale Event Type
GRT17000673 341696 08/13/2017 17:04 TRESP1
Localien
27100 SALMON RIVER BWY
Subfeot
RECOVERY OF ANTL-FELON IDENTIFICATION TAG (AFID TAG)
Dapt Routing
1 PCDA
Phone: ] Recovered Dale:
o VEHICLES
Mo
-]
Officer td: G107 Officer Name: TEHAMA, TOKATA Agency: GRT Date: 8/13/2017 21:44
Reviewed Statys: PENDING REVW | Reviewed hy: Date: 8/13/2017 21:53
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Probable Cause Affidavit

State of Oregon ) Arresting Agency: Grand Ronde Tribal PD  Venue: X] Polk County [[] other
) _
County of Polk ) Clrcuit Court: Dallas Municipal Court: (] ~ Monmouth Municipal Court: [}

Behavioral Health Evaluation:  Yes:[[]  No: X

|, the undersigned peace officer, after belng duly sworn upon
oath do hereby swear or affirm that the following Information is
{rue to the best of my knowledge and bellef.

Arrestee: ||| EGNTHER Date & Time of Arrest; 8/13/2017 at 1711 hours
Arresting Officer: J, Wolfer Date of Crima(s): 8/13/2017 Venue: X] Polk County [] Other

Crime(s) Alleged:

ORS 164.245 Criminal Trespass ||

ORS 162.247 Interfering with a Police Offlcer

ORS 162,315 Resisting atrest

ORS 166.025 Disorderly conduct In the second degree
Felony Warrant, Yamhill County Warrant 17CR53185

Facts suppotting probable cause:;

On 8/13/2017 at 1703 hours { was dispatched to Spirit Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Saimon River Highway,

GraW, nty, Oregon for report of a male at the location trespassing. Dispatch advised that the maie
was DOB h, and advised that he had been trespass from that location In the past and
was not allowed to be at the focation. Whlle en routs, dispatch advised that Mr. had a felony warrant out

of Yamhlil Gounty and that he had a history of resisting arrest and cautlons for assaulling a police officer,

| asked for a cover unit and went towards the location. The closest cover unit was a Polk County deputy coming
from the Dallas area. | called Casino Securlty, who advised that Mr. m was beling confrontational with

securlty they were following him to the valet entrance. | wentto the valet entrance and Security pointed
out Mr, previously pulled up Mr. _ DMV photo and recognized Mr. M It should be
noted that Mr. has been arrested on previous occaslons for being at Spirit Mounta ,and he is
aware he s permanently trespassed from that location.

to the

Mr. w a female that he later sald was his mother. | drew my taser and ordered Mr.
ground. Mr. began yelling at me and refusing to cooperate, | continued to order Mr. on the

ground and he continued to refuse. The female kept stepping In hetween myself and Mr. he started
to stop while pointing my taser at Mr.d* with It t on, and he turned
take an aggressive stance towards me while yelling, "squaring up" his body,

walking away. | told Mr.

towards me. | observed Mr.

and | was afrald that he was golng to try and assault me. It should be noted that Mr. is taller than me and
his mother continued to try to confront me as well, and | knew my closest cover unit was around 5-10 minutes
away. | pulled the trigger and activated the Taser, hltting Mr. in the upper Torso area. Mr. fell to
the ground. { told him to turn over and he did. | told Mr, at he was under arrest for trespass and for a
felony warrant.

{ ptaced handeuffs on Mr, [JJJJl Atter placing the handeuffs on Mr. |JJlj before | could double lock them,

Exhibit A9
Page 9 of 23




he began to try and roli away from me and yell at me that he did not do anything. | told Mr, to stop

resisting and | tried to hold Mr, q down but he continued to try and roll away from me while yelling at me. |
activated the taser a second time as { felt that Mr, was attempting to try and get up and push me off of
him. During this time, the female continued to yell at me and approach me while [ yelled at her to stay back. After
the second taser cycle, Mr. stopped resisting. Security was keeping the female subject away from us.

agreed to not try and resist ani/ more, and | had him sit up. | asked Mr. If he had any injuries

fir.
and
and

Mr.
famity mamber, who Identifled himself as Mr,

offlcer, | believed Mr. was intoxicated.
| asked for medics to come and they arrived. When my cover unit, Deputy LaCombe arrived, medics came In and
removed the Taser probes from Mr. and determined he had no Injurfes and was okay to be transported to
the Polk County Jall.

While en route to the Polk County Jail, Mr. H would alternate between being quiet and banging his head on
the window of my pairol vehicle while screaming at me. Mr. [JJJlij a'so told me that he would kill me, elther

tonlght or next time he saw me.

At the Polk County Jall, Mr. “ refused to cooperate with jail deputies to be medically cleared. | took
o Waest Valley Hospltal In Dallas, OR where he was svaluated and medically cleared. | took M.

m t
ack to the Polk County Jail where he was jodged on the following crimes:

ORS 164.245 Criminal Trespass I! , for being at Spirlt Mountain Casino after previously being arrested for criminal
traspass at that locatlon and being told he was permanently trespassed from the location.

e said no. | observed that Mr. had a strong odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from hls breath
ierson and observed his speech to be slurred. A family member of Mr. came outside and trled to talk

Into being more calm, as he was velling loudly at me at times. Mr. did not recognize the
brother. From my training and experlence as a police

Yambhilt County Felony warrant# 17CR53185

ORS 162.247 Interferlng with a Police Officer, when Mr. refused to stop and get on the ground when |
gave him saveral loud verbal commands to stop walking and lay down on the ground,

ORS 162.315 Resisting arrest: for attempting to pull away from me after | told him he was under arrest,

ORS 166.026 Disorderly conduct In the second degree: For yelling loudly in the parking lot, causing muitiple
patrons to stop and stare, as well as being verbally confrontational with casino security.

Additional statement attached []

Signature of Arresting Offlcer:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of , 201

Release Assistance Officar/Deputy

Defendant released before probable cause determination.

Bail
Recog  Deputy Authorizing Release; ‘ Date & Time

[ 1! find probable cause exists to belleve the arrestas committed the crime(s),

Exhibit A9
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[ 11 find Insufficlent probable cause exists, based on the Information provided hereln.

Time

Judge: Date

Exhibit A9
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ARREST REPORT

[ CASE# 17-673

POLK COUNTY JAIL
NAME OF PERSON ARRESTED ALIAS OR NICKNAME(S) ARREST DATE
8/13/17
ADDRESS OF ARRESTEE OGGUPATION TIVE
1711 hours

SOCIAL SECURITY # | CITIZENSHIP | BIRTH PLAGE DRIVER'S LICENSE ## STATE MAR. STAT | BIRTH DATE

I OrR ]
AGE RACE SEX | EYES | HAIR LENGTH HEIGHT | WEIGHT BUILD
32 American Indian/Alag M | Browr{ Brown Short 510" {185 Medium
WHERE ARRESTED HOW ARREST MADE | GOURT OFFENSE DATE
Spirit Mountain Casino PC, warrant Polk County 8/13/2017
VICTIM NAME / DOB/ RACE Drunk X Cursed [ spit at Officers
Spirit Mountain Casino [ Drinking Reslsted Iﬁ Under Influence / Drugs

MENTAL HEALTH
VICTIM NAME / DOB/ RACE CONCERN GANG
[ Yes [INo

WEAPON IF ARMED OTHER PERSONS ARRESTED FOR SAME OFFENSE
PROPERTY PLACED IN PROPERTY ROOM RECEIPT #
NAME OF COMPLAINANT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
WITNESS'S NAME BEST CONTACT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
1.
WITNESS'S NAME BEST CONTACT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
2,
STATUTE CHARGE DESCRIPTION DOMESTIC? CRIME CLASS BAIL
164.245 Criminal Trespass I{ No C misd
162.247 Interfering with police officer No A misd
162,315 Resisting arrest No A misd
166,025 Disorderly conduet II No B misd
Warrant Felony Warrant, Yamhill County # 17CR53185 No Felony

Exhibit A9
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OFFICER’S NARRATIVE
On 8/13/2017 at 1703 hours I was dispatched to Spirit Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Salmon River Highway,

Grand Ronde, Polk County, Oregon for report of a male at the location trespassing. Dispatch advised that the male
was -- DOB I and advised that he had been trespass from that location in the past and
was not allowed to be at the location, While en route, dispatch advised that M, had a felony warrant out
of Yamhill County and that he had a history of resisting arrest and cantions for assaulting a police officer.

I asked for a cover unit and went towards the location, The closest cover unit was a Polk County deputy coming
from the Dallas area. I called Casino Security, who advised that M. q was being confrontational with
security staff and they were following him to the valet entrance. I went to the valet entrance and Secwrity pointed

out Mr, ] had previousty pulled up Mr. [l DMV photo and recognized M, It should be
noted that M, has been arrested on previous occasions for being at Spirit Mountain Casino, and he is

awate he is permanently trespassed from that location.

Mr, w}x a female that he later said was his mother. [ drew my taser and ordered M, to the
ground. Mr, began yelling at me and refusing to cooperate, I continued to ovder M. to Jay on
the ground and he continued to refuse. The female kept stepping in between myself and Mr.
started walking away. I told Mr. to stop while pointing my taser at Mr. with it turned on, and he
turned towards me, [ observed Mr, take an aggressive stance towards me while yelling, "squaring up" his
body, and I was afraid that he was going to try and assanlt me. It should be noted that Mr, is taller than
me and his mother continued to try to confront me as well, and I knew my closest cover unit was around 5-10
minutes away. [ pulled the trigger and activated the Taser, hitting M, in the upper Torso area. Mr,

fell to the ground. I told him to turn over and he did, I told M, that he was under arrest for

trespass and for a felony warrant.

I placed handeuffs on M. [ After placing the handcuffs on Mr. [Jij before I could double lock them,
he began to try and roll away from me and yell at me that he did not do anything, I told Mr. to stop
resisting and [ tried to hold Mr., down but he continued to try and roll away from me while yelling at me.
I activated the taser a second time as [ felt that Mr, was attempting fo try and get up and push me off of
him, During this time, the female continued to yell at me and approach me while I yelled at her fo stay back. After
the second taser cycle, M, stopped resisting, Secutity was keeping the female subject away from us,

M, agreed to not try and resist any mote, and I had him sit up. I asked M, if he had any
injuries and he said no. I observed that Mr. had a strong odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from his

breath and person and observed his speech to be slared. A family member of Mr. came outside and tried
to talk Mr, h loudly at me at times. Mt, did not recognize

into being more calm, as he was yellin
the family member, who identified himself as Mr, ﬁ brother, From my training and experience as a police
officer, I believed Mr, was intoxicated,

I asked for medics to come and they arrived, When my cover unit, Deputy LaCombe arrived, medies came in and
removed the Taser probes from Mr, and determined he had no injuries and was okay to be transported to

the Polic County Jail,

While en route to the Polk County Jail, Mt. - would alternate between being quict and banging his head on
the window of my patrol vehicle while screaming at me. M. [JJij also told me that he would kill me, either

tonight or next time he saw me.

At the Polk County jail, Mr. [l refused to cooperate with jail deputies to be medically cleared. I took M,
to West Valley Hospital in Dallas, OR whete he was evaluated and medically cleated. I took M,
back to the Polk County Jail whete he was lodged on the following crimes:

ORS 164.245 Criminal Trespass 11, for being at Spirit Mountain Casino after previously being arrested for
criminal trespass at that location and being told he was permanently trespassed from the location, .o
Page 13 of 23
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ARRESTING OFFIGER/AGENCY

REPORT MADE BY

FINAL DISPOSITION
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Wnr}!School Excuse Letter

Ca) SALEM HEALTH
%ué:} An OHSU Patiner

OHSU

525 Se Washington St
Dallas OR 97338
503-623-8301

August 13, 2017

patient, | SN I

Date of Birth:
Date of Visit;

8/13/2017

To Whom It May Concern

B o5 scon and treated In our emergency department on 8/13/2017, He
may be lodged in Jall without restrictions .

Additional Information:

If you have any questions or concerns, please don't hesitate to call,

Attending Physician Webb C Wilson, MD

Exhibit A9
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SALEM HEALTH
(, ¢*/ WEST VALLEY
Bﬁgﬁ An OHSU Partner

Memo

To! Patients of Salem Health West Valley Emergency Department
From:  Dallas Oregon Emergency Physiclans
Re: Patient Blliing

Dallas Qregon Emergenoy Physliclans (the “Physiclans” group In the Emergency Department at Salem Health West Vallsy, Dallas
Oregon) Is currantly confracted as In in-network providerwith muttiple Insurance payers,

We will accept the insurance payer's allowable amount as payment in ful (the amount may or may not include
patlent's co-insurance, co-pays and/or deductibles).

You are responsible for any applicable co-Insurance, co-nay, and/or deductible under yourinstirance plan up to
the allowed amount.

if vou receive an Explanation of Benefits (EOB) statement from your insurance payer and it shows
a remaining balance other than the applicable co-insurance. co-pay, andlor deductible, please fax
your EOB to the fax number listed below (use this document as the fax cover) to ensure that the

bill is adjusted accordingly and shows the applicable co-insurance, co-pay, and/or deductible, and
ait for a final statement from the Dallas Oregon raency Physicians that will reflect the

corrected balance.

1. Should your Insuranca company send & check dlrecily to you Instead of the Physlclans, either
A.  Sign over and send the insuranca check to Dallas Oregon Emergenoy Physlclans along with any co-insurance,
co-pay, and/or deductible; or
B.  Cash the Insurance check and send a personal check (to include the Insurance payment and applicable co-
Insurence, co-pay, and/or deductible) to the Dallas Oregon Emergency Physiclans at the address listed below,
Please Include your EOB, and If you choose option B, please also Include a copy of the insurance check.

Address;

Dallas Oregon Emergency Physlclans
PO Box 98686

Las Vegas, NV, 89123-8686

If you have any questions, our dedlcated customer servics team can tespond immedlately. The number ls 800-356-2470
{this number Is also printed on each statement)

Fex Number: 610-834-2826

Aftention: Michelle Lewis, Patient Lialson (WDQO Account)

Subject: EOB Copy ~ Request Insurance Adjustment & Revised Bill

Pafient Name:

Date of Service (Date of ED Visif).
No. of Pages:

1 Exhibit A9
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SALEM HEALTH

€Y WEST VALLEY
ousg  An OHSU Pariner

525 SE Washington St., Dallas, OR 97338

After Visit Summary
8/13/2017 1 R

Survey
if you were given a patient satisfaction survey during this visit, please complete it and place in the box as you
leave. Your opinion does matter to us. If you have been referred to your PCP or a local doctor for follow up,
please let the office know you were seen in the West Valley Emergency Department at the time you make
your appointment so that your records can be obtained prior to your visit.

Do you have questions? Here are some numbers to help

1. Imaging (X-ray, Scans) or Lab results: Please contact your primary provider,

2. Discharge instructions from the Emergency Department: Please call 503-623-8301,
ask for the Emergency Department or access your instructions following the
'MyChart' instructions on your discharge documents.

3. Dallas Oregon Emergency Physician bill: Please call 1-800-355-2470 (M-F
0930-4:00)
4. West Valley Hospital bill: Please call 503-5681-1747

CHEC
An excellent Salem Health resource for educational Information or research on medical conditions
Is the Salem Health Community Health Education Center (CHEC) at 503-814-2432 or go online to

Salemhealth.org and click on the CHEC tink.

You were seen by
You were seen by Wilson, Webb C, MD.

Visit Information
Date & Time Department Encounter #

8/13/2017 6:27 PN Emergency Department 55454265

Reason for Visit
MEDICAL CLEARANCE
Reason for Visit History

Clinical Impression
Your diagnosis was MEDICAL CLEARANCE FOR INCARCERATION.

Ixhibit A9
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ff you were given prescriptions, they are listed below. PLEASE NOTE: No
refills will be given for prescriptions written in the ED. Please contact your
Physician or referring physician for refills,

¥ Notice
You have not been prescribed any medications.

Additional Information

Based on the information you provided to us, as well as any changes during this visit, the following
list Is your updated medication list. Please do the following: * Update or discard any previous
medication lists you may have « Compare this list with your prescription botties at home and
discard any medications that this list indicates should be stopped. * Bring your most up to date
medication list to your follow up primary care physiclan visit, * if you have any questions or
concerns., contact your primary care physician's office.

Follow-up information
Schedule an appointment as soon as possible for a visit with Health, Grand Ronde
Tribal,
Why: As needed, If symptoms worsen
Contact information:
9615 Grand Ronde RD
Grand Ronde OR 97367
1-503-879-5211

Appointments for Next 3 Days
None

MyChart Instructions
Activate your MyChart account today!

Thank you for your Interest in signing up for MyChart. Please follow the instructions below to securely access
your online health information,

Why Should I Sign Up?

» Communicate with your primary care provider's (PGP) office
* Request prescription refills

+ View test resuits

* Schedule appointments with your PCP

* Review Information from future and past appointments

* Review your discharge Instructions

How Do | Sign Up?

1. In your Internet browser, go to hitp://www.salemheaith.ora/mychart

* Under "New User?" click "Sign Up Now"

2. On the "Please Identify Yourself" screen, enter the following information:
* Your MyChart Activation Code exactly as It appears:

JBSFP-V7KDJ

Exhibit A9
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Expires: 9/27/2017 6:35 PM
v Your Date of Birth (mm/dd/yyyy)
» Last 4 digits of your Scclal Security Number
+ Click Next

3. Onthe "Choose a Username & Password" screen, enter the following information:
+ Create and Type In a MyChart Username
+ Type in a MyChart password
* Retype your Password
+ Select a Security Question from the dropdown list
+ Type iIn your Secret Answer
+ Click Next

4. On the "E-mall Notlfications" screen, enter the following Information:
Click the Yes button to Enable E-mali Notiflcations

* Type In your personal e-mail address

+ Retype your e-mail address

¢+ Click Sign In

For help with the MyChart web site please refer to the MyChart home page FAQs at
https://mychart.salemhealth.org/mychart/defauit.as ode=stdflle&option=fa

For questions about your medical Informatlon in MyChart, please contact your doctor or clinig,

Exhibit A9
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SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENT
Prepare for Eclipse on August 21%, 2017

Local authorities have predicted a significant population increase in our community
before, during, and after the eclipse. Please refer to the below suggestions regarding

your healthcare needs during this time,

Community impact:
We anticipate that some community services and medical clinics may be closed on

August 21* the day of the eclipse. If you anticipate needing non<emergent medical
services (lab work, imaging), we encourage you to please call the week prior to
determine their availability,

Go to an emergency department or call 911 for problems such as:
» Suddenly not able to speak, see, walk or move

» Dizziness or weakness that does not go away

* Trouble breathing

* Chest pain, pain in jaw or arm

* Coughing or throwing up blood

* Inhaled smoke or poisonous fumes

* Poisoning or overdose of drug/alcohol

« Unusual or bad headache, sudden onset

* Broken bones, deep wounds, heavy bleeding

» Suicidal thoughts

* Throwing up or loose stools that does not stop

» High fever that does not get better with medicine

* High fever with headache and stiff neck

* Severe allergic reaction with trouble breathing, swelling, hives
» Passing out, fainting :

» Chemical burns

* Sudden confusion

« Seizures

* Severe pain anywhere on the body

When to go to an Urgent Care:

* Common illnesses, such as colds, the flu, earaches, sore throats, migraines, low-
grade fevers, and mild rashes

» Minor injuries, such as sprains, back pain, or minor cuts
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GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DISPATCH REPORT

Case Number: GRT17000673

Response

Looatlon: 27100 SALMON RIVER HW ( 27100 SALMON RIVER HW, @SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO (MapBook:2792), POLK COUNTY )

SequsenceNumber: GRT201708130027
Response Type: TRESP1

Creatlon Date: 08/13/17 17:04:29
Priorty: 3

Primery Unit: G108

Disposition Codes

Codea
01- REPORT

Caller Information

CallerName: ELLIS, TANNER
Celler Address: SECURITY

Response Statuses

Zane: GRTO1
Dispaich Group: GRTO1
Alarmbevel;

TimeStamp
08/13/17 18:837:01

Caller Phone: B03-879-3732

Status Name Stalug Dale/Time

PENDING 08/13/17 17:04:29

DISPATCH 08/13/17 17.06:62

ENRCUTE 08/13/17 17:09:66

AT SCENE 08/13/17 17:10:60

TRANSPORT_ 08/18/17 17:37:31

AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:03:06

TRANSPORT.. 08/13/17 18:17:19

LEAVE SCENE 0B/13/17 18:38:22

AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:98:24

TRANSPORT.. 08/13/17 18:38:26

AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:40:62

CLEAR 08/13/17 19:37;02

DHSPOSED 0B/18/17 19:42:04

Resource Statuses

Aesource Name Aesotrce Agency Stalus Slatus Date/Time
G108 GRT DISPATCH 08/18/17 17:06:52
G108 QGRT ENROUTE 08/13/17 17:09:64
G108 @GRT AT SCENE 0813117 17:10:60
G108 GRT TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 17:37:31
Qaios GRT AT_FACILITY 08/13117 18:03:08
Gi08 GRT TRANSPORT... 08113M17 1817119
G108 GRT LEAVE SCENE 08/13/17 18:38:22
Qios GRT AT FACIITY 08/13/17 18:38:24
G108 GRT TRANSFPORT_ 08/13/17 18:38:26
G108 GaRT AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:40:62
Gios GRT CLEAR 08/13/17 19:37:02
Response Notes

Notg Daie/Tims Agent display Name
(B108) G108 Siatus has been changed to DISPATCH 08/13/17 17.06:68 PPSS
Agent ABRANLUND Workstatior:CR10

{G108) G108 Status has been changad to ENROUTE 08/13/17 17:08:65 PPSS
Agent: ABRANLUND Workstation:CP10

{G108) G108 Slatus has bean changed to AT SCENE 08/18/17 17:10:60 PPSS
Agent: ABRANLUND WorkstatlionCP10
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(G108) ONE TASED 08/1317 17:13:16 ABRANLUND
Milestone of "GRT201708130027" has been modlfled to "CODE 4"  {08/13/17 17:18:03 ABRANLUND
(G108) G108 Status has besn changed to TRANSPORT .. 08/138/17 17:37:31 PPSS
Agen:ABRANLUND Workstation;CP10
Mlleslonanof "GRT201708130027" has been modiflsd to *LOCATE 08/18/17 17:45:16 ABRANLUND
ROUTED
(@108) G108 Status has baen changed to AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:03:08 PPSS
1Agent ABRANLUND Workstation:CP10
(&108) G108 Status has baen changed to TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18:17:19 PPSS
Agent ABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP1¢
(G108) G108 Status has been changed to LEAVE SCENE 08/13/17 18:38:22 PPSS
Agont:ABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP10 ‘
(G108) G108 Status has been changed to AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:36:24 PPSS
AgentABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP10
(G108) G108 Stalus has been changed to TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18:38:27 PPSS
Agent:ABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP10
(Q108) PCJ 08/13/17 18:38:35 ABRANLUND
(G108) G108 Status has besn changed to AT_FACILITY Agent:RHAY[08/18/17 18:40:52 PPSS
Workstatlon:CP10
(G108) G108 Status has been changed to CLEAR Agent:RHAY 08/13/17 19:37:08 PPSS
Workstation:CP10
Incident Notes
Note Dats/Time Agent dlsplay Name
[603-879-3732] MALE AT LOC WHO 1S TRESPASSING., MALE IS |08/18/17 17:03:38 MGWYN
IN THE SUMMIT VIEW LOUNGE
503-879-3732] WILLING TO PRESS CHARGES 08/13/17 17:08:42 MAWYN
(603-879-3732] MAL APX 80'S 08/13/17 17:04:16 MAWYN
[603-879-3732] MALE HAS BEEN TRESPASSED BEFORE 08/18/17 17.04:24 MGWYN
DOB 08/18/17 17:04:40 MGWYN
MALE/WMA,MED BUILD,DARK HAIR,UNK CLOTHING 08/13/17 17:08:20 MGWYN
UNK WEAPONS/ MALE IS INTOXICATED ON ALCOHOL 08/18/17 17:05:62 MAWYN
SECURITY OFCR'S ARE WATCHING MALE 08/13/17 17:08;02 MGWYN
**CONFIRMED OFN/ASSAULT 2 DOW/2017/08/11 CRT/OR036015J |08/13/17 17:09:45 ABRANLUND
- YAMHILL COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT WTP/FEL WNO/{7CR631856
BAL/160000-00..FELONY CAUTION**
STEPPING UP RESPONSE 08/13/17 1710110 ABRANLUND
SUBJ IS NOW CONFRONTATIONAL ON SUBJ 08/13/17 17:11:26 ABRANLUND
YAMHILL CO HAS PC THEY HAVE PC 08/13/17 17:11:48 ABRANLUND
ROLL MEDICS 08/13/17 17:13:46 ABRANLUND
CALING YCOM.. FOR MEDICS 08/13/17 17:14:09 ABRANLUND
OUTSIDE VALLET 08/13/17 17:14:44 ABRANLUND
G108 ON GROUND HOLDING HiM UNTIL COVER ARRIVES 08/19/17 17:15:26 ABRANLUND
G108 CODE 4 FOR MEDICS TO ENTER..SUBJS STILL ON THE 08/13/17 17:18:62 ABRANLUND
QROUND BUT BEING COMPLIANT
P(020>> COMPLETE CODE 4 08/13/17 17:31:36 ABRANLUND
PCJ WILL NEED MULTIPLE DEPS,. THREATS TO OFFICERS 08/18/17 17:48:18 ABRANLUND
ETA 10.. JAIL ADVISED fos/13/17 17:40:02 ABRANLUND
Disposition Notes
|Note {Date/Time 1Agent display Name {
Person Information
First
Lest Name: [ Name: Middte Name: [l Gender:Race:
[ |
License: State: olelz] |
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Confederated Tribes of Grand

Ronde Police Department
Palicy Manual

Conducted Energy Device

304.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
This policy provides guidelines for the issuance and use of TASER® devices.

304.2 POLICY
The TASER device is intended to control a violent or potentiaily violent individual, while minimizing
the risk of serlous injury. The appropriate use of such a device should result in fewer serlous

Injuries to officers and suspects.

304.3 ISSUANCE AND CARRYING TASER DEVICES
Only members who have sticcessfully completed department-approved tralning may be issued

and carry the TASER device.

TASER devices are Issued for use during a member's current assignment. Those leaving a
particular assignment may be required to return the device to the department’s inventory.

Officers shall only use the TASER device and cartridges that have been issued by the Department,
Uniformed officers who have been issued the TASER dsvice shall wear the device in an approved
holster on their person,

Members carrying the TASER device shouid perform a spark test on the unit prior to every shift,

{a) All TASER devices shall be clearly and distinctly marked to differentiate them from the duty
weapon and any other device,

(b)  Whenever practicable, officers should carry two or more cartridges on their person when
cartying the TASER device.

(¢) Officers shall be responsible for ensuring that their issted TASER device is properly
malintained and in good working order,

(d)  Officers should not hold both a firearm and the TASER device at the same time.

304.4 VERBAL AND VISUAL WARNINGS

A verbal warning of the intended use of the TASER device should precede its application,
unfess it would otherwise endanger the safety of officers or when it is not practicabls due to the
circumstances. The purpose of the warning is to:

(a) Provide the individual with a reasonable opportunity to voluntarily comply.

(b) Provide other officers and individuals with a warning that the TASER device may be
deployed.

If, after a verbal warning, an individual is unwilling to voluntarily comply with an officer's lawful
orders and it appears both reasonable and feasible under the circumstances, the officer may, but
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Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department

Policy Manual

Conducted Energy Device

Is not required to, display the efectrical arc (provided that a cartridge has not been loaded into the
device), or the laser in a further attempt to gain compliance prior to the appiication of the TASER
device, The aiming laser should never be intentionally directed into the eyes of another as it may
permanently impair his/her vislon.

The fact that a verbal or other warning was given or the reasons it was not given shall be
documented by the officer deploying the TASER device in the related report.

304.5 USE OF THE TASER DEVICE
The TASER device has limitations and restrictions requiring consideration before its use, The

TASER device shouid only be used when Its operator can safely approach the subject within the
operational range of the device. Although the TASER device s generally effective in controlling
most individuals, officers should be aware that the device may not achieve the intended results
and be prepared with other options.

304.5.1 APPLICATION OF THE TASER DEVICE
The TASER device may be used in any of the following circumstances, when the circumstances

perceived by the officer at the time indicate that such application is reasonably necessary to control
a person:

(@) The subject is violent or Is physicaily resisting.

{b)  The subject has demonstrated, by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically
reslst, and reasonably appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or
others.

Mere flight from a pursuing officer, without other known clrcumstances or factors, is not good
cause for lhe use of the TASER device to apprehend an individual.

304.6.2 SPECIAL DEPLOYMENT CONSIDERATIONS

The use of the TASER device on certain individuals should generally be avoided uniess the totality
of the circumstances indicates that other available options reasonably appear ineffective or would
present a greater danger to the officer, the subject or others, and the officer reasonably believes
that the need to control the individual outweighs the risk of using the device, This includes:

{a) Individuals who are known to be pregnant.

(h) Elderly individuals or obvious juveniles.

(¢} Individuals with obviously low body mass,

(d) Individuals who are handcuffed or otherwise restrained.

{e} Individuals who have been recently sprayed with a flammable chemicai agent or who
are otharwise in close proximity to any known combustible vapor or flammable material,
including alcohol-based cleoresin capsicum (OC) spray.

Copyrigit Lexipal, LLC 2017/02/08, Al Rights Resarved. Conductad Energy Babiiluit Ad 1
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Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Palley Manual

Conducted Energy Device

(i Individuals whase position or activity may result in collateral injury (e.g., falls from height,
operating vehicles).

Because the application of the TASER device in the drive-stun mode (i.e., direct contact without
probes) relies primarily on pain compliance, the use of the drive-stun mode generally should be
limited to supplementing the probe-mode to complete the circuit, or as a distraction technique
to gain separation between officers and the subject, thereby giving officers time and distance to
consider other force options or actions,

The TASER device shall not be used to psychologically torment, elicit statements or to punish
any individual.

304.5.3 TARGETING CONSIDERATIONS _
Reasonable efforts should be made to target lower center mass and avoid the head, neck, chest

and groin. If the dynamics of a situation or officer safety do not permit the officer to limit the
application of the TASER device probes to a precise target area, officers should monitor the
condition of the subject if one or more probes strikes the head, neck, chest or groin until the subject
is examined by paramedics or other medical personnel.

304.5.4 MULTIPLE APPLICATIONS OF THE TASER DEVICE
Officers should apply the TASER device for only one standard cycle and then evaluate the situation

before applying any subsequent cycles. Multiple applications of the TASER device against a single
individual are generally not recommended and should be avoided unless the officer reasonably
believes that the need to control the individual outweighs the potentially increased risk posed by
multiple applications.

If the first application of the TASER device appears to be ineffective in gaining contral of an
individual, the officer should conslider certain factors before additional applications of the TASER
device, Including:

(8) Whether the probes are making proper contact.

(b)  Whether the Individual has the ability and has been given a reasonable opportunity to
comply. -

(c) Whether verbal commands, other options or tactics may be more effective.

Officers should generally not intentionally apply more than one TASER device at a time against
a single subject, ‘

304,556 ACTIONS FOLLOWING DEPLOYMENTS
Officers shall notify a supervisor of all TASER device discharges. Confetti tags should be collected

and the expended cartridge, along with wire, shouid be submitted into evidence. If under the
circumstances, the Patrol Sergeant advises submitting the probes, both probes shall also be
submitted into evidence. The cartridge serial number should be noted and documented on
the evidence paperwork. The evidence packaging should be marked "Biohazard" if the probes
penetrated the subject’s skin. :
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Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Policy Manual

Conducted Energy Device

304.5.6 DANGEROUS ANIMALS
The TASER device may be deployed against an animal as part of a plan to deal with a potentially

dangerous animal, such as a dog, if the animal reasonably appears o pose an imminent threat to
human safety and alternative methods are not reasonably available or would likely be Ineffective.

304.5.7 OFF-DUTY CONSIDERATIONS

Ofticers are not authorized to carry department TASER devices while off-duty.

Officers shall ensure that TASER devices are secured while in their homes, vehicles or any other
area under their control, in a manner that will keep the device inaccessible to others,

3046 DOCUMENTATION
Officers shall document all TASER device discharges in the related arrest/crime report and the

TASER device report form, Notification shall also be made to a supervisor in compliance with the
Use of Foree Policy. Unintentional discharges, pointing the device at a person, laser activation
and arcing the device will also be documented on the report form.

304.6.1 TASER DEVICE REPORTING

items that shall be included in the use of force report are;

(8) The type and brand of TASER device and cartrldge and castridge setial number.
(b) Date, time and location of the Incident.

(¢)  Whether any display, laser or arc deterred a subject and gained compliance.

{(d) The number of TASER device activations, the duration of each cycle, the duration between
activations, and (as best as can be determined) the duration that the subject received

applications.
() The range at which the TASER device was used.
{(f}  The type of mode used (probe or drive-stun).
{(g) Location of any probe impact,
{h}  Location of contact In drive-stun mode,
) Description of where missed probes went.
()  Whether medical care was provided to the subject.
(k)  Whether the subject sustained any injuries.
(

1} Whether any officers sustained any injurles.

The Training Officer should periodically analyze the reports to identify trends, including deterrence
and effectiveness.
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Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Polley Manual

Conducted Energy Device

304.6.2 REPORTS
The officer should include the following in the arrest/crime report:

(a} Identification of all personnel firing TASER devices

{b) Identification of ali withesses

(¢} Medical care provided to the subject

(d) Observatlons of the subject's physical and physiclogical actions

{e) Any known or suspected drug use, intoxication or other medical problems

304.7 MEDICAL TREATMENT
Consistent with local medical personnel protocols and absent extenuating circumstances, it

is preferred that appropriate medical personnel should remove TASER device probes from a
person's body. Used TASER device probes shall be treated as a sharps biohazard, similar o a
used hypodermic needle, and handled appropriately. Universal precautions should be taken.

All persons who have been struck by TASER device probes or who have been subjected to the
electric discharge of the device shall be medically assessed prior to booking. Additionally, any
such individual who falls under any of the following categories should, as soon as practicable, be
examined by paramedics or other qualifled medical perscnnel.

{a) The person is suspected of being under the influence of controlled substances and/or
alcohol,

(b) The person may be pregnant.
(c) The person reasonably appears to be in need of medical attentlon.

{d) The TASER device probes are lodged In a sensitive area {e.g., groin, female breast, head,
face, neck).

{e} The person requests medical treatment.

Any individual exhibiting signs of distress or wha is exposed to multiple or prolonged applications
{i.e., more than 156 seconds) shall be transported to a medical facllity for examination or medically
evaluated prior to booking. if any individual refuses medical attention, such a refusal should be
withessed by another officer andfor medical personnel and shatt be fully documented in related
reports, if an audio recording is made of the contact or an interview with the individual, any refusal
should be included, if possible.

The transporting officer shall inform any person providing medical care or recelving custody that
the individual has been subjected to the application of the TASER device.
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Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Policy Manual

Conducted Energy Device

304.8 SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES
When possible, supervisors should respond lo calls when they reasonably believe there is a

likelihood the TASER device may be used, A supervisor should respond to all incidents where
the TASER device was activated.

A supervisor should review each incldent where a person has been exposed to an activation of
the TASER device. The device's onboard memory should be downloaded through the data port
by a supervisor or Rangemaster and saved with the related arrest/crime report. Photographs of
probe sites shou!d be taken and witnesses interviewed,

304.9 TRAINING
Personnel who are authorized 1o carry the TASER device shall be permitted to do so only after

successfuily completing the initial department-approved training. Any personnel who have not
carried the TASER device as a part of their assignment for a period of slx months or more shall
be recertifled by a department-approved TASER device instructor prior to again carrying or using
the device,

Proficiency training for personnel who have been issued TASER devices should occur every year.
A reassossment of an officer's knowledge and/or practical skill may be required at any time if
deemed appropriate by the Training Officer. Alt training and proficiency for TASER devices will
be documented in the officer’s training file,

Command staff, supervisors and investigators should receive TASER device training as
appropriate for the investigations they conduct and review.

Officers who do not carry TASER devices should receive training that Is sufficlent to familiarize
them with the device and with working with officers who use the device.

The cerified TASER Instructor in the Departmentis responsible for ensuring that all members who
carry TASER devices have received Initial and annual proficiency training. Periodic audits should
be used for verification.

Application of TASER devices during training could result in injury to personnel and should not
be mandatory for certification.

The cerifled TASER Instructor in the Department shoutd ensure that all training includes:
(a} A review of this policy.
{b)  Areview of the Use of Force Policy.

{¢}  Performing weak-hand draws or cross-draws to reduce the possibility of unintentionally
drawing and firing a firearm.

(d) Target area considerations, to include techniques or options to reduce the unintentional
application of probes near the head, neck, chest and groin.

{e) Handcuffing a subject during the application of the TASER device and transitioning to other
force options.
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Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Policy Manuai

Conducted Energy Device

{f}  De-escalation techniques.

(g} Restraint techniques that do not impair resplration following the application of the TASER
device.
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Confederated Tribes of Grand

Ronde Police Department
Pollcy Manual

Standards of Conduct

319.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
This policy establishes standards of conduct that are consistent with the values and mission of

the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department and are expected of all department
members, The standards contained in this policy are not intended to be an exhaustive list of
requirements and prohibitions but they do identify many of the Important matters concerning
conduct, In addition to the provisions of this policy, members are subject to all other provisions
contained In this manual, as well as any additional guidance on conduct that may be disseminated
by this department or a member's supervisors,

319.2 POLICY
The continued employment or appointment of every member of the Confederated Tribes of Grand

Ronde Police Depariment shall be based on conduct that reasonably conforms to the guidelines
set forth herein, Faflure to meet the guidelines set forth in thls policy, whether on- or off-duty, may
be cause for disciplinary action.

319.3 DIRECTIVES AND ORDERS
Members shall comply with lawful directives and orders from any department supervisor or person

in a position of authority, absent a reasonable and bona fide justification.

319.3.1 UNLAWFUL CR CONFLICTING ORDERS
Supervisors shall not knowingly issue orders or directives that, if carried out, would resuft in a

violation of any law or department policy, Supervisors shouid not Issue orders that conflict with
any previous order without making reasonable clarification that the new order Is intended to
countermand the earlier order.

No member is required to obey any order that appears to be in direct conflict with any federal
law, state law or local ordinance. Following a known unlawful order is not a defense and does not
relieve the member from criminal or civil prosecution or administrative discipline. If the legality of
an order s in doubt, the affected member shall ask the issulng supervisor to clarify the order or
shali confer with a higher authority. The responsibility for refusal {o obey restis with the member,
who shall subsequently be required to justify the refusal.

Unless It would jeopardize the safety of any individual, members who are presented with a lawful
order that Is in conflict with a previous lawful order, department policy or other directive shafi
respectfully inform the Issuing supervisor of the conflict. The issulng supetvisor is responsible
for either resolving the conflict or clarifying that the lawful order is intended to countermand the
previous lawful order or directive, in which case the member is obliged to comply. Members who
are compelled to follow a conflicting lawful order afler having glven the Issuing supervisor the
opportunity to correct the conflict, will not be held accountable for disobedience of the lawful order
or directive that was initially issued,
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Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Policy Manual

Standards of Conduct

The person countermanding the original order shall notify, In writing, the person issuing the original
order, indicating the action taken and the reason.,

3190.3.2 SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES
Supervisors and managers are required to follow all policies and procedures and may be subject

to discipline for:

(a) Failure to be reasonably aware of the performance of thelr subordinates or to provide
appropriate guidance and control.

(b)  Failure to promptly and fully report any known misconduct of a member to his/her immediate
supervisor or to document such misconduct appropriately or as required by policy,

{c) Directing a subordinate to violate a policy or directive, acqulesce to such a violation, or are
indifferent to any such violation by a subordinate.

{d}  The unequal or disparate exercise of authority on the part of a supervisor toward any member
for malicious or other improper purpose.

319.4 GENERAL STANDARDS
Members shall conduct themselves, whether on- or off-duty, in accordance with the United States
and Oregon Constitutions and all applicable laws, ordinances and rules enacted or established

pursuant {o legal authority.

Members shall familiarize themselves with policies and procedures and are responsibie for
compliance with each. Members should seek clarification and guidance from supervisors in the
event of any perceived ambiguity or uncertainty.

Discipline may be initlated for any good cause. it is not mandatory that a specific policy or rule
violation be cited to sustain discipline, This policy Is not intended to cover every possible type of
misconduct.

319.5 CAUSES FOR DISCIPLINE
The following are illustrative of causes for disciplinary action, This list Is not intended to cover every

possible type of misconduct and does not preclude the recommendation of disciplinary action
for violation of other rules, standards, ethics and specific action or inaction that is detrimental to
efficient department service.

318.5.1 LAWS, RULE:S AND ORDERS

{a) Violation of, or ordering or instructing a subordinate to violate any policy, procedure,
rule, order, directive, requirement or failure to follow instructions contained in
department, CTGR or CTGR manuals.

(b} Disobedience of any legal directive or order Issued by any department member of a higher
rank,

(c) Violation of federal, state, tiibal or administrative laws, rules or regulations.
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Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Palicy Manuat

Standards of Conduct

319.6.2 ETHICS

{(a) Using or disclosing one's status as a member of the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde
Police Department In any way that could reasonably be perceived as an atiempt to gain
influence or authority for non-department buslness or activity. .

(b} The wrongful or uniawful exercise of authority on the part of any member for maliclous
purpose, personal gain, wllful decelt or any other improper purpose,

{c) The recelpt or acceptance of a reward, fee or gift from any person for setvice Incident to
the performance of the member's dutles (lawful subpoena fees and authorized work permits
axcepted),

(d) Acceptance of fees, gifts or money contrary to the rules of this department and/or laws of
the state.

(e) Offer or acceptance of a bribe or gratfuity,
(i Misappropriation or misuse of public funds, property, personnel or services,
() Any other failure fo abide by the standards of ethical conduct,

319.5.3 DISCRIMINATION, OPPRESSION OR FAVORITISM

Discriminating against, oppressing or providing favoritism {o any person because of age, race,
color, creed, religion, sex, sexual orlentation, gender identity or expression, national origin,
ancestry, marital status, physical or mental disability, medical condition or other classification
protected by law, or intentionally denying or impeding another in the exercise or enjoyment of any
right, privilege, power or Immunity, knowing the conduct is unlawfut.

319.5.4 RELATIONSHIPS

(a) Unwelcome solicitation of a personal or sexual relationship while on -duty or through the
use of one’s officlal capacity,

(b} Engaging in on -duty sexual activity including, but not limited to, sexual Intercourse,
excessive displays of public affection or other sexual contact.

{c) Establishing or maintaining an inappropriate personal or financial relationship, as a resuit of
an investigation, with a known victim, witness, suspect or defendant while a case is being
investigated or prosecuted, or as a direct result of any official contact.

{d) Asscciating with or jJoining a criminal gang, organized crime and/or criminal syndicate when
the member knows or reasonably should know of the criminal nature of the organization.
This Includes any organization involved In a definable criminat activity or enterprise, except
as specifically directed and authorized by this department.

(e} Assoclating on a personal, rather than official basis with persons who demonstrate recurring
involvement in serious violations of state or federal laws after the member knows, or
reasonably should know of such criminal activities, except as specifically directed and
authorized by this department.
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319.5.5 ATTENDANCE

(a) Leaving the Job to which the member is assigned during duty hours without reasonable
excuse and proper permission and approval,

(b} Unexcused or unauthorized absence or tardiness.
(c} Excessive absenteeism or abuse of leave privileges.

(d) Failure to report to work or to place of assignment at time specified and fully prepared to
perform duties without reasonable excuse.

319.5.6 UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS, DISCLOSURE OR USE

(@) WUnauthorized and inappropriate intentional release of confidential or protected information,
materials, data, forms or reports obtained as a resuit of the member's position with this
department.

(b) Disclosing to any unauthorlzed person any active investigation information.

(c) The use of any information, photograph, video or other recording obtained or accessed as
a result of employment or appolntment to this department for personal or financlal gain or
without the express authorization of the Chief of Police or the authorized designee.

(d) Loaning, selling, allowing unauthorized use, giving away or appropriating any Confederated
Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department badge, uniform, identification card or department
property for personal use, personal gain or any other Improper or unauthorized use or
purpose,

{e) Using department resources in association with any portion of an independent civil action.
These resources include, but are not limited to, personnel, vehicles, aquipment and non-
subpoenaed records.

319.5.7 EFFICIENCY

(a) Neglect of duty.

(b} Unsatisfactory work performance including, but not limited to, failure, incompetence,
inefficiency or delay in performing and/or carrying out proper orders, work assignments or
the instructions of supervisors without a reasonable and bona fide excuse.

{c) Concealing, attempting to conceal, removing or destroying defective or incompetent work.

{d) Unauthorized sleeping during on-duty time or assignments.

(e} Failure to notify the Department within 24 hours of any change in residence address, contact
telephone numbers or marital status.

319.6.8 PERFORMANCE

(a) Failure to disclose or misrepresenting material facts, or making any false or misleading
statement on any application, examination form, or other offlcial document, report or form,
or during the course of any work-related investigation.
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(b)Y The falsification of any work-refated records, making misleading entries or statements with
the intent to deceive or the willful and unauthorlzed removal, alteration, destruction and/or
mutitation of any department record, public record, boak, paper or document.

(c) Fallure to pariicipate in, or giving false or misleading statements, or misrepresenting or
omitling material information to a supervisor or other person in a position of authority, in
connection with any investigation or in the reporting of any depariment-related business.

(d) Being untruthful or knowingly making false, misleading or malicious statements that are
reasonably calculated to harm the reputation, authority or official standing of this department
or its members.

(e) Disparaging remarks or conduct concerning duly constituted authority to the extent that such
conduct disrupts the efficiency of this department or subveris the good order, efficiency and
discipline of this department or that would tend fo discredit any of its members.

(f)  Uniawful gambling or unlawful betting at any time or any place. Legal gambling or betting
under any of the following conditions:

1. While on depariment premises.

2, At any work site, while on-duty or while in uniform, or while using any department
equipment or system.

3.  Gambling activity undertaken as part of an officer's official duties and with the
express knowledge and permission of a direct supervisor is exempt from this
prohibition.

(g) Improper political activity including:
1. Unauthorized attendance while on-duty at official legistative or political sessions.

2.  Solicitations, speeches or distribution of campaign literature for or against any
political candidate or position while on-duty or on department property except as
expressly authorized by CTGR policy or the Chief of Police,

(h) Engaging in political activities during assigned working hours except as expressly authorized
by CTGR policy or the Chief of Police.

(i} Any act on- or off -duty that brings discredit to this department.

31858 CONDUCT

(@) Fallure of any member to promptly and fully report activities on his/her part or the part of
any other member where such activities resuited in contact with any other law enforcement
agency or that may result in criminal prosecution or discipline under this pollcy.

(b)  Unreasonable and unwarranted force to a person encountered or a person under arrest.
{(¢) Exceeding lawful peace officer powers by unreasonable, unlawful or excesslve conduct,

{d} Unauthorized or unlawful fighting, threatening or attempting to inflict unlawful bodily harm
on ancther,

(e} Engaging in horseplay that reasonably could resuit in injury or property damage.
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(f)  Discourteous, disrespectful or discriminatory treatment of any member of the public or any
member of this department or the CTGR.

(g) Use of obscene, indecent, profane or derogatory fanguage while on--duty or in uniform,

(h) Criminal, dishonest, or disgraceful conduct, whether on- or off-duty, that adversely affects
the member's relationship with this department.

(i  Unauthorized possession of, loss of, or damage to department property or the properly of
others, or endangering i through carelessness or maliciousness.

{i) Attempted or actual theft of départment property; misappropriation or misuse of public
funds, property, personnel or the services or property of others; unauthorized removal or
possesslon of department property or the property of another person.

(k)  Activity that is incompatible with a member’s conditions of employment or appointment as
established by law or contract to include fraud in securing the appointment or hire.

(It Initiating any civil action for recovery of any damages or injuries incurred in the course and
scope of employment or appointment without first notifying the Chief of Police of such action.

{(m) Any other on-- or off--duty conduct which any member knows or reasonably should know is
unbecoming a member of this department, Is contrary to good order, efficiency or morale,
or tends to reflect unfavorably upon this department or its members.,

319.56.10 SAFETY
{(a) Failure to observe or violating department safety standards or safe working practices.

(b} Failure to maintain current licenses or certifications required for the assignment or position
(e.g., driver’s license, first aid).

(c) Failure to maintaln good physical condition sufficient to adequately and safely perform law
enforcement duties.

{d} Unsafe firearm or other dangerous weapon handling to include loading or unloading firearms
in an unsafe manner, sither on- or off-duty.

{e) Carrying, while on the premises of the work place, any firearm or other lethal weapon that
is not autharized by the member's appointing authority.

{f)  Unsafe or improper driving habits or actions in the course of employment or appointment.

{9) Any personal action contributing to a preventable traffic collision.

(h) Concealing or knowingly failing to report any on-the-job or work-related accident or injury
as soon as practicable but within 24 hours.

319.5.11 INTOXICANTS

(a) Reporting for work or being at work while intoxicated or when the member’s ability to perform
assigned duties is impaired due to the use of alcohel, medication or drugs, whether fegal,
prescribed or illegal,

{b} Possession or use of alcohol at aﬁy work site or while on-duty, except as autharized in the
petformance of an official assignment. A member who is authorized to consume alcohol is
not permitted to do so to such a degree that it may impair on-duty performance.

Copyright Lexipol, LL.G 2017/02/06, All Rights Reserved. Standards of Congdusiihida 11
Published wilh parmission by Confederalad Tribas of Grand
Ronda Police Bapatment Page 13 of 21



Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Depariment
Policy Manual

Standards of Conduct

{c) Unauthorized possession, use of, or attembting to bring a controlled substance, illegal drug
or non-prescribed medication to any work site. -
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Confederated Tribes of Grand

Ronde Police Department
Polley Manual

Personnel Complaints

1005.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy provides guidelines for the reporting, investigation and disposition of complaints
regarding the conduct of members of the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police
Department. This policy shall not apply to any questioning, counseling, instruction, informal verbal
admonishment or other routine or unplanned contact of a member in the normal course of duty,
by a supervisor or any other member, nor shall this policy apply to a criminal investigation.

1005.2 POLICY
The Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department takes seriously all complaints

regarding the service provided by the Department and the conduct of its members.

The Department will accept and address all complaints of misconduct In accordance with this
policy and applicable federal, state and local law, municipal and county rules and the requirements
of any coliective bargaining agreements.

t is also the policy of this department to ensure that the community can report misconduct without
concern for reprisal or retaliation.

1005.3 PERSONNEL COMPLAINTS
Personnel complaints include any allegation of misconduct or improper job performance that, if

true, would constitute a violation of depariment policy or of federal, state or local law, policy or
rule. Personnel complaints may be generated internally or by the public.

Inquirtes about.conduct or performance thal, if true, would not violate department paiicy or federal,
state or local faw, policy or rule may be handled informally by a supervisor and shall not be
considered a personnel complaint. Such inquiries generally include clarification regarding policy,
procedures or the response to specific incidents by the Department.

1005.3.1 COMPLAINT CLASSIFICATIONS
Personnel complaints shafl be classified in one of the following categories:

Informal - A matter in which the Patrol Sergeant Is satisfied that appropriate action has been
taken by a supervisor of rank greater than the accused member.

Formal - A matter in which a supervisor determines that further action is warranted. Such
complaints may be investigated by a supervisor of rank greater than the accused member
or referred to the Sergeant or Chief, depending on the seriousness and complexity of the
investigation,

Incomplete - A matter in which the complaining party either refuses to cooperate or becomes
unavailable after diligent follow-up investigation. At the discretion of the assigned supervisor or
the Sergeant or Chief, such matters may be further investigated depending on the seriousness of
the complaint and the availability of sufficient Information.

Copyright Laxipot, LLC 2017/02/08, All Righis Reservad. Personnel Commaihibhi
. Publishad with permission by Confadsarated Tribes of Grand HAlREhI A 1
Rende Polica Departmant Page 15 of 21



Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Policy Manual
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1005.3.2 SOURCES OF COMPLAINTS
The following applies to the source of complaints:

(a) Individuals from the public may make complaints in any form, including in writing, by email,
in person or by ielephone,

(b)  Any department member becoming aware of alleged misconduct shall immediately notify
a supervisor.

(¢}  Supervisors shall initiate a complaint based upon observed misconduct or receipt from any
source alleging misconduct that, if true, could resuit In disciplinary action.

(d) Anonymous and third-party complaints shouid be accepted and investigated to the extent
that sufficient information is provided.

(e) Tort claims and lawsuilts may generate a personnel complaint,
1005.4 AVAILABILITY AND ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLAINTS

1005.4.1 COMPLAINT FORMS
Personnel complaint forms will be maintalned in a clearly visible location in the public area

of the police facility.Personnel complaint forms in languages other than English may also be
provided, as determined necessary or practicable.

1005.4.2 ACCEPTANCE

All complaints will be courteously accepted by any depariment member and promptly given to
the appropriate supervisor. Aithough written complaints are preferred, a complaint may also be
filed orally, either in person or by telephone. Such complaints will be directed to a supervisor, If
a supervisor is not immediately available to take an oral complaint, the receiving member shall
obtain contact information sufficient for the supervisor to contact the complainant. The supservisor,
upon contact with the complainant, shall compiete and submit a complaint form as appropriate.

Although not required, complainants should be encouraged to file complaints in person so that
proper identification, sighatures, photographs or physical evidence may be obtained as necessary.

1005.5 DOCUMENTATION ‘ :
Supervisors shall ensure that all formal and informal complaints are documented on a complaint

form., The supervisor shall ensure that the nature of the complaint [s defined as clearly as possible,

1006.5.1 COMPLAINTS ALLEGING PROFILING
Compilaints related to profiling shouid be clearly marked to assist in reporting as required in the

Racial or Blas-Based Profiling Policy (ORS 131.820},

1005.6 ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATIONS
Allegations of misconduct will be administratively investigated as follows.
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1006.6.1 SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES

In general, the primary responsibility for the investigation of a personnel complaint shall rest with
the member's immediate supervisor, unless the supervisor is the complainant, or the supervisor
is the ultimate decision-maker regarding disciplinary action or has any personal involvement
regarding the alleged misconduct, The Chief of Police or the authorized designee may direct that
another supervisor investigate any complaint.

A supervisor who becomes aware of alleged misconduct shall take reasonable steps to prevent
aggravation of the situation.

The respensibilities of supervisors include, but are not limited to:

(a) Ensuring that upon receiving or initiating any formal complaint, a complaint form is
completed.

1. The original complaint form will be directed to the Patrol Sergeant of the accused
member, via the chain of command, who will take appropriate action and/or
determine who will have responsibility for the investigation.

2. In circumstances where the integrity of the investigation could be jeopardized by
reducing the complaint to writing or where the confidentiality of a complalnant is
at issue, a supervisor shall orally report the matter to the member's Sergeant or
the Chief of Police, who will initiate appropriate action.

(b} Responding to afi complaints in a courteous and professional manner.,
(¢} Resolving those personnel complaints that can be resolved immediately.

1. Follow-up contact with the complainant should be made within 24 hours of the
Department receiving the complaint.

2. Ifthe matter is resolved and no further action is required, the supervisor will note the
resolution on a complaint form and forward the form to the Patrol Sergeant.

(d)y Ensuring that upon receipt of a complaint involving allegations of a potentially serious nature,
the Patrol Sergeant and Chief of Police are notified vla the chain of command as soon as
practicable.

(e) Promptly contacting the Department of Human Resources and the Patrol Sergeant for
direction regarding their roles in addressing a complaint that relates to sexual, racial, ethnic
or other forms of prohibited harassment or discrimination.

(f) Forwarding unresolved personnel complaints to the Patrol Sergeant, who will determine
whether to contact the complainant or assign the complaint for investigation.

(g) Informing the complainant of the investigator's name and the complaint number within three
days after assignment.

(h} Investigating a complaint as follows:

1. Making reasonable efforts to obtain names, addresses and telephone numbers of
witnesses,

2. When appropriate, ensuring immediate medical attention is provided and
photographs of alleged injuries and accessible uninjured areas are taken.
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Ensuring that the procedural rights of the accused member are followed.
Ensuring Interviews of the complainant are generally conducted during reasonable hours.

(1)
)
(k)  Providing the complainant with periodic updates on the status of the investigation, as
appropriate.

[

1005.7 ADMINISTRATIVE SEARCHES
Assigned lockers, storage spaces and other areas, including desks, offices and vehicles, may be

searched as part of an administrative investigation upon a reasonable suspicion of misconduct.

Such areas may aiso be searched any time by a supervisor for non-investigative purposes, stch
as obtaining a needed report, radio or other document or equipment.

1005.8 ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE
When a complaint of misconduct is of a serious nature, or when circumstances indicate that

aliowing the accused to continue to work would adversely affect the mission of the Department,
the Chief of Police or the authorized designee may temporarily assign an accused employee fo
adminisirative leave. Any employee placed cn adminlistrative feave:

(a) May be required to relinquish any department badge, identification, assigned weapons and
any other department equipment.

{b) Shall be required to continue to comply with all policies and lawful orders of a supervisor.

(c) May be temporarily reassigned to a different shift, generally a normal business-hours shift,
during the investigation. The employee may be required to remain available for contact at
all times during such shift, and will report as ordered.

1005.9 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION

Where a member Is accused of potentlal criminal conduct, a separaie supervisar or investigator
shall be assigned to investigate the criminal aiegations apart from any administrative investigation.
Any separate administrative investigation may parallel a criminal Investigation.

The Chief of Police shall be nofified as soon as practicable when a member is accused of criminal
conduct, The Chief of Police may request a criminal investigation by an outside law enforcement
agency.

A member accused of criminal conduct shall be provided with all rights afforded to a civilian.
The member shouid not be administratively ordered to provide any information in the criminal
investigation.

No information or evidence administratively coerced from a member may be provided to anyons
involved in conducting the criminal investigation or to any prosecutor.

The Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department may release information concerning
the arrest or detention of any member, including an officer, that has not led to a conviction, No
disclplinary action should be taken until an independent administrative investigation is conducted.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2017/02/08, All Rights Reserved, Parsonnsi Com o
Published wilh parmiasion by Gonfaderated Tribes of Grand F’E’{'Hﬁnf‘ﬁﬁ 1
Ronde Polica Depusimant Page 18 of 21




Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police Department
Policy Manuat

Personnel Complaints

1005.10 POST-ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

Upon compietion of a formal investigation, an investigation report should be forwarded {o the Chief.
of Police through the chain of command. Each levei of command should review and include their
comments in writing before forwarding the repart. The Chief of Police may accept or modify any
classification or recommendation for disciplinary action. Forms of discipline include, but are not
limited to, training, counseling and punitive action.

1005.10.1 SERGEANT RESPONSIBILITIES
Upon receipt of any completed personnel investigation, the Sergeant of the involved member shall

review the entire investigative file, the member's personnei file and any other relevant materials,

The Sergeant may make recommendations regarding the disposition of any allegations and the
amount of discipline, if any, to be imposed.

Prior o forwarding recommendations to the Chief of Police, the Sergeant may return the entire
investigation to the assigned Investigator or supervisor for further Investigation or action,

When forwarding any written recommendation to the Chief of Police, the Sergeant shali include
all relevant materials supporting the recommendation. Actual copies of a member's exisling
personnel file need not be provided and may be incorporated by reference.

1005.10.2 CHIEF OF POLICE RESPONSIBILITIES

Upon receipt of any written recommendation for disciplinary action, the Chlef of Police shall
review the recommendation and all accompanying matertals. The Chief of Police may modify any
recommendation and/or may return the file to the Sergeant for further investigation ar action.

Once the Chief of Police Is satisfied that no further Investigation or action is required by staff,
the Chief of Police shall determine the amount of discipline, If any that should be imposed. In the
event disciplinary action is proposed, the Chief of Police shall provide the member with a written
notice and the following:

{a) Access to all of the materials considered by the Chief of Police In recommending the
proposed discinline, '

(b)  Anopportunity to respond orally orin writing to the Chief of Police within five days of receiving
the notlce.

1. Upon a showing of good cause by the member, the Chief of Police may grant a
reasonable extension of time for the member to respond.

2. 1f the member elects to respond orally, the presentation shall be recorded by
the Department. Upon request, the member shall be provided with a copy of the
recording.

Once the member has completed his/her response or If the member has elected to waive any such
response, the Chief of Police shall consider all information received in regard to the recommended
discipline. The Chief of Paollce shall render a timely written decislon to the member and specify
the grounds and reasons for discipline and the effective date of the discipline. Once the Chief of
Police has issued a written decision, the discipiine shall become effective,
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1005.11 PRE-DISCIPLINE EMPL.OYEE RESPONSE

The pre-discipline process is intended to provide the accused employee with an opportunity to

present a written or oral response to the Chief of Police after having had an opportunity to review

the supporting materlals and prior to imposition of any recommended discipline. The employee

shall consider the following:

{a) The response is not intended to be an adversarial or format hearing.

(b)  Although the employee may be represenied by an uninvolved representative or legal
counsel, the response is nol designed to accommodate the presentation of testimony or
wltnesses.

{c) The employee may suggest that further investigation could be conducted or the employee
may offer any additional information or mitigating factors for the Chief of Police lo consider,

(d) In the event that the Chief of Police elects to cause further investigation to be conducted,
the employes shall be provided with the results prior to the Imposition of any discipline.

(8) The employee may thereafter have the opportunity to further respond orally or in writing to
the Chief of Police on the limited issues of information raised in any subsequent materials,

1005.12 RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS PRIOR TO DISCIPLINE

In the event that a member tenders a written resignation or notice of retirement prior to the
imposition of discipline, it shall be noted in the file. The tender of a resignation or retirement by
itself shall not serve as grounds for the termination of any pending investigation or discipline.

1005.13 POST-DISCIPLINE APPEAL RIGHTS .

Non-probationary employees have the right to appeal a suspension without pay, punitive transfer,
demotion, reduction in pay or step, or termination from employment. The employee has the right to
appeal using the procedures established by any collective bargaining agreement and/or personnel
rules,

1005.14 PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES AND OTHER MEMBERS

At-will and probationary employees and members other than non-prebationary employees may
be disciplined and/or released from employment without adherence to any of the procedures set
out in this policy, and without notice or cause at any time. These individuals are not entitled to
any rights under this policy. However, any of these individuals released for misconduct should be
afforded an opportunity solely to clear thelr names through a liberty interest hearing, which shall
be limited to a single appearance before the Chief of Police or the authorized designee.

Any probationary period may be extended at the discretion of the Chief of Pollce in cases where the
individual has been absent for more than a week or when additional time 1o review the individual
Is considered {o be appropriate,
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1005.15 RETENTION OF PERSONNEL INVESTIGATION FILES
All personnel complaints shall be maintained in accordance with the established records retention

schedule and as described in the Personnel Files Policy.
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James Wolfer
DPSST# 51798

]
Newberi, OR 97132

To:
Kristen Hibberds, DPSST Professional Standards Coordinator/Investigator
DPSST Police Policy Committee

Ms. Hibberds and members of the Police Policy Committes,

This letter is regarding the incident that occurred on August 13, 2017 regarding the use of force
and associated reports and statements made by me, as well as the allegations of dishonesty
being reviewed by the commitlee.

| would like to begin by stating that | was never dishonsst In any of my dealing with the Grand
Ronde Tribal Police Department in any capacity, neither in my official capacities nor in any
unofficial capacity. Speciiically, | was not dishonest during the use of force that occurred on
August 13, 2017, nor was | dishonest in the phone call to my Sergeant, Sgt. McAllister, nor was
1 dishonest in any of my written reports or statements.

| was, however, mistaken as to what had occurred, and reported to my supervisors and in my
written reports what had occurred according to my perception of the events during a high stress,
rapidly evolving and violent situation. During the incident on August 13, 2017, | was alone, with
no backup, as the closest backing officer was still about ten minutes away and had told me so
via radio, The suspect was reported to be violent, and both dispatch and my Lieutenant had
advised me via radio that the suspect had warnings for violent conduct. Additionally, the suspect
had a valid and confirmed warrant for Assault H, which | knew meant he was suspected of
causing serlous physical injury tc someone, The suspect was reported to be actively
trespassing at the Spirit Mountain Casino as well,

| called casino securlly via my cell phone, and was advised that the suspect was becoming
“confrontational” with casino staff. | believed that meant that the risk to the public was
increasing, including non-sworn security staff, and that waiting for backup could mean that a
member of the public could be injured by a wanted and known violent individual. | believed it
was my duly to intervene at that time in order to protect members of the public. Upon artival, 1
was pointed to the suspect by casino security, who was walking away from them in the parking
lot and towards a vehicle, There was a female with him, who was later identified as the
suspect’s mother. Due to the fact that | was alone, without backup, and there were now two
subjects, including one known to be violent and wanted for Assauit Il, | had my taser out.

I gave multiple commands to the suspect, calling him by name, to get on the ground, while I'was
clearly identified as a police officer. | do not recall if at thal time | verbally identified myself as a
police officer, but | was in full patrol uniform on a clear, sunny day. The suspect, who | had
positively identified, continually ignored my verbal commands fo get on the ground. He kept
attempting to walik away while the female subject yelled at me and kept getting in between the
suspect and myself. | gave commands to the female to back away and to the suspect to get on
the ground.
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At one point, the suspect stopped and faced me. | kept giving commands to the male suspect to
get on the ground or he would be tased, and the female subject suddenly rushed me. At that
moment, the male suspect quickly raised his hands about shoulder height into what | believed at
the time to be a fighting stance. ! had tunnel vision and was afraid 1 was about fo have to fight
both subjects alone and without backup. | believed that the male subject, who was a known
violent person, was the greater threat, and | tased him and was ready to utilize hands on
techniques with the female. The female backed away while continually yelling at me. The taser
deployment was effective, and the male suspect had fallen on his back. The suspect turned over
on his stomach per my verbal commands. | began to try and handcuff the male suspect while he
was facedown, and the female subject continued to yell at me.

{ had not double locked the handcuffs yet, and the male subject began to respond to the female
subject’s yelling. The male suspect began to move around, and what | believed at the time to be
attempting to get up. Even though the suspect was in handcuffs, they were not double locked
and | had not yet completed a putdown for weapons. Additionally, | was still worried that the
female subject would attempt to rush me as | had to yell at her to stay back, and if she did so,
even a handcuffed subject with an additional subject’s help could attempt to overwhelm me. |
gave multiple commands to the suspect to stop resisting or he would be tased again, and he
continued to move, while yelling at me “F- youl" With the tenseness of the suspect’s body, the
highly escalated situation, | believed the suspect was attempted to push me off of him and |
activated the taser again. After the cycls, the suspect stopped moving and complied with my
verbal commands. The female subject disappeared soon after that. Per policy, I called for
medical personnel via radio {0 evaluated the suspect.

| ater, after backup and medical personnel had arrived and cleared the subject for transport, !
had him in the back of my vehicle. | called my Sgt., Sgt. McAllister, per policy, to advise him on
the use of the force. | told Sgt. McAllister what | believed had happened: that the suspect had
“squared up on me,” i.e. taken a fighting stance, and that he had resisted on the ground while |
was still applying handcuffs. At this time, | had not seen the body camera footage, and | was still
ficoded with adrenaline.

| took the suspect to the jail. The suspect refused to use the Intoxilyzer, and was extremely
intoxicated, so jall staff had me transport the suspect to the hospital to be evaluated. He was
eventually medically cleared for lodging at the jail, and was transported back to the jail and
lodged by me. | typed a Probable Cause affidavit to lodge the suspect, and again, had not yet
seen my body camera footage, so | wrote the affidavit with what | believed happened: that the
male subject had “squared up” his body and took an aggressive stance towards me while at the
same time the female subject was trying to confront me, so | tased the male suspect. | also
wrote that the suspect tried to roll away from me before | could double lock the handcuffs, and
that he ignored verbal commands to stop resisting so | activated the taser a second time.

Later, at the police station, per policy, while writing my report | viewed the body camera footage.
| was surprised to see that during the initial confrontation with the suspect, when he raised his
arms into what ! believed to be a fighting stance, | observed that he raised his arms about
shoulder high and began walking backwards, and did not appear 1o actually be taking a fighting
stance. | also observed that while | was handouffing him, the body camera did not pick up all of
the tactors that | did, such as the suspect’s body tensing up, and so it appeared that the suspect
was not resisting greatly. :
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| wrote my report the next morning. During my report, | wrote “the following happened in
substance, to the best of my recollection and perception at the time of the incident.” | then wrote
about what | had experienced and believed at the time of the incident, including that | believed
the suspect “put his hands up but point his feet towards me in an aggressive stance, and |
believed [the suspect] was getting ready to assault me. At that time, [female subject] was still
yelling at me and walking towards me aggressively.” | then described all the factors | had In
making the use of force decision, and described tasing the suspect. | also described how the
fernaie subject kept approach me while | was attempting to handcuff the male suspect, and that
| continually had to yell commands at her to back up.

| also wrote that the male suspect “continued to yell at me and tried to roli away from me while
tensing his bedy up. | told [suspect] to stop resisting or he would be tased again. As | altempted
to double lock the handcuffs, [suspect] tensed his body up and tried to roll away from me, and |
told him again to stop resisting but he continued to try and roll away from me. | activated my
Taser agaln for a five second cycle, and [suspect] immediately stopped resisting.”

On the last page of my narrative, | also noted the discrepancies between the video footage and
my perception at the time of the incident. | wrote “| laier reviewed my body camera footage and
observe that directly before | activated my Taser, [suspect] took a step backward with his hands
up. | did not notice this during the incident due to the speed at which events were unfolding and
due to the fact that [female subject] was approaching me and | belleved | was about to be
assaulted and would have to fight both [female subject] and [male suspect] without a cover unit.”

Directly after | completed my report, Lt. Hernandez asked me to come to his office. Lt.
Hernandez was there with a represeniative of HR, and told me that he had not yet read my
report, but that he watched the body camera footage and believed | violated policies. He asked
me why | tased someone with their hands up, and | told him that at the time, | believed he was
not putting his hands up, but trying to actively assault me. | also advised L.t. Hernandez that |
had addressed the discrepancy in my report. Lt. Hernandez told me | was being placed on
leave, and directed me to be avallable for an interview and to make a statement with an outside
agency, either Oregon State Police or Polk County Sheriff's Office.

During the week, | was calied by Sgt. McAllister and advised | needed to come to a meeting on
Friday, August 18, 2017 at HR. During that meeting, | was given several pieces of paper (that |
was not aliowed to keep) that advised that a review had been done of the use of force and that
at this time, they were recommending termination. | read a report by Dallas Police Department
that indicated that they agreed with Lt. Hernandez that | had violated policy, and in fact, they
believed | should have tased the female subject, not the male subject. | do not have a copy of
the Dallas Police Report at this time.

| asked Lt. Hernandez why | was not being interviewed and having my statement taken. Lt.
Hernandez advised me that he was acting Chlef, as the Chief was currently at a training in
Virginia. Lt. Hernandez told me they did not require my statement or any interview on my use of
force to make the decision to terminate me. Lt. Hernandez advised me that at this time, | was
only being recommended for termination based on a violation of the Taser policy, and no other
violations. L.1. Hernandez told me | had the right to appeal the termination for flve days and give
any recorded statement | would like, but that if anything | sald would be given to the DA for
prosecution. Lt. Hernandez told me that if | resigned immediately, the Investigation would stop at
that point, only listing the reason for termination as being a violation of the Taser policy, and that
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he would advise the DA that they believed | was acting in good faith. | specifically asked Lt.
Hernandez if he was terminating me based upon any belief that | was dishonest, and fold him
that | never lied to him or Sgt. McAllister, and had accurately told them what | believed had
happened based upon my perception at the time of the incident, in good faith. L. Hernandez
told me that he would be reporting to DPSST that 1 was resigning In lieu of termination for a
violation of the Taser policy, because he had not interviewed me and could not say if | had
purposely been dishonest or not, and so he was not going fo list dishonesty as the reason for
termination if | resigned immediately. He did tell me that both the DA and DPSST could do
“whatever they want” with an investigation, but that he would let them know he did not believe I
should be charged as | was acting in good faith, 1 then asked why, since | had no citizen
complaints and no letters of reprimand in my file, and he believed | was acting in good faith, he
did not suspend me instead and do retraining. Lt. Hernandez told me that as acting chief, he
could not “live with” the second taser use while the suspect was in handculffs.

| wrote a letter of resignation and reiterated that | was never dishonest and never meant to
mislead anyons.

Later, in February of 2018, | was contacted by OSP Detective Hegney-Bach, who advised she
was investigating allegations of excessive force in a criminal investigation and would like my
statement. | contacted an attorney and requesied the attorney accompany me to give my
statement, and told the attorney that | had nothing to hide and wanted to give my statement
from the beginning, and that this was my first opportunity to do so. My attorney contacted
Detective Hegney-Bach and scheduled a statement in March of 2018,

During the interview in March 2018, Detective Hegney-Bach asked many questions regarding
the use of force, my mindset, and what | believed happened. [ gave a complete statement,
lasting several hours, voluntarily. As a result of Detective Hegney-Bach's statement, where she
recommended that no probable cause existed for Assault, the DA advised that | did not exceed
the legal justifications for use of force in Oregon.

During Detective Hegney-Bach's report, she viewed the body camera footage and noted that
when | first tased the male suspect, he had his hands raised and took steps backward, at the
same time the female subject “took a step toward Mr. Wolfer.” She also notes during the second
taser deployment:

While [suspect] was asking, “What did | do, “he started pushing slightly off the ground with his
knees; his head stayed on the ground. Mr. Wolfer then toid [suspect] he had a warrant.
[Suspoct] still appeared agltated and fiexed his arms and rolled slightly onto his left shoulder
and then he rolled back on to his stomach. Mr.Wolfer warned [suspect] to stay on the ground or
he would tase him again. [Suspect] said, “Fuck you” and Mr.Wolfer activated a five second taser
cycle. [Suspect] was not flexing or rolling or moving his knees at the time Mr.Wolfer activated
the taser probes.”

While Detective Hegney-Bach notes that the suspect was not flexing or rolling or moving his
knees at the time | activated the taser, | believed he was still resisting and was still tense.
Looking back, that may have been his body tensing as he yelled to curse at me, which | may
have misinterpreted as a continuation of his previously fiexing and rolling and pushing off of the
ground. Agalin, 1 had adrenaline and had a suspect | believed to be resisting who | believed had
Just tried to assault me,
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Detective Hegney-Bach notes during her investigation that | addressed some of the
discrepancies in my report as | noted above, She also notes that there was no probable cause
to charge me with Assault IV, and that all witnesses believed | had not been excessive, The
focus of Detective Hegney-Bach'’s investigation was not to determine dishonesty, merely to
review if the use of force was legal, and she notes that those allegations would not be fully
pursued during her investigation. Additionally, multiple witnesses told Detective Heghey-Bach
that they observed the suspect to be resisting while on the ground.

Additionally, in October of 2018 | received copies of both Sgt. McAllister's and Lt. Hernandez's
reviews of the use of force. After reviewing the reports, both Sgt. McAllister and Lt. Hernandez
differ greatly in their perception of the events they viewed on my body camera. Not only do they
differ from each other, but they differ from Detective Hegney-Bach's review of the incident. For
example, Sgt. McAllister writes about what he observed from my body camera regarding the
first use of force:

“Officer Wolfer then yells, ‘get on the ground now!’ ‘Move aside!’ ‘Get on the ground now or you
wlil be Tased!’ At this point, [suspect] is standing there with both hands in the air, next {o his
head. It's clear that [suspect] has nothing in his hands, [Female subject] steps toward Officer
Wolfer. Officer Wolfer moves towards his left and yells ‘Back away! Get on the ground now!’

[Maie suspect] is observed taking small steps backwards while holding his hands in the alr, next
to his head...” '

Lt. Hernandez, by contrast, writes that in his review, the male suspect “raises his hands in the
air above his head and slowly walks backwards while asking what did | do?”

Lt, Hernandez also writes that while the male suspect was on the ground, he moves while

- yelling and that | told him not to move or he would be tased, and notes: ‘{Male suspect] yells
‘fuck you’ and moves while saying this. Officer Wolfer tases him again for a full five seconds.”
Sgt. McAllister writes of the same Incident;

“[Male suspect] then moves towards his left side and yells ‘It is my business!’ Officer Wolfer tells
[male suspect] ‘Stop moving or | will tase you again!’ [Male suspect] then states ‘Fuck youl’ -
Officer Wolfer then discharges his CEW a second time, while [male suspect] is lying face down
on the asphalt, with his hands cuffed behind his back...[male suspecl] appeared to only attempt
to roll to his left side to look at Officer Wolfer while he was saying ‘Fuck youl"”

t believe It should be noted that Sgt. McAllister’s review of the first incident indicates that the
male suspect had his hands raised to about his head, while Lt. Hernandez believed that the
male subject had his hands above his head. From my recoliection, his hands were raised to
about shouider/head height, which is also a fighting stance, and with the adrenaline and tunnel
vision | was experiencing at the time while the female subject also aggressively took steps
towards me, | interpreted that as a fighting stance. Additionally, both Sgt. McAllister and Lt.
Hernandez’s review of the footage indicate that the suspect was moving while | was handcuffing
him, but they interpreted that as “only attempting to roll to his left side to look at Officer Wolfer.”

According to the landmark case, Graham v. Connor, “the ‘reasonableness’ inguiry in an
excesslve force case Is an objective one: the question is whether the officers’ actions are
'objectively reasonable' in light of the facts and circumstances confronting them, without regard
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to their underlying intent or motivation... The ‘reasonableness’ of a particular use of force must
be judged from the perspective of a reasonable officer on the scene, rather than with the 20/20
vision of hindsight.” | believe that Sgt. McAllister and Lt. Hernandez were interpreting not only
the suspect’s motives in his moving around as being passive, while they were not there to feel
his level of resistance, while | interpreted it as active resistance from a known and violent
offender. The later review by OSP and the DA concluded that “Given the totality of the
circumstances, in particular the withess statements and level of threat believed by Mr, Wolfer to
be Imminent, there is not sufficient evidence 1o overcome the use of force justlification afforded
peace officers in ORS 161.235- 161.245."

| fully admit there are discrepancies between the video footage and my perception of what
occurred. Lt. Hernandez and Sgt. McAliister both interpreted my actions as dishonesty, rather
than a mere mistake of fact dus to a “rapidly-evolving” situation, as stated in Graham v. Connor.
| attempted to address this in my report, as noted above and noted by Detective Hegney-Bach. |
want {o reiterate that | was never dishonest during my dealings in this case, or any other time,
with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Depariment, Oregon State Police, the Polk County District
Attorney, or any other time. During this use of force incident, | truly believed that the male
suspect was aiternpting to assault me, and that during the second tass, | interpreted his
movements as trying fo pull away from me.

t do helieve that my perception of the events was mistaken. From the beginning, | have been
forthright and honest in my perception by immediately calling Sgt. McAllister and telling him
what | belleved happened, and later, when | learned that my perception was incorrect, | was
forthright and honest in addressing that in my official report. My phone call addressing the use
of force to Sgt. McAllister was fully recorded on body camera. | had no reason to believe | was
not telling Sgt. McAllister the full truth of what happened. | did not know at the time | was
mistaken. | never onge tried to cover up my mistaken perception, and by writing about both my
perception and what | later viewed on the body camera footage in my official report, | was taking
full responsibility for my perception of the events belng different.

| have attached an atticle from the Force Science Institute regarding body cameras and use of
force. Of note in the article is that a camera and the officer’s perception can be drastically
different, such as an officer's brain suppressing “some incoming visual images that seem
unimportant in a life-threatening situation so you can completely focus very harrowly on the
threat. You won't be aware of what your brain is screening out...in short, there can be a huge
disconnect between your field of view and your visual perception and the camera’s. Later,
somaeone reviewing what’s caught on camera and judging your actions could have a profoundly
different sense of what happened that you had at the time it was occurring.”

Additionally, the article talks about how “Some important danger cues can't be recorded,”
including “resistive tension.” Of particular note is this paragraph: “And of course, the camera
can't record the history and experience you bring to an encounter. . .for instance, an assaultive
subject who brings his hands up may lcok to a civilian like he’s surrendering, but to you, based
on past expetience, that can be a very intimidating and combative movement, signaling his
preparation for a fighting attack. The camera just captures the action, not your interpretation.”

And finally, the articies says that of greater consequence is the body camera’s depiction of
action and reaction times, “Based on the reactionary curve, an.officer can be half a second or
more behind the action as it unfolds on the screen.” This is what occurred with me when the

Exhibit A12
Page 6 of 14



male suspect was tensing up and rolling away. While Detective Hegney-Bach notes that the
suspect stopped roliing and tensing immediately as | tased him, | was behind the reactionary
curve and believed he was still resisting.

I made a mistake of parception in good faith when | interpreted the actions of the male suspect
and female subject as an attempt o assault me, and have been upfront about that from the
beginning. Additionally, during my termination hearing, | asked Lt. Hernandez for additional
training so that | would not make such good faith mistakes in the future. | was absolutely,
unequivocally not dishonest. | never had any intent to deceive anyone, neither outright not by
omission. | wished to give a full interview and statement after the event and made myself
available, but the first time | was able to give a full statement was in March of 2018 during my
interview with Detective Hegney-Bach.

I have been heartbroken that my former employer interpreted my actions as dishonest. Honesty
and integrity are both extremely important to me, and | have tried to live my life with those
values, especially in all official dealings. | am truly sorry that | was mistaken that day, and
saddened that | was not given the opportunity to prove that | was honest. | would have gladiy
accepted retraining, additional training, and other consequences for my good faith mistakes, but
| never lied.

Attached to this are two letters from professionals | have worked with. The first is a letter from
Officer Fred Dilworth of Cottage Grove, who worked with me for over a year at our first
department, Warm Springs Tribal Police, from 2010-2012. The second is a letter from my
immediate supetvisor in the Coast Guard Reserve, Petty Officer First Class Jason Armstrong. |
have served in the Coast Guard Reserve since 2013, and am a Second Class Peity Officer
serving as a Maritime Enforcement Specialist. In this role, 1 conduct Federal Law Enforcement
boardings on the Willamette and Columbia River, and before that, in the Puget Sound area. We
conduct civilian law enforcement, under a different set of use of force guidelines, however, we
do conduct law enforcement with members of the boating public. | have received several
awards in my time in the military, specifically in a law enforcement role, and my supervisors and
chain of command have nothing but praise for my conduct and Integrity. | hope this leiter from
PO1 Armsirong can serve to demonstrate that.

| appreciate the time taken to review this matter and this letter. | hope that the Committee is able
to see that 1 acted in full good faith with no intent to deceive or be excessive, and have been
forthright and honest from the beginning iIn this.

Very respectfully submitted,

James K. Wolfer
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y FORCE SCIENCE INSTITUTE, Ltd.

Headquarters: 124 East Walout Street - Sulte 120 Mankato, MN 56001 USA. T: 5073871290 T 507.387-1291

10 Yimitations of body cams you need to know for your protection
A special report from the Force Science Institute

The idea is building that once every cop is equipped with a body camera, the controversy
will be taken out of police shootings and other uses of force because “what really
happened” will be captured on video for all to see.

Well, to borrow the title from an old Gershwin tune, “It Ain’t Necessarily So.”

There’s no doubt that body cameras—like dash cams, cell phone cams, and surveillance
cams-—can provide a unique perspective on police encounters and, in most cases, are
likely to help officers, But like those other devices, a camera mounted on your uniform or
on your head has limitations that need to be understood and considered when evaluating
the images they record.

“Rushing to condemn an officer for inappropriate behavior based solely on body-camera
evidence can be a dicey proposition,” cautions Dr. Bill Lewinski, executive director of
the Force Science Institute. “Certainly, a camera can provide more information about
what happened on the street. But it can’t necessarily provide all the information needed
to make a fair and impartial final judgment. There still may be influential human factors
involved, apart from what the camera sees.”

In a recent conversation with Force Science News, Lewinski enumetated 10 limitations
that are important to keep in mind regarding body-camera evidence (and, for the most
part, recordings from othet cameras as well) if you are an investigator, a police aftorney,
a force reviewer, ot an involved officer. This information may also be helpful in efforts to
educate your community,

(Some of these points are elaborated on in greater depth during the Force Science
Certification Course. Visit www forcescience org for information on the course, An
eatlier report on body cam limitations appeared in Force Science News #145, sent
3/12/10. You will find online it at: www forcescience.org/fsnews/145 html)

1. A camera doesn’t follow youn eyes or see as they see.

At the current level of development, a body camera is not an eye-tracker like FiST has
used in some of its studies of officer attention. That complex apparatus can follow the
movement of your eyes and superimpose on video small red circles that mark precisely
where you ate looking from one microsecond to the next.

“A body camera photographs a broad scene but it can’t document where within that scene
you are looking at any given instant,” Lewinski says. “If you glance away from where the
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camera is concentrating, you may not see action within the camera frame that appears to
be occurring ‘right before your eyes.’

“L1kew1se the camera can’t acknowledge physiological and psychological phenomena
that you may expeuence under high stress. As a survival mechanism, your brain may
suppress some incoming visual images that seem unimportant in a life-threatening
sitnation so you can completely focus very narrowly on the threat, You won’t be aware of

what your brain is screening out,

*Your brain may also play visual tricks on you that the camera can’t match, If a suspect is

driving a vehicle toward you, for example, it will seem to be closer, larger, and faster

than it really is because of a phenomenon called ‘looming.’ Camera footage may not
convey the same sense of threat that you experienced,

perception and the camera’s. Later, someone reviewing what's caught on camera and
judging your actions could have a profoundly different sense of what happened than you
had at the time it was occurting,”

(“In short, there can be a huge disconnect between youx field of view and your visual
% 2. Some important danger cues can’t be recorded.

“Tactile cues that are often important to officers in decxdmg to use force are difficult for
cameras to capture,” Lewinski says, “Resistive tension is a prime example.

“You can usually tell when you touch a suspect whether he or she is going to resist. You
may quickly apply force as a preemptive measute, but on camera it may look like you
made an unprovoked attack, because the sensory cue you felt doesn’t record visually.”

1f

And, of course, the camera can’t record the history and experience you bring to an
encounter, “Suspect behavior that may appear innocuous on film to a naive civilian can
convey the risk of mortal danger to you as a streetwise officer,” Lewinski says. “For
instance, an assavltive subject who brings his hands up may look fto a civilian like he’s
surrendering, but to you, based on past experience, that can be a very intimidating and
combative movement, signaling his p1eparat10n for a fighting attack. The camera Just
captures the action, not your interpretation.”

L

3. Camera speed differs from the speed of life,
Because body cameras record at much higher speeds than typical convenience store ot
correctional facility security cameras, it’s less likely that important details will be Jost in
the millisecond gaps between frames, as sometimes happens with those cruder devices.

“But it’s still theoretically possible that something as brief as a muzzle flash or the glint
of a knife blade that may become a factor in a use-of-force case could still fail to be
recorded,” Lewinski says,

Of greater consequence, he believes, is the body camera’s depiction of action and
reaction fimes,

“Because of the teactionary curve, an officer can be half a second or more behind the
action as it unfolds on the screen,” Lewinski explains. “Whether he’s shooting or
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stopping shooting, his recognition, decision-making, and physical activation all take
time—but obviously can’t be shown on camera.

“People who don’t understand this reactionary process won’t factor it in when viewing
the footage. They’ll think the officer is keeping pace with the speed of the action as the
camera records it. So without knowledgeable input, they aren’t likely to undesstand how
an officer can unintentionally end up placing rounds in a suspect’s back or fiting
additional shots after a threat has ended.”

4. A camera may see better than you do in low light,

“The high-tech imaging of body cameras allows them to record with clarity in many low-
light settings,” Lewinski says. “When footage is screened later, it may actually be
possible to see elements of the scene in sharper detail than you could at the time the
camera was activated.

“If you are receiving less visual information than the camera is recording under time-
pressured circumstances, you are going fo be more dependent on context and movement
in assessing and reacting to potential threats, In dira Jight, a suspect’s posturing will
likely mean more to you immediately than some object he’s holding. When footage is
reviewed later, it may be evident that the object in his hand was a cell phone, say, rather
than a gun, If you’re expected to have seen that as clearly as the camera did, your
reaction might seem highly inappropriate.”

On the other hand, he notes, cameras do not always deal well with lighting transitions,
“Going suddenly from bright to dim light or vice versa, a camera may briefly blank out
images altogether,” he says.

5. Your body may block the view.

“How much of a scene a camera captures is highly dependent on where it’s positioned
and where the action takes place,” Lewinski notes. “Depending on location and angle, a
picture may be blocked by your own body parts, from your nose to your hands.

“If you're firing a gun or a Taser, for example, a camera on your chest may not record
much more than your extended arms and hands, Or just blading your stance may obscure
the camera’s view, Critical moments within a scenatio that you can see may be missed
entirely by your body cam because of these dynamics, ultimately masking what a
reviewer may need to see to make a fair judgment.”

6. A camera only records in 2-D.
Because cameras don’t record depth of field-—the third dimension that’s perceived by the
human eye—accurately judging distances on their footage can be difficult.

“Depending on the lens involved, cameras may compress distances between objects or
make them appear closer than they really are,” Lewinski says. “Without a proper sense of
distance, a reviewer may misinterpret the level of threat an officer was facing.”

In the Force Science Certification Course, he critiques several camera images in which
distance distortion became problematic. In one, an officer’s use of force seemed
inappropriate because the suspect appeats to be too far away to pose an immediate threat.
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In another, an officer appears to strike a suspect’s head with a flashlight when, in fact, the
blow was directed at a hand and never touched the head,

“There are technical means for determining distances on 2-D recordings,” Lewinski says,
“but these are not commonly known or accessed by most investigators,”

7. 'The absence of sophisticated time-stamping may prove critical,

The time-stamping that is automatically imposed on camera footage is a gross number,
generally measuring the action minute by minute. “In some high-profile, controversial
shooting cases that is not sophisticated enough,” Lewinski says. “To fully analyze and
explain an officer’s perceptions, reaction time, judgment, and decision-making it may be
critical to break the action down to units of one-hundredths of a second or even less,

“There are post-production computer programs that can clectronically encode footage to
those specifications, and the Force Science Institute strongly recommends that these be
employed. When reviewers see precisely how quickly suspects can move and how fast
the various elements of a use-of-force event unfold, it can radicaily change their
perception of what happened and the pressure involved officers were under to act.”

8. One camera may not be enough.

“The more cameras there are recording a force event, the more opportunities there are
likely to be fo clarify uncertainties,” Lewinski says, “The angle, the ambient lighting, and
other elements will almost certainly vary from one officer’s perspective to another’s, and
syncing the footage up will provide broader information for understanding the dynamics
of what happened, What looks like an egregious action from one angle may seem
perfectly justified from another,

“Think of the analysis of plays in a football game, In resolving close calls, referees want
{o view the action from as many cameras as possible to fully understand what they’re
seeing. Ideally, officers deserve the same consideration. The problem is that many times
there is only one camera involved, compated to & dozen that may be consulted in a
sporting event, and in that case the limitations must be kept even firmer in mind,

9. A camera encourages second-guessing.

“According to the U, S, Supreme Coutt in Graham v, Connor, an officer’s decisions in
tense, uncertain, and rapidly evolving situations are not to be judged with the 20/20
vision of hindsight,’ ”” Lewinski notes. “But in the real-wotld aftermath of a shooting,
camera footage provides an almost irresistible temptation for reviewers to play the
coulda-shoulda game,

“Under calm and cotnfortable conditions, they can infinitely replay the action, scrutinize
it for hard-to-see detail, slow it down, frecze it, The officer had to assess what he was
experiencing while it was happening and under the stress of his life potentially being on
the line, That dispatity can lead to far different conclusions.

“As part of the incident investigation, we recommend that an officer be permitted to see
what his body camera and other cameras recorded, He should be cautioned, however, to
regard the footage only as informational, He should not allow it to supplant his first-hand
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memory of the incident, Justification for a shooting or other use of force will come from
what an officer reasonably perceived, not necessarily from what a camera saw.”

[For more details about FSI's position on whether officers should be allowed to view
video of their incidents, see Force Science News #114 (1/17/09). You will find online it
at; www forcescience org/fsnews/114 . html]

10. A camera can never x eplace a thorough mvest;gatlon

When officers oppose wearing cameras, civilians sometimes assume they fem
“transparency.” But more often, Lewinski believes, they are concerned that camera
recordings will be given undue, if not exclusive, weight in judging their actions.

“A camera’s recording should never be regarded solely as the Truth about a controversial
incident,” Lewinski declares. “It needs to be weighed and tested against witness
testimony, forensics, the involved officer’s statement, and other elements of a fair,
thorough, and impartial investigation that takes human factors into consideration.

“This {s in no way intended to belittle the merits of body cameras. Early testing has
shown that they tend to reduce the frequency of force encounters as well as complaints
against officers.

“But a well-known police defense attorney is not far wrong when he calls cameras ‘the
best evidence and the worst evidence.” The limitations of body cams and others need to
be fully understood and evaluated to maximize their effectiveness and to assute that they
are not regarded as infallible *magic bullets’ by people who do not fully grasp the
realities of force dynamics.”

Our thanks to Parris Ward, dirvector and litigation graphics consultant with Biodynamics
Engineering, Inc., for his help in facilitating this report,

For mote information on the work of the Force Science Instifute, visit

www forcescience org. To reach the Force Science News editorial staff please e-mail:
editor@forcescience.org,
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Greetings,

I met James Wolfer in October 2010 while we were both employed by the Warm Springs
Police Department, I became employed with the Warm Springs Police Department in
September 2010, and James was hired approx one month later,

Due to our different hire dates, he and I were in different phases of our field training, but
1 observed eatly on James had what appeared to be an attention for detail with interviews,
investigations, and reports, T observed James was well spoken and confident in his job,
and appeared to possess a high level of education which was easy to identify while
speaking with him and from reading his police reports. To this day James' Warm Springs
Police Department police teports are some of the best police reports I have ever read.

1 observed James' investigations were methodical, honest, logical, and fair, I never
observed James take any short cuts or engage in any questionable practices, I worked
with James repeatedly and handled countless calls for service with him, At no time did I
ever observe anything dishonest or unethical. James always had a calm, professional, and
logical demeanor. I never observed James abuse his police powers in any way, and all use
of force incident I was aware of always appeared reasonable and justified.

There wete a total five officers hired around the same time James and I hired, and James
quickly became my favorite officer to work with, T attended the D.P.S.S.T. police
academy with James and during our time there I observed he became liked and respected
by the rest of the class, and was always helpful to other new recruits,

James and I have maintained a friendship since we both left the Warm Springs Police
Department, I continue to visit with James on a4 regular basis, and T know he is still
working in a career where he is regulatly conducting investigations. I also know James is
still an active Coast Guard member and conducts law enforcement operations in that

capacity.

T am still currently employed in full time law enforcement and I have on multiple
occasions contacted James with law enforcement related questions, and I bave always

~ trusted and respected his opinions and advice, And if I was given the opportunity to work
with James in a law enforcement capacity again I would do so without hesitation,

Fred Dilworth,

Exhibit A2
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U.S. Department of Ofﬂcer In Charge §767 North Basin Avenue

Homeland Secury ittt L
United States
Coast Guard
0754
26 DEC 18
MEMORANDUM
From: J.R. Armstrong, ME1 Reply to
STA PORTLAND Attn of.  Jason R, Armstrong ME1

909-758-6262
To: Whom it May Concern

Subj:  ME2 James Wolfer, ~--5776

The purpose of this leiter is to speak to the character of Petty Officer James Wolfer., I have
known Petty Officer Wolfer for over four years while working together at Station Portland as
reserve members of the United States Coast Guard: We have performed numerous waterborne
law enforcement missions together, and for the last. thlee years 1 have served as Petty Officer
Wolfer’s direct supervisor,

Petty Officer Wolfer has proven himself to me to-be:a man of integrity and someone that I can
count on. Thave never once questioned his judgement it a law enforcement capacity in the
performance of his duty here at the station. Peity Officer Wolfer has demonstrated' leadelshxp in
volunteering to train other menibers at the station on a variety of law enforcement skills. He is
dependable and often volunteers to assist with additional tasks that need to be accomplished at
the station, I have full faith in Petty Officer Wolfer’s ability-and forthrightness as a law
enforcement officer. I can be reached on my celt-phone at (909) 758- 6262 or by email at
Jason.r.armstrong@uscg.mil if you have any further questions,

#
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“= PoLK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

“ TE L -?t) B
lj‘é:g:: C:N{w POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE # DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3177 AARON FELTON
PO LK COU NTY CRIMINAL DIVISION # (503) 623-9268 District Attorney
SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT  (503) 623-9269 Selton.aaron@co.polk.orus

VICTIM ASSISTANCE x (503) 623-9268
FAX x (503) 623-7556

September 28, 2018

G. Aron Perez-Selsky .
Atrorney at Law

Perez-Selsky Law Office
P.O. Box 1656

3ISNE Evans S¢. #8 & 9
McMinnville, OR 97128

Re:  James Wolfer
OSP Case No.: SP18-001897

Dear Mr. Perez-Selsky:

This matter has been referred back to this office by the Mation County District Attorney’s Office
-after completion of an independent investigation into the conduct of your client, James Wolfer, for
the actions he is alleged to have been taken on August 13, 2017,

The purposes of my evaluation of M, Wolfer’s actions are two-fold. Fitst, to determine whether Mr.
Wolfer’s conduct constituted any sort of criminal act for which a prosecution is appropriate under
Oregon law. Second, whether Mr, Wolfet’s actions triggered my duty to disclose his conduct in cases
in which he may be calied as a witness for the state pursuant to Brady ». Maryland. Let me be clear, no
analysis I conducted or conclusion I reached should be imparted to any civil ot administrative
proceeding related to these events which is assigned a lower burden of proof by law.

1 have reviewed the written materials as well as the audio and video media compiled as patt of the
investigations conducted by the Oregon State Police, Dallas Police Department, and Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department. It is important to note that only the Oregon State Police hiad the benefit
of a complete, counseled, interview with Mr. Wolfer to rely on dusing its investigation.
Consequently, I, too, had the benefit of that information before me in reaching my decision.

Based on my review of these materials, I find that there is not sufficient evidence to prove a crime
beyond a reasonable doubt. Given the totality of the citcumstances, in particular the witness
statements and level of threat believed by Mr. Wolfer to be imminent, there is not sufficient







G. Aron Perez-Selsky
September 28, 2018
Page 2

evidence to overcome the use of force justification afforded peace officers in ORS 161.235 —
161.245.

Howevet, I reach a different conclusion as regards my duty under Brady v. Maryland. As you know,
The United States Supteme Court in Brady ». Maryland, as well as the Ninth Citcuit Court of Appeals
in United States v. Henthorn, has held that prosecutors bear a personal responsibility to make the court
awarc of any materials possessed by an investigative agency that are helpful to the defense. Such
matetials include not only exculpatory information, but also any findings or substantiated allegations
that call into question the credibility of a government witness (impeachment information). The
investigations conducted by the Grand Ronde Ttibal Police, Dallas Police and Otegon State Police
each contain material that would be considered exculpatory if Mr, Wolfer were to be called as a
witness for the state in any criminal proceeding, Thesefore, pursuant to Brady ». Maryland, it will now
be the practice of this office to disclose these materials to defense counsel in Polk County cases (or
other cases that we are aware of) in which Mt Wolfexr may be called as a witness for the state,

If you have additional questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Aaron Felton
District Attorney

cet Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police

Kristen L. Hibberds
Oregon Department of
Public Safety Standards and Training
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Oregon State Police
Incident: SP18001897

Incident Details:

Page | of 37

CONFIDENTIAL
This information is heing provided to
a Criminal lustice Agency for their
offictal use only, Do not redistribute
without permission from
Oregon State Police

Incident Type:
Incident time:

Reported time:

Incident location:

Incident status:

Summary:

Assault
08/13/2007 17:03 - 08/13/2017 1751
01/02/2018 15:53

27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE, POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT

MOUNTAIN CASINO) (Beat: GHQ, Region: NWR) 97347

Referred to DA for cansideration

On January 2, 2018, | was tasked with investigating a use of force incident from Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department, Jocated in Polk County. Subsequent investigation revealed that
there was not probable cause to charge James Woifer with Assault IV,

Involved Persons:

Name:
Classification:
DL:

Address:

Telephone:

SCOTT, KAITLYN
Witness

27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
{Beat: GHQ, Region: NWR) 87347

(Cell phone ) NN

Gender: Female

DOB:

Name:
Classification:
DL:

Address:

Telephone:

Name:

Classification:
DL.:
Address:

Telephone:

WOOD, MICKEY

Witness

27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
(Beal: GHQ, Region: NWR) 97347

celi phone) [ A RREEEEEEIE

Gender: Male
DOB:

MALMQUIST, LEN
Witness

27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO)
{Beal: GHQ, Region: NWR) 87347

ot o) NN

Gender: Male
DOB:

Name:

file:///C:/Users/theathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Yellow).htm

NORWEST, ROBIN

Gender: Male

8/20/2018
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Classification;  Wilness DOB:
DL:
Address: 27100 SW SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE,
POLK OR USA 97347 (SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO}
(Beat: GHQ, Region: NWR) §7347
Telephone: (Cell phone) | EGEG
Name: I Gender:  Female
Classification: Withess DOB: ]
DL:
Address: I < AMATH FALLS, KLAMATH
OR USA (Beat: SMO, Region: NWR)
Telephone: celi phone) | GGG
Name: HERNANDEZ, TV Gender: Male
Classification:  Poiice Officer - oulside agency DOB:
DL:
Address: 26870 SALMON RIVER HWY, GRAND RONDE, POLK
OR USA §7347 {Beal: MNO, Region: NWR) 87347
Telephone: (Landline) (603} 879-2417
Name: MCALLISTER, ROD Gender:” Male
Classification: Police Officer - cutside agency DOB:
DL:
Address:
Telephone: {Landline) (503) 879-1828
Telephone: {Landling) (541) 247-3242
Name: MCKNIGHT, JAKE Gender: Male
Classification: Police Officer - outside agency DOB:
DL:
Address:
‘Name: WOLFER, JAMES Gender:  Male
Classification: Other involved person - DOB:

DL.:
Address;

Telephone:

(Landline) (503} 878-5211

Involved Property:

file:///C./Users/lheathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Yellow). htm

P18005066 / Police recording / Evidence / BODY CAM
P18005067 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING
P 18005447 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING
P 18005449 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING
P18005451 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIO RECORDING

8/20/2018
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e P18010453 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIC RECORDING
e« P18010454 / Police recording / Evidence / AUDIC RECORDING

Involved Officers:

Supporting officer / BARRIENTOS, CARLOS / #41814 / OSP / Officer / SALEM DETECTIVES
Supporting officer / MOISAN, THEODORE / #42094 / OSP / Officer / SALEM DETECTIVES
Reporting Officer/Case Lead / HEGNEY-BACH, CASI / #49678 / OSP / Officer / SALEM PATROL
Dispatcher/TC2 / CLEMENTS, ARIN /#56444 / OSP / Officer / DISPATCH

Reports:

General report:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 04/02/2018 15:26
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS| Entered time: 04/02/2018 15:26
Narrative:

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:

Marion County District Attorney’s Office

ASSOCIATED CASES:
Grand Ronde Tribal Police GRT17000673

CRIMES UNDER INVESTIGATION:
Assault IV~ ORS 163,160

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Initial Report — Use of Force

SUSPECT:
Mr, Wolfer, James

Dlel:l |
MENTIONED:
I

Victim

Mother of Victim

Security Guard Robin Norwest
Spirit Mountain Casino

Security Guard Len Malmquist

file:///C:/Users/Iheathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Y ellow) htm 8/20/2018
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Spirit Mountain Casino

Security Guard Mickey Wood
Spirit Mountain Casino

Security Guard Kaitlyn Scott
Spirit Mountain Casino

MENTIONED POLICE;
Sergeant Matt Lawson
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAllister
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 - DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17.

cHB-E2 ~ interview with |||} EGN

CHB-E3 ~ Interview with Robin Norwest
CHB-E4 — Interview with Len Malmquist
CHB-E5 — Interview with Kaitlyn Scott
CHB-E6 — Interview with Mickey Wood
CHB-E7 — Audio interview with James Wolfer

ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

Probable Cause Affidavit from James Wolfer

Incident Report from James Wolfer

Incident Supplement from Tokata Tehama

Dispatch Report

Inter-Office Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation

Inter-Office Memorandum Investigation Report

file:///C:/Users/Theathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport 14463403 5000( Yellow).htm 8/20/2018
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Salem Health West Valiey Emergency Report for ||| | |l IEGzN

Artest Report — Polk County Jail

Dallas Police Department Incident Review
Letter of Resignation from James Wolfer
Trespass Notice from Spirit Mountain Casino

Certified Letter that houses Trespass Notice

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Policy
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Use of Force Policy

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Personne! Complaint Policy

Public Records Request from [} [

Taser Certification and Test for James Wolfer
Taser Instructor Cettification for Rod McAllister
Taser download for James Wolfer

DPSST Training record for James Wolfer

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 2, 2018, | was tasked with investigating a use of force case from Grand Ronde Tribal
Police Department, located in Polk County. Sergeant Matt Lawson explained to me that the
use of force occurred between former police officer, James Wolfer and a male he arrested,
B o Ausust 13,2017, Sergeant Matt Lawson toid me the case involved Mr.
Wolfer and the use of his taser during the arrest of Mr. |||

| read through the documents of this case, watched the body camera footage from James
Wolfer and interviewed witnesses. According to the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Dispatch Report
the following events occurred prior to My, Wolfer making contact with Mr.

» 5:03pm initial call for service came from Spirit Mountain Casino. Casino reported a
trespass.,
5:04pm — 5:05pm, trespasser identified as ||| ) I descriptors were given.
Male had been trespassed from casino before,
5:06pm, security officers were watching Mr. -
5:09pm, confirmed warrant for Assault Il, felony cautions reported.
5:10pm, Mr. Wolfer steps up response to casino and then also arrived on scene,

On January 2, 2018, | reviewed Mr. Wolfer’s body camera. Here is a summary of what | saw on
Mr, Wolfer’s body camera:

file:///C:/Users/Iheathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Y etlow).htm 8/20/2018







Untitled Page 6 of 37

On August 13, 2017 at approximately 5:11pm, Mr. Wolfer was on duty and in uniform. At this
time Mr. Wolfer activated his body camera at Spirit Mountain Casino. He was on a call for

service dealing with a trespassed male named ||| N TGN

Mr. Wolfer got out of his patrol vehicle and briefly talked to a security officer, who told him
where Mr. [ \vas located in the parking lot. Mr. Wolfer ran toward Mr. || in the
parking lot while also pulling out his Taser. A female appeared to be with Mr. ||

As Mr. Wolfer ran toward Mr. [l he velled, “Hey Stop, Police, Stop, get on the ground.”
Mr. Wolfer had his Taser pointed toward Mr. |l The female, later identified as [

B s: i<, “What do you want?”

Mr. Wolfer yelled, “Get on the ground now!” Ms. [ asked. “Me?” Ms. | 2t this
time stepped between Mr, Wolfer and Mr. [l Mr. Wolfer yelled commands to Mr.
B :<¢ Vs. [ 2nd he used his hands to point at which person he was referring;
Mr. Wolfer began yelling commands, “No not you. Back up. Go to the side. You on the
ground. Get on the ground now! Move aside. Get on the ground or you will be tased. Back
away, get on the ground, now.” Get on the grou. . .” While Mr, Wolfer was yelling, Mr,
I 5.t his hands up in the air and took steps backwards,

Next Ms. [ took a step toward Mr. Wolfer and at the same time Mr, Wolfer pulled the
trigger on his Taser deploying a taser cartridge that hit Mr. [Jij in the front of his upper
body. Mr. |l fe!l forward to the ground and then he rolled onto his back. Ms. ||l
yelled, “You mother fuckeri”

Mr. Wolfer said to Ms. [l ‘Get on the ground or you will be tased too!” Ms. |||
yelled back “Fucking do it, bitch!” Mr. Wolfer continued to tel! Ms. [JJJij to get on the
ground, Security Supervisor Mickey Wood stepped in front of Ms. At this time, Mr.
I = lving on his back with his arms extended out to his sides and he remained
motioniess,

Mr. Wolfer requested Dispatch to send medics to his ocation, Mr, Wolfer told Ms,
to say away. Mr, Wolfer then told Mr. [JJl] two times to roll over onto his side and Mr.
I complied with the commands and rolled onto his stomach,

Mr. Wolfer told Mr. [JJilf he was under arrest for a warrant and trespassing. He knelt
down, gave Mr. [} commands so he could piace him in handcuffs and Mr. [ I
complied, '

While Mr, Wolfer was cuffing Mr. ||| ]l Ms. I continrved velling at Mr, Wolfer and
Mr. Wolfer yelled back at her,

Once in handcuffs Mr. [l 2sked several times, “What did 1 do?” M. [} appeared
to be getting getting agitated during the verbal exchange between Mr, Wolfer and Ms,

file:///C:/Users/theathc/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Y ellow).htm 8/20/2018.
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B Vhie V. [ vas asking, “What did 1 do,” he started pushing slightly off the
ground with his knees; his head stayed on the ground. Mr. Wolfer then told Mr. he
had a warrant. Mr. [ sti!l appeared agitated and flexed his arms and rolled slightly onto
his left shoulder and then he rolled back onto his stomach. Mr, Wolfer warned Mr. ||l to
stay on the ground or he would tase him again, Mr. i saic, “Fuck you” and Mr. Wolfer
activated a five second taser cycle. Mr. [JJJJJil] was not flexing or rolling or moving his knees
at the time Mr. Wolfer activated the taser prohes,

After the taser cycled, Mr. Wolfer sald, “Don’t move or you'll get it again.” He then said to Mr,
I /ou done? You pull away from me again you'll get it again. Turn your head the other
way, turn your head,” Mr. Wolfer put his hand on the back of Mr. [ head to turn his
head and Mr. [l moved his head to face away from Mr. Wolfer.

At approximately 5:22pm Mr. [ brother, I V. I 21rived on scene, Mr.
B dic not recognize [l and said, “Who the fuck are you?” M. || was

verbally argumentative throughout the rest of the video footage, Mr, [} speech was
repetitive and slurred. He repeatedly asked what he did wrong and asked why he got tased.

At approximately 5:23pm, medics arrived on scene, At approximately 5:26pm medics checked
Mr. I for injuries and found he had an elevated heart rate and no injuries. During this
time Mr. Wolfer was tafking to a Deputy La Combe and explained the situation including that

Mr. [l was intoxicated.

At approximately 5:30pm, Mr. Wolfer talked to one of the Spirit Mountaln’s security personnel
and told him that he tased Mr. | because Mr. |l savared up on him.

At approximately 5:34pm, Mr. Wolfer heiped Mr. |Ji] stand and then he double locked
the handcuffs. At approximately 5:35pm, Mr, Wolfer and Mr. [JJij walked to Mr. Wolfer’s
patrol vehicle and Mr. |l was placed in the backseat.

At approximately 5:37pm, Mr. Wolfer transported Mr. i to the Polk County Jail. At
approximately 5:39pm, Mr. Wolfer called Seargeant McAllister via telephone and told him the
following:

“Hey just thought I'd let you know uh | tased |||} ] I So <alling you for the use of
force. It was right when LT went uh end of watch so he couldn’t back me up. So he was
already gone. So... uh..he (] was trespassed and uh also had a felony warrant,
wouldn’t stop when | told to his mom was getting in the middle and then he squared up on me
and so | had to tase him. And then | actually hit him a second time because he was resisting
when | put the...when | was trying to get the cuffs on hy myself so.”

Mr. Wolfer continued telling Sergeant McAllister that Mr. [JJJij was medically cleared on
scene and that he was on him way to Polk County Jail, During transport there was a banging
sound and Mr, Wolfer told McAllister that Mr. [JJJl] was banging his head against the car.
Mr. Wolfer ended his phone call with McAllister and then Mr. [ began velling in the
backseat asking what he did. Mr, Wolfer told Mr. [JJJi| he was trespassing. Mr. ||
continued velling for a few minutes including making threats that Mr. Wolfer may end up

file:///C:/Users/theathc/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Y ellow), htm 8/20/2018
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getting killed and then he was silent for a while.

At approximately 5:48pm, Mr, Wolfer radioed to dispatch to let the jail know to have multiple
deputies ready to help because Mr. [JJJJJJi] was making threats to harm police. At
approximately 5:54pm, there was a banging sound and Mr. Wolfer told Mr. [ to stop.
Mr. I ag2in asked where he was going. Mr. [} began velling again and was
argumentative. Mr. Wolfer initially talked with him and then ignored Mr. ||l veire.

At approximately 6:03pm, Mr. Wolfer arrived at Polk County Jail. Mr. refused to give
a breath sample to jail staff to show level of intoxication. Mr. Wolfer transported Mt,
to Salem Health West Valley Emergency room where he was medically cleared; report s
attached.

At approximately 6:40pm, Mr. Wolfer returned to the jail and lodged Mr. [Jij on for the
following charges {according {o the Probable Cause Affidavit}):

1.  "ORS 162.245 Criminal Trespass | — for being at Spirit Mountain Casino after
previously being arrested from criminal trespass at that location and being told he was
permanently trespassed from the location.”

2. “ORS 162,247 Interfering with a Police Officer, when Mr. ] refused to stop and
get on the ground when | [Wolfer] gave him several loud verbal commands to stop
walking and lay down on the ground.”

3. "ORS 162.315 Resisting Arrest: for attempting to pull away from me [Wolfer] after |
told him he was under arrest.”

4, ORS166,025 Disorderly Conduct in the second degree: For yelling loudly in the parking
lot, causing multiple patrons to stop and stare, as well as being verbally confrontational
with casino security.”

5.  “Yambhill Court Felony Warrant 17CR53185.”

| reviewed the Probable Cause Affidavit and the Arrest Report for the Polk County Jail, dated
August 13, 2017. | found the following actions listed in the report were not seen in the body
camera footage (these were addressed during the interview with Mr, Wolfer):

o  Mr. ] velling 2t Mr. Wolfer when confronted in the parking lot at Spirit
Mountain Casino.

o M. wa'king away during the confrontation with Mr., Wolfer.

o Mr. [ tvrning towards Mr. Wolfer and taking an aggressive stance while yelling
and “squaring up” hls body.

o After first tase, Mr. [l ro'iing away from Mr. Wolfer and continuing this behavior
until the taser was activated for a second cycle.

| reviewed the Incident Report written by Mr. Wolfer on 8/14/17. Mr. Wolfer addressed some
of the above discrepancies by writing, “| later reviewed my body camera footage and observed
that directly before | activated by Taser, [JJij took a step backward with his hands up. I did
not notice this during the incident due to the speed at which events were unfolding and due to
the fact that Ms. [l was approaching me and | believed | was about to be assaulted and

file:///C:/Users/lheathe/A ppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Yellow).htm 8/20/2018
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would have to fight both Ms. ||l < [ v thout a cover unit.”

t reviewed the Incident Supplement Report written by Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
Tokata Tehama. in the report he wrote that on 8/13/17 at approximately 2015 hours he went
to Spirit Mountain Casino and retrieved the Anti-Felon Identificaiton Tags (AFID Tags) from the
Taser deployment and placed them into evidence for Mr. Wolfer.

| reviewed the inter-Office Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation
written by Lleutenant Tim Hernandez. According to this memorandum Lieutenant Hernandez
reviewed the body camera footage from Mr, Wolfer dated 8/13/17 and concluded the
following:

¢ The Taser application that he witnessed on the body camera footage violates
Confederated Tribes Grand Ronde (CTGR) policy 304.5.1 Application of Taser, This
policy states that the Taser device may be used when such application is reasonably
necessary to control a person that Is violent or physically resisting or the subject has
demonstrated by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically resist, and
reasonably appears to present the potential to harm to others.

According to the Inter-Office Memorandum, James Wolfer Administrative Leave Investigation
on 8/14/17 at approximately 10:24am, Lieutenant Hernandez met with Mr. Wolfer and placed
him on paid administrative leave. On 8/15/17, Lleutenant Hernandez made phone contact
with the City of Dallas Police Chief Tom Simpson and requested a use cf force review. On
8/16/17 Dallas Police Lieutenant Mott completed a use of force report.

| reviewed the Dallas Police Department Incident Review. In the Incident review Lieutenant
Mott wrote that Mr, Wolfer violated several sections of the Conducted Energy Device Policy
(Taser Policy):

e 304.5 1Application of Taser {already addressed above).

e 304,52 (d) by using a Taser on a handcuffed person who could otherwise be restrained
without meeting threshold of increased risk to himself, the suspect or others.

e 304.5.2(f) by tasing an individual who was standing on an asphalt parking lot.

e 304.5.5 “This policy required Mr. Wolfer notify a supervisor of the Taser device
discharge. [t s an implicit component of advising the supervisor to be honest in the
recounting of the event,

| reviewed the Inter-Office Memorandum Investigation Report written by Sergeant Rod
McAllister. In this report Sergeant McAllister reviewed the body camera and reports written by
Mr. Wolfer and recommended Mr, Wolfer's employment be terminated due to the following
policy violations:

e Policy 319 Standards of Conduct; 319.5.8 Performance(a)(b)(c} deals with false
statements, falsifying documents and failing to report false statements, etc.

» Policy 319 Standards of Conduct; 319.5.9 Conduct {b}(c}(h) deals with unreasonable
force, exceeding lawful authority and criminal dishonest or disgraceful conduct,

| interviewed the following people in this case:

file:///C:/Users/theathc/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Y ellow) htm 8/20/2018







Untitled Page 10 of 37

Chief Jake McKnight — Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez — Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McCallister — Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department
I - ot of [

Robin Norwest — Security guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

Len Malmquist — Security guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

Mickey Wood — Security guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

Kaitlyn Scott — Security guard at Spirit Mountain Casino

James Wolfer — Suspect and former police officer at Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department '

LN WNPE

The four security guards | interviewed regarding this case believe Mr, Wolfer acted
appropriately and professionally and used the appropriate level of force to control the
situation. They all told me Mr. |l was trespassing at Spirit Mountain Casino and he had a
warrant for Assault ll, They also told me Mr, [JJl] was intexicated, confrontational,
belligerent and they believed him to be a violent and dangerous individual. See the interview
reports, the audio recordings and the transcripts for Robin Norwest, Len Malmaquist, Mickey
Wood and Kaitlyn Scott for more details.

Al of those interviewed, who saw Mr. i inside the Spirit Mountain Casinc on August 13,
2017 told me he was intoxicated and confrontational. When | interviewed M. |||
mom, she admitted her son was intoxicated and acting irrationally. However, she believed Mr,
Wolfer used excessive force when he tased Mr. -

Ms. [ to'd me Spirit Mountain Casino sent a trespass notice to Mr. [ after this
incident. She sent me a picture of the certified envelope, dated 8/22/17 and the Notice of
Trespass., The letter states || ] ]) I is indefinitely excluded from the Spirit Mountain
Casino; signed by Security Manager Mickey Wood and dated 8/19/17.

| asked Ms, [l for contact information for Mr. | She told me he was living in the
Portland area with his girlfriend. She gave me the cell phone number to his girlfriend, [}
B | cove Vs [ v contact information and she told me she would try to get Mr.
B to 2!l me. See the interview report, audio recording and transcript from the
interview with Ms. || for more information.

| made several attempts to reach Mr. |} ! did get ahold of ||} I o 1/25/18 and
told her | needed to talk with Mr. [JJJli] and | explained the investigation te her. [ gave her

my contact information. | stopped attempting to make contact In the beginning of February, |
have not heard back from Mr. [JJJJJi] as of the day of this report.

On January 8, | met with Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and Sergeant McAllister
from Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department. Collectively they provided me with the following
documents: -

¢ Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Policy

¢ Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Use of Force Policy
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Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Personnel Complaint Policy

Public Records Request from [} I sccking reports and video from the
incident that occurred on 8/13/17.

e Taser Certification and Test for James Wolfer

Taser Instructor Certification for Rod McAllister

Taser download for James Wolfer

*

From my interviews with Chief McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez, Sergeant McAllister and Mr.
Wolfer, | found Mr, Wolfer was never Interviewed regarding this incident, Mr. Wolfer was
placed con paid administrative leave on 8/14/17. Mr. Wolfer had a meeting with Lieutenant
Hernandez on 8/18/17 and he was told they were recommending termination due to violating
the Standards of Conduct and Taser policies. Mr. Wolfer wrote a letter of resignation that day;
attached to this repoit.

I additionally found from my interviews with Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and
Sergeant McAllister that they unanimously believe that Mr. Wolfer used excessive force that
rose to the leve! of a criminal assault. However the investigation report completed by Sergeant
Rod McAllister did not address excessive force. See the interview reports with Chief Jake
McKnight, Lieutenant Hernandez and Sergeant McAllister and the Investigation Report
completed by Sergeant McAllister for more information.

On March 2, | interviewed former Police Officer James Wolfer regarding the events that
occurred on August 13, 2017, Mr, Wolfer went into detail describing his interaction with Mr.
B V. Wolfer told me he was by himself. He told me while he was responding to the
scene, his supervisor warned him that Mr. [ usually has his brother with him and then
his supervisor went off duty., He told me his back up from Polk County was at least ten minutes
away. He told me from his experience, most security officers won’t get involved in physical
confrontations. He told me he was aware that Mr. [JJJil] was violent, uncooperative, and
aggressive prior to his arrival on scene.

Once on scene, the situation became more serious because he was faced with Mr.

and an unknown female who was interfering with him making an arrest. He stated Mr.
B 25 |arger than him in size and was not cooperative, He told me he also believed Mr.
B o' other was somewhere in the area. After being cuffed, Mr. [JJij began
resisting again and Mr. Wolfer believed the unknown woman would make an effort to assault
him in an effort to free Mr. |} The unknown woman was fater identified as ||| N
mother. Mr. Wolfer said he used his Taser to control the situation and stop Mr, ] from
resisting further. Looking at the totality of the circumstances, Mr, Wolfer told me he used the
force he felt necessary in order to make an arrest.

Mr. Wolfer was able to articulate himself well and he addressed the differences seen on the
video compared to his reports, He talked about having tunnel vision and how the camera did
not pick up what he was feeling and seeing. Mr. Wolfer also explained that he was scared
during this Incident and Lieutenant Hernandez told me during his interview that Mr. Wolfer did
not do well with hostile contacts,
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in addition, from 2011 through 2017, Mr. Wolfer only attended one, one hour defensive tactics
training class. He Woifer did not meet the maintenance standards set by DPSST for annual
required training for use of force. DPSST requires 8 hours every year for use of force or
firearms. From June 2016 to August 2017, Mr. Wolfer attended 6 hours of training, five of them
for firearms and one hour for defensive training; Counter Assault.

See the interview report, audio recording and transcript from the interview with Mr, Wolfer for
more information.,

The victim in this case, || N | ] ] I 25 not cooperative and did not give a statement
during this investigation.

DISPOSITION:
Refer to the Marion County District Attorney’s Office for consideration.,

Supplemental.

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/26/2018 13:52
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/26/2018 13:52

Narrative:

Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:

Marion County District Atterney’s Office
SUBJECT OF THiS REPORT:

Withess Interview — --

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

pos: NG
MENTIONED:

oy
Mother of

pos: I

T R
plel:F ]

Phone:

Securlty Manager Mickey Wood
Spirit Mountain Casino
EVIDENCE: -

cHB-£2 — Interview with ||}

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

Trespass Notice from Spirit Mountain Casino
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Certified Letter Envelope that housed Trespass Notice

ACTION TAKEN:
On January 12, 2018 at approximately 16:23am | interviewed [ I > telephone. | toid Ms. [ v
conversation was being recorded and | asked her to tell me what she withessed on August 13, 2017 concerning her son,

ms. [ to'd me that on August 12, 2017 she and her son were headed back home from a Pow-Wow in Siletz. She told
me they stopped at Spirit Mountain Castno to eat at the buffet. She told me when she went to pay for the buffet she realized
she needed her tribal identification in order to get a discount. She told me she went back to her car and grabbed her ID and
when she got hack her son was gone.

vs. [ to'c me staff told her [JJl] was using the bathroom. She told me she waited for a fong time and then
knocked on the men’s bathroom door and he wasn’t in there. She told me she went looking for him. She told me at first she
coulkdn’t find him and she ended up ordering food in the deli, She told me she finally found iim in the lounge sitting at a bench
seat and there were two security guards at each exit. She told me the securlty guards were staring at [Jj she totd me
she walked up to her son and told him they were |leaving.

M. [ to'¢ me [ scemed drunk and she thought how could he be drunk when they had only been at the casino
for around twenty to twenty five minutes. She told me she asked the bartender if she gave him shots. She told me the
bartender said she only gave him bread and water, She told me she locked arms with her son at the elbow and said, "Let’s go.”

s, [ continued telling me [l was being difficult and he didn’t want to leave. She toid him she ordered focd

from the deti and they needed to go plek It up and leave. She told me the security guards followed them when they left, She
told me they exlted the lounge through the high stakes gaming area. She told me [ erabbed a chair that was sitting at
one of the sict machines and knocked it over. She told me she scolded him and told him he was going to make things worse.

Ms, - told me they went to the deli and got thelr food and the security guards were stili following them from a distance
and watching them. She told me the security guards did not talk with her.

asked Ms. [ f she tatked with [l about why security guards were fllowing them and she told me
seemed drunk and was slurring his words so she didn’t feel like she could ask him. She toid me she just wanted to get out of
there.

vis. [l to'¢ me while they were In the parking lot walking towards her car Officer Wolfer came racing towards them
with hls taser drawn. Below Is an excerpt from the interview with Ms. [ tpage 2, ines 1-41).

IR Um, well, | was trying to get my son to leave the casino with me, uh, 'cause we ordered food to go and it
was ready, and sc we got our focd from the dell and we were walking out the, um, entrance near,
um, the, uh, Legends **** and, uh, we went out that way and were probably 30 or 40 feet from
my car wher, um, we heard Officer Wolfer, 1 didn’t know who he was at the time, but, uh, come
running up behind us with his taser drawn, yelling at us stop or I'm gonna tase you, and took my
son and | both — we were, | do, we were the only people | saw around the parking lot 'cause |
looked around tike s he talking to us?

Detectlve Hegney-Bach: Mm hmm.

[ And, and, uh, turned around and locked at him and we hoth stopped and, uh, | wanna say we threw
our hands up and said what, what did we do, we didn‘t do anything.

Detactive Hegney-Bach: Yeah.

] And, uh, and he told me, he threatened me saylng, um, because my son was watking In front of me, so
when we turned around to face Gificer Wolfer that made me in between Officer Wolfer and my
son, and, and he said If you don't move, if you don't get out of the way I'm gonna tase you and |
sald what, 1 didn't do anything, and, and | kept saying we dldn't do anything. What, what do you
want and, and my son stepped out from behind me and, and he just tased him.

Detectlve Hegney-Bach: Mm hmm, ckay.
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] ] And, um, and he just stiffened up and felt over and, um, it really — that was traumatizing to see your
son get tasad like that ‘cause, | mean it's the helpless situation. | mean he -

Detective Hegney-Bach: Yeah.

[ ] ] — fell over and I told him ke right away iike that was totally uncalled for, that was unnecessary, what's
this all about?

Detactive Hegney-Bach: Yeah,

] And, um, he just started going over to my son and, and putting handeuffs on him and as he was laying
there still stiff and | look at the security officers around there who apparently had gone and got,
called the tribal police officer, uh, tc come and arrest him and he said there's a warrant for his
arrest, |said out of where and he sald that doesn't concern you, and, um, and | puiled out my
phone to, um, videc record it, but | didn't have enough memory on my phone to video record
anything.

Ms. [ to'd me one of the security guards asked Officer Wolfer if he wanted him to take her (Ms. [ cowr. she
told me Officer Wolfer said it's okay she can take pictures and record video.

ms. [ to'd me she called her other son [ lj Il o was working in the casino and he came out to the scene,

She told me she feit llke she was being bullled by the officer and the security guards, but once [ showed up everyone

calmed down, She told me Officer Wolfer was being rough on her son and had his knee in the back of his head like was trying

to grind his face Into the asphalt. She told me when [JJJj showed up Officer Wolfer loosened up and let up on his knee. Ms.
told me- convinced her to leave the scene and she went home to Kiamath Falls,

Ms.- told me she saw Highpine around a week later at the Polk County Jail and she told me she did not see any
obvious injury on - She told me she saw a little discoloration, like old bruises faded from the left side of his face
around his forehead and cheek, She thought the mark was probably where - feli and hit the concrete. She told me
Highpine also complained to her that he was sore where the taser probes hit him.

| asked Ms. if sha knew how | could get ahold of— She told me he lives in the Portland area with his
glrifriend, She told me she doesn’t know exactly where they are living but she gave me Ms.- ghone
number,

Ms. - told me Spirlt Mountain sent a delayed trespass notlce to - She told me she had the notice and would
send it to me, |asked her if knew he was trespassed from the casino. She told me she thought [ wes aware
because she talked with told her they went in June 2017 and they toid him ta leave and that he was golng to be

trespassed. She told me toid her [ was drunk at the time.
This concluded our interview. Ms. sent me a picture of the certified envelope, dated 8/22/17 and the Notice of
Trespass, The letter states is indefinitely excluded from the Spirlt Mountain Casino; signed by Security

Manager Mickey Wood and dated 8/13/17.

//End Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/26/2018 14.26
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Enfered time:  03/26/2018 14:26
Narrative;

Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:

Marion County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
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Witness Interview ~ Robin Norwest

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James
DOB:

MENTIONED:
Robin Norwest
Security Officer at Spirit Mountain Casino

T e
cos: I

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Ted Moisan
Oregon State Police

EVIDENCE:

CHB-£3 ~ Interview with Robin Norwest
ATTACHEDR:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 66

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 30, 2018 Detectlve Ted Moisan and | went to Spirit Mountaln Casino tc coenduct interviews with security staff. At
approximately 3:11pm we Interviewed Robin Norwest. | told Mr. Norwest our convarsation was being recorded and | asked
him to tell me what he witnessed on August 13, 2017 concerning ||| TN

Mr. Norwest tald me on August 13, 2017 he was dispatched to handle an Intoxlcated person. He told me he recognized
because he has dealt with him before, He told me Mr. ] was intoxicated and he knew this because

Mr. was rambling, the way he smelled, and his lack of focus. He told me Mr. - was happy one moment and sad

the next, He told me Mr.- was in the lounge but the lounge did not serve him any al¢cohol, he showed up Intoxicated,

Mr. Norwest told me he asked Mr. [ to leave the premises. He told me he toid Mr. he would not be served
anymore and he needed to leave because he was excluded from the casino. He told me Mr. got really mad and
started screaming at him; cussing and swearing,

Mr, Norwest continued telling me when Mr. [ left the lounge he went through High Stakes area and knocked over
chairs because he couldn’t walk well, he was stumbling and his mom had to hold him up.

My audlo recorder ran out of batteries around this time. | restarted a recording at approximately 3:18pm.

Mr, Norwest continued telling me Mr. [JJJJiJ exited the building with his mother out of the valet entrance. He told me they
were In the green parking lot. He told me he saw Officer Wolfer walk up and he told Officer Wolfer Mr. - was in the red
shirt and pointed to his location. He told me he saw Officer Wolfer approach Mr, -

Below is an excerpt from the interview with Mr. Norwest (page 2, lines 30 -~ 36).

Robin Norwest; Well, the verbal commands he was glving him to stop, he was Ignoring 'em, cussing and swearing. He
was stlll cussing and swearing at me. His mom kept trying to grab him and *** on the ground.
He refused, kept doing over and over, | don't know how many times he told them, you know,
%% Finally told him that he needed to get down or he wiil be tased. didn't seem to
care about that, and he got tased, went down, kept fighting with Wolfer while he was down, got
tased the second time, and then became pretty compllant, Got the cuffs on. Woifer kind up
helped him up a little bit, sitting up.

Mr. Norwest told me he was standing approximately five feet away from Officer Wolfer during the confrontation with Mr,
B e told me Mr. [ mom kept trying to get involved and they had to ask her multiple times to step away. He
told me Mr. [l mom was cussing and swearing at them. He told me Mr. brother who works at the casino
came outside and talked with his mother and teld her to go home. He told me M"s mom finally left around this
time.
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mr. Norwest told me he thinks Mr. [JJJJJi} is dangerous, but Mr. ] has never assaulted any of the casino staff and has
only verbally combative.

Mr. Norwest continued telling me he thinks Offlcer Wolfer did the right thing. He told me he does not see any Issues with how
Officer Wolfer handled the situation,

This concluded our interview,

//End Report//

Suppiemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/26/2018 14:2S
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/26/2018 14:26

Narrative:

Case #SP18001837

DISTRIBUTION:

Marion County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:

Witness Interview — Len Malmauist

SUSPECT:

Wolfer, James

pos: NG

MENTIONED:

Len Malmquist

Security Officer at Splrlt Mountaip Casino

Robin Norwest

Security Officer at Spirit Mountain Casino

Mickey Wood

Security Supervisor at Spirit Mountain Casino

Kaitlyn Scott

Security Officer at Splrit Mountaln Casino
- Victim

DO8:

MENTIONED POLICE:

Detective Ted Molsan

Cregon State Palice

EVIDENCE;

CHB-E4 — Interview with Len Malmquist
ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN: _
On January 30, 2018 Detective Ted Moisan and | went ta Spirit Mountain Casino to conduct interviews with security staff. At
approximately 3:36pm we interviewed Len Malmguist. | told Mr. Malmquist our conversation was being recorded and | asked
him to tel! me what he witnessed on August 13, 2017 concerning ||| N I

Mr. Malmquist told me he was an acting supervisor on August 13, 2017 and the security staff got a cali from surveillance saying
that [N B = excluded person was n Summlt View Lounge. He told me Mr. ] wes trespassed due to his
violent tendencles and outbursts. He tald me they immediately called for law enforcement. He told me he, Robin Norwest,
Supervisor Mickey Wood and Kaitiyn Scott were near a door that goes between the Summit View Lounge and the high stakes
area.

Mr. Maimaquist told me the Summit View Lounge manager was a weman named Kaylee and Kaylee asked that Mr. - be
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removed from the lounge because he was getting very loud and causing a scene. He told me Mr.- appeared
intoxicated, he had slurred speech and an unsteady galt. He told me he and the other security staff were keeping an eye on
mr. [l but did not contact him at that time,

Mr. Malmquist told me Mr. [l mother arrived at the lounge and she was trylng to get Mr. i to 'eave, tugging on
him and saying “come on, let's go, let's go.” He told me they went out the door that connects the founge to the high stakes
area and Mr. [l threw a couple of chairs out of his way and continued to make a scene. He told me he and security were
followlng from a distance. He told me Mr. [l and his mom went to the dell. He told me while they were at the dell he
heard survelliance come across the radio and say that a tribal police officer was on the property. He told me he broke away to
talk with the police officer, )

Mr. Malmquist told me he went outside and talked with Officer Wolfer, He told me he told Officer Wolfer that Mr.-
was heading towards the valet entrance to exlt the casino. He told me Officer Wolfer drove to the valet entrance.

Mr. Malmaquist told me he walked around the outslde of the building to the valet entrance. He told me he could hear on the

radio that Mr. [JJJJJl] went from the valet entrance through the green lot. He told me as he approached the area where

officer Wolfer was, he saw Mr. [JJJJJlJ on the ground face down. Gfficer Wolfer was trying to handcuff Mr. [ and Mr.
was very combative and not following directions.

Mr. Malmquist continued telling me Mr. ] mother was trying to interfere with the arrest. He told me Mickey Woed
was trying to keep her out of Officer Wolfer's way. He told me he was standlng around ten feet away during the confrentation
between Officer Wolfer and Mr.

Mr. Malmaulst told me there were a few casino guests in the parking lot and he immedlately tasked himseif to crowd control.
He told me he had his back to the confrantation and he glanced back to make sure things were going ok when he heard
yelling. He toid me he remembered Officer Wolfer yelling at Mr, to quit fighting. He told me this happened when
Officer Wolfer was trying to handcuff Mr. - while Mr, was lying face down on the ground,

Below Is an excerpt from the transcript from the interview with Mr. Malmquist {page 9 lines 16-18).

Len Malmaqulst: Uh, when | approached him, he had tased him ance. Um, got him on the ground. Was trying to
handcuff him. And, then I heard him quit fighting me, quit fighting me, you keep fighting me, I'm
gonna tase you agaln, And, ! did hear the second tase.

Mr. Malmaquist continued telfing me that during the second tase, Officer Wolfer had one wrist handcuffed and was trying to get
ahold of Mr, other wrist. He told me Officer Wolfer was also yelling at Mr. mother to get out of the area.
He told me the following people witnessed the incident bestdes himself: Kaitlyn Scott, Mickey Wood, Robin Norwest, Mary
Williams and Tyler White,

Mr. Malmquist told me Mr. - continued to try and fight after Officer Wolfer put him in handcuffs, He told me Mr.
B 25 “trving to do something. Anything.”

| asked Mr. Malmquist If he had any concerns about what happened between Officer Wolfer and Mr. — He told me he
spent fifteen years in the military and four of those years as a military police officer. Below Is an excerpt from the Interview
with Mr. Malmqulst regarding some of his tralning and experience and his opinion regarding the interaction between Officer
wolfer and Mr. [ (page 14 Ines 22 - 55). '

Len Malmquist: —lalso spent 5 years as a, um, antlterrorist force protecticn instruction,
Detectlve \Violson. Okay.

Len Malmquist: So, | taught self-defense —

Detective Molsan: Uh huh.

Len Malmquist: —ttaught non-iethal weapons.

Detectlve Molsan: Uh huh.

Len Maimquist: Nothing would have tripped any triggers with me,

Detective Molsan: Huh. Okay.
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Len Malmquist: He's a single officer. He didn‘t have a cover officer,
Detective Molsan: Right.
Len Malmqulst: I s <rown to sometimes be violent.

Detective Hegney-Bach: When you say he's been known to be violent, has, has he ever been physically viclent with you or any
of your staff or anycne you know of?

Len Maimqulst; Not hands on.

Detective Hegney-Bach, Okay.

Len Malmquist: Uh, he's thrown chalrs around and kicked stuff and -

Detective Hegney-Bach. Okay.

Len Malqulst: —um, and of course, ya know, we've seen hls, ya know, on arrest.org.

Mr. Malmquist continued teliing me Mr. [ grabbed Officer Wolfer a couple times before he was handcuffed, He also
told me that Mr. [l savared off towards him Inside the casino. He told me Mr. [} is around 5417, fit and in his
mid to late 20's.

This concluded our interview. | ended the recording at 3:59pm.

//End Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/26/2018 14:51
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  03/26/2018 14:51

Narrative:

Case #5P18001897
DISTRIBUTION:

Marion County District Attorney's Office
SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Witness Interview ~ Mickey Wood
SUSPECT:

Wolfer, James

DOB!

MENTIONED:

Security Supervisor Mickey Wood
Spirtt Mountain Casino

- Victim
DboOB:
EVIDENCE;
CHB-E6 - Interview with Mickey Wood
ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 30, 2018 at approximately 3:33pm, | interviewed Mickey Wood via telephone. Mickey Wood is a security
supervisor at Spirit Mountain Casino, Mr, Wood was working On August 13, 2017 and witnessed the events that took place
between Officer James Wolfer and || BB | 2s+ec him to tefl me about the events he witnessed.

Below Is an excerpt from the transcript from the Interview with Mr. Wood (page 3 lines 23 - 55, page 4 lines 1-2}.

Mickey Wood: Okay, uh, | got a call that, uh, |l w25 1 the, uh, Summit View lounge. Uh, | believed him to be
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indefinitely excluded from the casino. | contacted dispatch and confirmed that he was still currently excluded from the casino.
Dispatch advised me, uh, uh, okay, dispatch advised me the last time we dealt with || vh.
law enforcement came out, and he was combative, uh, and they actually took him down. Uk, so,
with that 1 requested law enforcement and went (nto the, uh, to the area where he was, Uh,
once | saw him, and we knew who he was, uh, he was belng, um, disruptive and bothering guests,
and the, um, supervisor there, Kayley Compton, uh, had requested that he be removed from that
vanue, because of the issues he was causing. Uh, as he left that area, he went into the high limits
area, and, uh, one of the reports sald he knocked over a chair. When | got there, uh, they were
just picking up the chalr, so } actually didn‘t witness him knock It over, just the picking up of it.
Uh, and, um, so anyhow, he was argumentative at the time. Him and the female that he was
with, who turned out to be his mother, uh, went out of high limits after being told they were
excluded and had to leave. They went into, uh, a little area. it's called, uh, a deli where you get
sandwiches, The food and beverage supervisor, Tyler White, had showed up, because we were
going to, uh, conflrm that he had been cut off frorh alcohol, and typically we try to get other
supervisars from food and beverage involved, Uh, so, I, uh, ! had told Tyler that we were, If they
were gonna sit there and just not cause any trouble, we were Just gonna wait till law enforcement
got there, so that we wouldn’t stir him up or agitate or make the situation any worse. Uh, then
they got up and left, uh, the mother and him, and they headed out toward the green lot. Uh,
Officer Wolfer arrived and asked me where he was, and | polnted to ||| | | | } ) I V. be
was the male in the red shirt. Uh, Officer, uh, Woifer went out there and immediately, ul,
started telling him to get on the ground, uh, which he would not, uh, he wouldn't, he just
wouldn't do, and the mother repeatediy tried to step between, uh, Officer Wolfer and
uh, trying to interfere with the arrest. I'm not sure how many times, but it was multiple times
that, uh, uh, Officer Welfer told him to get on the ground, uh, and he Just, he would not comply.
So, eventually, uh, Officer Wolfer was able to get, uh, between, uh, [ without the mother
involved, and he tased, tased him and took him down. Uh, after they got him down, he continued
and continued to struggle. The mother kept yelling and interfering, Um, | believe he was tased
again to iry and maintain control. Then, he baslcally was just left on the ground untll cover
officers could come. Uh, Wolfer cailed medics, uh, right after he got him down and somewhat
secured, and they came and, uh, medics removed the tongs, and he was placed in the patrol car
and taken tojall.

lasked Mr. Wood to tell me about the prior incidents where [JJj was combative. He told me i has never had any
physical altercations with securlty but was verbally combative, He told me Is unreasonable when he gets intoxicated.
He told me on cne occaslan, when talking with Spirit Mountain Security, sald, “elther you KIll me or | will kill you.” He
told me the report sald they had to take him to the ground and take him Into custody.

Mr. Wood continued telling me that considering JJij had 2 warrant for assault, a prior track record of being verbally
combative to security and police and - mother interfering he believed Officer Wolfer responded appropriately to the
situation. He told me he helieved if Officer Wolfer had not taken control of the situation It would have escalated,

This concluded my interview with Mr. Wood.

//End Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS! Report time: 03/27/2018 12:36
Entered by!: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS| Entered time:  03/27/2018 12:36

Narrative:

Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Witness Interview — Kaitlyn Scott
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SUSPECT;
Wolfer, James

pos: [ ING_

MENTIONED:
Kaitlyn Scott
Security Officer at Spirit Mountain Casino

Mickey Wood
Security Supervisor at Spirit Mountain Casino

- Victim
DOB;

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Ted Moisan
Oregon State Police

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E5 — interview with Kaitlyn Scott

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 30, 2018 Detective Ted Moisan and | went to Spirit Mountain Casine to conduct
interviews with security staff. At approximately 4:08pm we interviewed Kaitlyn Scott. | toid
Ms. Scott our conversation was being recorded and | asked her to tell me what she witnessed

on August 13, 2017 concerning ||| | N TG

Ms. Scott told me on August 13, 2017 around Spm [JJi] was “red lighted,” meaning he was
cut off from alcohol. She told me [Jl] was being aggressive with wait staff and yelling.
She told me [} was there with his mom. She told me [l mom was trying to calm
him down, but he was “definitely loud, definitely belligerent.” She told me she waited outside
of the lounge in the high limits area while other security officers were in the lounge.

Ms. Scott told me [l knocked over chalrs and stormed outside. She told me |||
and his mom “seemed to be in quite a rush after they found out that security had been
notified.” She told me they {the security guards) “were hanging back quite a bit” because law
enforcement was on their way. She told me she was with Security Supervisor Mickey Wood
near the valet entrance. She told me shortly after this Officer Wolfer arrived at their location,

Below Is an excerpt from the interview with Ms, Scott {page 6 lines 3-11}), regarding what she
remembered about Officer Wolfer's initial contact with ||| il

Kaitlyn Scott: Um, he could’ve been in a hurry because he thought he might have
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gotten in his vehicle, I'm not sure what his thought process was, it just striked me as odd. Um,
so he hit the first row of cars, had his hand on his taser but hadn’t pulled
it yet, if | remember correctly, and then went down, made contact, uh,
verbal contact with [l and said, you know, Officer Wolfer, Tribal
Police, um, like, please raise your hands, or you need to put your hands
up, or you need to stop walking. | believe he said to stop walking first,
and then, you know, | need to see your hands. Um, and [l
wanted no part of that, He was like I'm just gonna go home. His mom
got in the way of everything. Um, she got in Officer Wolfer's face,

Ms. Scott told me she hung back for crowd control. She told me while she was asking people in
the parking lot not to gawk she heard a “thud” behind her and when she turned around she
saw [ on the ground. She told me [l fe!! because Officer Wolfer tased him. She
told me [l tried to get up and Officer Wolfer gave him warnings like “you need to stay
where you are and he stil! tried to get up “so Officer Wolfer tased him again. She told me
when the second tase occutred Officer Wolfer was still standing up and approaching |||

Ms. Scott told me she did not think that Officer Wolfer used excessive force during his

interaction with ||| | | |

//End of report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/27/2018 12:49
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASH Entered time:  03/27/2018 12:49

Narrative:

Case #SP18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview with James Wolfer

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

pos: I

MENTIONED:
Aaron Perez Selsky
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Attorney for James Wolfer

I
pos: INGc_N

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Police

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E7 — Audio interview with James Wolfer

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

ACTION TAKEN:

On February 12, 2018 | contacted James Wolfer to set up an interview. He told me he needed
to contact his lawyer and told me he would call me back on Thursday February 15, On
February 15, | was contacted by Aaron Perez-Selsky who told me he was Mr. Wolfer’s
attorney, We set up an interview for March 2, 2018 at 10:30am at the Salem Patrol Office.

On March 2, 2018 at approximately 10:42 am, ! interviewed James Wolfer. Aaron Perez-Selsky
and Detective Carlos Barrientos were also present during the interview, |told Mr, Wolfer our
conversation was being recorded. | explained to Mr. Wolfer that | was investigating an incident
involving him and [ ]]JJ I that occurred on August 13, 2017. | told him { was
assigned to investigate whether excessive force was used during the arrest.

| asked Mr. Wolfer to tell me about his law enforcement experience. He told me the following:
¢ He worked as a police officer for Warm Springs Police Department from October 2010 -
January 2012,
He attended Basic Police Academy in January 2011,
He had a gap in law enforcement work from January 2012 — May 2016, During this
time he worked in banking and then for SAIF as a State Workers Comp investigator.
He worked as a police officer for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department May 2016 —
August 2017, A
¢ He went to Career Officer Development {COD) during his employment at Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department due to the gap in law enforcement employement,

| asked him questions about his duties and shift being worked on and around August 13, 2017.
He told me the following: ‘

s His scheduled shift was Sunday through Wednesday 6a-6p.

¢ His job was focused on community policing with a high number of contacts.

! asked Mr. Wolfer questions about his Taser training during his employment with Grand Ronde
Tribal Police Department. He told he did not remember how long the initial Taser training

file:///C:/Users/lheathc/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Yellow).htm 8/20/2018







Untitled Page 23 of 37

lasted, but said it was “short,” He told me the training consisted of a power point presentation
and short scenarios where he shot a training cartridge, which does not shoot probes. He told
me this was the only training he had with his Taser.

| asked him how his relationship was with the people he worked with at Grand Ronde Tribal
Police Department. He told me he and Lieutenant Hernandez “kinda butted heads.” He told
me he got along well with everyone eise,

| asked Mr. Wolfer to tell me about the events that oceurred on August 13, 2017 at Grand
Ronde Casino. He told me the following occurred leading up to seeing ||

¢ Around 5pm, he received a call from dispatch that ||| |} I v 2s actively
trespassing at Grand Ronde Casino,

¢ He asked for back up and was told a Polk County Deputy was in route but was a ways
out.

+ Dispatch informed him that ] had a warrant for Assault (1.

e Lt. Hernandez told him via radio to be careful because ] has a brother who is
usually with him. He got the impression that i brother would help [N
fight,

e  While in-route he called Grand Ronde Casino Security and they told him [ was
inside at a bar and they told him [JJJJli] was being “confrontational.”

*  When he arrived at the casino, he activated his body camera and was told ||| was

in the parking lot, '
He felt that he could not wait for backup due to [Jiij behavior and he initiated
contact, :

Mr. Wolfer went into detall describing his interaction with ] Review transcript page 27
lines 17-56, page 28 lines 1-42 for more detalls. Mr. Wolfer told me he drove to the parking lot
where security officers told him [JJJJij was located; he got out of his vehicle and drew his
Taser. He said, “If { saw him | was gonna have to arrest him 'cause he had a warrant and was
actively trespassing.”

Mr. Wolfer told me he was by himself. He told me from his experience most security officers
won’t get involved In physical confrontations. He told me when he saw [Jjjjjj there was a
woman with him and he found out |ater it was [JJj mother. He told me pointed the
Taser at [l and velled at [ to get on the ground. He told me he kept velling “Get
on the ground, get on the ground.” He toid me ] wouldn’t get on the ground and the
woman kept trying to get between them so he moved laterally. Mr, Wolfer said, “f perceived
her to be a threat, but not as big of a threat as him ||| N

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me [JJJJi] was walking away and then he thought he yelled stop
and [l storred and turned and the woman rushed at him. He told me at the same time
B :de = sudden movement that he perceived as [Jij about to charge him or
squaring up to fight so he tased [JJl] He said, “1 remember he did something very, very
quickly and so right at the same time she was rushing me, so then { tased him, and | got ready
to go hands on with her, but she stepped back, and | think | sald somethin' like stay back or

file:///C:/Users/lheathc/AppData/Local/Temp/N icheReporil4463403SOOO(Ycllow).htm 8/20/2018







Untitled Page 24 of 37

you'll get tased too, and so she stepped back but she was yellin' at me, so then | went over to
him. Security was there, but they weren't like grabbing her.”

Mr. Wolfer told me there were a lot of people in the parking lot and he remembers locking
around for this other brother that might be there, He told me he was on the ground with his
back exposed to everybody. He told me the woman was still yelling at him as he put handcuffs
on [l He said, “I wasn't able to pat him down yet, and t was on top of him but not fully,
because | was also still tryin' to be able to spring back up in case | got hit from behind from
wherever this other brother was gonna be, and, um, and then [ felt him moving, which |
interpreted as him tryin' to get back up, and | didn't know if he had weapons or anything yet.”

Below Is an excerpt from the transcript from the interview with Mr, Wolfer describing what led
to the second cycle of taser activation {page 28 lines 21-42),

James Wolfer: When | worked in Warm Springs, | have had people try to fight, Like [ had
someone in handcuffs once like, like sho, run his shoulder into me and knock me
over and like fight and then run, you know, so i, | don't know what, what he's
tryin' to do. Just 'cause he was in handcuffs, |, { don't even think | had double
Jocked 'em yet, and | kept tellin' him to stop resisting, um, and | felt like when he
would turn and look at me, and | remember tellin' him to look away, when he'd
turn and look at me, like [ felt like he was tryin' to get up off the ground 'cause |
would, | mean he, | felt, | felt like he was bigger than me, so he was, like it was
like lifting me up. At the same time the mom was yelling at him or something,
and | remember telling her to shut up 'cause | felt like she was also amping him
up and { just wanted the situation to, to calm down and resclve, and |,  warned
him. | told him he was under arrest, | told him why, and, and { don't remember
if this happened before or after the tase but, a second tase, but | remember to,
giving him several warnings that if he didn't stop resisting | was gonna tase him
agaln, and he, | felt like he kept resisting. | kept feeling the movement and | felt
fike he was gonna push me off of him, so { gave him a second tase, let It run
through the cycle, and then he, it stopped, and he stopped resisting, and so |
sald, "Are you done?" | think he said yes or something or | got the impression he
was done. | detached it, holstered it, re ho, like was able to finish my pat down
and everything else, sat him up. Um at some point during that | remember the
female, | believe she started takin' a step towards me, and also so did the
security supervisor, and | remember yelling like stay back, and | meant her, but |
remember the securlity supervisor's face thought | was talkin' to him, so then he
stepped back and kinda put his arm near the, the female.

Mr. Wol!fer toid me at some point after things started to calm down the woman disappeared.
He told me paramedics arrived on scene and he waited for a Polk County Deputy to arrive
before letting paramedics check on ] He toid me he didn’t want to risk any of the
paramedics being attacked by [JJJl] He told me ] was “completely intoxicated” and
in his experience intoxicated people often “want to fight and don’t make good decisions.” He
told me once a deputy arrived, paramedics checked [JJJij out and then he was able to put
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- in his patrol vehicle.

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me he called Sergeant McAllister to notify him of the use of force.
He told me he drove [l to the jail and at the jai! i} refused to provide a breath test
for the intoxylizer. He told me he had to take [Jili] to the hospital to get cleared due to his
level of intoxication. He told me once [JJJi] was cleared he took him sback to the jail. He
told me he wrote a probable cause affidavit to lodge [JJJij in Jail and then cleared the call,

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me he went back to the patrol office and talked with Officer Dana
and watched the video footage for the first time. He told me he was “actually surprised to see
that he [l hadn’t squared up” with him. He told me he realized when he saw the video
that [l actually took a step back and raised his hands. He explained that he thought the
female was running at him and he had tunnel vision focused on this and when he saw
movement from [l he interpreted the movement as a threat and he tased | He
told me he felt the body camera saw more than he did, meaning a wider angle without tunnel
vision,

Mr, Wolfer then addressed the second taser cycle, He said, “You couldn't see on the footage
what | felt which was, | felt like | was getting picked up from it, so, um, | remember being

. physicaily moved from it or feeling iike | was, so, and then accurately, |, | didn't feel like the, |
felt like the camera for the first tase showed more than | saw and | felt like for the second, it
showed less than | saw because it was on the center of the chest and I'm on top of him.”

Mr. Wolfer told me the next morning he returned to work to finish his report in regards to
- He told me when he finished the report Lieutenant Hernandez and a human
resources representative approached him. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez told him that he
reviewed the video footage with their tribal attorney and he {Hernandez) believed Wolfer
violated the Taser Policy. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez asked him a few brief questions
about why he tased [JJij and then Lieutenant Hernandez told him he was being placed on
administrative leave. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez hadn’t even read his report when this
happened. He told me Sergeant McAllister called him on Wednesday and told him to come to
the office on Friday.

Mr. Wolfer told me he came into the office on Friday and he was told by Lieutenant Hernandez
that he violated the Taser Palicy and they had a write up recommending termination. He told
me Lt. Hernandez told him he could appeal within five days. He told me he asked Lt.
Hernandez if he violated anything else and Hernandez sald no. Lt. Hernandez told him they did
not review this for use-of-force violation or anything else. He told me Lt. Hernandez told him
Dailas Police Department conducted a review of the case and found the video didn’t match up
to what he was saying. He told me Lt. Hernandez said, “If you resign today, we're not gonna
review it for anything else. We don't, we're not saying you violated the use-of-force policy, just
the Taser policy.” He told me he resigned in lieu of termination.

| asked Mr. Wolfer a series of questlons related to his thoughts and decisions when he gave
commands to [l and how he felt when || did not cocperate. Review the
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transcript from the interview with Mr. Wolfer page 37 lines 9-55 and page 38 lines 1-46,

| asked Mr. Wolfer to define passive resistance versus active resistance, He told me passive
resistance would be like refusing to listen to commands and active resistance is like pulling
away or fighting. | asked him if [l was passively resisting or actively resisting. He

said, “My perception was that he was actively resisting. After watching the video later, | see
that, without knowing what his intention was, it does appear he was passive resisting when he
raised his hands. |interpreted that as an act of resisting as he, as a pre assault”

Mr. Wolfer told me he did not complete any defensive tactics training while working at Grand
Ronde Tribal Police Department. Below is an excerpt of the transcript from the interview with
Mr. Wolfer {page 43 lines 41-56, page 44 lines 1-10)

Detective Hegney-Bach: Okay. Um, how did the actions of the suspect during the
encounter make you feel?

James Wolfer: Scared, thought { was gonna be assaulted.

Detective Hegney-Bach: Okay,

James Wolfer: So-—

Detective Hegney-Bach: What about, um, when he was on the ground and you had him in
handcuffs?

James Wolfer: Uh, | think | —

Detective Hegney-Bach: Much of the same?

James Wolfer: Yeah, | was still afraid he was gonna push me off of him, and | had,
at the time, still belleved he had just tried to assault me with this
other person that | didn't know who they were yet, um, so | was
afraid of that, you know, if | got knocked off balance, then she
might come run at me, and then now I'm on the ground, there's
two of 'em, and even though he's in handcuffs, you know, who
knows, or if he's got a weapon. |, | don't know vet. |, | don't
believe |'d even done a pat-down yet or finished it -

Detective Hegney-Bach:  Okay.

James Wolfer: - before | tased him again, um, so | was, | was still in the same
frame of mind. Uh, | thought if | don't control this now, um, this
may still, | may still get assaulted at any point here, so —

At this time during the interview we took a break. When we re~-convened | asked a few
clarifying questions and | verified his contact information. This concluded our interview.

//End Report//

file:///C:/Uscrs/lheathe/AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000(Y cliow).htm 8/20/2018







Untitled Page 27 of 37

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 03/27/2018 14:38
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time: ©3/27/2018 14:38
Narrative:

Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview — Chief Jake McKnight

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

pos: I

MENTIONED:
I

Victim

Mother of Victim

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAllister
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 — DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17,

file:///C:/Users/Theathe/ AppData/Local/Temp/NicheReport144634035000( Yellow).hitm 8/20/2018







Untitled Page 28 of 37

ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Conducted Energy Device Policy
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Use of Force Policy

Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department Personnel Complaint Policy

Public Records Request from [ Gz

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 2, 2018, | contacted Chief Jake McKnight with Grande Ronde Tribal Police
Department via telephone and set up a meeting for January 8. 1 sent him a follow up emall
asking for the following documents:

1, Taser Policy

2, Use of Force Policy

3, Internal Memos and documents relating to Case #GRT170C0673

4, Coples of internal documents relating to disciplinary action for James Wolfer,

On January 8, 2018, Detective Carlos Barrientos and 1 went to Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department and interviewed the following police officers; Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Tim
Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAllister.

At approximately 10:27 am, | interviewed Chief Jake McKnight. He provided me with copies of
Grand Ronde PD’s Taser Policy, Use of Force Policy and Personne! Complaint Policy.

| asked him to tell me what he knew about the events that occurred on August 13, 2017, He
told me he was at the FBi Academy at that time, but was informed on August 14 around 7 am,
by Lieutenant Tim Hernandez of the events that occurred on August 13, He told me Lieutenant
Hernandez called him and told him there was an issue with James Wolfer, He told me
Lieutenant Hernandez told him Wolfer tased ||| | ] I 2fter he applied handcuffs,

Chief McKnight told me [JJi] was someone they have deait with before, He told me
- is not verbally compiiant but hasn’t ever gotten physical with them. He told me
Officer Wolfer was more adrenalized than he should have been, He tofd me Officer Wolfer was
not clear in his commands, He told me there were issues with the tasings but there were also
issues with the way he iold the events to Sergeant McAllister. He told me Officer Wolfer was
immediately placed on administrative leave.

Chief McKnight told Lieutenant Hernandez met with Wolfer and gave him the option to resign
after being put on administrative leave and Officer Wolfer chose to resign. He told me Officer
Wolfer worked for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department for a little over a year. He told me
Officer Wolfer was not interviewed regarding the events that occurred on August 13, 2017
because he resigned.

Chief McKnight told me he that |||} N ~other of N f<< a Public
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Records Request requesting coples of the police reports and the body camera footage
regarding the 8/13/17 interaction between Wolfer and [ case #17-673.

This concluded our interview,

| reviewed the Conducted Energy Device Policy, Personnel Complaints Policy and Use of Force
Policy, | found all of the policies to be fairly standard and are attached to this report.

//End Report//

Supplemental:
Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Report time: 04/02/2018 14:22
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 14:22
Narrative:
Case #5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marlon County Dlistrict Attorney's Gffice

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview with James Wolfer

SUSPECT! .
Wolfer, James

MENTIONED:
Aaron Perez Selsky
Attorney for James Wolfer

Victim
MENTIONED POLICE:

Detectlve Carlos Barrlentos
Oregon State Police

Officer Dana
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E7 — Audio Interview with James Wolfer

ATTACHED:

Oregon State Police Property Report Form 856

ACTION TAKEN:

On February 12, 2018 | contacted James Wolfer to set up an Interview. He told me he needed to contact his lawyer and toid
me he wouid call me back on Thursday February 15. On February 15, | was contacted by Aaron Perez-Selsky who told me he
was Mr, Wolfer's attorney. We set up an interview for March 2, 2018 at 10:30am at the Salem Patrol Office.
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On March 2, 20418 at approximately 10:42 am, | interviewed James Wolfer. Aaron Perez-Selsky and Detective Carlos Barrientos
were also present durlng the interview. | told Mr, Wolfer our conversation was being recorded. | explained to Mr. Wolfer that
I was investlgating an incident Involving him and | ] ] JJ}) B that occurred on August 13, 2017, i told him Fwas assigned
to investigate whether excessive force was used during the arrest.

| asked Mr. Wolfer to tell me abeout his law enforcement experlence. He told me the following:

. He worked as a police officer for Warm Springs Police Department from Qctober 2010 —January 2012,

e  He attended Baslc Police Academy in January 2011, .

. He had a gap in law enforcement work from January 2012 ~ May 2016. During this time he worked in banking and
then for SAIF as a State Workers Comp Investigator,

e  Heworked as a poilce officer for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department May 2016 - August 2017,

+  Hewent to Career Officer Development (COD) durlng hls empleyment at Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department due
to the gap In faw enforcement employment.

1 asked him questions about his shift and duties on and around August 13, 2017. He told me the following:
. His scheduled shift was Sunday through Wednesday 6a-6p.
. His job was focused on community policing with a high number of contacts.

| asked Mr. Wolfer questions about his Taser training during his employment with Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department. He
told he did not remember how long the Initiat Taser tralning tasted, but sald it was “short.” He told me the training conslsted of
a power polnt presentation and short scenarios where he shot a training cartridge, which does not shoot probes, He told me
this was the only training he had with his Taser,

I asked him how his relationship was with the people he worked with at Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department. He told me he
and Lleutenant Hernandez “kinda butted heads.” He told me he got aiong well with everyone else.

| asked Mr. Wolfer to tell me about the events that occurred on August 13, 2017 at Grand Ronde Casine. He told me the
following occurred leading up to seeing
¢ Around 5pm, he recelved a eall from dispatch that_ was activaly trespassing at Grand Ronde Casino,
. He asked for back up and was told a Polk County Deputy was in route but was a ways out,
¢ Dispatch informed him that- had a warrant for Assault I},
* Lt, Hernandez told him vie radio to be careful because has a brother who Is usually with him. He got the
impression that [ brother would help fight,
*  Whilein-route he called Grand Ronde Casino Security and they told him [Jj was inside at a bar and they told
hEm- was being “confrentational.” .
¢ When he arrived at the casino, he activated his body camera and was told [Jj was in the parking lot.
o He felt that he could not wait for backup due to [Jij behavicr and he inltiated contact.

Mr. Wolfer went into detall describing his interaction with [ (see transcript page 27 lines 17-56, page 28 lines 1-42 for
more details). Mr. Wolfer told me he drove to the parking lot and security officers told him where - was located; he got
out of his vehicle and drew his Taser. He sald, “If | saw him | was gonna have to arrest him 'cause he had a warrant and was
actively trespassing.”

Mr, Wolfer told me he was by himself. He told me from his experience, most security officers won't get involved in physlcal
confrontations. He told me when he saw there was a woman with him and he found out later she was_
mother. He told me he pointed the Taser at and yelled at to get on the ground. He told me he kept

yelling “Get on the ground, get on the ground.” He tcld me wouldr’t get on the ground and the woman kept trying to
get between them so he moved laterally. Mr. Wolfer sald, “I percelved her to be a threat, but not as big of a threat as him

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me that [JJJJij vwas wa'king away and he thought he yelled stop, He told me [ storred
and turned and the woman rushed at him, He told me when she rushed at him made a sudden movement that he
perceived as [ about to charge him or squaring up to fight so he tased -He satd, “I remember he did something
very, very quickly and so right at the same time she was rushing me, so then | tased him, and [ got ready to go hands on with
her, but she stepped back, and | think | sald somethin’ like stay back or you'il get tased too, and so she stepped back but she
was yellin' at me, so then | went over te him, Securlty was there, but they weren't like grabbing her.”

Mr. Wolfer told me there were a lot of people in the parking lot and he remembers locking around for this other brother that
might be there. He told me he was on the ground with his back exposed to everybody. He teld me the woman was still yelling
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at him as he put handcuffs on [l He said. “ wasn't able to pat him [l down vet, and | was on top of him but not
fully, because [ was also still tryin' to be able to spring back up in case | got hit from behind from wherever this other brother
was gonna be, and, um, and then | felt him moving, which | Interpreted as him tryin' to get back up, and I didn't know If he had
weapans or anything yet.”

Mr. Wolfer told me when he worked at Warm Springs someone In handcuffs tried to fight him. He told me he had not double
locked handcuffs yet. He told me he kept teiling to stop resisting and - kept looking at him and he

felt fike was trying to get up off the ground. He teld me kept lifting him up off the ground and at the same

time the woman kept yelling and it caused [ to amp up.

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me he wanted the situation to calm down and he warned [ to stop resisting or he would
tase him again. He told me he felt like - continued resisting so he gave him a second tase and then - stopped
resisting.

Mr, Wolfer told me at some point after things started to calm down the woman disappeared. He told me paramedics arrived
on scene and he waited for a Polk County Deputy to arrive before letting paramedics check on [ Be told me he didn't
want to risk any of the paramedics being attacked by ] He told me [l vas “completely intoxicated” and in his
experience intoxicated people often “want to fight and don’t make good decisions.” He told me cnce a deputy arrived,
paramedics checked out and then he was able to put [JJJij in h's patrol vehicle.

Mr. Wolfer continued telling me he called Sergeant McAllister to notify him of the use of force. He told me he drove

to the jail and at the iail- refused to provide a breath test for the intoxylizer. He told me he had to take to the
hospital to get cleared due to his level of intoxication, He told me once- was cleared he took him back to the jaii. He
told me he wrote a probable cause affidavit to lodge [JJij in Jatl and then cleared the call,

wr. Wolfer continued telling me he went back te the patrot office and talked with Officer Dana and watched the video footage
for the first time. He told me he was “actually surprised to see that he [[JJJJl] hacn‘t squared up” with him. He told me he
realized when he saw the video that [ 2ctvally tock a step back and raised his hands. He explalned that he thought the
female was running at him and he had tunnel vislon focused on this and when he saw movement from - he interpreted
the movement as a threat and he tased ] He told me he felt the bady camera saw more than he did, meaning a wider
angle without tunnel vision,

Mr, Wolfer then addressed the second taser cycle. He said, “You couldn’t see on the footage what | felt which was, | felt tlke |
was getting picked up from it, so, um, | remember being physically moved from it or feeling like | was, so, and then accurately,
|, 1 didn't feel like the, 1 felt like the camera for the first tase showed more than | saw and 1 felt fike for the second, it showed
iess than | saw because it was on the center of the chest and I'm on top of him.”

Mr. Wolfer told me the next morning he returned to work to finish his report In regards to- He told me when he
finished the report Lleutenant Hernandez and a human resources representative approached him. He told me Lieutenant
Hernandez told him that he revlewed the video footage with their tribal attorney and he beileved Wolfer violated the Taser
Poltcy. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez asked him a few brief questions about why he tased and then Lieutenant
Hernandez told him he was being placed on administrative leave, He told me Lieutenant Hernandez hadn’t even read his
report when this happened. He told me Sergeant McAlllster called him on Wednesday and told him to come to the office on
Friday.

Mr. Wolfer told me he came Into the office on Friday and he was told by Lieutenant Hernandez that he violated the Taser
Policy and they had a write up recommending termination. He told me Lt. Hernandez told him he could appeal within five
days. He told me he asked Lt. Hernandez If he violated anything else and Hernandez said no. Lt. Hernandez told him they did
not review this for use-of-force violation or anything else. He tcld me Lt. Hernandez told him Dailas Police Department
conducted a review of the case and found the video didn’t match up to what he {Wolfer] was saying. He told me Lt.
Hernandez said, “If you resign today, we're not gonna review it for anything else. We don't, we're not saying you violated the
use-of-force policy, just the Taser policy.” He told me he resigned in leu of termination,

| asked Mr. Wolfer a serles of questions related to his thoughts and decisions when he gave commands to and how he
felt when did not tooperate {see transcript from the interview with Mr. Wolfer page 37 lines 9-55 and page 38 lines 1-
46 for additional details}. He told me he gave commands for to get on the ground because he through It would be
easler to handcuff He told me he thought would be less likely to be violent if he was lying on the ground.

He told me he did not feel proficlent in hand to hand fighting because he had had no defensive tactics training since he
graduated the academy In 2011,

| asked Mr. Wolfer to define passive resistance versus actlve resistance. He told me passive resistance would be like refusing to
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listen to commands and active resistance Is like pulling away or fighting. | asked him If [ vas passively resisting or
actively resisting. He said, “My perception was that he was actively resisting. After watching the video later, | see that, without
knowing what his intention was, it does appear he was passive resisting when he raised his hands. | interpreted that as an act
of resisting as he, as a pre assault”

Below Is an excerpt of the transcript from the Interview with Mr. Wolfer (page 43 lines 41-56, page 44 lines 1-10)
Detective Hegney-Bach: Okay. Um, how did the actions of the suspect during the encounter make you feel?
James Wolfer. Scared, thought { was gonna he assaulted.

Detective Hegney-Bach; Okay,

James Wolfer:. So-
Detective Hegney-Bach: What about, um, when he was an the ground and you had him in handcuffs?
James Wolfer: Uh, 1 think 1 ~

Detective Hegney-Bach: Much of the same?

James Wolfer: Yeah, | was still afraid he was gonna push me off of him, and | had, at the time, still belleved he had
just tried to assault me with this other person that i didn't know who they were yet,
um, so | was afraid of that, you know, If | got knocked off balance, then she might
come run at me, and then now I'm on the ground, there's two of 'em, and even though
he's in handcuffs, you know, who knows, or if he's got a weapon. |, 1 don't know yet. |, |
don't bellave I'd even done a pat-down yet or finished It -

Detective Heghey-Bach: Okay.

James Wolifer: ~ before | tased him agaln, um, so { was, { was still in the same frame of mind. Uh, 1 thought if |
don't control this now, um, this may still, | may stlll get assaulted at any point here, so -

At this time during the interview we took a break, When we re-convened | asked a few clarifying questions and | verified his
contact information. This concluded our interview,

//End Report//f

Supplemental:
Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS| Report time:  04/02/2018 15:29
Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CASI Entered time:  04/02/2018 15:29

Narrative:

Case #5P180018597

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County District Attorney's Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
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Interview — Lieutenant Tim Hernandez

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

oos: I

MENTIONED:
I

Victim

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAllister
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

ACTION TAKEN:

On January 8, 2018, Detective Carlos Barrientos and | went to Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department and interviewed the following police officers; Chief Jake McKnight, Lieutenant Tim
Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAllister,

At approximately 11:00am, | interviewed Lieutenant Tim Hernandez. | asked him to talk with
me about the events that occurred on and after August 13, 2017 as it related to Officer Wolfer.
Lieutenant Hernandez told me he was driving home from work on August 13, 2017 around
5:00pm when he heard Officer Wolfer go out on a call for service at Spirit Mountain Casino. He
told me he listened to the radio and heard that Officer Wolfer tased ||| | | ||} G

Lieutenant Hernandez told me he came into work the morning of 8/14/17 and reviewed the
video footage. He told me the use of force for the second tase was unjustified. He told me the
video revealed Officer Wolfer calling McAllister via telephone and saying ] sauared off
onh him so Officer Wolfer tased him. He told me the video alsec shows Officer Wolfer saying that
he was handcuffing by himself and [JJJi] resisted so he tased him again. He told me after
reviewing the video he Initiated a complaint with Sergeant McAllister. He told me Sergeant
MecAllister is their agency’s primary training officer and handles investigations.

Lieutenant Hernandez told me Wolfer edited his report the next day and it reads differently
than his probabie cause statement. | later reviewed both reports and found that the Probable
Cause Affidavit has a lot less detail than the incident summary, which is normal for police
reports, There are also differences in some of the justifications for the initial tase and reasons
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for charges he cited [} However none of these are the cause for this investigation so
they were not addressed during this investigation.

Lieutenant Hernandez told me on 8/14/17 he placed Officer Wolfer on paid administrative
leave. He told me Officer Wolfer told him he meant [l pointed his feet at him in an
aggressive manner, not squared off, He told me Officer Wolfer was upset when placed on
administrative leave, He told me this was the second investigation Officer Wolfer has gone
through while working for Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.

Lieutenant Hernandez told me he was shocked when he watched Wolfer’s body camera. He
told me he was more surprised by the lie than the tasing. He told me Wolfer did well with
community policing but not with hostile contacts, | asked Lieutenant Hernandez to elaborate
and he told me that while on a traffic stop, Officer Wolfer dealt with a rowdy family and he
cowered. He told me Sergeant McCallister had to have a talk with him about officer safety.

Lieutenant Hernandez told me on August 18, 2017, Officer Wolfer was given a preparation
letter and told he had a right to review all documents before being interviewed. He told me
Officer Wolfer decided to resign.

| asked Lieutenant Hernandez about Wolfer’s police background and he told me Wolfer warked
for Warm Springs Tribal Police for around a year, He told me Wolfer was let go during his
probationary period with Warm Springs. He told me there was an evidence issue where Officer
Wolfer left marijuana out and other officers hid it as a joke, He told me Wolfer thought he put
it away. He told me Wolfer was investigated regarding this incident and Wolfer passed a
polygraph. There was also a DUl! investigation where Woifer's report did not match the events
that occurred. He told me he could not remember the exact reason, but knew it had to do with
the HGN test.

Lieutenant Hernandez continued telling me that Wolfer did not get along with his Sergeant in
Warm Springs and that sergeant was later fired for dealing marijuana. He told me Wolfer
applied with Vancouver Pclice Department around the same time he applied with Grand
Ronde, but was not hired by Vancouver because he didn’t pass the psychological test. He told
me Wolfer did pass the psychologlical test for Grand Rende Tribal Police Department.

Lieutenant Hernandez told me there have been no other complaints involving Wolfer and his
use of force, Other officers complained about Wolfers attitude. He told me Wolfer did not get
along well with management. He told me Wolfer tried to start conflict between the officers
and management on more than one occasion,

| asked Lieutenant Hernandez if after reviewing the case if he believed the use of force by
Wolfer against [l rose to the level of assault and he told me yes.

//End of Report//

Supplemental:

Author: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS! Report time: 04/02/2018 15:29
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Entered by: #49678 HEGNEY-BACH, CAS| Entered time:  04/02/2018 15:29
Narrative:
Case #S5P18001897

DISTRIBUTION:
Marion County District Attorney’s Office

SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT:
Interview — Sergeant Rod McAllister

SUSPECT:
Wolfer, James

oos: I

MENTIONED:
I

Victim

Mother of Victim

MENTIONED POLICE:
Detective Carlos Barrientos
Oregon State Police

Chief Jake McKnight
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Sergeant Rod McAllister
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

EVIDENCE:
CHB-E1 — DVD with body camera footage from James Wolfer, dated 8/13/17.

ATTACHED:
Oregon State Police Property Report Form 65
ACTION TAKEN:

On January 8, 2018, Detective Carlos Barrientos and | went to Grand Ronde Tribal Police
Department and interviewed the following police officers; Chief Jake McKnight, Lleutenant Tim
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Hernandez and Sergeant Rod McAllister,

At approximately 11:39 am, | interviewed Sergeant McAllister. | asked him to talk with me
about the events that occurred on and after August 13, 2017 as it related to James Wolfer, He
told me August 13, 2017 was a Sunday and it was his day off. He told me he received a phone
call from Wolfer that evening reporting that Wolfer used his taser two times on Highpine
B i< told me Wolfer told him first tase was because [Jjij sovared off on him and
would not listen to commands to get on the ground and the second cycle occurred when
Wolfer was trying to get [JJJli] into handeuffs and i} was not compliant and struggled
so he tased him again,

Sergeant McAllister told me he told Wolfer to make sure his use of force report was done by
the end of his shift. He told me that the next morning Lieutenant Hernandez reported to him
that Wolfer was still working on his report, He told me Lieutenant Hernandez also reported the
use of force by Wolfer was bad. He told me Lieutenant Hernandez told him the video was
inconsistent with the notification to him [McAllister].

Sergeant McAllister toid me he viewed Wolfer's body camera on either Tuesday or Wednesday
and then began a personnel investigation into Wolfer. He told me he did not interview
B o onv of the witnesses, He told me the focus of the investigation was that Wolfer
was untruthful and violated the taser policy.

| asked Sergeant McAllister if Wolfer had ever been disciplined prior to this incident and he told
me ves, He told me Wolfer was given a letter of reprimand for violating Grand Ronde Police
Department policies during an incident that occurred on September 10, 2016, He told me the
discipline was not related to use of force, He told me it dealt with inconsistencies between
Wolfers report and video footage and also the lack of use of his body camera.

Sergeant McAllister told me he is their agency’s primary training officer. | asked what kind of
reoccurring training they require from their officers and he told me they have the following
training:

1, Monthly training modules through Police Gne,
2. Firearms training three times per year.
3. Taser training once per year,
a. Includes written, practical, demo, commands, control and discharge (no
shooting live cartridges).

Sergeant McAllister told me he is the Taser instructor. He told me he received his certification
in 2016 through Newburg Police Department with Taser International, now called Axon. He
told me the class included an online training module and sixteen hours of classroom training.

Sergeant McAllister provided me with the Taser download paperwork from the Taser used by
Wolfer. A copy of the Taser download is attached to this report. The Taser’s life began May
2015, He told me the Taser belonged to a different officer before Wolfer, He told me Wolfer
was given the Taser in May 2016. He explained what the codes on the Taser download meant
and below is a list of the codes and their meanings in regards to Wolfer’s Taser on August 13,
2017, '
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06:38:18
06:38:18
06:38:24
06:38:25
06:38:30
17:15:20
17:15:27
17:16:51

17:20:40

Armed —Turned on
Safe — Holstered
Armed ~ Un-holstered
Trigger — Trigger pulled
Safe — Holstered
Armed - Turned on
Trigger — Trigger pulled
Trigger — Trigger pulled

Safe — Holstered
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Sergeant McAllister provided me with copies of his Taser Instructor Certification, dated May
19, 2016, He also provided me with Wolfer's Taser Certification and Taser Tests dated June 16,

2016.

| asked Sergeant McAilister If after reviewing the case, if he believed the use of force by Wolfer

against [l rose to the level of assault and he told me yes.

This concluded our interview.

//End Report//
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August 18, 2017

Officer James Wolfer hand delivered
Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department

Re:  Administrative Investigation Findings regarding officer actions in connection with
Case Number GRT17000673

Dear James:

As you ate aware, the actions you took in connection with Case Number GRT 17000673 came
under review due to your use of your Conducted Energy Device (Taser). This incident was
reviewed, as required by Policy 304.8 of the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Police
Department Policy Manual.

As a result of that review, we have conducted an administrative investigation into the above-
referenced case pursuant to Policy 1005.6. The resulting Investigation Report details the
circumstances, identifies the policies violated, and recommends appropriate discipline. The
findings conclude that you violated a number of department policies — specifically 319.5.8,
319.5.9, and various provisions of 304, The disciplinary recommendation in the report is
termination of your employment with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department,

After reviewing the Investigation Report and supporting materials, I am accepting the
disciplinary recommendation to terminate your employment,

I reviewed the following materials in reaching this decision:
Body camera footage from the incident identified above.
GRTPD Crime Incident Report for Case ID GRT17000673 prepared by James Wolfet.
GRTPD Incident Supplement report Supplement ID 341696 prepared by Tokata Tehama
Probable Cause Affidavit re: arrestee |||} [ prepared by James Wolfer
Arrest Report for Case 17-673
Materials from Salem Health West Valley re: patient ||| [ [|[G] GGz
LEDS report re:
GRTPD Dispatch Report for Case GRT 17000673
Dallas Police Department incident review report prepared by Lt, Jerry Mott 08/16/17
Investigation Report prepared by Sgt. Rod McAllister 08/16/17
Memo re: administrative investigation prepared by Acting Chief Hernandez 08/16/17
Policy 304 — Conducted Energy Device
Policy 319 — Standards of Conduct
Policy 1005 — Personnel Complaints

Pursuant to Policy 1005.10.2, you will be provided access to all the referenced materials as well
as an opportunity to respond to me orally or in writing within five days of receiving this notice.
If you would like further access to the materials during these five days, please call me at 503-






Officer James Wolfer
August 18, 2017
Page 2

879-1824 to schedule an appointment. You may wish to review Policy 1005.11 regarding any
response you choose to provide. Your response must be received no later than 5:00 p.m. on
Friday, August 25, 2017. If you choose fo respond orally, the policy requires us to record your
response. You may also clect to waive any such response.

I will issue a timely written decision following my review of any response you provide. Please
note that if you choose to resign prior to my decision being issued, Policy 1005.12 provides that
these disciplinary proceedings will cease.

Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
Acting Chief of Police







Dallas Police Department

To: Lt, Tim Hernandez
From: Lt. Jerry Mott

Date: August 16, 2017

Incident Review

On August 15, 2017, Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department (GRTPD} Lieutenant Tim Hernandez
requested assistance with the review of a use of force by one of GRTPD's police officers. Lt. Hernandez
asked the review be completed with their policy as metric for the appropriate force decision. Lt.
Hernandez provided me with GRTPD Policy 304 “Conducted Energy Device.” Lt. Hernandez explained
their answer of force policies are tied to the implement and method used. GRTPP's policy 304 governs
force decisions where “Conducted Energy Device” tools are used. Taser use is the specific authorized

tool governed by GRTPD policy 304.

Lt. Hernandez provided me with Officer Wolfer's body-camera video.

Briefing of incident:

Lt. Hernandez provided me with the facts necessary for me to complete the level of evaluation
requested. Lt. Hernandez told me the GRTPD officer, James Wolfer, responded to a call of a trespass at
the Casino. Lt. Hernandez told me the suspect was known to GRTPD officers from numerous previous
contacts and is often intoxicated. Lt. Hernandez told me he relayed to Officer Wolfer that the suspect
was also wanted for an Assault Il by the Yamhill County Sheriff’s Office and may have a warrant for that
crime. | asked if the suspect had a history of assaulting officers. Lt. Hernandez told me he was not

aware of ahy history of the suspect assaulting officers.

Involved Officer's Experience (Graham v, Connor):

The standard of objective reasonableness established by Graham v. Connor requires examination

through the perspective of the officer on scene rather than applying 20/20 hindsight. For application of
this standard in making this evaluation, | acknowledge the training and experience differences between
Officer Wolfer and myself. For those reasons, | will detail observations but opinion indicated as being in

“light most favorable to the officer” stands as my judgement.
Officer Training and Authorization to Carry Taser:

Lt. Hernandez told me Officer Wolfer was current on Taser training as required by GRTPD policy (304.3).
Officer Wolfer’s authorization to carry and use the Taser in accordance with policy is not questioned by

this review.







Review of Incident:

| read the GRTPD’s policy 304, | found it generally consistent with other police department policies
governing the use of Tasers. |did not observe anything in the policy that was extraordinary.

| watched the provided body-camera video. The video has a digital tag on the screen indicating
“IWolfer, GRT PD” and date/time stamped “2017/08/13 5:11:42 PM.” The video opens with Officer
Wolfer making comment to someone to keep eyes on a person and Officer Wolfer getting into a patroi

vehicle.

Officer Wolfer drives ta a parking lot. | can see in the video that Officer Wolfer is wearing black gloves.
They are not latex gloves. It is my experience officers wear this type of glove when they anticipate the

need to use force or are gaing to search a person.

At about 5:12:33 PM, Officer Wolfer arrives in another parking lot. As he exits his vehicle, | hear him get
location description from a male telling him where the suspect is located. Officer Wolfer goes in the
direction apparently indicated. At 5:12:44 PM, | see the suspect come into the video. | can see his head
over the top of a car. It should be noted the camera view will vary from Officer Wolfer’s view. Officer
Woilfer gives clear command, “Stop. Police.” Officer Woifer rounds a parked car and shouts, “Stop. Get

on the Ground.” A female asks what he wants.

Officer Wolfer commands the suspect to “Get on the ground now.” He points a Taser at the suspect.
The woman asks if it is her who Officer Wolfer wants to get onto the ground. Officer Wolfer telis her no
and directs her to back up. She does not back up and instead places herself between Officer Wolfer and

the suspect. She begins to argue.

Officer Wolfer elevates his voice and shouts for the suspect to get on the ground. Officer Woifer shouts
a warning to the suspect to get on the ground or he wiil be tased. Officer Wolfer shouted “back away!”
| believe, based on the proximity of the female, he was shouting at the female but the male suspect
complied with the command and backed away. Officer Wolfer gave command for the suspect to get on
the ground. Officer Wolfer tased the suspect. The suspect locked up and fell onto the asphalt parking

jot, The time was 5:23:04 PM.

| couid see the suspect’s hands at his waist and visible when Officer Wolfer rounded the car in the
parking lot. | could see the suspect put his hands in the air from where they were at his waist and kept
them in the air until he was tased. The suspect did not make any threats, The suspect did not make any
physical movement indicating he wouid assault Officer Wolfer. The suspect did not run from Officer
Wolfer. The suspect did not comply with Officer Wolfer's clear and repeat commands to get onto the

ground,

Officer Wolfer told the female, who continued to argue and interfere, to get on the ground or she would
be tased. She replied for him to “fucking do it then Bitch.” | will note it is my opinion that tasing the
female would have been objectively reasonable at or before this point. She was reaching into a small
purse, her hands were not always visible, she was actively interfering with the arrest and had been given
clear and repeated warnings to get back. As this review does not address an answer of force to the
female, | will cease description of her actions as | am of the opinion they do not have appropriate
bearing on continued use of force on the suspect from this point on and a person { recognize as casino

security deescalates her hehavior.







Officer Wolfer handcuffs the suspect who complies with commands and is cuffed behind the back. The
suspect is face-down, on the asphalt with the Taser probes still attached. While being cuffed, Officer
Wolfer directs the suspect where to put his hands and warns he will be tased again if he does not
comply.

The suspect repeatedly asks what he did and rolls from side to side. Officer Wolfer telis the suspect he
has a warrant and warns him to stop moving or Officer Wolfer would tase him again. Officer Wolfer tells
the suspect not to move or he would tase him again. The suspect shouts, “Fuck youl” The suspect’s
body jars as an apparent component of his shouting and the associated use of chest muscles and
diaphragm. Officer Wolfer immediately initiates another cycle of his Taser. The time stamp was about
5:14:27 PM. Officer Wolfer again warns the suspect if he pulls away, “He will get it again.”

Officer Wolfer and casino staff begin effectively deescalating the suspect and female. Officer Wolfer
summons medics to evaluate the suspect. | will not further detall the period of time between this and
when Deputy La Combe (Polk County Sheriff’s Office) arrives to cover Officer Wolfer and is briefed by

Officer Wolfer,

At about 5:27 PM, Deputy La Combe is being briefed on what happened by Officer Wolfer. Of note,
during this briefing, Officer Wolfer tells Deputy La Combe the suspect started to “square-off” with him.
This terminology describes a person assuming a fighting posture. | observed this suspect did not assume
a fighting posture at any time before being tased. He also stated the female was “jacking the suspect
up” and that he was trying to pull away from him on the ground. '

At about 5:38:45 P, Officer Wolfer uses a cellufar phone to call Sgt. Rod McAllister. | know that is who
he calls because | can see the name and part of the phone number (541}***-7895 displayed on the
phone screen. Officer Wolfer briefs Sgt. McAllister. During the briefing, he tells Sgt. McAllister that the
suspect “squared-up on me.” Officer Wolfer told Sgt. McAllister he tased the suspect a secand time
because the suspect was resisting while he was trying to get the cuffs on by himself.

| also note that in the briefing to Sgt. McAllister, Officer Wolfer indicates the warrant for the suspect had
flags for assaultmg and resisting a police officer. fam unable to validate the accuracy of this statement
‘with the resources provided so will accept It as accurate for the purposes of this review.

Opinion:
Officer Wolfer was authorized by GRTPD to carry and use a Taser.
Officer Wolfer gave warning before using the Taser as required in GRTPD policy 304.4.

Officer Wolfer violated GRTPD policy 304.5.1. This section of policy dictates (paraphrased) a person be
either {a) violent or physicaliy resisting or {b) demonstrate by words or action an intention to be viclent
or to physically resist, and appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or others.
~ When viewed in light most favorable to Officer Wolfer, the suspect was merely not complying with \)
X commands when the flrst application of the Taser occurred. :

Ofﬂcer Wolfer violated GRTPD policy 304.5.2 (d) by using a Taser on a handcuffed person who could
otherwise be restrained without meeting threshold of increased risk to himself, the suspect or others.







Officer Wolfer violated GRTPD policy 304.5.2 (f) by tasing an individual who was standing on an asphalt
parking lot. However, this would not, in my opinion, be a violation if the use of the Taser was
appropriate under policy 304.5.1 (a) or {b) because the use would then meet policy 304.5.2’s balancing

test.

Officer Wolfer did not violate GRTPD policy 304.5.3 because his application of the Taser was dynamic
and did not lend itseif to more careful targeting. Further, he summoned appropriate medical care for

the suspect.

Officer Wolfer did not violate GRTPD policy 304.5.4 because the decision to use multiple applications of
a Taser are left, as a matter of policy, to the opinion of the officer that the need to control the suspect
outweighs the potentially increased risk posed by multiple applications. It should be noted | do not
betieve the second application of the Taser reasonable or lawful but in light most favorable to Officer
Wolfer, this narrow section of policy leaves the decision to his discretion.

Officer Wolfer violated policy GRTPD 304.,5.5, This policy required Officer Wolfer notify a supervisor of
the Taser device discharge. It is an implicit component of advising the supervisor to be honest in the
recounting of the event. Itis possible, albeit remote, to attribute the telling of the initial tasing of the
Suspect to a perception error on Officer Wolfer's part that the suspect “squared-up” with him or
prepared to fight. This does not validate that perception but accepts it as possibility other than an
intentional false statement. However Officer Wolfer’s telling Sgt. McAllister he tased the suspect a

- second time because the suspect was resisting while he was trying to cuff the suspect is plainly false,
The suspect had been secured in cuffs behind his back well before being tased the second time.

MATERIALS RETENTION:

F will secure the copy of GRTPD Policy 304, the body-camera video and a copy of this document into
Dallas Police Department evidence as item #001 under case # DAP17001674. The report will contain no
personal identification information and the narrative will state, “Assist for another agency internal
review. Materials associated with this case number are exempted from public records release under
ORS 192.501.” The address for the event wiil be 187 SE Court St. Dallas, Oregon.
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Inter-Office Memorandum

Date: August 16, 2017

To: Lieutenant Hernandez (Acting Chief of Police)
CC: Chief Jake McKnight

From: Sgt. Rod McAllister

Subject: Investigation Report

On 08-15-2017, | received information from Lieutenant Hernandez regarding an incident

involving Officer James Wolfer, and [} while at Spirit Mountain
Casino located at 27100 Salmon River Hwy in Grand Ronde, Polk County Oregon.

During Officer Wolfer's contact with and Officer Wolfer deployed his Department
issued CEW (Conducted Electrical Weapon) twice. After Lieutenant Hernandez reviewed video
footage, from Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera, it was determined that several
Department policies were violated by Officer Wolfer.

Lieutenant Hernandez requested that | complete an investigation into this incident, regarding the
violations of Department policies.

On the evening of 08-13-2017, while | was off duty and at my residence, | had received a
telephone call from Officer James Wolfer.

Officer Wolfer advised me that he was calling to let me know that he had been involved in a use
of force situation and that he had deployed his Taser while attempting to take q F
into custody on a felony assault in the second degree warrant and for trespassing at the Casino.

Officer Wolfer stated, “Hey, just thought that I'd let you know.” "I tased -1- m
calling you for the use of force.” “It was right when Lieutenant went end of watch, so he couldn't

back me up.” “He was already gone.”
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“He was trespassed and also had a felony warrant.” “Wouldn’t stop when { told him
to.” “His mom (referring to [ kept getting in the middie.” “He squared up on me and so | had
to tase him.” "l actually had to hit him a second time.” “He was resisting while | was {rying to get

the cuffs on him, by myself.”

“So, Medics cleared him.” “So, | gathered, | took photos of where the doors called, the fibs,
whatever.” Took photos of those, secured them."” “Medics pulled the barbs out after the,
whatever they are, the probes after P-020 (Deputy Lacombe, Polk County Sheriff's Office) came

as my cover.” "He was there because he (] was semi-combative.” "He's (Deputy
Lacombe) actually following me right now.”

“Medics cleared him (il for transport and, so, we’re headed to PCJ. (Polk Gounty Jail)”
“So, just giving you a call on the use of force.”

Officer Woifer then began to go into details regarding the incident at Spirit Mountain Casino,
involving [ Gz T 2r¢

“Yeah, trespass.” "That's what the criginal call, that he's (Jjjjli] been trespassed muitiple
times.” “Yes, he's (J ] 2'so going to have that.”

“So, his F mom H)almost got those same charges, but she walked away
when | told her that she would be arrested.” “Stop interfering and keep your distance.”

“So, she (Jj was trying to get between the two of us, multiple times.” “Which is part of what
escalated.” “ put my spare one (Taser cartridge) in there.” .

After Officer Wolfer provided me with the information regarding the use of force, involving

* | provided him with information regarding the collection of the Taser
cartridge, the deployed probes and other evidence that needed to be entered into the evidence

room.

After providing Officer Wolfer with direction pertaining to the evidence, | then ended my

conversation with Officer Wolfer after he provided me with the information regarding _
valid felony warrant, issued out of Yamhill County Circuit Court for the original charge of assauit
in the second degree and the cautions entered regarding the history of resisting arrest and for

assault on an Officer.

While reviewing Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera footage, | observed Officer
Wolfer exit from his marked Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department vehicle and make contact
with Spirit Mountain casino Security who advised Officer Woifer where ] was currently

located at.
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Officer Waifer then proceeds, across the green lot, towards [l and [l ocation. As
Officer Wolfer works his way through the parked vehicles, Officer Wolfer yells, “Hey, Stop,
Police, Stop, Get on the ground!"

After Officer Wolfer gives his verbal commands, a maie and female subject appear in view of
Officer Wolfer's body camera, as Officer Wolfer moves towards them. [ then asks Officer
Wolfer, “What do you want?” .

Officer Wolfer then states, “Get on the ground now!” Officer Wolfer has his CEW pointed in the
direction of [l =< I B =< are standing in the middle of the lane of
is holding a white plastic bag in her left hand and

travel located between the parking stalls.
I as nothing in his hands.

Il then states, “Me?” Officer Woifer answers, “No, not youl” “Back up!” “Go to the side!” “You
on the ground!” while pointing with his left hand and pointing the CEW with his right hand.

[l s standing between [Jili] and Officer Wmcouple of feet behind [l
and

and Officer Wolfer is several feet away from both

Officer Wolfer then yells, “Get on the ground now!” “Move aside!” “Get on the ground how or you
will be Tased!”

At this point, is standing there with both hands in the air, next to his head. it's clear
that has nothing in his hands. .

E steps towards Officer Wolfer. Officer Wolfer moves towards his left and yells, “Back away!”
et on the ground now!" ,

is observed taking small steps backwards while holding his hands in the air, next to his
ead. is standing near [l with her hands on her hips.

Officer Wolfer yelis, while discharging his CEW, "Get on the ground!” Both CEW probes trave!

past i} and strike [ N

F leans forward, brings his hands down to the front of his chest, just below his chin and
ails forward with his body stiff. [Jij 1ands face down on the asphalt and rolls onto his back
while receiving the electrical current from Officer Wolfer's CEW.

Officer Wolfer then notifies Dispatch that he has Tased [JJJJJi] while [ steps towards
Officer Wolfer while stating, “You mother fucker!”
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Officer Wolfer then tells [ to “Get on the ground or you will be Tased too!” [ then yells,
“Fucking do it, Bitch!” Officer Wolfer continues to tell JJjjjJjj to “Get on the ground!” while Security
Supervisor Mickey Wood steps in front of i

At this point, [l is lying on his back with his arms extended out to his sides and slightly
towards his head, not moving.

Officer Wolfer continues to yell “Get on the ground!” “Get on the ground and don’t move!" [}
is heard saying, "He didn't do anything!”

Officer Wolfer then requests Dispatch to notify medical personnel to respond to the location,
Officer Wolfer then tells Security Supervisor Wood to keep [JJJjj away.

Officer Wolfer then telis [l to ro!! over onto his side twice, which F complies with
Officer Wolfer's commands. At this point, [l is ving on the asphalt, face down and not
moving around.

Officer Wolfer then tells that he is under arrest. [ asks Officer Wolfer, “For

what?" Officer Wolfer then tells “You have a warrant and you have been trespassed.”
“You are under arrest!” “Do not move!”

Officer Wolfer then moves towards and stays standing in the same spot and
does not move. Officer Wolfer points towards and says, “Stay back!” “Keep your hands
where we can see them!”

places his left hand in the lower area of

is heard saying, “He had this
to “Shut up!”

Officer Wolfer then kneels down beside
back and says, Place your hands right here!”
under control and you fucking know it!” Officer Wolfer tells

Officer Wolfer then places ||l hands in the lower portion of his back and says, “Put your
hands right here or you'll get it again!” Officer Wolfer then places handcuffs on

wrists, while his hands are behind his back. is not saying anything nor is he displaying
any indications that would indicate that is resisting Officer Woifer while being
handcuffed.

AfterF is handcuffed, asks Officer Wolfer, “What did | do?” “What did | do?”
Officer Wolfer states, “Do not move!” asks again, “What did | do?” Officer Wolfer
states, “Do not move!” At this point, is still lying face down, on the asphait and not

displaying any indication or making any movements that would constitute the crime of resisting
arrest, '
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Il then asks Officer Wolfer, “What does he have a warrant for?” Officer Wolfer replies, ‘It
doesn't matter!” "Shut up!” ] begins to move and Officer Wolfer states, “Do not move or |

will give it to you again!”

Officer Wolfer then tells [JJJj to “Shut up!” “It's not about you!” [Jjjjj asks Officer Wolfer a
second time, “What does he have a warrant for?" Officer Wolfer states to [JJjjj “Shut up!” “It's

none of your business!”

then moves towards his left side and yells, “It is my business!” Officer Wolfer tells
“Stop moving or | will Tase you again!” [ then states, “Fuck you!”

Officer Wolfer then discharges his CEW a second time, while H is lying face down on the
asphalt, with his hands cuffed behind his back. Officer Wolfer allows his CEW to cycle for the

entire five seconds. [l is heard yelling during the entire five second cycle.

Officer Wolfer tells ] ‘Don't move or you'll get it again!” “Shut up!” Officer Wolfer then
asks [l ‘You done?” Officer Wolfer then states, “You pull away from me again, you get
it again!” At no point in time did ever pull away from Officer Woifer nor did he make
any attempts at pulling away. appeared to only attempt to roll to his left side to ook at
Officer Wolfer while he was saying, “Fuck you!”

then tells Officer Wolfer, “You shot me twice!” Officer Wolfer then answers, “You

shouldn't resist.” “| told you that you were under arrest and you resisted.” asks Officer
Wolfer, “How did | resist mother fucker?” Officer Wolfer then states that was moving

and pulling away.

After reviewing the video footage from Officer Wolfer's Department issued body camera, |
reviewed the content of Officer Wolfer's report that he completed regarding this incident. During
my review, ! noted multiple inconsistencies regarding the information contained in the report
compared to what actually happened on video.

| also learned that the information Officer Wolfer provided to me on the evening of 08-13-2017,
regarding the use of force, was untruthful regarding the events that occurred and the conduct
R cispiayed, which would justify the use of a CEW.
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Findings:
POLICY 319 - STANDARDS OF CONDUCT.

319.5.8 PERFORMANCE

(a) Failure to disclose or misrepresenting material facts, or making any false or misleading
statement on any application, examination form, or other official document, report or form, or
during the course of any work-related investigation.

(b) The falsification of any work-related records, making misleading entries or statements with
the intent to deceive or the willful and unauthorized removal, alteration, destruction and/or
mutitation of any department record, public record, book, paper or document.

(c) Failure to participate in, or giving false or misleading statements, or misrepresenting or
omitting material information to a supervisor or ather person in a position of authority, in
connection with any investigation or in the reporting of any department-related business.

Officer James Wolfer violated Policy 319.5.8 by intentionally making false statements
when reporting the incident to his supervisor, after the deployment of the Department
issued CEW, Officer Woifer made misleading entries into his criminal report, to the Polk
County District Attorney’s Office, regarding the conduct of ﬁ and [
to facilitate additional criminal charges consisting of resisting arrest and

interfering with a police officer.

319.5.9 CONDUCT
(b) Unreasonable and unwarranted force to a person encountered or a person under arrest.
(c) Exceeding lawful peace officer powers by unreasonable, unlawful or excessive conduct.

(h) Criminal, dishonest, or disgraceful conduct, whether on- or off-duty, that adversely affects
the member's relationship with this department.

Officer James Wolfer violated Policy 319.5.9 by intentionally using unreasonable and
unwarranted force on While h was lying face down,
on the asphalt, with his hands restrained behind his back with the use of handcuffs,

Officer Wolfer intentionally discharged his Department issued CEW after [ rotted
towards his left side after being told not to move.

Officer Wolfer was untruthful when providing information, to his supervisor, regarding
B 2ctions that led to the justification to use a CEW to effectively make an arrest.







RAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DEPARTMENT

POLICY 304 — CONDUCTED ENERGY DEVICE

304.2 POLICY
The TASER device is intended to control a violent or potentially violent individual, while
minimizing the risk of serious injury. The appropriate use of such a device should result in fewer

serious injuries to officers and suspects.

304.5.1 APPLICATION OF THE TASER DEVICE
The TASER device may be used in any of the following circumstances, when the circumstances

perceived by the officer at the time indicate that such application is reasonably necessary to
control a persen:

(a) The subject is violent or is physically resisting.

(b) The subject has demonstrated, by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically
resist, and reasonably appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or others.
Mere flight from a pursuing officer, without other known circumstances or factors, is not good
cause for the use of the TASER device to apprehend an individual.

Officer Wolfer violated Policy 304.5.1 by using his Department issued CEW on
who was not actively violent and not physically resisting while restrained by

the use of handcuffs.

304.5.2 SPECIAL DEPLOYMENT CONSIDERATIONS

The use of the TASER device on certain individuals should generally be avoided uniess the
totality of the circumstances indicates that other available options reasonably appear ineffective
or would present a greater danger to the officer, the subject or others, and the officer reasonably
believes that the need to control the individual outweighs the risk of using the device. This

includes:
(d} Individuals who are handcuffed or otherwise restrained.

Officer Wolfer violated Policy 304.5.2 by intentionally discharging his Department issued
CEW while I B v 2s restrained by the use of handcuffs.
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RECOMMENDATION:

After reviewing all of the information provided, Officer Wolfer's footage from his Department
issued body camera and the review of his completed police report, | find that Officer Wolfer
grossly violated several Department policies, which affect the mission and vision statements of

this Department.

I recommend the following;

o Termination of employment with the Grand Ronde Tribal Police Department.
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Inter-Office Memotandum

Date: August 16, 2017

To: Chief Jake McKnight

CC: Rod McAllister

From: Lt. Tim Hernandez (acting Chief of Police) |

GRT 17-673 James Wolfer administrative investigation.

On 08/13/17 | was near my residence for my scheduled shift to end at 1700 hours. | heard radio traffic
from 911 Dispatch advising of a trespass in progress. | checked the call notes and saw the suspect was

B B | 2dvised Officer Wolfer of Mr. [l past contacts and that | believed that he

had a warrant for assault out of Yamhill County. | also requested Polk County respond to cover Officer
Wolfer.

{ then monitored the radio traffic from my residence. | hear Officer Wolfer tell 911 Dispatch that he had
activated his taser while taking Mr. [JJJJJJiJ into custody. | later heard that medics had cleared Mr,

On 8/14/17 | responded to the Police department and | asked Evidence Technician Leno to make me a
copy of the use of force. Officer Wolfer's daily shift report advised that he tased Mr. [|JJjjj because







“his mother was coming at me and he seemed to square up his feet.” He stated that he tased Mr.
I 2 sccond time because, “He resisted.” f

| then reviewed the video and | saw Officer Wolfer give Mr. [JJJJil] commands at taser point to, stop
Police, get on the ground. Mr. [l mom gets in between Officer Wolfer and Mr. || ™Mr.
I r2iscs his hands in the air above his head and slowly walks backwards while asking, what did |
do? Officer Wolfer steps to the side and tases Mr. || ]

Mr. ] immediately falls to the ground and his mother takes a step towards Officer Wolfer while
yelling at him. Officer Wolfer gives M. [JJJJJJli] orders and Mr. [l complies. Officer Wolfer
handcuffs Mr. [l behind his back. Mr. ] is upset and he and his mom begin to yell asking
what he did. Mr. [l moves while yelling and Officer Wolfer tells him not to move or he will be
tased again. Mr. [l ve!'s “Fuck you” and moves while saying this. Officer Wolfer tases him again
for a full five seconds.

CTGR policy 304.5.1 Application of taser

The taser device may be used in any of the following circumstances, when the circumstances perceived
by the officer at the time indicate that such application is reasonably necessary to control a person:

(a) The subject is violent or is physically resisting.
(b) The subject has demonstrated, by words or action, an intention to be violent or to physically
resist, and reasonably appears to present the potential to harm officers, him/herself or others.

The taser application that | witnessed on body camera footage does not fall in line with the policies of
the CTGR Police Department.

| immediately made contact with the CTGR General Manager and the CTGR Tribal Police Attorney. |
asked them to view the body camera footage and i provided them with a copy of the CTGR Police
Conducted Energy Device policy. After they viewed the body camera footage we made the decision to
place Officer Wolfer on paid administrative leave until we could further review this incident.

On 08/14/17 at about 1024 hours, | met with Officer Wolfer at the Grand Ronde Police Department.
Also present was Human Resources, Patrick Dempsey. | introduced Officer Wolfer to Mr. Dempsey and |
advised him that his use of force was not in line with CTGR Pofice Department policies and that he was
being placed on administrative leave.

| provided Officer Wolfer with a copy of the policy. Officer Wolfer asked me if he could ask a question
and | told him he could. He asked what part was not in line. | asked him to look at the policy and | told
him Mr. [l had his hands in the air and was slowly stepping backwards when he was tased.

2







Officer Wolfer told me, “He squared up at me.” He said after he reviewed his body camera footage he
saw his hands were in the air but he felt Mr. |l feet were pointed towards him,

i then mentioned the second taser deployment and Officer Wolfer told me, “He kept trying to roll.” He
told me he had not patted Mr. [JJJJJll] down and he had not double locked the handcuffs. He told me
his taser deployment was done in good faith. Officer Wolfer asked what the level of punishment was for
an incident like this. |advised him that it could be anything from days off, more training or possible
termination. | told him we would have to have a full review of the incident.

| asked Officer Wolfer to leave his department equipment in his locker. He was allowed to wear his duty
shirt and pants. Officer Wolfer asked me about his off duty wéapon and badge. | advised him he was
only on administrative leave and he could keep his off duty gear and credentials.

Our meeting concluded at 1030 hours. | walked to the locker room with Officer Wolfer and spoke with
him briefly as he was placing items in his locker. | asked him if Nicole was at home or if he wanted to call
Nicole with me present and he told me 1 did not need to. Cfficer Wolfer stated to me, “This seems like
Warm Springs all over again.”

| later reviewed the entire incident to its conclusion. 1 heard Officer Wolfer call Sgt. McAllister and
explain that he tased Mr. [} officer wolfer said he tased Mr. ] because he squared up to
me. He told Sgt. McAllister that he had to tase Mr. | a second time because he was resisting
while Officer Woifer was trying to handcuff him by himself.

| later reviewed Officer Wolfer’s report where he states that he tased Mr. - because his feet
pointed towards him in an aggressive manner. He stated he tased Mr. [ @ second time because
he continued to try to roll away from me, :

it is my opinion that Mr. [ mother, Mrs. Il was more aggressive than Mr. [ ' did

not see anything in my opinion that either Mr. [ or Mrs. I cver displayed anything other
than verbal and passive resistance. Mr. [JJij was never told he was under arrest until after he had
been tased and handcuffed. He was later handcuffed and lying face down with Officer Wolfer standing
over him when he was tased a second time. '

On 8/15/17, | made phone contact with the City of Daltas Police Chief, Tom Simpson. [ asked the Chief if
his department would be willing to assist our department with a use of force review. Chief Simpson
advised me he would have a supervisor contact me.







f also briefed Sgt. McAllister and | advised him that { wanted him to conduct an investigation into this
incident.

{ later spoke with Dallas Police, Lt. Mott. | advised Lt. Mott we had a taser deployment that we wanted
his department review and advise if it was in line with the CTGR Police Department policies. Lt. Mott
advised me that he would be willing to review our policy and the body camera footage and offer a
written opinion,

I later responded to the Dalias Police Department and { provided Lt. Mott with a complete copy of the
Grand Ronde Police Conducted Energy Device poiicy. |also provided him with a DVD with the body

camera footage of the taser deployment against Mr. |||

On 8/16/17 | received a written response from Lt. Mott. Lt. Mott advised me that he believed that
Officer Wolfer violated several CTGR Police Department policies. Please refer to Lt. Mott’s report for
additionat information.

End of report.
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NARRATIVE

On 8/13/2017 | was on duty, in full uniform and clearly displaying a badge. At 1703 hours | was
dispatched to Spirit Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Salmon River Highway, Grand Ronde, Polk
County, Oregon, for report of a male that was trespassing. While en route, dispatch advised that the

male was F I 0o I and that he had a felony warrant out of Yamhill Counti.

Lt. Hernandez advised he was already out of the county and end of watch, but advised that

brother, NI may be around and has assault law enforcement in the past. Dispatch further
advised that the warrant was confirmed for Asssault in the second degree and that i had
caution flags for assault on a public safety officer. Dispatch also advised he was intoxicated. While en
route | located DMV photo and viewed it, as well as the warrant information.

| called for a cover unit, and the closest cover unit was Polk County Deputy LaCombe, who was
responding from Dallas. | called Spirit Mountain Casino Security, who advised that [ wes
permanently trespassed from the casino and that he was being confrontational with security. | advised
dispatch | would be increasing my response and responding without waiting for a cover unit due to
casino security being at risk, especially given cautions for interfering with police and the
warrant being for assault Il, which | know includes serious physical injury as an element.

As | arrived at the casino, Security Supervisor Micky Wood advised that [JJJJJiJ was headed
towards the valet entrance and the green parking lot. | went to that location and security pointed out
Hwalking with a female in about the third row of parking. | recognized [JJJJl| from his DMV
photo. | had my body camera activated already. The following happened in substance, to the best of
my recollection and perception at the time of the incident.
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| drew my Taser and loudly yelled “stop! Policel” and “get on the ground” to [l The female,
later identified as [} I 0CB , asked if | meant her or | ! gave verbal
commands for Ms. to move to the side and gave verbal commands to [l to “get on
the ground!” refused to get on the ground and was yelling at me. Ms. [l was yelling at
me. | sidestepped to my left while pointing my Taser at [JJij while | continued to shout verbal
commands to “get on the ground, get on the ground NOW!"
F continued to refuse to get on the ground and yelled at me. Ms. ﬂntinued to refuse
orders to move aside and kept physically putting herself between my Taser and | continued
to yell verbal commands to “stopl” and “get on the ground or you will be Tased!” while pointing my
Taser at i} from about 10 feet away. | observed [l put his hands up but point his feet
towards me in an aggressive stance, and | believed i was getting ready to assault me. At that
time, Ms, was still yelling at me and walking towards me aggressively.

Due to the severity of the crime of Assault I that [JJJJil] was wanted for, the known factors of
having a history of interfering with police and associated cautions, the fact that [N was
continually refusing orders to get on the ground and his aggressive stance and shouts, the fact that
appeared to be larger than me, my cover unit likely still being 5-10 minutes away, as well as

s. walking towards me while yelling and physically attempting to stop me from taking
into custody, | was afraid | would be assaulted and would have to physically fight both Ms.

and I quickly sidestepped to my left and pulied the trigger of my Taser while it was
pointed at

and it was effective, with the probes and wires hitting [l i the upper Torso

area.
| observed fall back to the ground. Ms. [l began screaming at me “you
motherfucker!” and | had to yell verbal commands at her to “get on the ground or you will be Tased
too!" Ms. stood back about 6 feet from me, but continued to yell at me and approach me. |
repeatedly had to yell at Ms. to “step back!” “get on the ground” and “shut up!” because she
was yelling so toudly that | could not effectively give further instruction to [ ]l
| let dispatch know | had Tased and asked for medics to respond.
| told to turn over onto his stomach or he would be Tased again, and he complied. | toid
ﬂt his hands on the small of his back. | told he was under arrest for a felony
warrant and for trespass. | began putting handcuffs on continued to yell at me and
tried to roll away from me while tensing his body up. | toid to stop resisting or he would be
tased again. As | attempted to double lock the handcuffs, tensed his body up and tried to roll
away from me, and | told him again to stop resisting but he continued to try and roll away from me. |
activated my Taser again for a 5 second cycle, and immediately stopped resisting. | was
able to secure to the ground with my knee on his upper back.
While securing Ms. repeatedly screamed at me and approached me. | had to yell
commands at her to stay back and Security Supervisor Wood stepped in and kept Ms. [ fom
approaching me. Ms, began to record me on her cell phone. [ told her that was fine because
[ was recording on my body camera, but that she needed to do it from that distance and not approach
me again. | told her | wouid need her information, and [} to'ld me it was his mother.
F a Casino employee, came outside and identified himseif as [ brother.

ept trying to calm |Jili] down as he would alternate between tensing his body up and
screaming at me, and then calming down. did not seem to recognize at times, and |
could smell a moderate odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from person. | also observed

his speech to be extremely slurred,
-asked to sit up. | told him as long as he did not resist any more | would let him sit up, and he
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agreed: | sat i v into a seated position, and he continued to alternate between being calm
and screaming at me “what did | do.” | repeatedly explained the warrant and trespass charges to

| asked if he had any injures, and he told me he had a heart condition but was not having
any issues how. When medics arrived, | advised them to wait for Deputy LaCombe, who was about 2
minutes away. When Deputy LaCombe arrived, medics checked on removed the Taser
probes and wires, and cleared him for transport to the jail. | specifically asked them to check
head for any injuries from falling after being Tased, and they advised there were no visible
injuries and insisted he was fine.
At some point, Ms. left the scene and was not located again.
The medics placed the Taser probes into a locked sharps container and gave that to me. |
photographed the area where | had deployed the Taser. | collected the Taser wires and doors but
could not find any other pieces of evidence. Deputy Lacombe and | assisted [ to his feet. 1
checked the handcuffs for proper tightness and fit and conducted an officer safety patdown on

for weapons and means of escape and found none. | escorted [} to the back of my
patrol vehicle and placed him in the backseat, and placed his seatbelt on. | secured the Taser
evidence in the back of my patrol vehicle.
| transported to the Polk County Jail. While en route, [l cycled between calm and
quiet to loudly screaming at me while banging his head on the cage divider. | told [l several
times to stop banging his head and he would immediately comply. While driving to the Polk County
Jail, asked my name repeatedly, and after | told him, he told me that he would kill me. |
asked him when, and he said “maybe tonight, maybe next time | see you.”
| advised dispatch of the threats made and asked that extra deputies be available at the jail in case

was combative there.
- refused to have his blood alcohol content tested.

At the jail, was not combative.
The corrections deputies expiained that needed to provide a sampie to see if he was

medically cleared to be lodged, as they were worried about him having alcohol poisoning.
refused to provide a sample, so | transported him to the West Valley Hospital in Dallas, Oregon. At the
hospital, was cleared by medical staff and | was given a form. | kept a copy of the form

which will be attached to this report. .
| called Grand Ronde Tribal Police Sergeant Rod McAliister by telephone and advised him of the use

of force.
| transported - to the Polk County Jail, where he was lodged for the following charges:

Yamhill County Felony Warrant for Assault I, Warrant # 177CR53185;

ORS 164,245 Criminal Trespass I, due to B b<ing at Spirit Mountain Casino after
knowingly being permanently trespassed from the casino property. It should be noted that

was previously arrested in case 16-515 for trespassing at the casino on 9/18/2016;

ORS 162.247 Interfering with a police officer, due to refusing several orders to stop and
get on the ground after | identified myself as a police officer and while warning him to get on the
ground or he would be Tased;

ORS 162.315 Resisting arrest, due to physically tensing his body up and attempting to
roll away from my several times while | was handcuffing him, after | had informed him he was
under arrest for Trespass and a Felony Wairant;

ORS 166.025 Disorderly conduct I, due to screaming loudly at me during and after the
arrest, causing several patrons to stop walking and stare, as well as being so disruptive while
being served food that he was asked to leave by Casino staff.
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I returned to the Grand Ronde Police station and secured the Taser probes and cartridge in evidence
as ltem # 001.
Officer Tehama returned to the scene of the incident and retrieved two AFIDS for me, which were
secured as Item # 002. See Officer Tehama's supplemental report for further.
| downloaded my body camera footage into DEMS and saved it as evidence, ltem # 003.
| burned the photos | had taken onto a CDR and saved it in evidence as item # 005.
| later reviewed my body camera footage and observed that directly before | activated my Taser,
B took 2 step backward with his hands up. | did not notice this during the incident due to the
speed at which events were unfolding and due to the fact that Ms. was approaching me and
| believed | was about to be assaulted and would have to fight bothm and [[IEGIN
without a cover unit,
On 8/14/2017 at 0636 hours | returned to Spirit Mountain Casino and spoke with Security Staff.
Security staff gave me the security reports for this incident, which is incident number INC-112828, as
well as the incident on 9/18/20186, INC-10541. In security report INC-10541, after was
arrested by Grand Ronde Tribal Police for trespass on 9/18/2016, Security explained to that
he was permanently and indefinitely excluded from the casino and that future incidents would result in
the Casino pursuing trespass charges. There is a copy of the written exclusion notice in that report

| secured both reports in evidence as ltem #004.
| also requested SMC Surveiilance provide me a copy of the surveillance footage. | will attach that to

this report once received.

Security also identified Ms. [l as the female that was with [JJJJJJl| | lcoked up Ms.
B 0!V photo and noted it was a match for the female that attempted to stop me from

arresting

At this time, ! have probable cause to arrest Ms. |l for the following crimes:
ORS 162.325 Hindering prosecution, due to Ms. [|ili] physically attempting to stop me from

taking

into custody on his Felony warrant, when she continually stepped between me

and and refused orders to step aside;

ORS 162.247 Interfering with a police officer, due to Ms. [JJi] refusing orders to get on the
ground, as well as refusing orders to step aside when [ attempted to take [ into

custody.
CASE CLOSED BY ARREST
Copy of report to the Polk County District Attorney
SUMMARY
REVIEW STATUS: PENDING REVW REVIEWED BY: DATE: 8/14/2017 9:45:15AM
INVESTIGATOR ASSIGNED: ASSIGNED DATE:
DEPT. CASE DISPOSITION: ARREST DATE: 8/1472017 9:44:34AM
UCR STATUS: NA DATE: 8/13/2017 5:44:01PM  IBR EXEP CLEAR CLASS: NA
Reporting Officar Reviewed/Approved by Date Reviewed/Approved ]

G108 WOLFER,JAMES
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IHCIdent Supplement Print Date: 08/14/2017 13:39:22

GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DEPARTMENT

CaselD Supplement ID Occinmad Date Eveont Type
GRT17000673 341696 08/13/2017 17:04 TRESP1
Location .

27100 SALMON RIVER HWY

Stbjact

RECOVERY OF ANTI-FELON IDENTIFICATION TAG (AFID TAG)

Dept Routing

;s PCDA

NARRATIVE

On 08/13/2017 at approximately 20:15 hours, Grand Ronde Tribal Officer James Wolfer returned from
transporting his custody fo Polk County Jail. Officer Wolfer advised me that he had deployed the
Taser Probes and asked for help in securing the evidence.

| asked Officer Wolfer if he had recovered any Anti-Felon Identification Tags (AFID Tags), and he

advised me that he could not locate any.
| returned to the area where Ofc. Wolfer's Taser was deployed and recovered two AFID Tags with

matching serial numbers. | transported the AFID Tags to the Grand Ronde Police Department where |
placed them onto clear tape so the numbers were ciearly visible. | then placed the tape and tags into
an evidence bag and secured it into a locked evidence locker.

This ended my involvement in the case.

CASE STATUS: CLOSED

OFFENSES

INVOLVED PARTIES

_ PROPERTY
Hem # Tag Category Make Maodel Serial #
002 R1700673G107002 LAW ENF EQ C4103AMCR
OAN
Oascription
TWO ANTI-FELON IDENTIFICATION TAGS SECURED ON INVISIBLE TAPE
Drug Type Drug Welght Quantity Weapon SizefGalibre NCIC UCR
2
“Ownarship Praparly Status  Eslimale Property Stalus  Estimate
Name: Evidence: Y 1.00
Phone:
Address:
Racoverad! Seized From Selzure
Name: Location:
Address: Officer;
Officer ld: G107 Officer Name: TEHAMA,TOKATA Agency: GRT Date: 8/13/2017 21:44
Reviewed Status. PENDING REVW | Reviewed by: Date: 8/13/2017 21:53
PRIORS: geo911 Inc Case GRTT7000673 Suppl.” 341696 Page 1 of 2
iD; 10






Inczdent Supplement Print Date:r 08/14/2017 13:39:22

GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DEPARTMENT

Gase D Supplement ID Cocurrad Date Event Type

GRT17000673 341696 08/13/2017 17:04 TRESP1

Location

27100 SALLMON RIVER HWY

Subject

RECOVERY OF ANTI-FELON IDENTIFICATION TAG (AFID TAG)

Dept Rouling

: PCDA

Phone: I Recovered Date:

VEHICLES
MO
Officer Id: G107 Officer Name: TEHAMA,TOKATA Agency: GRT Date: 8/13/2017 21:44
Reviewed Status:  PENDING REVW | Reviewed by: Date: 8/13/2017 21:53
PRIORS: geo97T g Case GRTT7000673 Suppl. 3471698 Page 2 of 2
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Probable Cause Affidavit

State of Oregon ) Arresting Agency: Grand Ronde Tribal PD  Venue: [X] Polk County [] Other
)
County of Polk ) Circuit Court: Dallas Municipal Court: [ ]  Monmouth Municipal Court: []

Behavioral Health Evaluation:  Yes:[ ]  No:

/, the undersigned peace officer, after being duly sworn upon
oath do hereby swear or affirm that the following information is
true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Arrestee: ||| NG TN Date & Time of Arrest: 8/13/2017 at 1711 hours
Arresting Officer: J. Wolfer Date of Grime(s): 8/13/2017 Venue: ] Polk County [_] Other
Crime(s} Alleged:

ORS 164.245 Criminal Trespass |l

ORS 162.247 Interfering with a Police Officer

ORS 162.315 Resisting arrest

ORS 166.025 Disorderly conduct in the second degree
Felony Warrant, Yamhill County Warrant 17CR53185

Facts supporting probable cause:

On 8/13/2017 at 1703 hours | was dispatched to Spirit Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Salmon River Highway,

Grand Ronde, Polk County, Oregon for report of a maie at the location trespassing. Dispatch advised that the male
was G T DOBh and advised that he had been trespass from that location in the past and
was not allowed to be at the location. While en route, dispatch advised that Mr. had a felony warrant out
of Yamhill County and that he had a history of resisting arrest and cautions for assaulting a police officer.

| asked for a cover unit and went towards the location. The closest cover unit was a Polk County deputy coming

from the Dalfas area. | called Casino Security, who advised that Mr. q was being confrontational with
security staff and they were following him to the valet entrance. | went to the valet entrance and Security pointed

out Mr. | had previously pulled up Mr. |l CMV photo and recognized Mr. F it should be
noted that Mr. has been arrested on previous occasions for being at Spirit Mountain Casino, and he s

awars he Is permanently trespassed from that location.

to the

Mr. was with a female that he later said was his mother. | drew my taser and ordered Mr.
ground. Mr. began yelling at me and refusing to cocperate. | continued to order Mr. to tay on the
ground and he continued to refuse. The female kept stepping in between myself and Mr. and he started

walking away. | told Mr. to stop while pointing my taser at MrH with it turned on, and he turned
towards me. [ observad Mr. take an aggressive stance towards me while yelling, "squaring up" his body,

and | was afraid that he was going to try and assault me. It shouid be noted that Mr. is taller than me and
his mother continued to try to confront me as well, and | knew my closest cover unit was around 5-10 minutes

away. I pulled the trigger and activated the Taser, hitting Mr. in the upper Torso area. Mr. q fell to
the ground. { told him to turn over and he did. | told Mr. at he was under arrest for trespass and for a
felony warrant.

| placed handeuffs on Mr. [l Atter piacing the handcuffs on Mr. [l before ! could double lock them,







he began to try and roll away from me and yell at me that he did not do anything. | told Mr. * to stop
resisting and | tried to hold Mr. down but he continued to try and roll away from me while yeiling at me. |

activated the taser a second time as | felt that Mr. was attempting to try and get up and push me off of
him. During this time, the female continued to yell at me and approach me while 1 yelled at her to stay back. After
the second taser cycle, Mr. stopped resisting. Security was keeping the female subject away from us.

Mr. [l aoreed to not try and resist ani/ more, and { had him sit up. | asked Mr. - if he had any injuries

and he said no. | observed that Mr. had a strong odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from his breath

and person and observed his speech to be slurred. A family member of Mr. came outside and tried to talk
M. h into belng more calm, as he was ieliini loudly at me at times. Mr. did not recognize the

family member, who Identified himself as Mr. brother. From my training and experience as a police

officer, | balieved Mr. was intoxicated.

| asked for medics to come and they arrived. When my cover unit, Deputy LaCombe arrived, medics came in and
removed the Taser probes from Mr. and determined he had no injuries and was okay to be transported to

the Polk County Jail.

While en route to the Polk County Jail, Mr. [JJJJJiJ wouid alternate between being quiet and banging his head on
the window of my patrol vehicle while screaming at me. Mr. [JJJJij a'so told me that he would kil me, either
tonight or next time he saw me.

At the Polk County Jail, Mr. | refused to cooperate with jail deputies to be medically cleared. | took Mr.
to West Valley Hospital in Dallas, OR where he was evaluated and medically cleared. | took Mr. [
back to the Poik County Jail where he was lodged on the following crimes:

ORS 164,245 Criminal Trespass Il , for being at Spirit Mountain Casino after previously being arrested for criminal
frespass at that location and being told he was permanently trespassed from the location.

Yamhill County Felony warrant # 17CR53185

ORS 162.247 Interfering with a Police Officer, when Mr. * refused to stop and get on the ground when |
gave him several loud verbal commands to stop walking and lay down on the ground.

ORS 162.315 Resisting arrest: for attempting to pull away from me after | told him he was under arrest.

ORS 1686.025 Disorderly conduct in the second degree: For yelling foudly in the parking lot, causing multiple
patrons to stop and stare, as well as being verbally confrontational with casino security.

Additional statement attached [ ]

Signature of Arresting Officer:

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 200

Release Assistance Offfcer/Deputy

Defendant released before probable cause determination.
Bail
Recog  Deputy Authorizing Release. Dale & Time

[ 11 find probable cause exists to believe the arrestee committed the crime(s).






[ 11 find Insufficient probable cause exists, based on the information provided herein.

Judge: Date

Time







ARREST REPORT

l CASE# 17-673

POLK COUNTY JAIL
NAME OF PERSON ARRESTED ALIAS OR NICKNAME(S}) ARREST DATE
8/13/17
ADDRESS OF ARRESTEE OCCUPATION TIVE
1711 hours

SOGIAL SECURITY # | GITIZENSHIP | BIRTH PLAGE DRIVER'S LICENSE # STATE MAR. STAT | BIRTH DATE

I O} .
AGE RACE SEX | EYES | HAIR LENGTH HEIGHT | WEIGHT B
32 American Indian/Alag M | Browny Brown Short 5'10" | 185 Medium
WHERE ARRESTED HOW ARREST MADE | COURT OFFENSE DATE
Spirit Mountain Casino PC, warrant Polk County 8/13/2017
VICTIM NAME / DOB/ RACE X Drunk Cursed 7 Spit at Officers
Spirit Mountain Casino (3 brinking  [X Resisted Under Influence / Drugs

MENTAL HEALTH
VICTIM NAME / DOB/ RACE CONCERN GANG
[ Yes [INo

WEAFPON IF ARMED OTHER PERSONS ARRESTED FOR SAME OFFENSE
PROPERTY PLACED IN PROPERTY ROOM RECEIPT #
NAME OF COMPLAINANT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
WITNESS'S NAME BEST CONTACT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
1.
WITNESS'S NAME BEST CONTACT ADDRESS BEST PHONE OTHER PHONE
2,
STATUTE CHARGE DESCRIPTION DOMESTIC? CRIME CLASS BAIL
164,245 Criminal Trespass X No C misd
162.247 Interfering with police officer No A misd
162.315 Resisting arrest No A misd
166.025 Disorderly conduct 1T No B misd
Warrant Felony Warrant, Yamhill County # 17CR53185 No Felony







'| OFFICER’S NARRATIVE
On 8/13/2017 at 1703 hours I was dispatched to Spirit Mountain Casino, located at 27100 Salmon River Highway,

Grand Ronde, Polk County, Oregon for report of a male at the location trespassing, Dispatch advised that the male
was I DOB 2/7/1985, and advised that he had been trespass from that location in the past and
was not allowed to be at the location. While en route, dispatch advised that Mr. had a felony warrant out
of Yamhill County and that he had a history of resisting arrest and cautions for assaulting a police officer.

I asked for a cover unit and went towards the location. The closest cover unit was a Polk County deputy coming
from the Dallas area. I called Casino Security, who advised that Mr. ] was being confrontational with
security staff and they were following him to the valet entrance, I went to the valet entrance and Security pointed
out Mr. I had previously pulled up Mr. [JJJJll DMV photo and recognized Mr. [l It should be
noted that Mr. has been arrested on previous occasions for being at Spirit Mountain Casino, and he is

aware he is permanently trespassed from that location,

Mr, was with a female that he later said was his mother. I drew my taser and ordered Mr, to the
ground, Mr, began yelling at me and refusing to cooperate. I continued to order Mr. to lay on
and he

the ground and he continued to refuse. The female kept stepping in between myself and Mz,

started walking away. I told M. to stop while pointing my taser at Mr. [ with it turned on, and he
turned towards me. I observed Mr, take an aggressive stance towards me while yelling, "squaring up" his

body, and I was afraid that he was going to try and assault me. It should be noted that Mr. | is taller than
me and his mother continued to try to confront me as well, and I knew my closest cover unit was around 5-10
minutes away. [ pulled the trigger and activated the Taser, hitting M. in the upper Torso area. Mr.
B ! to the ground. I told him to turn over and he did. I told M. that he was under arrest for

trespass and for a felony warrant.

I placed handeuffs on Mr. [} After placing the handeuffs on Mr. ] before I could double lock them,
he began to try and roll away from me and yell at me that he did not do anything, I told Mr. |} to stop
resisting and I tried to hold Mr. down but he continued to try and roll away from me while yelling at me.

I activated the taser a second time as [ felt that Mr., was attempting to try and get up and push me off of
him. During this time, the female continued to yell at me and approach me while I yelled at her to stay back. After
the second taser cycle, Mr. [ storped resisting. Security was keeping the female subject away from us.

Mr. [l a2reed to not try and resist any more, and I had him sit up. I asked Mr. || if he had any
injuries and he said no. I observed that Mr. had a strong odor of an alcoholic beverage coming from his

breath and person and observed his speech to be slurred. A family member of Mr. came outside and tried
to talk Mr. [Jij into being more calm, as he was yelling loudly at me at times. Mr. did not recognize
the family member, who identified himself as Mr. [ brother. From my training and experience as a police
officer, I believed Mr. [ was intoxicated.

1 asked for medics to come and they arrived. When my cover unit, Deputy LaCombe arrived, medics came in and
removed the Taser probes from Mr. ] and determined he had no injuries and was okay to be transported to

the Polk County Jail.

While en route to the Polk County Jail, Mr. [ would alternate between being quiet and banging his head on
the window of my patrol vehicle while screaming at me. Mr. [JJij 2!so told me that he would kill me, either
tonight or next time he saw me.

At the Polk County jail, Mr. [ refused to cooperate with jail deputies to be medically cleared, I took Mr.

to West Valley Hospital in Dallas, OR where he was evaluated and medically cleared. I took Mr.
back to the Polk County Jail where he was lodged on the following crimes:

ORS 164.245 Criminal Trespass II , for being at Spirit Mountain Casino after previously being arrested for
criminal trespass at that location and being told he was permanently trespassed from the location,

Yamhill County Felony warrant # 17CRS53185
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WarSchool Excuse Letter

%,?) SALEM HEALTH
An OHSU Partner

OHSU

525 Se Washington St
Dallas OR 97338
503-623-8301

August 13, 2017

patent | I

Date of Birth: | ||

Date of Visit: | 8/13/2017

To Whom It May Concern

was seen and treated in our emergency department on 8/13/2017, He
may be lodged in jall without restrictions .

Additional Information:

If you have any questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to call.

Attending Physician Webb C Wilson, MD







7 )) %%%{E%&L?E%ALTH Dallas Oregon Emergencf
su<s  An OHSU Partner |

Physnc:ans

Memo

To Patients of Salem Health West Valley Emergency Department
"From: Dallas Oregon Emergency Physiclans
Re: Patient Blling

Dalias Oregon Emergency Physicians (the “Physicians” group in the Emergency Department at Salem Health West Valley, Dallas
Oregon) Is cumently contracted as in in-network provider with multiple insurance payers.

We will accept the insurance payer’s allowable amount as payment in full (the amount may or may not include
patient's co-insurance, co-pays and/or deductibles).

You are responsible for any applicable co-insurance, co-pay, and/or deductible under your insurance plan up to
the allowed amount.

if you receive an Explanation of Benefits (EOB) statement from your Insuran ayer and it shows
a remaining balance other than the applicable co-insurance, co-pay, and/or deductible, please fax
your EOB to the fax number listed below {use this document as the fax cover) o ensure that the
~ bill is adjusted accordinaly and shows the applicable co-insurance, co-pay, and/or deductible, and
wait for a final statement from the Dallags Oregon Emergency Physicians that will reflect the
corrected balance.

1. Should your insurance company send a check directly to you instead of the Physiclans, elther
A, Sign over and send the insurance check fo Dallas Oregon Emergency Physiclans along with any cc»insuranoe
co-pay, andfor deductlble; or
B.  Cash the insurance check and send a personal check (o Include the insurance payment and applicable co-
insurance, co-pay, andfor deductible) to the Dallas Oregon Emergency Physiclans at the address listed below,
Please Include your EOB, and If you choose option B, please also Include a copy of the insurance check.

Address;

Dallas Oregon Emergency Physlcians
PO Box 88685

Las Vegas, NV. 89193-8585

If you have any questions, our dedicated customer service team can respond immediately. The number is 800-355-2470
{this number is also printed on each staterent)

Fax Number: 610-834-2826
Attention: Michelle Lewls, Patient Liaison (WDO Account)

Bubject: EOB Copy — Request Insurance Adjustment & Revised Biil
Patient Name:

Date of Service (Date of ED Visit):
No. of Pages: :

1
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SALEM HEALTH

WEST VALLEY
An OHSU Partner

OHSU
525 SE Washington St., Dallas, OR 97338
After Visit Summary
8/13/2017 1 P
Survey

If you were given a patient satisfaction survey during this visit, please complete it and place in the box as you
leave. Your opinion does matter to us. [f you have been referred to your PCP or a {ocal doctor for follow up,
please let the office know you were seen in the West Vailey Emergency Department at the time you make
your appointment so that your records can be obtained prior to your visit.

Do you have questions? Here are some numbers to help

1. Imaging (X-ray, Scans) or Lab results: Please contact your primary provider,

2, Discharge instructions from the Emergency Department: Please call 503-623-8301,
ask for the Emergency Department or access your instructions following the
'MyChart' instructions on your discharge documents.

3. Dallas Oregon Emergency Physician bill: Please call 1-800-355-2470 (M-F
0930-4:00)

4. West Valley Hospital bill: Please call 503-581-1747

CHEC

An excellent Salem Health resource for educational information or research on medical conditions
is the Salem Health Community Health Education Center (CHEC) at 503-814-2432 or go online to
Salemhealth.org and click on the CHEC link.

You were seeh by
You were seen by Wilson, Webb C, MD.

Visit Information

Date & Time Department Encounter #
8/13/2017 6:27 PM Emergency Department 55454265

Reason for Visit

MEDICAL CLEARANCE
Reason for Visit History

Clinical Impression
Your diagnosis was MEDICAL CLEARANCE FOR INCARCERATION.
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if you were given prescriptions, they are listed below. PLEASE NOTE: No
refills will be given for prescriptions written in the ED. Please contact your
Physician or referring physician for refills.

¥ Notice

You have not been prescribed any medications.

Additional Information

Based on the information you provided to us, as well as any changes during this visit, the foliowing
list is your updated medication list. Please do the following: » Update or discard any previous
medication lists you may have » Compare this list with your prescription bottles at home and
discard any medications that this list indicates should be stopped. * Bring your most up to date
medication list to your follow up primary care physician visit. * If you have any questions or
concerns., contact your primary care physician's office.

Follow-up Information

Schedule an appointment as soon as possible for a visit with Health, Grand Ronde
Tribal.
Why: As needed, If symptoms worsen
Contact information:
9615 Grand Ronde RD
Grand Ronde OR 97367
1-503-879-5211

Appointments for Next 3 Days
None

MyChart Instructions
Activate your MyChart account today!

Thank you for your interest in signing up for MyChart. Please foliow the instructions below to securely access
your online health information.

Why Should | Sign Up?

» Communicate with your primary care provider's (PCP) office
*+ Request prescription refills

+ View test resuits

* Schedule appointments with your PCP

* Review information from future and past appointments

* Review your discharge instructions

How Do | Sign Up?
1. In your Internet browser, go to http://www.salemhealth.ora/mychart
* Under "New User?" click "Sign Up Now"

2. On the "Please Identify Yourself' screen, enter the following information:
* Your MyChart Activation Code exactly as It appears:

JBSFP-V7TKDJ







I . .

Expires: 9/27/2017 6:35 PM
* Your Date of Birth (mm/dd/yyyy)
« Last 4 digits of your Social Security Number
+ Click Next

3. On the "Choose a Username & Password" screen, enter the following information:
+ Create and Type in a MyChart Username
* Type in a MyChart password
+ Retype your Password
+ Select a Security Question from the dropdown list
+ Type in your Secret Answer
Click Next

*

4. On the "E-mail Notlfications" screen, enter the foilowing information;
+ Click the Yes button to Enable E-mail Notifications
+ Type in your personal e-mail address
+ Retype your e-mail address
* Click Sign In

For help with the MyChart web site please refer to the MyChart home page FAQs at

https://mychart.salemhealth.ora/mychart/default.asp?mode=stdfile&option=fag

For questions about your medical information in MyChart, please contact your doctor or clinic.

Page 3 of §
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SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENT
Prepare for Eclipse on August 21%, 2017

Local authorities have predicted a significant population increase in our community
before, during, and after the eclipse. Please refer to the below suggestions regarding

your healthcare needs during this time,

Community impact:
We anticipate that some community services and medical clinics may be closed on

August 21% the day of the eclipse. If you anticipate needing non-emergent medical
services (lab work, imaging), we encourage you to please call the week prior to
determine their availability.

Go to an emergency department or call 911 for problems such as:
* Suddenly not able to speak, see, walk or move

» Dizziness or weakness that does not go away

* Trouble breathing

* Chest pain, pain in jaw or arm

* Coughing or throwing up blood

» Inhaled smoke or poisonous fumes

* Poisoning or overdose of drug/alcohol

» Unusual or bad headache, sudden onset

* Broken bones, deep wounds, heavy bleeding

» Suicidal thoughts

* Throwing up or loose stools that does not stop

* High fever that does not get better with medicine

* High fever with headache and stiff neck

* Severe allergic reaction with trouble breathing, swelling, hives
* Passing out, fainting

* Chemical burns

» Sudden confusion

* Seizures

* Severe pain anywhere on the body

When to go to an Urgent Care:
* Common illnesses, such as colds, the flu, earaches, sore throats, migraines, low-

grade fevers, and mild rashes
+ Minor injuries, such as sprains, back pain, or minor cuts







GRAND RONDE TRIBAL POLICE DISPATCH REPORT

Case Number: GRT17000673

Response

Page 1 of 3

Locatlon: 27100 SALMON RIVER HW { 27100 SALMON RIVER HW, @SPIRIT MOUNTAIN CASINO (MapBook:2792), POLK COUNTY )

SaguenceNumber: GRT201708130027
Responss Type: TRESP1

Creation Date: 08/13/17 17:04:29
Priority: 3

Primary Unit: G108

Disposition Codes

Code
01- REPORT

Caller information

CallerName: ELLIS, TANNER
Caller Address: SECURITY

Response Statuses

Zone; GRTO1

Dispatch Group: GRTO1

AlarmLevel

TimeStamp
08/13/17 19:37:01

Caller Phone: 503-879-3732

Status Nama Status Date/Time
PENDING 08/1317 17:04:29
DISPATCH 08/13/17 17:06:52
ENROUTE 08/18/17 17:09:66
AT SCENE 08/13/7 17:10:60
TRANSPORT_ 08M3M7 17:37:31
AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:03:06
TRANSPORT_ 08/1317 18:17:19
LEAVE SCENE 08/13/17 18:38:22
AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:38:24
TRANSPORT_ 0B/13/17 18:38:26
AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:40:62
CLEAR 08/13/17 19:37:02
DiSPOSED 08/13M7 19:42:04
Resource Statuses
Resource Name Resource Agency Status Slatus Date/Time
G108 GRT DISPATCH 08/13/17 17.06:52
G108 GRT ENROUTE 08/13/17 17:09:54
G108 * GRT AT SGENE 08/13M17 17:10:50
G108 GRT TRANSPORT_ 081317 17:37:31
G108 GRT AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:03:.06
G108 GHT TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18:17:19
G108 GRT LEAVE SCENE 08/13/17 18:38:22
G108 GRT AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:38:24
G108 GRT TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18:28:26
G108 GRT AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:40:62
G108 GRT CLEAR 08/13/17 19:37:02
Response Notes
Note Date/Time Agent display Name
(@108) G108 Status has been changed to DISPATCH 08/13/17 17:06:53 PPSS
Agent:ABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP1{0
{G108) G108 Status has been changsd to ENROUTE 08/13/17 17.09:55 PPSS
Agent: ABRANLUND Workstation:CP10
(G108) G108 Status has been changed to AT SCENE 08/13/17 17:10:50 PFSS
Agent ABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP10

i
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(G108) ONE TASED 08/13/17 17:13:16 ABRANLUND
Mllestone of "GRT201708130027" has bsen modified to "CODE 4* 08/13/17 17:18:03 ABRANLUND
{G108) G108 Status has been changed to TRANSPORT 08/13/17 17:37:31 |PPSS
Agent ABRANLUND Workstation:CP10
Milestone of “GRT201708130027" has been modifled to "LOCATE 08/13/17 17:45:16 ABRANLUND
ROUTED"
(G108) G108 Status has been changed to AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:03:06 PPSS
Agent:ABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP10 I
(Gi108) G108 Status has been changed o TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18:17:19 ‘PPSS
Agent.ABRANLUND Woaorkstation:CP10
(G108) G108 Status has bean changed to LEAVE SCENE 08/13/17 18:38:22 PPSS
Agent ABRANLUND Workstation:CP10
(G108) G108 Status has been changed to AT_FACILITY 08/13/17 18:38:24 PPSS
Agent: ABRANLUND Workstatlon:CP10
(G108) G108 Status has been changed o TRANSPORT_ 08/13/17 18:38:27 PPSS
Agent ABRANLUND Workstation:CP10
(G108) PCJ 08/13/17 18:38:35 ABRANLUND
[(G108) G108 Status has been changed to AT_FACILITY Agent:RHAY|08/13/17 18:40:562 PPSS
Workstatlon:CP10
(G108} G108 Status has been changed lo CLEAR Agent:RHAY 08/13/17 19:37:03 PPSS
Workstation:CP10 I
Incident Notes
INote Date/Time JAgent display Name
(6503-879-3732] MALE AT LOC WHO IS TRESPASSING.. MALE IS |08/13/17 17:03:38 IMGWYN
IN THE SUMMIT VIEW LOUNGE
|[50&879—3732] WILLING TO PRESS CHARGES 08/13/17 17.03:42 MGWYN
[603-878-3732] MAL APX 30'S 08/13/17 17:04:16 MGWYN
‘ g503~879-3732} MALE HAS BEEN TRESPASSED BEFORE 08/13/17 17:04:24 MGWYN
oo 08/13/17 17:04:40 MEWYN
MALEMWMA,MED BUILD,DARK HAIR,UNK CLOTHING 08/13/17 17:05:20 IMGWYN
UNK WEAPONS/ MALE IS INTOXICATED ON ALCOHOL 08/13/17 17:05:52 IMGWYN
SECURITY OFCR'S ARE WATCHING MALE 08/13/17 17:06:02 IMGWYN
**CONFIRMED OFN/ASSAULT 2 DOW/2017/08/11 CRT/ORO036015J {08/13/17 17:09:45 ABRANLUND
- YAMHILL COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT WTP/FEL. WNO/17CR53185
EBAL/150000—00..FELONY CAUTION**
STEPPING UP RESPONSE 08/13/17 17:10:190 ABRANLUND
SUBJ iS NOW CONFRONTATIONAL ON SUBJ |o8/13/17 17:11:26 ABRANLUND
YAMHILL CO HAS PC THEY HAVE PC |08/13.’17 17:11:48 ABRANLUND
HOLL MEDICS loa/13/17 17:13:46 ABRANLUND
CALING YCOM,, FOR MEDICS 08/13/17 17:14:09 ABRANLUND
QUTSIDE VALLET 08/13/17 17:14:44 ABRANLUND
G108 ON GROUND HOLDING HIM UNTIl. COVER ARRIVES 08/13/17 17:16:26 ABRANLUND
G108 CODE 4 FOR MEDICS TO ENTER..SUBJS STILLON THE ~ [08/13/17 17:18:52 ABRANLUND
GROUND BUT BEING COMPLIANT
P020>> COMPLETE CODE 4 08/13/17 17:31:85 ABRANLUND
PCJ WILL NEED MULT!PLE DEPS.. THREATS TO OFFICERS 08/13/17 17:48:13 ABRANLUND
ETA 10.. JAIL ADVISED 08/13/17 17:49:02 ABRANLUND
Disposition Notes
[note |Date/Time |Agent dispiay Name i
Person Information
First
Last Name: ||| Name: Middie Name: PINE  Gender:Race:
HIGH

License: State:

DOB: 02/07/85






Address: 28476 MCPHERSON RD SPC 4 GRAND RONDE OR
97347

Property Information

Vehicle Information

City:

Phone Numbar:
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Confederated Tribes of Grand

Ronde Police Department
Policy Manual

Conducted Energy Device

304.1 PURPOSE AND SCOPE
This policy provides guidelines for the issuance and use of TASER® devices.

304.2 POLICY
The TASER device is intended to control a viclent or potentially violent individual, while minimizing

the risk of serious injury. The appropriate use of such a device should resuit in fewer serious
injuries to officers and suspects.

304.3 1SSUANCE AND CARRYING TASER DEVICES
Only members who have successfully completed department-approved training may be issued

and carry the TASER device.

TASER devices are issued for use during a member's current assignment. Those leaving a
particular assignment may be required to return the device to the department’s inventory.

Officers shall only use the TASER device and cartridges that have been issued by the Department.
Uniformed officers who have been issued the TASER device shall wear the device in an approved

holster on their person.

Members carrying the TASER device should perform a spark test on the unit prior to every shift.

(8) Al TASER devices shall be clearly and distinctly marked to differentiate them from the duty
weapon and any other device.

(b)  Whenever practicable, officers should carry two or more cartridges on their person when
carrying the TASER device.

(c) Officers shall be responsible for ensuring that their issued TASER device is properly
maintained and in good working order.

(d) Officers should not hoid both a firearm and the TASER device at the same time.

304.4 VERBAL AND VISUAL WARNINGS
A verbal warning of the intended use of the TASER device should precede its application,

uniess it would otherwise endanger the safety of officers or when it is not practicable due to the
circumstances. The purpose of the warning is to:

(a) Provide the individuai with a reasonable opportunity to voluntarily comply.

(b) Provide other officers and individuals with a warning that the TASER device may be
deployed.

if, after a verbal warning, an individual is unwilling to voluntarity comply with an officer's lawful
orders and it appears both reasonable and feasible under the circumstances, the officer may, but
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Poticy Manuaf

Conducted Energy Device

is not required to, display the electrical arc {provided that a cartridge has not been loaded into the
device), or the laser in a further attempt to gain compliance prior to the application of the TASER
device. The aiming laser should never be intentionally directed into the eyes of another as it may
permanently impair his/her vision.

The fact that a verbal or other warning was given or the reasons it was not given shall be
documented by the officer deploying the TASER device in the related report.

304.5 USE OF THE TASER DEVICE
The TASER device has limitations and restrictions requiring consideration before its use. The

TA